
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
Tuesday, September 3, 2019 

Immediately following the  
Bartlesville Education Authority 

Special Meeting beginning at 7 p.m. 
 

Mayor Dale Copeland 
918-338-4282 

 

City Hall, Council Chambers 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

AGENDA 
 

1. Call to order the business meeting of the Bartlesville City Council by Mayor Copeland. 
 

2. Roll Call and Establishment of a Quorum. 
 

3. Citizens to be heard. 
 

4. City Council Announcements and Proclamations. 
• Lt. Robb and Dr. Holly Fouts Day-September 23, 2019 
• Library Card Sign-Up Month-September 2019 
• Constitution Week-September 17-23, 2019 

 
5. Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committee Openings  

• One opening on the City Planning Commission 
• One opening on the Bartlesville Library Board 

 
6. Consent Docket 

a. Approval of Minutes 
i. The Regular Meeting Minutes of August 5, 2019. 

 
 b. Approval and/or Ratification of Appointments and Reappointments to Authorities, 

Boards, Commissions and Committees 
  i. Appointment of Ms. Jana Tresher to fill an unexpired term on the Street and Traffic 

Committee, at the recommendation of Councilman Stuart. 
  ii. Appointment of Ms. Jessica Rovenstine to a three-year term on the Bartlesville Area 

History Museum Trust Authority, at the recommendation of Councilman Stuart. 
  
 c. Approval of Agreements and Contracts 
  i. Contract and the LSTA Terms and Conditions Agreement between the Oklahoma 

Department of Libraries and the Bartlesville Public Library Literacy Services for the 
Health Literacy Grant 2020. 

  ii. Contract and the LSTA Terms and Conditions Agreement between the Oklahoma 
Department of Libraries and the Bartlesville Public Library Literacy Services for the 
Immigration and Citizenship Grant 2020. 

  iii.         Agreement with W. T. Cox Information Services for the Bartlesville Public Library 
subscription services for September 2019-2020. 

  iv. Agreement with Kellogg and Sovereign Consulting, LLC to complete and certify e-rate 
forms for 2020-2021 on behalf of the Bartlesville Public Library. 

  v. Contract with McAnaw Construction for pre-construction services for the Water Utilities 
Building Renovation. 

  vi. Professional service contract with Freese and Nichols, Inc. for design services on a 20-
in water line along Frank Phillips between Silver Lake and US 75. 

  vii. Professional service contract with NEO Design, LLC for design services and bridge 
assessments at the Sunset Bridge over Butler Creek, Tuxedo Bridges over the Caney 
River and Tuxedo Bridge over the Caney River overflow.  

  viii. Professional service contract with Olsson for design services on the Hillcrest Drive 
Reconstruction Project. 



 
 
 
 
 d. Receipt of Financials 
  i. Interim financials for the nine months ending March 31, 2019. 
  ii. Interim financials for the ten months ending April 30, 2019. 
  iii.        Interim financials for the eleven months ending May 31, 2019. 
     
 e. Receipt of Bids 
  i. Bid No. 2019-2020-010 for Price Fields Renovation Project – Phase III 
  ii. Bid No. 2019-2020-012 for Sooner Park Pavilion 
  

7. Discuss and take action to award Bid No. 2019-2020-012 for Sooner Park Pavilion. Presented 
by Mr. Dorsey. 

 
8. Presentation, discuss and take action to receive the Annual Financial Statements and 

Independent Auditor’s Reports as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. Presented by 
Andy Cromer, CPA, Arledge & Associates, P.C. Certified Public Accountants. 

 
9. Consideration and action on a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Bartlesville, 

Oklahoma (the “City”) approving the incurrence of indebtedness by the Bartlesville Education 
Authority (the “Authority”) issuing its Lease Revenue Note, Series 2019 (Bartlesville Public 
Schools) (the “Note”); providing that the organizational document creating the Authority is 
subject to the provisions of the Note Indenture authorizing the issuance of said Note; waiving 
competitive bidding with respect to the sale of said Note and approving the proceedings of the 
authority pertaining to the sale of said Note; and containing other provisions relating thereto. 
Presented by Jon Wolff, Financial Advisor, Municipal Finance Services, Inc. 

 
10. Discuss and take possible action on a proposal from Jon Lindblom of Safari Smiles for an 

installation of an 18-hole disc golf course on property owned by the City of Bartlesville. 
Presented by Lisa Beeman, Director of Community Development and Park Planning. 

 
11. Discuss and take action on Change Order #1 with Jonesplan LLC for the Tower Center at 

Unity Square Project. Presented by Terry Lauritsen, Director of Water Utilities. 
 

12. Discuss and take possible action to approve an agreement with Tri County Technology Center 
for leasing of office space for an East Side Substation of the Bartlesville Police Department. 
Presented by Police Chief Tracy Roles. 

 
13. New Business. 

 
14. City Manager and Staff Reports.   

 
15. City Council Comments and Inquiries. 

 
16. Adjournment. 

 
The Agenda was received and filed in the Office of the City Clerk and posted in prominent public 
view at City Hall at 5:00 on Thursday, August 29, 2019. 

   

Jason Muninger     /s/ Elaine Banes 
Jason Muninger, City Clerk/CFO           by Elaine Banes, Deputy City Clerk 
 
All discussion items are subject to possible action by the City Council.  Agenda items requiring a public hearing as required by law will 
be so noted. The City Council may at their discretion change the order of the business agenda items. City of Bartlesville encourages 
participation from all its citizens.  If participation at any public meeting is not possible due to a disability, notification to the City Clerk at 
least one working day prior to the scheduled meeting is encouraged to make the necessary accommodations.  The City may waive this 
rule if signing is not the necessary accommodation. 



   

   
   

Official Proclamation   
LLtt..  RRoobbbb  aanndd  DDrr..  HHoollllyy  FFoouuttss  DDaayy  

SSeepptteemmbbeerr  2233,,  22001199  
  

WHEREAS, Lt. Robb Fouts proudly served the citizens of the City of Bartlesville for over 20 years.   
 
WHEREAS, Lt. Fouts passed away unexpectedly on September 23, 2018. 
 
WHEREAS, Lt. Fouts was a dedicated and committed father, husband, friend, mentor, colleague and 
Police Officer.   
 
WHEREAS, Lt. Fouts left a legacy as a valued leader of his patrol shift and its personnel.  
 
WHEREAS, Lt. Fouts was an important member of the law enforcement profession and is 
remembered as one of Bartlesville’s finest.  
 
WHEREAS, Dr. Holly Fouts was the loving wife of Lt. Robb Fouts and  served the Bartlesville 
community as an Emergency Room Physician for 19 years.   
 
WHEREAS, Dr. Holly Fouts passed away unexpectedly on June 15, 2019. 
 
WHEREAS, Dr. Holly Fouts was a strong supporter of the Bartlesville Police Department and a loving 
advocate for law enforcement wellness. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Bartlesville City Council does hereby officially proclaim September 23, 
2019 as “Lt. Robb and Dr. Holly Fouts Day” and urge all citizens to never forget the impact Robb and 
Holly Fouts had on this community and show appreciation for their dedication and service. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we hereunto set our hands and caused the Official Seal of the City of 
Bartlesville, Oklahoma, to be affixed this 3rd day of September, in the year of our Lord two thousand 
and nineteen. 

 
__________________________                    

 Dale Copeland, Ward 1 and Mayor 
 

__________________________                    
                               Paul Stuart, Ward 2 

 
  __________________________                     

                                        Jim Curd, Jr., Ward 3 
 

    ___________________________                    
                   Alan Gentges, Ward 4 and Vice Mayor 

 
__________________________                  

                              Trevor Dorsey, Ward 5 
 

Agenda Item 4.a.



   

   
   

Official Proclamation 
LLiibbrraarryy  CCaarrdd  SSiiggnn--UUpp  MMoonntthh  

SSeepptteemmbbeerr  22001199  
  

WHEREAS, libraries play a vital role in the educational, business, recreational, and 
social lives of Bartlesville’s citizens; and 
 
WHEREAS, libraries are places of opportunity, helping citizens of all ages and 
backgrounds to lead better, more satisfying lives; and 
 
WHEREAS, libraries are essential for a free people, protecting our right to know by 
providing a full spectrum of ideas, resources, and services; and 
 
WHEREAS, libraries preserve our past, inspire our future, connecting us with books and 
other materials that help us to learn from the past and prepare for the future; and 
 
WHEREAS, libraries are to be celebrated for the values of learning and discovery they 
help build among children, youth, and adults; and 
 
WHEREAS, the library card is the smartest card and opens doors to the rich resources 
needed for a free society, providing access to a goldmine of books, magazines, CDs, 
videos, computers and more; and  
 
WHEREAS, libraries continue to transform and expand their services in ways that meet 
the needs of the communities they serve. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Bartlesville City Council does hereby officially proclaim 
September as “Library Card Sign-Up Month” and urge all citizens to visit our Bartlesville 
Library, sign up for library cards, and utilize our library’s resources. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we hereunto set our hands 
and caused the Official Seal of the City of Bartlesville, 
Oklahoma, to be affixed this 3rd day of September, in 
the year of our Lord two thousand and nineteen.  

 
__________________________                    
  Dale Copeland, Ward 1 and Mayor   
 
__________________________                    
                 Paul Stuart, Ward 2 
 
__________________________                     
               Jim Curd, Jr., Ward 3 
 

 __________________________                    
Alan Gentges, Ward 4 and Vice Mayor 
 
__________________________                      
              Trevor Dorsey, Ward 5  
 

Agenda Item 4.b.



   

   
   

Official Proclamation 
Constitution Week  

September 17-23, 2019 
 

Whereas, The Constitution of the United States of American, the guardian of our 
liberties, embodies the principles of limited government in a Republic dedicated to rule 
by law; and 

Whereas, September 17, 2017 marks the two hundred thirtieth anniversary of the 
framing of the Constitution of the United States of America by the Constitutional 
Convention; and  

Whereas, It is fitting and proper to accord official recognition to this magnificent 
document and its memorable anniversary, and to the patriotic celebration which will 
commemorate the occasion; and  

Whereas, Public Law 915 guarantees the issuing of a proclamation each year by the 
President of the United States of America designating September 17 through 23 as 
Constitution Week. 

Now therefore, the Bartlesville, Oklahoma City Council, do hereby proclaim the 
week of September 17 through 23 as Constitution Week and ask our citizens to reaffirm 
the ideals of the Framers of the Constitution had in 1787 by vigilantly protecting the 
freedoms guaranteed to us through this guardian of our liberties, remembering that lost 
rights may never be regained.   

 In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set 
my hand and  caused  the  Seal  of  the  City of 
Bartlesville to be affixed this 3rd day of 
September in  the  year of our Lord, Two 
Thousand Nineteen. 

 
      

                                                                                                                                        
                                   Dale W. Copeland, Ward 1 and Mayor 

        
                                                                                                                                        

                                               Paul Stuart, Ward 2 
             

                                                                                                                                          
                                                             Jim Curd, Jr., Ward 3 

 
                                                                              

                                       Alan Gentges, Ward 4 and Vice Mayor 
 
                                                                             

                                                  Trevor Dorsey, Ward 5 
  

Agenda Item 4.c.



Agenda Item 6.a.i.





















Agenda Item ___ 
August 16, 2019 

Prepared by Micah Siemers, P.E. 
Director of Engineering 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Appointment of Ms. Jana Tresher to the Street/Traffic Committee. 
 
Attachments: 

Ms. Tresher’s application to serve on the Street/Traffic Committee. 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
Dan Oglesbee resigned from the Committee in June, leaving his three-year term open, expiring 
February 2021. Ms. Tresher expressed interest in serving on the Committee per her application. 
She is a retired AT&T manager where she worked in the business sector, working with all levels 
of management. 
 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Discuss and take action to approve the appointment of Ms. Jana Tresher to fill Mr. Oglesbee’s 
unexpired term, at Councilman Stuart’s recommendation.  Please set this appointment for 
approval at the next City Council agenda.  

6.b.i.





6.b.ii.







6.c.i.























6.c.ii.























6.c.iii.





























6.c.iv.









1 
 

 

 
Agenda Item ___    

August 28, 2019 
Prepared by Terry Lauritsen 

Water Utilities  
 

 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

Approval of a contract with McAnaw Construction for pre-construction services 
for the Water Utilities Building Renovation. 

Attachments: 
 Contract 
 McAnaw Resume 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

One of the capital projects approved this fiscal year through the Water Capital 
Reserve Fund was the renovation/expansion of the Water Utilities Building (the 
renovation concept is shown on the following page).  The overall budget for the 
project is $1.5MM.    

Since the project involves remodeling, expansion and new construction, staff wanted 
to bring in a Construction Manager during the design to provide constructability 
reviews as well as cost estimates to ensure the project stays within budget.  Due to 
McAnaw’s Construction Management experience, resume attached, and familiarity 
with the operation yard (they built the Public Works facility in 2014-15), staff 
requested a proposal from McAnaw to provide pre-construction services for the 
project.  The contract form selected for these pre-construction services was the AIA 
A133 – Construction Manager as Constructor where the basis of payment is the Cost 
of the Work Plus a Fee with a Guaranteed Maximum Price.   The cost of the pre-
construction services is $6,500 and will be completed by December 2019 in 
conjunction with the design.   
 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Staff recommends approval of the pre-construction services contract with McAnaw 
for $6,500.  

 

 

6.c.v.



2 
 

 

 



 AIA
®

 Document A133TM – 2009 
Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Construction 
Manager as Constructor where the basis of payment is the 
Cost of the Work Plus a Fee with a 
Guaranteed Maximum Price 
 

AIA Document A133™ – 2009 (formerly A121™CMc – 2003). Copyright © 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or 
distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 12:16:40 ET on 12/27/2018 under Order No.1079472051 
which expires on 05/01/2019, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:  (1683501890) 

 
1 

 

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS: 
The author of this document 
has added information 
needed for its completion. 
The author may also have 
revised the text of the 
original AIA standard form. 
An Additions and Deletions 
Report that notes added 
information as well as 
revisions to the standard 
form text is available from 
the author and should be 
reviewed. 

This document has important 
legal consequences. 
Consultation with an 
attorney is encouraged with 
respect to its completion 
or modification. 

AIA Document A201™–2007, 
General Conditions of the 
Contract for Construction, 
is adopted in this document 
by reference. Do not use 
with other general 
conditions unless this 
document is modified. 

ELECTRONIC COPYING of any 
portion of this AIA®  Document 
to another electronic file is 
prohibited and constitutes a 
violation of copyright laws 
as set forth in the footer of 
this document. 

 
AGREEMENT made as of the 3rd day of September in the year 2019 
(In words, indicate day, month and year.) 
 
BETWEEN the Owner: 
(Name, legal status and address) 
 
City of Bartlesville 
401 South Johnstone Ave. 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 
 
and the Construction Manager: 
(Name, legal status and address) 
 
McAnaw Construction Company 
1700 West Hensley Blvd. 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 
 
for the following Project: 
(Name and address or location) 
 
Bartlesville Water and Wastewater Utilities Building Renovation 
1700 West Adams Blvd. 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 
 
The Architect: 
(Name, legal status and address) 
 
Keleher Architects 
401 South Dewey Ave. 
Suite 216 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 
 
The Owner’s Designated Representative: 
(Name, address and other information) 
 
Terry Lauritsen, P.E 
Director of Water Utilities 
401 South Johnstone Ave. 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AIA Document A133™ – 2009 (formerly A121™CMc – 2003). Copyright © 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or 
distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 12:16:40 ET on 12/27/2018 under Order No.1079472051 
which expires on 05/01/2019, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:  (1683501890) 

 
2 

 

The Construction Manager’s Designated Representative: 
(Name, address and other information) 
 
Barry Collier, AIC, CPC 
Project Manager 
1700 West Hensley Blvd. 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 
 
 
The Architect’s Designated Representative: 
(Name, address and other information) 
 
Dan Keleher, AIA 
401 South Dewey Ave. 
Suite 216 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 
 
 
The Owner and Construction Manager agree as follows. 
 



AIA Document A133™ – 2009 (formerly A121™CMc – 2003). Copyright © 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or 
distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 12:16:40 ET on 12/27/2018 under Order No.1079472051 
which expires on 05/01/2019, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:  (1683501890) 

 
3 

 

TABLE OF ARTICLES 
 
1 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
2 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
3 OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
4 COMPENSATION AND PAYMENTS FOR PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 
 
5 COMPENSATION FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 
 
6 COST OF THE WORK FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE 
 
7 PAYMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 
 
8 INSURANCE AND BONDS 
 
9 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 
10 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 
 
11 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
12 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT 
 
EXHIBIT A   GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE AMENDMENT  
 
ARTICLE 1   GENERAL PROVISIONS 
§ 1.1 The Contract Documents 
The Contract Documents consist of this Agreement, Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary and other 
Conditions), Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to the execution of this Agreement, other documents 
listed in this Agreement, and Modifications issued after execution of this Agreement, all of which form the Contract 
and are as fully a part of the Contract as if attached to this Agreement or repeated herein. Upon the Owner’s 
acceptance of the Construction Manager’s Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal, the Contract Documents will also 
include the documents described in Section 2.2.3 and identified in the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment and 
revisions prepared by the Architect and furnished by the Owner as described in Section 2.2.8. The Contract 
represents the entire and integrated agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, 
representations or agreements, either written or oral. If anything in the other Contract Documents, other than a 
Modification, is inconsistent with this Agreement, this Agreement shall govern. 
 
§ 1.2 Relationship of the Parties 
The Construction Manager accepts the relationship of trust and confidence established by this Agreement and 
covenants with the Owner to cooperate with the Architect and exercise the Construction Manager’s skill and 
judgment in furthering the interests of the Owner; to furnish efficient construction administration, management 
services and supervision; to furnish at all times an adequate supply of workers and materials; and to perform the 
Work in an expeditious and economical manner consistent with the Owner’s interests. The Owner agrees to furnish 
or approve, in a timely manner, information required by the Construction Manager and to make payments to the 
Construction Manager in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 1.3 General Conditions 
For the Preconstruction Phase, AIA Document A201™–2007, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction, 
shall apply only as specifically provided in this Agreement. For the Construction Phase, the general conditions of the 
contract shall be as set forth in A201–2007, which document is incorporated herein by reference. The term 
“Contractor” as used in A201–2007 shall mean the Construction Manager. 
 



AIA Document A133™ – 2009 (formerly A121™CMc – 2003). Copyright © 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or 
distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 12:16:40 ET on 12/27/2018 under Order No.1079472051 
which expires on 05/01/2019, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:  (1683501890) 

 
4 

 

ARTICLE 2   CONSTRUCTION MANAGER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
The Construction Manager’s Preconstruction Phase responsibilities are set forth in Sections 2.1 and 2.2. The 
Construction Manager’s Construction Phase responsibilities are set forth in Section 2.3. The Owner and 
Construction Manager may agree, in consultation with the Architect, for the Construction Phase to commence prior 
to completion of the Preconstruction Phase, in which case, both phases will proceed concurrently. The Construction 
Manager shall identify a representative authorized to act on behalf of the Construction Manager with respect to the 
Project. 
 
§ 2.1 Preconstruction Phase 
§ 2.1.1 The Construction Manager shall provide a preliminary evaluation of the Owner’s program, schedule and 
construction budget requirements, each in terms of the other.  
 
§ 2.1.2 Consultation 
The Construction Manager shall schedule and conduct meetings with the Architect and Owner to discuss such 
matters as procedures, progress, coordination, and scheduling of the Work. The Construction Manager shall advise 
the Owner and the Architect on proposed site use and improvements, selection of materials, and building systems 
and equipment. The Construction Manager shall also provide recommendations consistent with the Project 
requirements to the Owner and Architect on constructability; availability of materials and labor; time requirements 
for procurement, installation and construction; and factors related to construction cost including, but not limited to, 
costs of alternative designs or materials, preliminary budgets, life-cycle data, and possible cost reductions. 
 
§ 2.1.3 When Project requirements in Section 3.1.1 have been sufficiently identified, the Construction Manager shall 
prepare and periodically update a Project schedule for the Architect’s review and the Owner’s acceptance. The 
Construction Manager shall obtain the Architect’s approval for the portion of the Project schedule relating to the 
performance of the Architect’s services. The Project schedule shall coordinate and integrate the Construction 
Manager’s services, the Architect’s services, other Owner consultants’ services, and the Owner’s responsibilities 
and identify items that could affect the Project’s timely completion. The updated Project schedule shall include the 
following: submission of the Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal; components of the Work; times of 
commencement and completion required of each Subcontractor; ordering and delivery of products, including those 
that must be ordered well in advance of construction; and the occupancy requirements of the Owner.  
 
§ 2.1.4 Phased Construction 
The Construction Manager shall provide recommendations with regard to accelerated or fast-track scheduling, 
procurement, or phased construction. The Construction Manager shall take into consideration cost reductions, cost 
information, constructability, provisions for temporary facilities and procurement and construction scheduling 
issues.  
 
§ 2.1.5 Preliminary Cost Estimates 
§ 2.1.5.1 Based on the preliminary design and other design criteria prepared by the Architect, the Construction 
Manager shall prepare preliminary estimates of the Cost of the Work or the cost of program requirements using area, 
volume or similar conceptual estimating techniques for the Architect’s review and Owner’s approval. If the 
Architect or Construction Manager suggests alternative materials and systems, the Construction Manager shall 
provide cost evaluations of those alternative materials and systems. 
 
§ 2.1.5.2 As the Architect progresses with the preparation of the Schematic Design, Design Development and 
Construction Documents, the Construction Manager shall prepare and update, at appropriate intervals agreed to by 
the Owner, Construction Manager and Architect, estimates of the Cost of the Work of increasing detail and 
refinement and allowing for the further development of the design until such time as the Owner and Construction 
Manager agree on a Guaranteed Maximum Price for the Work. Such estimates shall be provided for the Architect’s 
review and the Owner’s approval. The Construction Manager shall inform the Owner and Architect when estimates 
of the Cost of the Work exceed the latest approved Project budget and make recommendations for corrective action. 
 
§ 2.1.6 Subcontractors and Suppliers 
The Construction Manager shall develop bidders’ interest in the Project.  
 
§ 2.1.7 The Construction Manager shall prepare, for the Architect’s review and the Owner’s acceptance, a 
procurement schedule for items that must be ordered well in advance of construction. The Construction Manager 
shall expedite and coordinate the ordering and delivery of materials that must be ordered well in advance of 



AIA Document A133™ – 2009 (formerly A121™CMc – 2003). Copyright © 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or 
distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 12:16:40 ET on 12/27/2018 under Order No.1079472051 
which expires on 05/01/2019, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:  (1683501890) 

 
5 

 

construction. If the Owner agrees to procure any items prior to the establishment of the Guaranteed Maximum Price, 
the Owner shall procure the items on terms and conditions acceptable to the Construction Manager. Upon the 
establishment of the Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Owner shall assign all contracts for these items to the 
Construction Manager and the Construction Manager shall thereafter accept responsibility for them.  
 
§ 2.1.8 Extent of Responsibility 
The Construction Manager shall exercise reasonable care in preparing schedules and estimates. The Construction 
Manager, however, does not warrant or guarantee estimates and schedules except as may be included as part of the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price. The Construction Manager is not required to ascertain that the Drawings and 
Specifications are in accordance with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful 
orders of public authorities, but the Construction Manager shall promptly report to the Architect and Owner any 
nonconformity discovered by or made known to the Construction Manager as a request for information in such form 
as the Architect may require. 
 
§ 2.1.9 Notices and Compliance with Laws 
The Construction Manager shall comply with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, and 
lawful orders of public authorities applicable to its performance under this Contract, and with equal employment 
opportunity programs, and other programs as may be required by governmental and quasi governmental authorities 
for inclusion in the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 2.2 Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal and Contract Time 
§ 2.2.1 At a time to be mutually agreed upon by the Owner and the Construction Manager and in consultation with 
the Architect, the Construction Manager shall prepare a Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal for the Owner’s 
review and acceptance. The Guaranteed Maximum Price in the proposal shall be the sum of the Construction 
Manager’s estimate of the Cost of the Work, including contingencies described in Section 2.2.4, and the 
Construction Manager’s Fee.  
 
§ 2.2.2 To the extent that the Drawings and Specifications are anticipated to require further development by the 
Architect, the Construction Manager shall provide in the Guaranteed Maximum Price for such further development 
consistent with the Contract Documents and reasonably inferable therefrom. Such further development does not 
include such things as changes in scope, systems, kinds and quality of materials, finishes or equipment, all of which, 
if required, shall be incorporated by Change Order. 
 
§ 2.2.3 The Construction Manager shall include with the Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal a written statement 
of its basis, which shall include the following:  

.1 A list of the Drawings and Specifications, including all Addenda thereto, and the Conditions of the 
Contract; 

.2 A list of the clarifications and assumptions made by the Construction Manager in the preparation of 
the Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal, including assumptions under Section 2.2.2, to supplement 
the information provided by the Owner and contained in the Drawings and Specifications; 

.3 A statement of the proposed Guaranteed Maximum Price, including a statement of the estimated Cost 
of the Work organized by trade categories or systems, allowances, contingency, and the Construction 
Manager’s Fee; 

.4 The anticipated date of Substantial Completion upon which the proposed Guaranteed Maximum Price 
is based; and 

.5 A date by which the Owner must accept the Guaranteed Maximum Price.  
 
§ 2.2.4 In preparing the Construction Manager’s Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal, the Construction Manager 
shall include its contingency for the Construction Manager’s exclusive use to cover those costs considered 
reimbursable as the Cost of the Work but not included in a Change Order.  
 
§ 2.2.5 The Construction Manager shall meet with the Owner and Architect to review the Guaranteed Maximum 
Price proposal. In the event that the Owner and Architect discover any inconsistencies or inaccuracies in the 
information presented, they shall promptly notify the Construction Manager, who shall make appropriate 
adjustments to the Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal, its basis, or both.  
 
§ 2.2.6 If the Owner notifies the Construction Manager that the Owner has accepted the Guaranteed Maximum Price 
proposal in writing before the date specified in the Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal, the Guaranteed Maximum 



AIA Document A133™ – 2009 (formerly A121™CMc – 2003). Copyright © 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or 
distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 12:16:40 ET on 12/27/2018 under Order No.1079472051 
which expires on 05/01/2019, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:  (1683501890) 

 
6 

 

Price proposal shall be deemed effective without further acceptance from the Construction Manager. Following 
acceptance of a Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Owner and Construction Manager shall execute the Guaranteed 
Maximum Price Amendment amending this Agreement, a copy of which the Owner shall provide to the Architect. 
The Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment shall set forth the agreed upon Guaranteed Maximum Price with the 
information and assumptions upon which it is based.  
 
§ 2.2.7 The Construction Manager shall not incur any cost to be reimbursed as part of the Cost of the Work prior to 
the commencement of the Construction Phase, unless the Owner provides prior written authorization for such costs. 
 
§ 2.2.8 The Owner shall authorize the Architect to provide the revisions to the Drawings and Specifications to 
incorporate the agreed upon assumptions and clarifications contained in the Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Amendment. The Owner shall promptly furnish those revised Drawings and Specifications to the Construction 
Manager as they are revised. The Construction Manager shall notify the Owner and Architect of any inconsistencies 
between the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment and the revised Drawings and Specifications. 
 
§ 2.2.9 The Construction Manager shall include in the Guaranteed Maximum Price all sales, consumer, use and 
similar taxes for the Work provided by the Construction Manager that are legally enacted, whether or not yet 
effective, at the time the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment is executed. 
 
§ 2.3 Construction Phase 
§ 2.3.1 General 
§ 2.3.1.1 For purposes of Section 8.1.2 of A201–2007, the date of commencement of the Work shall mean the date 
of commencement of the Construction Phase. 
 
§ 2.3.1.2 The Construction Phase shall commence upon the Owner’s acceptance of the Construction Manager’s 
Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal or the Owner’s issuance of a Notice to Proceed, whichever occurs earlier. 
 
§ 2.3.2 Administration 
§ 2.3.2.1 Those portions of the Work that the Construction Manager does not customarily perform with the 
Construction Manager’s own personnel shall be performed under subcontracts or by other appropriate agreements 
with the Construction Manager. The Owner may designate specific persons from whom, or entities from which, the 
Construction Manager shall obtain bids. The Construction Manager shall obtain bids from Subcontractors and from 
suppliers of materials or equipment fabricated especially for the Work and shall deliver such bids to the Architect. 
The Owner shall then determine, with the advice of the Construction Manager and the Architect, which bids will be 
accepted. The Construction Manager shall not be required to contract with anyone to whom the Construction 
Manager has reasonable objection. 
 
§ 2.3.2.2 If the Guaranteed Maximum Price has been established and when a specific bidder (1) is recommended to 
the Owner by the Construction Manager, (2) is qualified to perform that portion of the Work, and (3) has submitted 
a bid that conforms to the requirements of the Contract Documents without reservations or exceptions, but the 
Owner requires that another bid be accepted, then the Construction Manager may require that a Change Order be 
issued to adjust the Contract Time and the Guaranteed Maximum Price by the difference between the bid of the 
person or entity recommended to the Owner by the Construction Manager and the amount and time requirement of 
the subcontract or other agreement actually signed with the person or entity designated by the Owner. 
 
§ 2.3.2.3 Subcontracts or other agreements shall conform to the applicable payment provisions of this Agreement, 
and shall not be awarded on the basis of cost plus a fee without the prior consent of the Owner. If the Subcontract is 
awarded on a cost plus fee basis, the Construction Manager shall provide in the Subcontract for the Owner to receive 
the same audit rights with regard to the Subcontractor as the Owner receives with regard to the Construction 
Manager in Section 6.11 below. 
 
§ 2.3.2.4 If the Construction Manager recommends a specific bidder that may be considered a “related party” 
according to Section 6.10, then the Construction Manager shall promptly notify the Owner in writing of such 
relationship and notify the Owner of the specific nature of the contemplated transaction, according to Section 6.10.2. 
 
§ 2.3.2.5 The Construction Manager shall schedule and conduct meetings to discuss such matters as procedures, 
progress, coordination, scheduling, and status of the Work. The Construction Manager shall prepare and promptly 
distribute minutes to the Owner and Architect. 



AIA Document A133™ – 2009 (formerly A121™CMc – 2003). Copyright © 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or 
distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 12:16:40 ET on 12/27/2018 under Order No.1079472051 
which expires on 05/01/2019, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:  (1683501890) 

 
7 

 

 
§ 2.3.2.6 Upon the execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, the Construction Manager shall 
prepare and submit to the Owner and Architect a construction schedule for the Work and submittal schedule in 
accordance with Section 3.10 of A201–2007.  
 
§ 2.3.2.7 The Construction Manager shall record the progress of the Project. On a monthly basis, or otherwise as 
agreed to by the Owner, the Construction Manager shall submit written progress reports to the Owner and Architect, 
showing percentages of completion and other information required by the Owner. The Construction Manager shall 
also keep, and make available to the Owner and Architect, a daily log containing a record for each day of weather, 
portions of the Work in progress, number of workers on site, identification of equipment on site, problems that 
might affect progress of the work, accidents, injuries, and other information required by the Owner. 
 
§ 2.3.2.8 The Construction Manager shall develop a system of cost control for the Work, including regular 
monitoring of actual costs for activities in progress and estimates for uncompleted tasks and proposed changes. The 
Construction Manager shall identify variances between actual and estimated costs and report the variances to the 
Owner and Architect and shall provide this information in its monthly reports to the Owner and Architect, in 
accordance with Section 2.3.2.7 above.  
 
§ 2.4 Professional Services 
Section 3.12.10 of A201–2007 shall apply to both the Preconstruction and Construction Phases. 
 
§ 2.5 Hazardous Materials 
Section 10.3 of A201–2007 shall apply to both the Preconstruction and Construction Phases. 
 
ARTICLE 3   OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
§ 3.1 Information and Services Required of the Owner 
§ 3.1.1 The Owner shall provide information with reasonable promptness, regarding requirements for and limitations 
on the Project, including a written program which shall set forth the Owner’s objectives, constraints, and criteria, 
including schedule, space requirements and relationships, flexibility and expandability, special equipment, systems, 
sustainability and site requirements. 
 
§ 3.1.2 Prior to the execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, the Construction Manager may 
request in writing that the Owner provide reasonable evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to 
fulfill the Owner’s obligations under the Contract. Thereafter, the Construction Manager may only request such 
evidence if (1) the Owner fails to make payments to the Construction Manager as the Contract Documents require, 
(2) a change in the Work materially changes the Contract Sum, or (3) the Construction Manager identifies in writing 
a reasonable concern regarding the Owner’s ability to make payment when due. The Owner shall furnish such 
evidence as a condition precedent to commencement or continuation of the Work or the portion of the Work affected 
by a material change. After the Owner furnishes the evidence, the Owner shall not materially vary such financial 
arrangements without prior notice to the Construction Manager and Architect.  
 
§ 3.1.3 The Owner shall establish and periodically update the Owner’s budget for the Project, including (1) the 
budget for the Cost of the Work as defined in Section 6.1.1, (2) the Owner’s other costs, and (3) reasonable 
contingencies related to all of these costs. If the Owner significantly increases or decreases the Owner’s budget for 
the Cost of the Work, the Owner shall notify the Construction Manager and Architect. The Owner and the Architect, 
in consultation with the Construction Manager, shall thereafter agree to a corresponding change in the Project’s 
scope and quality. 
 
§ 3.1.4 Structural and Environmental Tests, Surveys and Reports. During the Preconstruction Phase, the Owner shall 
furnish the following information or services with reasonable promptness. The Owner shall also furnish any other 
information or services under the Owner’s control and relevant to the Construction Manager’s performance of the 
Work with reasonable promptness after receiving the Construction Manager’s written request for such information 
or services. The Construction Manager shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy of information and services furnished 
by the Owner but shall exercise proper precautions relating to the safe performance of the Work. 
 
§ 3.1.4.1 The Owner shall furnish tests, inspections and reports required by law and as otherwise agreed to by the 
parties, such as structural, mechanical, and chemical tests, tests for air and water pollution, and tests for hazardous 
materials. 



AIA Document A133™ – 2009 (formerly A121™CMc – 2003). Copyright © 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or 
distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 12:16:40 ET on 12/27/2018 under Order No.1079472051 
which expires on 05/01/2019, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:  (1683501890) 

 
8 

 

 
§ 3.1.4.2 The Owner shall furnish surveys describing physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations 
for the site of the Project, and a legal description of the site. The surveys and legal information shall include, as 
applicable, grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements and adjoining property and structures; designated wetlands; 
adjacent drainage; rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, boundaries and 
contours of the site; locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements 
and trees; and information concerning available utility services and lines, both public and private, above and below 
grade, including inverts and depths. All the information on the survey shall be referenced to a Project benchmark.  
 
§ 3.1.4.3 The Owner, when such services are requested, shall furnish services of geotechnical engineers, which may 
include but are not limited to test borings, test pits, determinations of soil bearing values, percolation tests, 
evaluations of hazardous materials, seismic evaluation, ground corrosion tests and resistivity tests, including 
necessary operations for anticipating subsoil conditions, with written reports and appropriate recommendations. 
 
§ 3.1.4.4 During the Construction Phase, the Owner shall furnish information or services required of the Owner by 
the Contract Documents with reasonable promptness. The Owner shall also furnish any other information or services 
under the Owner’s control and relevant to the Construction Manager’s performance of the Work with reasonable 
promptness after receiving the Construction Manager’s written request for such information or services. 
 
§ 3.2 Owner’s Designated Representative 
The Owner shall identify a representative authorized to act on behalf of the Owner with respect to the Project. The 
Owner’s representative shall render decisions promptly and furnish information expeditiously, so as to avoid 
unreasonable delay in the services or Work of the Construction Manager. Except as otherwise provided in Section 
4.2.1 of A201–2007, the Architect does not have such authority. The term “Owner” means the Owner or the 
Owner’s authorized representative. 
 
§ 3.2.1 Legal Requirements. The Owner shall furnish all legal, insurance and accounting services, including auditing 
services, that may be reasonably necessary at any time for the Project to meet the Owner’s needs and interests.  
 
§ 3.3 Architect 
The Owner shall retain an Architect to provide services, duties and responsibilities as described in AIA Document 
B133™–2014, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect, Construction Manager as Constructor 
Edition. The Owner shall provide the Construction Manager a copy of the executed agreement between the Owner 
and the Architect, and any further modifications to the agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 4   COMPENSATION AND PAYMENTS FOR PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 
§ 4.1 Compensation 
§ 4.1.1 For the Construction Manager’s Preconstruction Phase services, the Owner shall compensate the 
Construction Manager as follows: 
 
§ 4.1.2 For the Construction Manager’s Preconstruction Phase services described in Sections 2.1 and 2.2: 
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation and include a list of reimbursable cost items, as applicable.) 
 
Six Thousand Five Hundred Dollars and no cents ($6,500.00) 
 
§ 4.1.3 If the Preconstruction Phase services covered by this Agreement have not been completed within six (6) 
months of the date of this Agreement, through no fault of the Construction Manager, the Construction Manager’s 
compensation for Preconstruction Phase services shall be equitably adjusted.  
 
§ 4.1.4 Compensation based on Direct Personnel Expense includes the direct salaries of the Construction Manager’s 
personnel providing Preconstruction Phase services on the Project and the Construction Manager’s costs for the 
mandatory and customary contributions and benefits related thereto, such as employment taxes and other statutory 
employee benefits, insurance, sick leave, holidays, vacations, employee retirement plans and similar contributions. 
 
§ 4.2 Payments 
§ 4.2.1 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for services shall be made monthly in proportion to services performed.  
 



AIA Document A133™ – 2009 (formerly A121™CMc – 2003). Copyright © 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or 
distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 12:16:40 ET on 12/27/2018 under Order No.1079472051 
which expires on 05/01/2019, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:  (1683501890) 

 
9 

 

§ 4.2.2 Payments are due and payable upon presentation of the Construction Manager’s invoice. Amounts unpaid «  
» ( «  » ) days after the invoice date shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or in the absence thereof at the legal 
rate prevailing from time to time at the principal place of business of the Construction Manager. 
(Insert rate of monthly or annual interest agreed upon.) 
 
«  » % «  » 
 
ARTICLE 5   COMPENSATION FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 
§ 5.1 For the Construction Manager’s performance of the Work as described in Section 2.3, the Owner shall pay the 
Construction Manager the Contract Sum in current funds. The Contract Sum is the Cost of the Work as defined in 
Section 6.1.1 plus the Construction Manager’s Fee. 
 
§ 5.1.1 The Construction Manager’s Fee: 
(State a lump sum, percentage of Cost of the Work or other provision for determining the Construction Manager’s 
Fee.) 
 
«  » 
 
§ 5.1.2 The method of adjustment of the Construction Manager’s Fee for changes in the Work: 
 
«  » 
 
§ 5.1.3 Limitations, if any, on a Subcontractor’s overhead and profit for increases in the cost of its portion of the 
Work: 
 
«  » 
 
§ 5.1.4 Rental rates for Construction Manager-owned equipment shall not exceed «  » percent ( «  » %) of the 
standard rate paid at the place of the Project. 
 
§ 5.1.5 Unit prices, if any: 
(Identify and state the unit price; state the quantity limitations, if any, to which the unit price will be applicable.) 
 

Item Units and Limitations Price per Unit ($0.00) 
     

 
§ 5.2 Guaranteed Maximum Price 
§ 5.2.1 The Construction Manager guarantees that the Contract Sum shall not exceed the Guaranteed Maximum 
Price set forth in the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, as it is amended from time to time. To the extent the 
Cost of the Work exceeds the Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Construction Manager shall bear such costs in excess 
of the Guaranteed Maximum Price without reimbursement or additional compensation from the Owner. 
(Insert specific provisions if the Construction Manager is to participate in any savings.) 
 
«  » 
 
§ 5.2.2 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is subject to additions and deductions by Change Order as provided in the 
Contract Documents and the Date of Substantial Completion shall be subject to adjustment as provided in the 
Contract Documents.  
 
§ 5.3 Changes in the Work 
§ 5.3.1 The Owner may, without invalidating the Contract, order changes in the Work within the general scope of 
the Contract consisting of additions, deletions or other revisions. The Owner shall issue such changes in writing. The 
Architect may make minor changes in the Work as provided in Section 7.4 of AIA Document A201–2007, General 
Conditions of the Contract for Construction. The Construction Manager shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment 
in the Contract Time as a result of changes in the Work. 
 



AIA Document A133™ – 2009 (formerly A121™CMc – 2003). Copyright © 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or 
distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 12:16:40 ET on 12/27/2018 under Order No.1079472051 
which expires on 05/01/2019, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:  (1683501890) 

 
10 

 

§ 5.3.2 Adjustments to the Guaranteed Maximum Price on account of changes in the Work subsequent to the 
execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment may be determined by any of the methods listed in 
Section 7.3.3 of AIA Document A201–2007, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction. 
 
§ 5.3.3 In calculating adjustments to subcontracts (except those awarded with the Owner’s prior consent on the basis 
of cost plus a fee), the terms “cost” and “fee” as used in Section 7.3.3.3 of AIA Document A201–2007 and the term 
“costs” as used in Section 7.3.7 of AIA Document A201–2007 shall have the meanings assigned to them in AIA 
Document A201–2007 and shall not be modified by Sections 5.1 and 5.2, Sections 6.1 through 6.7, and Section 6.8 
of this Agreement. Adjustments to subcontracts awarded with the Owner’s prior consent on the basis of cost plus a 
fee shall be calculated in accordance with the terms of those subcontracts. 
 
§ 5.3.4 In calculating adjustments to the Guaranteed Maximum Price, the terms “cost” and “costs” as used in the 
above-referenced provisions of AIA Document A201–2007 shall mean the Cost of the Work as defined in Sections 
6.1 to 6.7 of this Agreement and the term “fee” shall mean the Construction Manager’s Fee as defined in Section 5.1 
of this Agreement. 
 
§ 5.3.5 If no specific provision is made in Section 5.1.2 for adjustment of the Construction Manager’s Fee in the 
case of changes in the Work, or if the extent of such changes is such, in the aggregate, that application of the 
adjustment provisions of Section 5.1.2 will cause substantial inequity to the Owner or Construction Manager, the 
Construction Manager’s Fee shall be equitably adjusted on the same basis that was used to establish the Fee for the 
original Work, and the Guaranteed Maximum Price shall be adjusted accordingly. 
 
ARTICLE 6   COST OF THE WORK FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE 
§ 6.1 Costs to Be Reimbursed 
§ 6.1.1 The term Cost of the Work shall mean costs necessarily incurred by the Construction Manager in the proper 
performance of the Work. Such costs shall be at rates not higher than the standard paid at the place of the Project 
except with prior consent of the Owner. The Cost of the Work shall include only the items set forth in Sections 6.1 
through 6.7. 
 
§ 6.1.2 Where any cost is subject to the Owner’s prior approval, the Construction Manager shall obtain this approval 
prior to incurring the cost. The parties shall endeavor to identify any such costs prior to executing Guaranteed 
Maximum Price Amendment. 
 
§ 6.2 Labor Costs 
§ 6.2.1 Wages of construction workers directly employed by the Construction Manager to perform the construction 
of the Work at the site or, with the Owner’s prior approval, at off-site workshops. 
 
§ 6.2.2 Wages or salaries of the Construction Manager’s supervisory and administrative personnel when stationed at 
the site with the Owner’s prior approval. 
(If it is intended that the wages or salaries of certain personnel stationed at the Construction Manager’s principal 
or other offices shall be included in the Cost of the Work, identify in Section 11.5, the personnel to be included, 
whether for all or only part of their time, and the rates at which their time will be charged to the Work.) 
 
§ 6.2.3 Wages and salaries of the Construction Manager’s supervisory or administrative personnel engaged at 
factories, workshops or on the road, in expediting the production or transportation of materials or equipment 
required for the Work, but only for that portion of their time required for the Work. 
 
§ 6.2.4 Costs paid or incurred by the Construction Manager for taxes, insurance, contributions, assessments and 
benefits required by law or collective bargaining agreements and, for personnel not covered by such agreements, 
customary benefits such as sick leave, medical and health benefits, holidays, vacations and pensions, provided such 
costs are based on wages and salaries included in the Cost of the Work under Sections 6.2.1 through 6.2.3. 
 
§ 6.2.5 Bonuses, profit sharing, incentive compensation and any other discretionary payments paid to anyone hired 
by the Construction Manager or paid to any Subcontractor or vendor, with the Owner’s prior approval. 
 
§ 6.3 Subcontract Costs 
Payments made by the Construction Manager to Subcontractors in accordance with the requirements of the 
subcontracts. 



AIA Document A133™ – 2009 (formerly A121™CMc – 2003). Copyright © 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or 
distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 12:16:40 ET on 12/27/2018 under Order No.1079472051 
which expires on 05/01/2019, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:  (1683501890) 

 
11 

 

 
§ 6.4 Costs of Materials and Equipment Incorporated in the Completed Construction 
§ 6.4.1 Costs, including transportation and storage, of materials and equipment incorporated or to be incorporated in 
the completed construction. 
 
§ 6.4.2 Costs of materials described in the preceding Section 6.4.1 in excess of those actually installed to allow for 
reasonable waste and spoilage. Unused excess materials, if any, shall become the Owner’s property at the 
completion of the Work or, at the Owner’s option, shall be sold by the Construction Manager. Any amounts realized 
from such sales shall be credited to the Owner as a deduction from the Cost of the Work. 
 
§ 6.5 Costs of Other Materials and Equipment, Temporary Facilities and Related Items 
§ 6.5.1 Costs of transportation, storage, installation, maintenance, dismantling and removal of materials, supplies, 
temporary facilities, machinery, equipment and hand tools not customarily owned by construction workers that are 
provided by the Construction Manager at the site and fully consumed in the performance of the Work. Costs of 
materials, supplies, temporary facilities, machinery, equipment and tools that are not fully consumed shall be based 
on the cost or value of the item at the time it is first used on the Project site less the value of the item when it is no 
longer used at the Project site. Costs for items not fully consumed by the Construction Manager shall mean fair 
market value. 
 
§ 6.5.2 Rental charges for temporary facilities, machinery, equipment and hand tools not customarily owned by 
construction workers that are provided by the Construction Manager at the site and costs of transportation, 
installation, minor repairs, dismantling and removal. The total rental cost of any Construction Manager-owned item 
may not exceed the purchase price of any comparable item. Rates of Construction Manager-owned equipment and 
quantities of equipment shall be subject to the Owner’s prior approval. 
 
§ 6.5.3 Costs of removal of debris from the site of the Work and its proper and legal disposal. 
 
§ 6.5.4 Costs of document reproductions, facsimile transmissions and long-distance telephone calls, postage and 
parcel delivery charges, telephone service at the site and reasonable petty cash expenses of the site office. 
 
§ 6.5.5 That portion of the reasonable expenses of the Construction Manager’s supervisory or administrative 
personnel incurred while traveling in discharge of duties connected with the Work. 
 
§ 6.5.6 Costs of materials and equipment suitably stored off the site at a mutually acceptable location, subject to the 
Owner’s prior approval. 
 
§ 6.6 Miscellaneous Costs 
§ 6.6.1 Premiums for that portion of insurance and bonds required by the Contract Documents that can be directly 
attributed to this Contract. Self-insurance for either full or partial amounts of the coverages required by the Contract 
Documents, with the Owner’s prior approval. 
 
§ 6.6.2 Sales, use or similar taxes imposed by a governmental authority that are related to the Work and for which 
the Construction Manager is liable. 
 
§ 6.6.3 Fees and assessments for the building permit and for other permits, licenses and inspections for which the 
Construction Manager is required by the Contract Documents to pay. 
 
§ 6.6.4 Fees of laboratories for tests required by the Contract Documents, except those related to defective or 
nonconforming Work for which reimbursement is excluded by Section 13.5.3 of AIA Document A201–2007 or by 
other provisions of the Contract Documents, and which do not fall within the scope of Section 6.7.3. 
 
§ 6.6.5 Royalties and license fees paid for the use of a particular design, process or product required by the Contract 
Documents; the cost of defending suits or claims for infringement of patent rights arising from such requirement of 
the Contract Documents; and payments made in accordance with legal judgments against the Construction Manager 
resulting from such suits or claims and payments of settlements made with the Owner’s consent. However, such 
costs of legal defenses, judgments and settlements shall not be included in the calculation of the Construction 
Manager’s Fee or subject to the Guaranteed Maximum Price. If such royalties, fees and costs are excluded by the 



AIA Document A133™ – 2009 (formerly A121™CMc – 2003). Copyright © 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or 
distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 12:16:40 ET on 12/27/2018 under Order No.1079472051 
which expires on 05/01/2019, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:  (1683501890) 

 
12 

 

last sentence of Section 3.17 of AIA Document A201–2007 or other provisions of the Contract Documents, then 
they shall not be included in the Cost of the Work. 
 
§ 6.6.6 Costs for electronic equipment and software, directly related to the Work with the Owner’s prior approval. 
 
§ 6.6.7 Deposits lost for causes other than the Construction Manager’s negligence or failure to fulfill a specific 
responsibility in the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 6.6.8 Legal, mediation and arbitration costs, including attorneys’ fees, other than those arising from disputes 
between the Owner and Construction Manager, reasonably incurred by the Construction Manager after the execution 
of this Agreement in the performance of the Work and with the Owner’s prior approval, which shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. 
 
§ 6.6.9 Subject to the Owner’s prior approval, expenses incurred in accordance with the Construction Manager’s 
standard written personnel policy for relocation and temporary living allowances of the Construction Manager’s 
personnel required for the Work. 
 
§ 6.7 Other Costs and Emergencies 
§ 6.7.1 Other costs incurred in the performance of the Work if, and to the extent, approved in advance in writing by 
the Owner. 
 
§ 6.7.2 Costs incurred in taking action to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss in case of an emergency 
affecting the safety of persons and property, as provided in Section 10.4 of AIA Document A201–2007. 
 
§ 6.7.3 Costs of repairing or correcting damaged or nonconforming Work executed by the Construction Manager, 
Subcontractors or suppliers, provided that such damaged or nonconforming Work was not caused by negligence or 
failure to fulfill a specific responsibility of the Construction Manager and only to the extent that the cost of repair or 
correction is not recovered by the Construction Manager from insurance, sureties, Subcontractors, suppliers, or 
others. 
 
§ 6.7.4 The costs described in Sections 6.1 through 6.7 shall be included in the Cost of the Work, notwithstanding 
any provision of AIA Document A201–2007 or other Conditions of the Contract which may require the 
Construction Manager to pay such costs, unless such costs are excluded by the provisions of Section 6.8. 
 
§ 6.8 Costs Not To Be Reimbursed 
§ 6.8.1 The Cost of the Work shall not include the items listed below: 

.1 Salaries and other compensation of the Construction Manager’s personnel stationed at the 
Construction Manager’s principal office or offices other than the site office, except as specifically 
provided in Section 6.2, or as may be provided in Article 11; 

.2 Expenses of the Construction Manager’s principal office and offices other than the site office; 

.3 Overhead and general expenses, except as may be expressly included in Sections 6.1 to 6.7; 

.4 The Construction Manager’s capital expenses, including interest on the Construction Manager’s 
capital employed for the Work; 

.5 Except as provided in Section 6.7.3 of this Agreement, costs due to the negligence or failure of the 
Construction Manager, Subcontractors and suppliers or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any 
of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable to fulfill a specific responsibility of the Contract; 

.6 Any cost not specifically and expressly described in Sections 6.1 to 6.7;  

.7 Costs, other than costs included in Change Orders approved by the Owner, that would cause the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price to be exceeded; and 

.8 Costs for services incurred during the Preconstruction Phase. 
 
§ 6.9 Discounts, Rebates and Refunds 
§ 6.9.1 Cash discounts obtained on payments made by the Construction Manager shall accrue to the Owner if (1) 
before making the payment, the Construction Manager included them in an Application for Payment and received 
payment from the Owner, or (2) the Owner has deposited funds with the Construction Manager with which to make 
payments; otherwise, cash discounts shall accrue to the Construction Manager. Trade discounts, rebates, refunds and 
amounts received from sales of surplus materials and equipment shall accrue to the Owner, and the Construction 
Manager shall make provisions so that they can be obtained. 



AIA Document A133™ – 2009 (formerly A121™CMc – 2003). Copyright © 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or 
distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 12:16:40 ET on 12/27/2018 under Order No.1079472051 
which expires on 05/01/2019, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:  (1683501890) 

 
13 

 

 
§ 6.9.2 Amounts that accrue to the Owner in accordance with the provisions of Section 6.9.1 shall be credited to the 
Owner as a deduction from the Cost of the Work. 
 
§ 6.10 Related Party Transactions 
§ 6.10.1 For purposes of Section 6.10, the term “related party” shall mean a parent, subsidiary, affiliate or other 
entity having common ownership or management with the Construction Manager; any entity in which any 
stockholder in, or management employee of, the Construction Manager owns any interest in excess of ten percent in 
the aggregate; or any person or entity which has the right to control the business or affairs of the Construction 
Manager. The term “related party” includes any member of the immediate family of any person identified above.  
 
§ 6.10.2 If any of the costs to be reimbursed arise from a transaction between the Construction Manager and a 
related party, the Construction Manager shall notify the Owner of the specific nature of the contemplated 
transaction, including the identity of the related party and the anticipated cost to be incurred, before any such 
transaction is consummated or cost incurred. If the Owner, after such notification, authorizes the proposed 
transaction, then the cost incurred shall be included as a cost to be reimbursed, and the Construction Manager shall 
procure the Work, equipment, goods or service from the related party, as a Subcontractor, according to the terms of 
Sections 2.3.2.1, 2.3.2.2 and 2.3.2.3. If the Owner fails to authorize the transaction, the Construction Manager shall 
procure the Work, equipment, goods or service from some person or entity other than a related party according to 
the terms of Sections 2.3.2.1, 2.3.2.2 and 2.3.2.3. 
 
§ 6.11 Accounting Records 
The Construction Manager shall keep full and detailed records and accounts related to the cost of the Work and 
exercise such controls as may be necessary for proper financial management under this Contract and to substantiate 
all costs incurred. The accounting and control systems shall be satisfactory to the Owner. The Owner and the 
Owner’s auditors shall, during regular business hours and upon reasonable notice, be afforded access to, and shall be 
permitted to audit and copy, the Construction Manager’s records and accounts, including complete documentation 
supporting accounting entries, books, correspondence, instructions, drawings, receipts, subcontracts, Subcontractor’s 
proposals, purchase orders, vouchers, memoranda and other data relating to this Contract. The Construction 
Manager shall preserve these records for a period of three years after final payment, or for such longer period as may 
be required by law. 
 
ARTICLE 7   PAYMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 
§ 7.1 Progress Payments 
§ 7.1.1 Based upon Applications for Payment submitted to the Architect by the Construction Manager and 
Certificates for Payment issued by the Architect, the Owner shall make progress payments on account of the 
Contract Sum to the Construction Manager as provided below and elsewhere in the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 7.1.2 The period covered by each Application for Payment shall be one calendar month ending on the last day of 
the month, or as follows: 
 
«  » 
 
§ 7.1.3 Provided that an Application for Payment is received by the Architect not later than the «  » day of a month, 
the Owner shall make payment of the certified amount to the Construction Manager not later than the «  » day of the 
«  » month. If an Application for Payment is received by the Architect after the application date fixed above, 
payment shall be made by the Owner not later than «  » ( «  » ) days after the Architect receives the Application for 
Payment. 
(Federal, state or local laws may require payment within a certain period of time.) 
 
§ 7.1.4 With each Application for Payment, the Construction Manager shall submit payrolls, petty cash accounts, 
receipted invoices or invoices with check vouchers attached, and any other evidence required by the Owner or 
Architect to demonstrate that cash disbursements already made by the Construction Manager on account of the Cost 
of the Work equal or exceed progress payments already received by the Construction Manager, less that portion of 
those payments attributable to the Construction Manager’s Fee, plus payrolls for the period covered by the present 
Application for Payment. 
 



AIA Document A133™ – 2009 (formerly A121™CMc – 2003). Copyright © 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or 
distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 12:16:40 ET on 12/27/2018 under Order No.1079472051 
which expires on 05/01/2019, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:  (1683501890) 

 
14 

 

§ 7.1.5 Each Application for Payment shall be based on the most recent schedule of values submitted by the 
Construction Manager in accordance with the Contract Documents. The schedule of values shall allocate the entire 
Guaranteed Maximum Price among the various portions of the Work, except that the Construction Manager’s Fee 
shall be shown as a single separate item. The schedule of values shall be prepared in such form and supported by 
such data to substantiate its accuracy as the Architect may require. This schedule, unless objected to by the 
Architect, shall be used as a basis for reviewing the Construction Manager’s Applications for Payment. 
 
§ 7.1.6 Applications for Payment shall show the percentage of completion of each portion of the Work as of the end 
of the period covered by the Application for Payment. The percentage of completion shall be the lesser of (1) the 
percentage of that portion of the Work which has actually been completed, or (2) the percentage obtained by 
dividing (a) the expense that has actually been incurred by the Construction Manager on account of that portion of 
the Work for which the Construction Manager has made or intends to make actual payment prior to the next 
Application for Payment by (b) the share of the Guaranteed Maximum Price allocated to that portion of the Work in 
the schedule of values. 
 
§ 7.1.7 Subject to other provisions of the Contract Documents, the amount of each progress payment shall be 
computed as follows: 

.1 Take that portion of the Guaranteed Maximum Price properly allocable to completed Work as 
determined by multiplying the percentage of completion of each portion of the Work by the share of 
the Guaranteed Maximum Price allocated to that portion of the Work in the schedule of values. 
Pending final determination of cost to the Owner of changes in the Work, amounts not in dispute 
shall be included as provided in Section 7.3.9 of AIA Document A201–2007; 

.2 Add that portion of the Guaranteed Maximum Price properly allocable to materials and equipment 
delivered and suitably stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the Work, or if approved in 
advance by the Owner, suitably stored off the site at a location agreed upon in writing; 

.3 Add the Construction Manager’s Fee, less retainage of «  » percent ( «  » %). The Construction 
Manager’s Fee shall be computed upon the Cost of the Work at the rate stated in Section 5.1 or, if the 
Construction Manager’s Fee is stated as a fixed sum in that Section, shall be an amount that bears the 
same ratio to that fixed-sum fee as the Cost of the Work bears to a reasonable estimate of the 
probable Cost of the Work upon its completion; 

.4 Subtract retainage of «  » percent ( «  » %) from that portion of the Work that the Construction 
Manager self-performs; 

.5 Subtract the aggregate of previous payments made by the Owner; 

.6 Subtract the shortfall, if any, indicated by the Construction Manager in the documentation required by 
Section 7.1.4 to substantiate prior Applications for Payment, or resulting from errors subsequently 
discovered by the Owner’s auditors in such documentation; and 

.7 Subtract amounts, if any, for which the Architect has withheld or nullified a Certificate for Payment 
as provided in Section 9.5 of AIA Document A201–2007. 

 
§ 7.1.8 The Owner and Construction Manager shall agree upon (1) a mutually acceptable procedure for review and 
approval of payments to Subcontractors and (2) the percentage of retainage held on Subcontracts, and the 
Construction Manager shall execute subcontracts in accordance with those agreements.  
 
§ 7.1.9 Except with the Owner’s prior approval, the Construction Manager shall not make advance payments to 
suppliers for materials or equipment which have not been delivered and stored at the site. 
 
§ 7.1.10 In taking action on the Construction Manager’s Applications for Payment, the Architect shall be entitled to 
rely on the accuracy and completeness of the information furnished by the Construction Manager and shall not be 
deemed to represent that the Architect has made a detailed examination, audit or arithmetic verification of the 
documentation submitted in accordance with Section 7.1.4 or other supporting data; that the Architect has made 
exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections; or that the Architect has made examinations to ascertain how or for 
what purposes the Construction Manager has used amounts previously paid on account of the Contract. Such 
examinations, audits and verifications, if required by the Owner, will be performed by the Owner’s auditors acting 
in the sole interest of the Owner. 
 
§ 7.2 Final Payment 
§ 7.2.1 Final payment, constituting the entire unpaid balance of the Contract Sum, shall be made by the Owner to the 
Construction Manager when 



AIA Document A133™ – 2009 (formerly A121™CMc – 2003). Copyright © 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or 
distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 12:16:40 ET on 12/27/2018 under Order No.1079472051 
which expires on 05/01/2019, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:  (1683501890) 

 
15 

 

.1 the Construction Manager has fully performed the Contract except for the Construction Manager’s 
responsibility to correct Work as provided in Section 12.2.2 of AIA Document A201–2007, and to 
satisfy other requirements, if any, which extend beyond final payment;  

.2 the Construction Manager has submitted a final accounting for the Cost of the Work and a final 
Application for Payment; and 

.3 a final Certificate for Payment has been issued by the Architect.  
 
The Owner’s final payment to the Construction Manager shall be made no later than 30 days after the issuance of 
the Architect’s final Certificate for Payment, or as follows: 
 
«  » 
 
§ 7.2.2 The Owner’s auditors will review and report in writing on the Construction Manager’s final accounting 
within 30 days after delivery of the final accounting to the Architect by the Construction Manager. Based upon such 
Cost of the Work as the Owner’s auditors report to be substantiated by the Construction Manager’s final accounting, 
and provided the other conditions of Section 7.2.1 have been met, the Architect will, within seven days after receipt 
of the written report of the Owner’s auditors, either issue to the Owner a final Certificate for Payment with a copy to 
the Construction Manager, or notify the Construction Manager and Owner in writing of the Architect’s reasons for 
withholding a certificate as provided in Section 9.5.1 of the AIA Document A201–2007. The time periods stated in 
this Section supersede those stated in Section 9.4.1 of the AIA Document A201–2007. The Architect is not 
responsible for verifying the accuracy of the Construction Manager’s final accounting. 
 
§ 7.2.3 If the Owner’s auditors report the Cost of the Work as substantiated by the Construction Manager’s final 
accounting to be less than claimed by the Construction Manager, the Construction Manager shall be entitled to 
request mediation of the disputed amount without seeking an initial decision pursuant to Section 15.2 of A201–
2007. A request for mediation shall be made by the Construction Manager within 30 days after the Construction 
Manager’s receipt of a copy of the Architect’s final Certificate for Payment. Failure to request mediation within this 
30-day period shall result in the substantiated amount reported by the Owner’s auditors becoming binding on the 
Construction Manager. Pending a final resolution of the disputed amount, the Owner shall pay the Construction 
Manager the amount certified in the Architect’s final Certificate for Payment. 
 
§ 7.2.4 If, subsequent to final payment and at the Owner’s request, the Construction Manager incurs costs described 
in Section 6.1.1 and not excluded by Section 6.8 to correct defective or nonconforming Work, the Owner shall 
reimburse the Construction Manager such costs and the Construction Manager’s Fee applicable thereto on the same 
basis as if such costs had been incurred prior to final payment, but not in excess of the Guaranteed Maximum Price. 
If the Construction Manager has participated in savings as provided in Section 5.2.1, the amount of such savings 
shall be recalculated and appropriate credit given to the Owner in determining the net amount to be paid by the 
Owner to the Construction Manager. 
 
ARTICLE 8   INSURANCE AND BONDS 
For all phases of the Project, the Construction Manager and the Owner shall purchase and maintain insurance, and 
the Construction Manager shall provide bonds as set forth in Article 11 of AIA Document A201–2007. 
(State bonding requirements, if any, and limits of liability for insurance required in Article 11 of AIA Document 
A201–2007.) 
 

Type of Insurance or Bond Limit of Liability or Bond Amount ($0.00) 
    

 
ARTICLE 9   DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
§ 9.1 Any Claim between the Owner and Construction Manager shall be resolved in accordance with the provisions 
set forth in this Article 9 and Article 15 of A201–2007. However, for Claims arising from or relating to the 
Construction Manager’s Preconstruction Phase services, no decision by the Initial Decision Maker shall be required 
as a condition precedent to mediation or binding dispute resolution, and Section 9.3 of this Agreement shall not 
apply. 
 
§ 9.2 For any Claim subject to, but not resolved by mediation pursuant to Section 15.3 of AIA Document A201–
2007, the method of binding dispute resolution shall be as follows: 



AIA Document A133™ – 2009 (formerly A121™CMc – 2003). Copyright © 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or 
distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 12:16:40 ET on 12/27/2018 under Order No.1079472051 
which expires on 05/01/2019, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:  (1683501890) 

 
16 

 

(Check the appropriate box. If the Owner and Construction Manager do not select a method of binding dispute 
resolution below, or do not subsequently agree in writing to a binding dispute resolution method other than 
litigation, Claims will be resolved by litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction.) 
 

[ «  » ] Arbitration pursuant to Section 15.4 of AIA Document A201–2007 
 
[ «  » ] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction 
 
[ «  » ] Other: (Specify) 

 
«  » 

 
§ 9.3 Initial Decision Maker 
The Architect will serve as the Initial Decision Maker pursuant to Section 15.2 of AIA Document A201–2007 for 
Claims arising from or relating to the Construction Manager’s Construction Phase services, unless the parties 
appoint below another individual, not a party to the Agreement, to serve as the Initial Decision Maker.  
(If the parties mutually agree, insert the name, address and other contact information of the Initial Decision Maker, 
if other than the Architect.) 
 
«  » 
«  » 
«  » 
«  » 
 
ARTICLE 10   TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 
§ 10.1 Termination Prior to Establishment of the Guaranteed Maximum Price 
§ 10.1.1 Prior to the execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, the Owner may terminate this 
Agreement upon not less than seven days’ written notice to the Construction Manager for the Owner’s convenience 
and without cause, and the Construction Manager may terminate this Agreement, upon not less than seven days’ 
written notice to the Owner, for the reasons set forth in Section 14.1.1 of A201–2007. 
 
§ 10.1.2 In the event of termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 10.1.1, the Construction Manager shall be 
equitably compensated for Preconstruction Phase services performed prior to receipt of a notice of termination. In no 
event shall the Construction Manager’s compensation under this Section exceed the compensation set forth in 
Section 4.1. 
 
§ 10.1.3 If the Owner terminates the Contract pursuant to Section 10.1.1 after the commencement of the 
Construction Phase but prior to the execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, the Owner shall pay 
to the Construction Manager an amount calculated as follows, which amount shall be in addition to any 
compensation paid to the Construction Manager under Section 10.1.2: 

.1 Take the Cost of the Work incurred by the Construction Manager to the date of termination; 

.2 Add the Construction Manager’s Fee computed upon the Cost of the Work to the date of termination 
at the rate stated in Section 5.1 or, if the Construction Manager’s Fee is stated as a fixed sum in that 
Section, an amount that bears the same ratio to that fixed-sum Fee as the Cost of the Work at the time 
of termination bears to a reasonable estimate of the probable Cost of the Work upon its completion; 
and 

.3 Subtract the aggregate of previous payments made by the Owner for Construction Phase services. 
 
The Owner shall also pay the Construction Manager fair compensation, either by purchase or rental at the election of 
the Owner, for any equipment owned by the Construction Manager which the Owner elects to retain and which is 
not otherwise included in the Cost of the Work under Section 10.1.3.1. To the extent that the Owner elects to take 
legal assignment of subcontracts and purchase orders (including rental agreements), the Construction Manager shall, 
as a condition of receiving the payments referred to in this Article 10, execute and deliver all such papers and take 
all such steps, including the legal assignment of such subcontracts and other contractual rights of the Construction 
Manager, as the Owner may require for the purpose of fully vesting in the Owner the rights and benefits of the 
Construction Manager under such subcontracts or purchase orders. All Subcontracts, purchase orders and rental 
agreements entered into by the Construction Manager will contain provisions allowing for assignment to the Owner 
as described above. 



AIA Document A133™ – 2009 (formerly A121™CMc – 2003). Copyright © 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or 
distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 12:16:40 ET on 12/27/2018 under Order No.1079472051 
which expires on 05/01/2019, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:  (1683501890) 

 
17 

 

 
If the Owner accepts assignment of subcontracts, purchase orders or rental agreements as described above, the 
Owner will reimburse or indemnify the Construction Manager for all costs arising under the subcontract, purchase 
order or rental agreement, if those costs would have been reimbursable as Cost of the Work if the contract had not 
been terminated. If the Owner chooses not to accept assignment of any subcontract, purchase order or rental 
agreement that would have constituted a Cost of the Work had this agreement not been terminated, the Construction 
Manager will terminate the subcontract, purchase order or rental agreement and the Owner will pay the Construction 
Manager the costs necessarily incurred by the Construction Manager because of such termination. 
 
§ 10.2 Termination Subsequent to Establishing Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Following execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment and subject to the provisions of Section 10.2.1 
and 10.2.2 below, the Contract may be terminated as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document A201–2007. 
 
§ 10.2.1 If the Owner terminates the Contract after execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, the 
amount payable to the Construction Manager pursuant to Sections 14.2 and 14.4 of A201–2007 shall not exceed the 
amount the Construction Manager would otherwise have received pursuant to Sections 10.1.2 and 10.1.3 of this 
Agreement. 
 
§ 10.2.2 If the Construction Manager terminates the Contract after execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Amendment, the amount payable to the Construction Manager under Section 14.1.3 of A201–2007 shall not exceed 
the amount the Construction Manager would otherwise have received under Sections 10.1.2 and 10.1.3 above, 
except that the Construction Manager’s Fee shall be calculated as if the Work had been fully completed by the 
Construction Manager, utilizing as necessary a reasonable estimate of the Cost of the Work for Work not actually 
completed. 
 
§ 10.3 Suspension 
The Work may be suspended by the Owner as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document A201–2007. In such case, 
the Guaranteed Maximum Price and Contract Time shall be increased as provided in Section 14.3.2 of AIA 
Document A201–2007, except that the term “profit” shall be understood to mean the Construction Manager’s Fee as 
described in Sections 5.1 and 5.3.5 of this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 11   MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
§ 11.1 Terms in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those in A201–2007. 
 
§ 11.2 Ownership and Use of Documents 
Section 1.5 of A201–2007 shall apply to both the Preconstruction and Construction Phases. 
 
§ 11.3 Governing Law 
Section 13.1 of A201–2007 shall apply to both the Preconstruction and Construction Phases. 
 
§ 11.4 Assignment 
The Owner and Construction Manager, respectively, bind themselves, their agents, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives to this Agreement. Neither the Owner nor the Construction Manager shall assign this Agreement 
without the written consent of the other, except that the Owner may assign this Agreement to a lender providing 
financing for the Project if the lender agrees to assume the Owner’s rights and obligations under this Agreement. 
Except as provided in Section 13.2.2 of A201–2007, neither party to the Contract shall assign the Contract as a 
whole without written consent of the other. If either party attempts to make such an assignment without such 
consent, that party shall nevertheless remain legally responsible for all obligations under the Contract. 
 
§ 11.5 Other provisions: 
Owner and Construction Manager acknowledge that this agreement is for the delivery of Preconstruction Phase 
Services Only. Articles of this contract relating to Construction Phase Services and Work (Article 2 (paragraphs 2.3 
through 2.5, Article 5, Article 6, Article 7) are not a part of this agreement, but may be included by a contract 
amendment in the future. 
 



AIA Document A133™ – 2009 (formerly A121™CMc – 2003). Copyright © 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or 
distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the 
maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 12:16:40 ET on 12/27/2018 under Order No.1079472051 
which expires on 05/01/2019, and is not for resale. 
User Notes:  (1683501890) 

 
18 

 

ARTICLE 12   SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT 
§ 12.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Construction 
Manager and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement 
may be amended only by written instrument signed by both Owner and Construction Manager.  
 
§ 12.2 The following documents comprise the Agreement: 

.1 AIA Document A133–2009, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Construction 
Manager as Constructor where the basis of payment is the Cost of the Work Plus a Fee with a 
Guaranteed Maximum Price 

.2 AIA Document A201–2007, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction 

.3 AIA Document E201™–2007, Digital Data Protocol Exhibit, if completed, or the following: 
 

«  » 
 
.4 AIA Document E202™–2008, Building Information Modeling Protocol Exhibit, if completed, or the 

following: 
 

«  » 
 
.5 Other documents: 

(List other documents, if any, forming part of the Agreement.) 
 

«  » 
 
This Agreement is entered into as of the day and year first written above. 
 

       
OWNER (Signature)  CONSTRUCTION MANAGER (Signature) 

Dale Copeland, Mayor  Mike McAnaw, President 
(Printed name and title)  (Printed name and title) 

 





































1 
 

 

 
Agenda Item ___    

August 28, 2019 
Prepared by Terry Lauritsen 

Water Utilities  
 

 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

Approval of a professional service contract with Freese and Nichols, Inc. for 
design services on a 20-inch water line along Frank Phillips between Silver Lake 
and US 75 

Attachments: 
 Contract 
 
STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

One of the capital projects approved last fiscal year through the Water Capital 
Reserve Fund was the replacement of a 16-inch and 10-inch water line with a 20-inch 
water line along Frank Phillips between Silver Lake and US 75 (an vicinity map of 
the project is shown on the following page).  The overall budget for the project is 
$1.65MM.    

Due to Freese and Nichols expertise in water distribution design, staff requested a 
proposal for the design services necessary for the project.  The contract provides that 
Freese and Nichols will prepare construction documents for the water line renovation 
and the necessary engineering reports for permits from the Oklahoma Department of 
Environmental Quality.  The services will be completed in March 2020 for a fee of 
$125,000, which is within the available budget for the project.  Note, no special 
services are anticipated at this time, but a cost was established in case its needed in 
the future.  The contract and scope of services are attached for your review. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Staff recommends approval of the professional service contract with Freese and 
Nichols.  

 

 

6.c.vi.



2 
 

 





























1 
 

 

 

Agenda Item ___  
August 28, 2019 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
Engineering  

 

 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

Approval of a professional service contract with NEO Design, LLC for design 
services and bridge assessments at the Sunset Bridge over Butler Creek, Tuxedo 
Bridges over the Caney River, and Tuxedo Bridge over the Caney River overflow. 

Attachments: 
 Contract 
 
STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

The Federal Highway Administration mandates that the City of Bartlesville is 
required to conduct an inspection of its 26 bridges every 2 years.  These inspections 
are coordinated through the Oklahoma Department of Transportation (ODOT) and are 
reimbursed with 100% Federal Grants.  As part of that process the City selected Guy 
Engineering Services for the inspection services in November, 2017.  Engineering 
department staff received the final inspection reports earlier this year.  At that time 
deficiencies were noted for the westbound Tuxedo Bridge over the Caney River 
(Bride No. 5).  While the bridge is not in immediate need of repair, the deficiencies 
are substantial enough that a project to rehabilitate the bridge is warranted.  
Engineering staff have been working through the details of how to approach 
budgeting for a future project and believe that a more in depth assessment of repairs 
and potential cost of those repairs is necessary to properly budget for a future 
rehabilitation project.  In addition to the issues with Bridge No. 5, the steel piles at the 
Tuxedo Bridge over the Caney River overflow (Bridge No. 9) have been identified as 
needing some maintenance work for a couple of years now.  $50,000 has been set 
aside to utilize city staff to encase the piers in concrete to prevent future corrosion at 
the water line.  This would require draining the pond that is on private property to 
facilitate the work.  Additionally, a hole has recently developed in the deck of the 
Sunset Bridge over Butler Creek (Bridge No. 16).  The hole is approximately 18 
inches in diameter and extends through the entire thickness of the bridge deck.  Street 
Department crews have placed a large steel plate over the hole as a temporary 
treatment until we get more direction on how to fix the deck.  Engineering staff 
coordinated with Guy Engineering to take a look to ensure the bridge can be used 
temporarily in this condition and they agree that this is a sufficient short term solution 
and recommended a more in depth structural evaluation to plan for a long term 
rehabilitation.  They recommended NEO Design, LLC who they contract with for 
bridge design and assessments for some of their roadway projects. 

6.c.vii.



2 
 

Staff have negotiated a contract with NEO Design, LLC for structural assessment of 
bridges 5, 6, 9, and 16.  Bridge No. 6 is the east bound Tuxedo Bridge over the Caney 
River.  Since this bridge is adjacent to two other bridges being evaluated it seemed 
prudent to make sure we address any maintenance that may be needed for that bridge 
as well when a larger project is planned.  The contract for services includes structural 
assessment of the bridges, recommendations for short term repair to Bridge No. 16, 
and long term rehabilitation recommendations and budgetary planning for Bridge 
Nos. 5, 6, 9, and 16.  The goal is to have design recommendation and budgetary 
information to facilitate a project for the next G.O. Bond election and/or CIP 
extension election.  Staff will evaluate whether the short term repairs to Bridge No. 
16 can be handled with City staff or if they will need to be contracted out upon 
completion of the assessments. 

The proposed services will be completed within 30 days of notice to proceed for a fee 
of $38,000.  Staff proposes utilizing the available $50,000 budged for bridge repairs 
to cover the design fees.  The contract and scope of services are attached for your 
review. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Staff recommends approval of the professional service contract with NEO Design, 
LLC.  

 

 

 





1 
 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES  
 
  
THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT, between the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma, a 
Municipal Corporation, hereinafter referred to as “CITY” and Neo Design, LLC, hereinafter referred to as 
“ENGINEER”; 
 
In consideration of the promises contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
1.0 SCOPE OF PROJECT AND TIME.  The scope of SERVICES is described in Attachment A.  

SERVICES will be provided/completed within thirty (30) days of ENGINEER’s receipt of all the 
required information (as outlined in Attachment A) or as mutually agreed in writing. 

 
2.0 STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE.  ENGINEER shall perform the SERVICES undertaken in a 

manner consistent with the prevailing accepted standard for similar services with respect to projects 
of comparable function and complexity and with the applicable laws and regulations published and 
in effect at the time of performance of the SERVICES.   The project shall be designed and 
engineered in a good and workmanlike manner and in strict accordance with this AGREEMENT.  
All engineering work shall be performed by or under the supervision of Professional Engineers 
licensed in the State of Oklahoma, and properly qualified to perform such engineering services, 
which qualification shall be subject to review by CITY.   
 
 

3.0 LIMITATIONS OF RESPONSIBILITY.  ENGINEER shall not be responsible for construction means, 
methods, techniques, sequences, procedures, or safety precautions and programs in connection 
with this project. 
 

4.0 COMPENSATION.  ENGINEER shall submit its invoice for SERVICES at the time SERVICES are 
complete.  CITY shall compensate ENGINEER thirty-eight thousand dollars ($38,000.00) for 
services provided in Attachment A. 
 

5.0 LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION.  ENGINEER shall defend and indemnify CITY from and 
against legal liability for damages arising out of the performance of the SERVICES for CITY 
including but not limited to claims, costs, attorney fees where such liability is caused solely by the 
negligence of ENGINEER.    
 

6.0 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.  In performance of the SERVICES, ENGINEER shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, orders, codes, criteria and standards.  
ENGINEER certifies that it is in compliance with 25 O.S. Sec 1313 and participates in the Status 
Verification System.  The Status Verification System is defined in 25 O.S. Sec 1312 and includes 
but is not limited to E-Verify. 
 

7.0 INSURANCE.  During the performance of this AGREEMENT, ENGINEER shall maintain the 
following insurance, issued by an insurer authorized to transact business in Oklahoma: 
 
a. General Liability Insurance with a bodily injury and property damage combined single limit of 

not less than $1,000,000 for each occurrence; 
 
b. Workers Compensation Insurance in accordance with Oklahoma statutory requirements; 
 
c. Professional Liability Insurance with prior acts endorsement for the insurance to remain in effect 

for two years after CITY’s acceptance of the SERVICES. 
 
d. ENGINEER shall provide proof of such coverage upon execution of this AGREEMENT.  



2 
 

 
e. ENGINEER shall not cause any required insurance policy to be cancelled or permit it to lapse.   
 

8.0 OWNERSHIP AND REUSE OF DOCUMENTS.  All documents, including original drawings, 
estimates, specifications, field notes and data shall become and remain the property of the CITY.  
CITY’s reuse of such documents without written verification or adaptation by ENGINEER for the 

specific purpose intended will be at CITY’s sole risk.   
 
9.0 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF AGREEMENT.  The obligation to continue SERVICES 

under this AGREEMENT may be terminated by either party upon fifteen days written notice to the 
other party in the event of substantial failure by the other party to perform in accordance with the 
terms hereof through no fault of the terminating party.   
 

10.0 FORCE MAJEURE.  Neither CITY nor ENGINEER shall be considered to be in default of this 
AGREEMENT if delays in or failure of performance shall be due to forces which are beyond the 
control of the parties, including, but not limited to fire, flood, earthquakes, storms, lightning, 
epidemic, war, riot, civil disturbance, sabotage, inability to procure permits, licenses, or 
authorizations, strikes, work slowdowns or other labor disturbances, and judicial restraint. 
 

11.0 DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURE.  In the event of a dispute between the ENGINEER and 
the CITY over the interpretation of the terms of this AGREEMENT, the matter shall be referred to 
the City Engineer and ENGINEER’s leadership to in good faith seek resolution of the issues.  If 
resolution is not reached, the parties, upon agreement, may submit the matter to mediation or 
arbitration.  Neither party shall be precluded from exercising any rights, privileges or opportunities 
permitted by law to resolve any dispute. 
 

12.0 ASSIGNMENT.  ENGINEER shall not assign its obligations undertaken pursuant to this 
AGREEMENT, provided that nothing contained in this paragraph shall prevent ENGINEER from 
employing such independent consultants, associates, and subcontractors as ENGINEER may 
deem appropriate to assist ENGINEER in the performance of SERVICES hereunder. 
 

13.0 TIME OF ESSENCE.  The parties agree that time is deemed to be of the essence with respect to 
this AGREEMENT, including but not limited to the commencement of the SERVICES, rate of 
progress and completion.   
 

14.0 GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION AND VENUE.  This AGREEMENT shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oklahoma.  The parties agree that any suit, 
action or proceeding with respect to this AGREEMENT shall be brought in the District Court of 
Washington County, Oklahoma.   
 

15.0 MULTIPLE COUNTERPARTS.  This AGREEMENT may be executed in several counterparts, each 
of which shall be deemed an original, but which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. 
 

16.0 NO FAVORITISM IN INTERPRETATION.  No provision of this AGREEMENT will be interpreted in 
favor of, or against, any of the parties hereto by reason of the extent to which such party or its 
counsel participated in the drafting thereof or by reason of the extent to which any such provisions 
is inconsistent with any prior draft thereof. 
 
 
 
(intentionally left blank) 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this AGREEMENT in multiple copies on the respective 
dates herein below reflected to be effective on the date executed by the Mayor of the City of Bartlesville. 



3 
 

 
 
 
 
 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE     Dated:  _________________________ 
    
 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Mayor 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________     (SEAL) 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     RECOMMENDED: 
 
 
 
_______________________________    ________________________________ 
City Attorney       City Engineer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NEO DESIGN, LLC      Dated:  __________________________ 
 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Steve Nicholls 
 
 



1 
 

 

 

Agenda Item ___  
August 29, 2019 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
Engineering  

 

 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

Approval of a professional service contract with Olsson for design services on the 
Hillcrest Drive Reconstruction project. 

Attachments: 
 Contract 
 
STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

One of the priority projects on the voter approved 2013 ½ Cent Sales Tax extension 
ballot is the Hillcrest Drive Reconstruction project.  The project consists of 
reconstructing Hillcrest Drive between 18th Street and the Caney River bridge.  
$135,000 was approved for engineering design and $2,200,000 was approved for 
construction.  Both the design and construction funds are currently available as part of 
the FY 19-20 capital budget. 

Requests for qualifications were sent to seven (7) consulting firms on July 8, 2019 
and six (6) contractors returned qualifications packets on August 5, 2019.  
Qualifications packets were reviewed by a committee consisting of the City Manager, 
Water Utilities Director, Public Works Director, and Engineering Director.  The 
committee chose to pursue a contract with Olsson.  Staff has negotiated a contract 
with Olsson to complete the engineering design by August 30, 2020 for a fee of 
$156,500.  The proposed fee is $21,500 over the available design budget, but within 
the budget of the project as a whole.  After multiple discussions and negotiations to 
clarify project scope, design constraints, and conceptual estimates for construction 
costs, staff believes the additional fees are reasonable and ultimately should not 
negatively impact the outcome of the project. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Staff recommends approval of the professional service contract with Olsson.  

 

 

 

6.c.viii.



Page 1 of 3 

 
 
 

LETTER AGREEMENT 
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 
August 29, 2019 

 
Micah Siemers, P.E. 
Director of Engineering 
City of Bartlesville 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 
 
 
Re: LETTER AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Hillcrest Drive Reconstruction between E. 18TH Street and the Caney River (the 
“Project”) within the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma 
 
 

Dear Mr. Siemers: 
 

It is our understanding that the City of Bartlesville (“Client”) requests Olsson, Inc. (“Olsson”) to 
perform the services described herein pursuant to the terms of this Letter Agreement for 
Professional Services, Olsson’s General Provisions and any exhibits attached hereto (all 
documents constitute and are referred to herein as the “Agreement”) for the Project. 

 
Olsson has acquainted itself with the information provided by Client relative to the Project and 
based upon such information offers to provide the services described below for the Project.  Client 
warrants that it is either the legal owner of the property to be improved by this Project or that Client 
is acting as the duly authorized agent of the legal owner of such property.  Client acknowledges 
that it has reviewed the General Provisions and any exhibits attached hereto, which are expressly 
made a part of and incorporated into the Agreement by this reference.  In the event of any conflict 
or inconsistency between this Letter Agreement, and the General Provisions regarding the 
services to be performed by Olsson, the terms of the General Provisions shall take precedence. 

 
Olsson shall provide the following services (“Scope of Services”) to Client for the Project: 
consulting engineering services to prepare construction documents for Hillcrest Drive 
reconstruction Project, and as more specifically described in “Scope of Services” attached hereto.  
Should Client request work in addition to the Scope of Services, Olsson shall invoice Client for 
such additional services (Optional Additional Services) at the standard hourly billing labor rate 
charged for those employees actually performing the work, plus reimbursable expenses if any.  
Olsson shall not commence work on Optional Additional Services without Client’s prior written 
approval. 
 
Olsson agrees to provide its services in a timely, competent and professional manner, in 
accordance with applicable standards of care, for projects of similar geographic location, quality 
and scope. 

wmsiemers
Typewritten Text
PENDING APPROVAL FROM JESS KANE



 

Page 2 of 3 

SCHEDULE FOR OLSSON’S SERVICES  
 
Unless otherwise agreed, Olsson expects to perform its services under the Agreement as follows: 
 
Anticipated Start Date:   September 4, 2019 
Anticipated Completion Date:   August 30, 2020 
 
Olsson will endeavor to start its services on the Anticipated Start Date and to complete its services 
on the Anticipated Completion Date.  However, the Anticipated Start Date, the Anticipated 
Completion Date, and any milestone dates are approximate only, and Olsson reserves the right 
to adjust its schedule and any or all of those dates at its sole discretion, for any reason, including, 
but not limited to, delays caused by Client or delays caused by third parties. 
 
COMPENSATION 
 
Client shall pay to Olsson for the performance of the Scope of Services a lump sum of One-
Hundred Fifty-Six Thousand Five-Hundred Dollars ($ 156,500.00).  Olsson shall submit 
invoices on a monthly basis and payment is due within 30 calendar days of invoice date.  
 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE 
 
We have discussed with you the risks, rewards and benefits of the Project, the Scope of Services, 
and our fees for such services and the Agreement represents the entire understanding between 
Client and Olsson with respect to the Project.  The Agreement may only be modified in writing 
signed by both parties.   
 
Client’s designated Project Representative shall be Micah Siemers, P.E. 
 
If this Agreement satisfactorily sets forth your understanding of our agreement, please sign in the 
space provided below.  Retain one original for your files and return an executed original to Olsson.  
This proposal will be open for acceptance for a period of 30 days from the date set forth above, 
unless changed by us in writing. 
 
OLSSON, INC. 
 
 
 
By __________________________________ By __________________________________ 
                 Russell L. Beaty, P.E.              James M. Sparks, P.E. 
                 Team Leader            Oklahoma Region Leader 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 3 of 3 

 
By signing below, you acknowledge that you have full authority to bind Client to the terms of the 
Agreement.  If you accept the terms set forth herein, please sign: 
 
City of Bartlesville 
 
 
 
By  _______________________________  
    Signature 
 
Print Name _________________________ 
 
Title _______________________________ Dated _________________________ 
 
 
Attachments 
General Provisions 
Attachment A - Scope of Services 
Attachment B – Compensation and Additional Services 
 
 



 Page 1 of 8  19-3868.01 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
These General Provisions are attached to and made a part of 
the respective Letter Agreement or Master Agreement, dated 
DATE between the City of Bartlesville (“Client”) and Olsson, Inc. 
(“Olsson”) for professional services in connection with the 
project or projects arising under such Letter Agreement or 
Master Agreement (the “Project(s)”). 
 
As used herein, the term "this Agreement" refers to these 
General Provisions, the applicable Letter Agreement or Master 
Agreement, and any other exhibits or attachments thereto as if 
they were part of one and the same document. 
 
SECTION 1—OLSSON’S SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
Olsson’s scope of services for the Project(s) is set forth in the 
applicable Letter Agreement or Master Agreement (“Scope of 
Services”). 
  
SECTION 2—ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
 
2.1 Unless otherwise expressly included, Scope of 
Services does not include the categories of additional services 
set forth in Sections 2.2 and 2.3. 
 
2.2 If Client and Olsson mutually agree for Olsson to 
perform any optional additional services as set forth in this 
Section 2.2 (“Optional Additional Services”), Client will provide 
written approval of the agreed-upon Optional Additional 
Services, and Olsson shall perform or obtain from others such 
services and will be entitled to an increase in compensation at 
rates provided in this Agreement. Olsson may elect not to 
perform all or any of the Optional Additional Services without 
cause or explanation: 
 
 2.2.1 Preparation of applications and supporting 
documents for governmental financial support of the Project(s); 
preparation or review of environmental studies and related 
services; and assistance in obtaining environmental approvals. 
 
 2.2.2 Services to make measured drawings of or to 
investigate existing conditions of facilities. 
 
 2.2.3 Services resulting from changes in the general 
scope, extent or character of the Project(s) or major changes in 
documentation previously accepted by Client where changes 
are due to causes beyond Olsson's control. 
 
 2.2.4 Services resulting from the discovery of 
conditions or circumstances which were not contemplated by 
Olsson at the commencement of this Agreement.  Olsson shall 
notify Client of the newly discovered conditions or 
circumstances and Client and Olsson shall renegotiate, in good 
faith, the compensation for this Agreement, if amended terms 
cannot be agreed upon, Olsson may terminate this Agreement 
and Olsson shall be paid for its services through the date of 
termination. 
 
 2.2.5 Providing renderings or models. 
 
 2.2.6 Preparing documents for alternate bids 
requested by Client. 
 
 2.2.7 Analysis of operations, maintenance or 
overhead expenses; value engineering; the preparation of rate 
schedules; earnings or expense statements; cash flow or 
economic evaluations or; feasibility studies, appraisals or 
valuations. 

 2.2.8 Furnishing the services of independent 
professional associates or consultants for work beyond the 
Scope of Services. 
 
 2.2.9 Services necessary due to the Client’s award of 
more than one prime contract for the Project(s); services 
necessary due to the construction contract containing cost plus 
or incentive-savings provisions; services necessary in order to 
arrange for performance by persons other than the prime 
contractor; or those services necessary to administer Client’s 
contract(s). 
 
 2.2.10 Services in connection with staking out the work 
of contractor(s). 
 
 2.2.11 Services during out-of-town travel or visits to the 
site beyond those specifically identified in this Agreement. 
 
 2.2.12 Preparation of operating and maintenance 
manuals. 
 
 2.2.13 Services to redesign some or all of the 
Project(s). 
 
 2.2.14 Preparing to serve or serving as a consultant or 
witness or assisting Client with any litigation, arbitration or other 
legal or administrative proceeding. 
 
 2.2.15 Services relating to Construction Observation, 
Certification, Inspection, Construction Cost Estimating, project 
observation, construction management, construction 
scheduling, construction phasing or review of Contractor's 
performance means or methods. 
 
2.3 Whenever, in its sole discretion, Olsson determines 
additional services as set forth in this Section 2.3 are necessary 
to avoid a delay in the completion of the Project(s) (“Necessary 
Additional Services”), Olsson shall perform or obtain from others 
such services without waiting for specific instructions from 
Client, and Olsson will be entitled to an increase in 
compensation for such services at the standard hourly billing 
rate charged for those employees performing the services, plus 
reimbursable expenses, if any: 
 
 2.3.1 Services in connection with work directive 
changes and/or change orders directed by the Client to any 
contractors. 
 
 2.3.2 Services in making revisions to drawings and 
specifications occasioned by the acceptance of substitutions 
proposed by contractor(s); services after the award of each 
contract in evaluating and determining the acceptability of an 
unreasonable or excessive number of substitutions proposed by 
contractor(s); or evaluating an unreasonable or extensive 
number of claims submitted by contractor(s) or others in 
connection with the Project(s). 
 
 2.3.3 Services resulting from significant delays, 
changes or price increases occurring as a direct or indirect result 
of material, equipment or energy shortages. 
 
 2.3.4 Additional or extended services during 
construction made necessary by (1) work damaged during 
construction, (2) a defective, inefficient or neglected work by any 
contractor, (3) acceleration of the progress schedule involving 
services beyond normal working hours, or (4) default by any 
contractor. 



 Page 2 of 8  19-3868.01 

SECTION 3—CLIENT'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
3.1. Client shall provide all criteria and full information as to 
Client's requirements for the Project(s); designate and identify in 
writing a person to act with authority on Client's behalf in respect 
of all aspects of the Project(s); examine and respond promptly 
to Olsson's submissions; and give prompt written notice to 
Olsson whenever Client observes or otherwise becomes aware 
of any defect in the Olsson’s services. 
 
3.2 Client agrees to pay Olsson the amounts due for 
services rendered and expenses within thirty (30) days after 
Olsson has provided its invoice for such services.  In the event 
Client disputes any invoice item, Client shall give Olsson written 
notice of such disputed item within fifteen (15) days after receipt 
of such invoice and shall pay to Olsson the undisputed portion of 
the invoice according to the provisions hereof. If Client fails to pay 
any invoiced amounts when due, interest will accrue on each 
unpaid amount at the rate of thirteen percent (13%) per annum 
from the date due until paid according to the provisions of this 
Agreement. Interest shall not be charged on any disputed invoice 
item which is finally resolved in Client’s favor. Payment of interest 
shall not excuse or cure any default or delay in payment of 
amounts due. 
 
 3.2.1 If Client fails to make any payment due Olsson 
for services and expenses within thirty (30) days after receipt of 
Olsson's statement therefore, Olsson may, after giving seven (7) 
days written notice to Client, suspend services to Client under 
this Agreement until Olsson has been paid in full all amounts 
due for services, expenses and charges and Client will not 
obtain any license to any Work Product or be entitled to retain 
or use any Work Product pursuant to Section 7.1 unless and 
until Olsson has been paid in full and Client has fully satisfied all 
of its obligations under this Agreement.  
 
3.3 Payments to Olsson shall not be withheld, postponed 
or made contingent on the construction, completion or success 
of the Project(s) or upon receipt by the Client of offsetting 
reimbursements or credit from other parties who may have 
caused the need for additional services. No withholdings, 
deductions or offsets shall be made from Olsson’s 
compensation for any reason unless and until Olsson has been 
found to be legally liable for such amounts.  
 
3.4 Client shall also do the following and pay all costs 
incident thereto: 
 
 3.4.1 Furnish to Olsson any existing and/or required 
borings, probings or subsurface explorations; hydrographic 
surveys; laboratory tests or inspections of samples, materials or 
equipment; appropriate professional interpretations of any of the 
foregoing; environmental assessment and impact statements; 
property, boundary, easement, right-of-way, topographic or 
utility surveys; property descriptions; and/or zoning or deed 
restrictions; all of which Olsson may rely upon in performing 
services hereunder. 
 
 3.4.2 Guarantee access to and make all provisions for 
Olsson to enter upon public and private property reasonably 
necessary to perform its services on the Project(s). 
 
 3.4.3 Provide such legal, accounting, independent 
cost estimating or insurance counseling services as may be 
required for the Project(s); any auditing service required in 
respect of contractor(s)' applications for payment; and/or any 
inspection services to determine if contractor(s) are performing 
the work legally. 

 
 3.4.4 Provide engineering surveys to establish 
reference points for construction unless specifically included in 
Olsson’s Scope of Services. 
 
 3.4.5 Furnish approvals and permits from all 
governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project(s). 
 
 3.4.6 If more than one prime contractor is to be 
awarded the contract for construction, designate a party to have 
responsibility and authority for coordinating and interfacing the 
activities of the various prime contractors. 
  
 3.4.7  All fees and other amounts payable by Client 
under this Agreement are exclusive of taxes and similar 
assessments. Without limiting the foregoing, Client is 
responsible and liable for all sales, service, use, and excise 
taxes, and any other similar taxes, duties, and charges of any 
kind imposed by any federal, state, county or local governmental 
authority on any amounts payable by Client under this 
Agreement, other than any taxes imposed on Olsson’s 
income.  In the event any governmental authority assesses 
Olsson for taxes, duties, or charges of any kind in connection 
with Scope of Services provided by Olsson to Client, Olsson 
shall be entitled to submit an invoice to Client, its successors or 
assigns, for the amount of said assessment and related interest 
and penalties.  Client shall pay such invoice in accordance with 

Olsson’s standard payment terms. 

 
3.5 Client shall pay all costs incident to obtaining bids or 
proposals from contractor(s). 
 
3.6 Client shall pay all permit application review costs for 
government authorities having jurisdiction over the Project(s). 
 
3.7 Contemporaneously with the execution of this 
Agreement, Client shall designate in writing an individual to act 
as its duly authorized Project(s) representative. 
 
3.8 Client shall bear sole responsibility for: 
 
 3.8.1  Jobsite safety. Neither the professional activities 
of Olsson, nor the presence of Olsson or its employees or sub-
consultants at the Project shall impose any duty on Olsson 
relating to any health or safety laws, regulations, rules, 
programs or procedures.  
 
 3.8.2 Notifying third parties including any 
governmental agency or prospective purchaser, of the existence 
of any hazardous or dangerous materials located in or around 
the Project(s) site.  
 
 3.8.3 Providing and updating Olsson with accurate 
information regarding existing conditions, including the 
existence of hazardous or dangerous materials, proposed 
Project(s) site uses, any change in Project(s) plans, and all 
subsurface installations, such as pipes, tanks, cables and 
utilities within the Project(s) site.  
 
 3.8.4 Providing and assuming all responsibility for: 
interpretation of contract documents; Construction 
Observations; Certifications; Inspections; Construction Cost 
Estimating; project observations; construction management; 
construction scheduling; construction phasing; and review of 
Contractor’s performance, means and methods. Client waives 
any claims against Olsson and releases Olsson from liability 
relating to or arising out of such services and agrees, to the 
fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold Olsson 



 Page 3 of 8  19-3868.01 

harmless from any and all damages, liabilities or costs, including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and defense costs, relating to such 
actions and services. 
 
3.9 Client releases Olsson from liability for any incorrect 
advice, judgment or decision based on inaccurate information 
furnished by Client or others. 
 
3.10 If reasonable precautions will be inadequate to prevent 
foreseeable bodily injury or death to persons resulting from a 
material or substance, including hazardous materials, 
encountered on the site, Olsson may immediately stop work in 
the affected area and report the condition to Client.  Client shall 
be solely responsible for retaining independent consultant(s) to 
determine the nature of the material and to abate or remove the 
material. Olsson shall not be required to perform any services or 
work relating to or in the area of such material until the material 
has been removed or rendered harmless and only after 
approval, if necessary of the government agency with 
jurisdiction. 
 
SECTION 4—MEANING OF TERMS 
 
4.1 The “Cost of Construction” of the entire Project(s) 
(herein referred to as "Cost of Construction") means the total 
cost to Client of those portions of the entire Project(s) designed 
and specified by Olsson, but it will not include Olsson's 
compensation and expenses, the cost of land, rights-of-way, or 
compensation for or damages to, properties unless this 
Agreement so specifies, nor will it include Client's legal, 
accounting, insurance counseling or auditing services, or 
interest and financing charges incurred in connection with the 
Project(s) or the cost of other services to be provided by others 
to Client pursuant to Section 3. 
 
4.2 The “Salary Costs”:  Used as a basis for payment mean 
salaries and wages (base and incentive) paid to all Olsson's 
personnel engaged directly on the Project(s), including, but not 
limited to, engineers, architects, surveyors, designers, 
draftsmen, specification writers, estimators, other technical and 
business personnel; plus the cost of customary and statutory 
benefits, including, but not limited to, social security 
contributions, unemployment, excise and payroll taxes, workers' 
compensation, health and retirement benefits, sick leave, 
vacation and holiday pay and other group benefits.  
 
4.3 “Certify” or “a Certification”:  If included in the Scope of 
Services, such services shall be limited to a statement of 
Olsson’s opinion, to the best of Olsson’s professional 
knowledge, information and belief, based upon its periodic 
observations and reasonable review of reports and tests created 
by Olsson or provided to Olsson. Olsson shall not be responsible 
for constant or exhaustive observation of the work. Client 
understands and agrees that any certifications based upon 
discrete sampling observations and that such observations 
indicate conditions that exist only at the locations and times the 
observations were performed. Performance of such observation 
services and certification does not constitute a warranty or 
guarantee of any type, since even with diligent observation, 
some construction defects, deficiencies or omissions in the work 
may occur. Olsson shall have no responsibility for the means, 
methods, techniques, sequences or procedures selected by the 
contractor(s) or for the contractor’s safety precautions and 
programs nor for failure by the contractor(s) to comply with any 
laws or regulations relating to the performance or furnishing of 
any work by the contractor(s). Client shall hold its contractor(s) 
solely responsible for the quality and completion of the 
Project(s), including construction in accordance with the 

construction documents. Any duty under this Agreement is for 
the sole benefit of the Client and not for any third party, including 
the contractor(s) or any subcontractor(s). Olsson shall sign pre-
printed form certifications only if (a) Olsson approves the form 
of such certification prior to the commencement of its services, 
(b) such certification is expressly included in the Scope of 
Services, (c) the certification is limited to a statement of 
professional opinion and does not constitute a warranty or 
guarantee, express or implied. It is understood that any 
certification by Olsson shall not relieve the Client or the Client’s 
contractors of any responsibility or obligation they may have by 
industry custom or under any contract.   
 
4.4 “Opinion of Probable Cost”:  An opinion of probable 
construction cost made by Olsson. In providing opinions of 
probable construction cost, it is recognized that neither the 
Client nor Olsson has control over the costs of labor, equipment 
or materials, or over the contractor’s methods of determining 
prices or bidding. The opinion of probable construction costs is 
based on Olsson’s reasonable professional judgment and 
experience and does not constitute a warranty, express or 
implied, that the contractor’s bids or the negotiated price of the 
work on the Project(s) will not vary from the Client’s budget or 
from any opinion of probable cost prepared by Olsson. 
 
4.5 “Day”:  A calendar day of 24 hours. The term “days” 
shall mean consecutive calendar days of 24 hours each, or 
fraction thereof. 
 
4.6 “Construction Observation”: If included in the Scope of 
Services, such services during construction shall be limited to 
periodic visual observation and testing of the work to determine 
that the observed work generally conforms to the contract 
documents. Olsson shall not be responsible for constant or 
exhaustive observation of the work. Client understands and 
agrees that such visual observations are discrete sampling 
procedures and that such procedures indicate conditions that 
exist only at the locations and times the observations were 
performed. Performance of Construction Observation services 
does not constitute a warranty or guarantee of any type, since 
even with diligent observation, some construction defects, 
deficiencies or omissions in the work may occur. Olsson shall 
have no responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, 
sequences or procedures selected by the contractor or for the 
contractor’s safety precautions and programs nor for failure by 
the contractor to comply with any laws or regulations relating to 
the performance or furnishing of any work by the contractor.  
Client shall hold its contractor(s) solely responsible for the 
quality and completion of the Project(s), including construction 
in accordance with the construction documents. Any duty under 
this Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Client and not for 
any third party, including the contractor or any subcontractor.  
Client, or its designees shall notify Olsson at least twenty-four 
(24) hours in advance of any field tests and observations 
required by the construction documents. 
 
4.7 “Inspect” or “Inspection”:  If included in the Scope of 
Services, such services shall be limited to the periodic visual 
observation of the contractor’s completed work to permit Olsson, 
as an experienced and qualified professional, to determine that 
the observed work, generally conforms to the contract 
documents. Olsson shall not be responsible for constant or 
exhaustive observation of the work. Client understands and 
agrees that such visual observations are discrete sampling 
procedures and that such procedures indicate conditions that 
exist only at the locations and times the observations were 
performed. Performance of such observation services does not 
constitute a warranty or guarantee of any type, since even with 



 Page 4 of 8  19-3868.01 

diligent observation, some construction defects, deficiencies or 
omissions in the work may occur. Olsson shall have no 
responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, sequences 
or procedures selected by the contractor(s) or for the 
contractor’s safety precautions and programs nor for failure by 
the contractor(s) to comply with any laws or regulations relating 
to the performance or furnishing of any work by the 
contractor(s). Client shall hold its contractor(s) solely 
responsible for the quality and completion of the Project(s), 
including construction in accordance with the construction 
documents. Any duty under this Agreement is for the sole benefit 
of the Client and not for any third party, including the 
contractor(s) or any subcontractor(s). Client, or its designees, 
shall notify Olsson at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance of 
any inspections required by the construction documents. 
 
4.8 “Record Documents”:  Drawings prepared by Olsson 
upon the completion of construction based upon the drawings 
and other data furnished to Olsson by the Contractor and others 
showing significant changes in the work on the Project(s) made 
during construction. Because Record Documents are prepared 
based on unverified information provided by others, Olsson 
makes no warranty of the accuracy or completeness of the 
Record Documents. 
 
SECTION 5—TERMINATION 
 
5.1 Either party may terminate this Agreement, for cause 
upon giving the other party not less than seven (7) calendar days 
written notice of default for any of the following reasons; 
provided, however, that the notified party shall have the same 
seven (7) calendar day period in which to cure the default: 
 
 5.1.1 Substantial failure by the other party to perform 
in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and through no 
fault of the terminating party; 
 
 5.1.2 Assignment of this Agreement or transfer of the 
Project(s) by either party to any other entity without the prior 
written consent of the other party; 
 
 5.1.3 Suspension of the Project(s) or Olsson’s 
services by the Client for more than ninety (90) calendar days, 
consecutive or in the aggregate. 
 
5.2 In the event of a “for cause” termination of this 
Agreement by either party, the Client shall, within fifteen (15) 
calendar days after receiving Olsson’s final invoice, pay Olsson 
for all services rendered and all reimbursable costs incurred by 
Olsson up to the date of termination, in accordance with the 
payment provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 5.2.1 In the event of a “for cause” termination of this 
Agreement by Client and (a) a final determination of default is 
entered against Olsson under Section 6.2 and (b) Client has fully 
satisfied all of its obligations under this Agreement, Olsson shall 
grant Client a limited license to use the Work Product pursuant 
to Section 7.1. 
 
5.3 The Client may terminate this Agreement for the 
Client’s convenience and without cause upon giving Olsson not 
less than seven (7) calendar days written notice. In the event of 
any termination that is not the fault of Olsson, the Client shall 
pay Olsson, in addition to payment for services rendered and 
reimbursable costs incurred, for all expenses reasonably 
incurred by Olsson in connection with the orderly termination of 
this Agreement, including but not limited to demobilization, 
reassignment of personnel, associated overhead costs, any 

fees, costs or expenses incurred by Olsson in preparing or 
negotiating any proposals submitted to Client for Olsson’s 
Scope of Services or Optional Additional Services under this 
Agreement and all other expenses directly resulting from the 
termination and a reasonable profit of ten percent (10%) of 
Olsson’s actual costs (including overhead) incurred. 
 
SECTION 6—DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 
6.1. Mediation 
 
 6.1.1 All questions in dispute under this Agreement 
shall be submitted to mediation.  On the written notice of either 
party to the other of the election to submit any dispute under this 
Agreement to mediation, each party shall designate their 
representatives and shall meet within ten (10) days after the 
service of the notice. The parties themselves shall then attempt 
to resolve the dispute within ten (10) days of meeting. 
 
 6.1.2 Should the parties themselves be unable to 
agree on a resolution of the dispute, and then the parties shall 
appoint a third party who shall be a competent and impartial 
party and who shall be acceptable to each party, to mediate the 
dispute. Any third party mediator shall be qualified to evaluate 
the performance of both of the parties, and shall be familiar with 
the design and construction progress. The third party shall meet 
to hear the dispute within ten (10) days of their selection and 
shall attempt to resolve the dispute within fifteen (15) days of 
first meeting. 
 
 6.1.3 Each party shall pay the fees and expenses of 
the third party mediator and such costs shall be borne equally 
by both parties. 
 
6.2 Arbitration or Litigation  
 
 6.2.1 Olsson and Client agree that from time to time, 
there may be conflicts, disputes and/or disagreements between 
them, arising out of or relating to the services of Olsson, the 
Project(s), or this Agreement (hereinafter collectively referred to 
as “Disputes”) which may not be resolved through mediation.  
Therefore, Olsson and Client agree that all Disputes shall be 
resolved by binding arbitration or litigation at the sole discretion 
and choice of Olsson. If Olsson chooses arbitration, the 
arbitration proceeding shall proceed in accordance with the 
Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of the AAA.   
 
 6.2.2 Client hereby agrees that Olsson shall have the 
right to include Client, by consolidation, joinder or other manner, 
in any arbitration or litigation involving Olsson and a 
subconsultant or subcontractor of Olsson or Olsson and any 
other person or entity, regardless of who originally initiated such 
proceedings. 
  
 6.2.3 If Olsson chooses arbitration or litigation, either 
may be commenced at any time prior to or after completion of 
the Project(s), provided that if arbitration or litigation is 
commenced prior to the completion of the Project(s), the 
obligations of the parties under the terms of this Agreement shall 
not be altered by reason of the arbitration or litigation being 
conducted. Any arbitration hearings or litigation shall take place 
in Lincoln, Nebraska, the location of Olsson’s home office.   
 
 6.2.4 The prevailing party in any arbitration or 
litigation relating to any Dispute shall be entitled to recover from 
the other party those reasonable attorney fees, costs and 
expenses incurred by the prevailing party in connection with the 
Dispute.  



 Page 5 of 8  19-3868.01 

6.3 Certification of Merit  
 
Client agrees that it will not assert any claim, including but not 
limited to, professional negligence, negligence, breach of 
contract, misconduct, error, omission, fraud, or 
misrepresentation (“Claim”) against Olsson, or any Olsson 
subconsultant, unless Client has first provided Olsson with a 
sworn certificate of merit affidavit setting forth the factual and 
legal basis for such Claim (the “Certificate”).  The Certificate 
shall be executed by an independent engineer (“Certifying 
Engineer”) currently licensed and practicing in the jurisdiction of 
the Project site.  The Certificate must contain: (a) the name and 
license number of the Certifying Engineer; (b the qualifications 
of the Certifying Engineer, including a list of all publications 
authored in the previous 10 years and a list of all cases in which 
the Certifying Engineer testified within the previous 4 years ; (c) 
a statement by the Certifying Engineer setting forth the factual 
basis for the Claim; (d) a statement by the Certifying Engineer 
of each and every act, error, or omission that the Certifying 
Engineer contends supports the Claim or any alleged violation 
of any applicable standard of care; (e) a statement  by the 
Certifying Engineer of all opinions the Certifying Engineer holds 
regarding the Claim or any alleged violation of any applicable 
standard of care; (f) a list of every document related to the 
Project reviewed by the Certifying Engineer; and (g) a list of 
every individual who provided Certifying Engineer with any 
information regarding the Project.  The Certificate shall be 
provided to Olsson not less than thirty (30) days prior to any 
arbitration or litigation commenced by Client or not less than ten 
(10) days prior to the initial response submitted by Client in any 
arbitration or litigation commenced by someone other than 
Client.  The Certificate is a condition precedent to the right of 
Client to assert any Claim in any litigation or arbitration and 
Client’s failure to timely provide a Certificate to Olsson will be 
grounds for automatic dismissal of the Claim with prejudice.   
 
SECTION 7—MISCELLANEOUS 
 
7.1 Reuse of Documents 
 
All documents, including drawings, specifications, reports, 
boring logs, maps, field data, data, test results, information, 
recommendations, or opinions prepared or furnished by Olsson 
(and Olsson's independent professional associates and 
consultants) pursuant to this Agreement (“Work Product”), are 
all Olsson’s instruments of service, do not constitute goods or 
products, and are copyrighted works of Olsson. Olsson shall 
retain an ownership and property interest in such Work Product 
whether or not the Project(s) is completed. If Client has fully 
satisfied all of its obligations under this Agreement, Olsson shall 
grant Client a limited license to use the Work Product and Client 
may make and retain copies of Work Product for use in 
connection with the Project(s); however, such Work Product is 
for the exclusive use and benefit of Client or its agents in 
connection with the Project(s), are not intended to inform, guide 
or otherwise influence any other entities or persons with respect 
to any particular business transactions, and should not be relied 
upon by any entities or persons other than Client or its agents 
for any purpose other than the Project(s). Such Work Product is 
not intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by Client or 
others on extensions of the Project(s) or on any other Project(s). 
Client will not distribute or convey such Work Product to any 
other persons or entities without Olsson's prior written consent 
which shall include a release of Olsson from liability and 
indemnification by the third party. Any reuse of Work Product 
without written verification or adaptation by Olsson for the 
specific purpose intended will be at Client's sole risk and without 
liability or legal exposure to Olsson, or to Olsson's independent 

professional associates or consultants, and Client shall 
indemnify and hold harmless Olsson and Olsson's independent 
professional associates and consultants from all claims, 
damages, losses and expenses including attorneys' fees arising 
out of or resulting therefrom. Any such verification or adaptation 
of Work Product will entitle Olsson to further compensation at 
rates to be agreed upon by Client and Olsson. 
 
7.2 Electronic Files 
 
By accepting and utilizing any electronic file of any Work Product 
or other data transmitted by Olsson, the Client agrees for itself, 
its successors, assigns, insurers and all those claiming under or 
through it, that by using any of the information contained in the 
attached electronic file, all users agree to be bound by the 
following terms. All of the information contained in any electronic 
file is the work product and instrument of service of Olsson, who 
shall be deemed the author, and shall retain all common law, 
statutory law and other rights, including copyrights, unless the 
same have previously been transferred in writing to the Client. 
The information contained in any electronic file is provided for 
the convenience to the Client and is provided in “as is” condition. 
The Client is aware that differences may exist between the 
electronic files transferred and the printed hard-copy original 
signed and stamped drawings or reports. In the event of a 
conflict between the signed original documents prepared by 
Olsson and the electronic files, which may be transferred, the 
signed and sealed original documents shall govern. Olsson 
specifically disclaims all warranties, expressed or implied, 
including without limitation, and any warranty of merchantability 
or fitness for a particular purpose with respect to any electronic 
files. It shall be Client’s responsibility to confirm the accuracy of 
the information contained in the electronic file and that it 
accurately reflects the information needed by the Client. Client 
shall not retransmit any electronic files, or any portion thereof, 
without including this disclaimer as part of any such 
transmissions.  In addition, Client agrees, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless Olsson, its 
officers, directors, employees and sub consultants against any 
and all damages, liabilities, claims or costs, including 
reasonable attorney’s and expert witness fees and defense 
costs, arising from any changes made by anyone other than 
Olsson or from any reuse of the electronic files without the prior 
written consent of Olsson.  
 
7.3 Opinion of Probable Cost 
 
Since Olsson has no control over the cost of labor, materials, 
equipment or services furnished by others, or over the 
contractor(s)' methods of determining prices, or over competitive 
bidding or market conditions, Olsson's Opinion of Probable Cost 
provided for herein is made on the basis of Olsson's experience 
and qualifications and represent Olsson's best judgment as an 
experienced and qualified professional engineer, familiar with 
the construction industry. Client acknowledges and agrees that 
Olsson cannot and does not guarantee proposals or bids and 
that actual total Project(s) or construction costs may reasonably 
vary from Olsson’s Opinion of Probable Cost. If prior to the 
bidding or negotiating phase Client wishes greater assurance as 
to total Project(s) or construction costs, Client shall employ an 
independent cost estimator as provided in paragraph 3.4.3.  If 
Olsson’s Opinion of Probable Cost was performed in 
accordance with its standard of care and was reasonable under 
the total circumstances, any services performed by Olsson to 
modify the contract documents to bring the construction cost 
within any limitation established by Client will be considered 
Optional Additional Services and paid for as such by Client. If, 
however, Olsson’s Opinion of Probable Cost was not performed 



 Page 6 of 8  19-3868.01 

in accordance with its standard of care and was unreasonable 
under the total circumstances and the lowest negotiated bid for 
construction of the Project(s) unreasonably exceeds Olsson's 
Opinion of Probable Cost, Olsson shall modify its work as 
necessary to adjust the Project(s)’ size, and/or quality to 
reasonably comply with the Client’s budget at no additional cost 
to Client. Under such circumstances, Olsson’s modification of its 
work at no cost shall be the limit of Olsson’s responsibility with 
regard to any unreasonable Opinion of Probable Cost. 
 
7.4 Prevailing Wages 
 
It is Client's responsibility to determine whether the Project(s) is 
covered under any prevailing wage regulations. Unless Client 
specifically informs Olsson in writing that the Project(s) is a 
prevailing wage project and is identified as such in the Scope of 
Services, Client agrees to reimburse Olsson and to defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless Olsson from and against any 
liability, including costs, fines and attorneys' fees, resulting from 
a subsequent determination that the Project(s) was covered 
under any prevailing wage regulations. 
 
7.5 Samples 
 
All material testing samples shall remain the property of the 
Client. If appropriate, Olsson shall preserve samples obtained 
no longer than forty-five (45) days after the issuance of any 
document that includes the data obtained from those samples. 
After that date, Olsson may dispose of the samples or return 
them to Client at Client's cost. 
 
7.6 Standard of Care 
 
Olsson will strive to perform its services in a manner consistent 
with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members 
of Olsson’s profession providing similar services in the same 
locality under similar circumstances at the time Olsson’s 
services are performed. This Agreement creates no other 
representation, warranty or guarantee, express or implied. 
 
7.7 Force Majeure 
 
Any delay in the performance of any of the duties or obligations 
of either party hereto (except the payment of money) shall not 
be considered a breach of this Agreement and the time required 
for performance shall be extended for a period equal to the 
period of such delay, provided that such delay has been caused 
by or is the result of any acts of God, acts of the public enemy, 
insurrections, riots, embargoes, labor disputes, including strikes, 
lockouts, job actions, boycotts, fires, explosions, floods, 
shortages of material or energy, or other unforeseeable causes 
beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the 
party so affected. The affected party shall give prompt notice to 
the other party of such cause, and shall take promptly whatever 
reasonable steps are necessary to relieve the effect of such 
cause. 
 
7.8 Equal Employment Opportunity 
 
Olsson and any sub-consultant or subcontractor shall abide by 
the requirements of 41 CFR 60-1.4(a), 60-300.5(a) and 60-
741.5(a). These regulations prohibit discrimination against 
qualified individuals based on their status as protected veterans 
or individuals with disabilities, and prohibit discrimination against 
all individuals based on their race, color, religion, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity or national origin. Moreover, these 
regulations require that covered prime contractors and 
subcontractors take affirmative action to employ and advance in 

employment individuals without regard to race, color, religion, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, disability 
or veteran status. 
 
7.9 Confidentiality 
 
In performing this Agreement, the parties may disclose to each 
other written, oral, electronic, graphic, machine-readable, 
tangible or intangible, non-public, confidential or proprietary data 
or information in any form or medium, including but not limited 
to: (1) information of a business, planning, marketing, 
conceptual, design, or technical nature;  (2) models, tools, 
hardware, software or source code; and (3) any documents, 
videos, photographs, audio files, data, studies, reports, 
flowcharts, works in progress, memoranda, notes, files or 
analyses that contain, summarize or are based upon any non-
public, proprietary or confidential information (hereafter referred 
to as the "Information").  The Information is not required to be 
marked as confidential.   
 
 7.9.1 Therefore, Olsson and Client agree that the 
party receiving Information from the other party to this 
Agreement (the “Receiving Party”) shall keep Information 
confidential and not use the Information in any manner other 
than in the performance of this Agreement without prior written 
approval of the party disclosing Information (the “Disclosing 
Party”) unless Client is a public entity and the release of 
Information is required by law or legal process. 
  
 7.9.2  Prior to the start of construction on the Project, 
the existence of discussions between the parties, the purpose 
of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall be considered 
Information subject to the confidentiality provisions of this 
Agreement.  
 
 7.9.3  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, 
the Receiving Party shall have no obligation to preserve the 
confidentiality of any Information which:  
  

7.9.3.1 was previously known to the Receiving 
Party free of any obligation to keep it confidential; or  
  

7.9.3.2  is or becomes publicly available by other 
than unauthorized disclosures; or  
  

7.9.3.3 is independently developed by the 
Receiving Party without a breach of this Agreement; or  

  
7.9.3.4  is disclosed to third parties by the 

Disclosing Party without restrictions; or  
  
7.9.3.5 is received from a third party not subject to 

any confidentiality obligations.  
  
 7.9.4 In the event that the Receiving Party is required 
by law or legal process to disclose any of Information of the 
Disclosing Party, the Receiving Party required to disclose such 
Information shall provide the Disclosing Party with prompt oral 
and written notice, unless notice is prohibited by law (in which 
case such notice shall be provided as early as may be legally 
permissible), of any such requirement so that the Disclosing 
Party may seek a protective order or other appropriate remedy. 
 
 7.9.5 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein 
(or to the contrary of any existing or future nondisclosure, 
confidentiality or similar agreement between the parties), Olsson 
is authorized, to use, display, reproduce, publish, transmit, and 
distribute Information (including, but not limited to, videos and 



 Page 7 of 8  19-3868.01 

photographs of the Project) on and in any and all formats and 
media (including, but not limited to, Olsson’s internet website) 
throughout the world and in all languages in connection with or 
in any manner relating to the marketing, advertising, selling, 
qualifying, proposing, commercializing, and promotion of Olsson 
and/or its services and business and in connection with any 
other lawful purpose of Olsson. In the event of any conflict or 
inconsistency between the provisions of this section and any 
other prior or future nondisclosure, confidentiality or similar 
agreement between the parties, the terms of this section shall 

take precedence.       
 
 7.9.6  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be 
construed as altering any rights that the Disclosing Party has in 
the Information exchanged with or disclosed to the Receiving 
Party, and upon request, the Receiving Party will return all 
Information received in tangible form to the Disclosing Party, or 
at the Receiving Party’s option, destroy all such Information. If 
the Receiving Party exercises its option to destroy the 
Information, the Receiving Party shall certify such destruction to 
the Disclosing Party.  
  
 7.9.7  The parties acknowledge that disclosure or use 
of Information in violation of this Agreement could cause 
irreparable harm for which monetary damages may be difficult 
to ascertain or constitute an inadequate remedy.  Each party 
therefore agrees that the Disclosing Party shall be entitled in 
addition to its other rights to seek injunctive relief for any 
violation of this Agreement.  
 
 7.9.8  The obligations of confidentiality set forth herein 
shall survive termination of this Agreement but shall only remain 
in effect for a period of one (1) year from the date the Information 
is first disclosed. 
 
7.10 Damage or Injury to Subterranean Structures or 
Utilities, Hazardous Materials, Pollution and Contamination 
 
 7.10.1 To the extent that work pursuant to this 
Agreement requires any sampling, boring, excavation, ditching 
or other disruption of the soil or subsurface at the Site, Olsson 
shall confer with Client prior to such activity and Client will be 
responsible for identifying, locating and marking, as necessary, 
any private subterranean structures or utilities and  Olsson shall 
be responsible for arranging investigation of public subterranean 
structures or utilities through an appropriate utility one-call 
provider. Thereafter, Olsson shall take all reasonable 
precautions to avoid damage or injury to subterranean 
structures or utilities which were identified by Client or the one-
call provider. Olsson shall not be responsible for any damage, 
liability or costs, for any property damage, injury or economic 
loss arising or allegedly arising from damages to subterranean 
structures or utilities caused by subsurface penetrations in 
locations approved by Client and/or the one call provider or not 
correctly shown on any plans, drawings or utility clearance 
provided to Olsson, except for damages caused by the 
negligence of Olsson in the use of such information. 
 
 7.10.2 It is understood and agreed that any assistance 
Olsson may provide Client in the disposal of waste materials 
shall not result in Olsson being deemed as a generator, 
arranger, transporter or disposer of hazardous materials or 
hazardous waste as defined under any law or regulation. Title to 
all samples and waste materials remains with Client, and at no 
time shall Olsson take title to the above material. Client may 
authorize Olsson to execute Hazardous Waste Manifest, Bill of 
Lading or other forms as agent of Client.  If Client requests 
Olsson to execute such documents as its agent, the Hazardous 

Waste Manifest, Bill of Lading or other similar documents shall 
be completed in the name of the Client. Client agrees to 
indemnify and hold Olsson harmless from any and all claims that 
Olsson is a generator, arranger, transporter, or disposer of 
hazardous waste as a result of any actions of Olsson, including, 
but not limited to, Olsson signing a Hazardous Waste Manifest, 
Bill of Lading or other form on behalf of Client. 
 
 7.10.3 At any time, Olsson can request in writing that 
Client remove samples, cuttings and hazardous substances 
generated by the Project(s) from the project site or other 
location.  Client shall promptly comply with such request, and 
pay and be responsible for the removal and lawful disposal of 
samples, cuttings and hazardous substances, unless other 
arrangements are mutually agreed upon in writing. 
 
 7.10.4 Client shall release Olsson of any liability for, 
and shall defend and indemnify Olsson against any and all 
claims, liability and expense resulting from operations under this 
Agreement  on account of injury to, destruction of, or loss or 
impairment of any property right in or to oil, gas, or other mineral 
substance or water, if at the time of the act or omission causing 
such injury, destruction, loss or impairment, said substance had 
not been reduced to physical possession above the surface of 
the earth, and for any loss or damage to any formation, strata, 
reservoir beneath the surface of the earth. 
 
 7.10.5 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 
contained herein, it is understood and agreed by and between 
Olsson and Client that the responsibility for pollution and 
contamination shall be as follows:  
 

7.10.5.1 Unless otherwise provided herein, Client 
shall assume all responsibility for, including control and removal 
of, and protect, defend and save harmless Olsson from and 
against all claims, demands and causes of action of every kind 
and character arising from pollution or contamination (including 
naturally occurring radioactive material) which originates above 
the surface of the land or water from spills of fuels, lubricants, 
motor oils, pipe dope, paints, solvents, ballast, bilge and 
garbage, except unavoidable pollution from reserve pits, wholly 
in Olsson’s possession and control and directly associated with 
Olsson’s equipment.   
 

7.10.5.2 In the event a third party commits an act or 
omission which results in pollution or contamination for which 
either Olsson or Client, for whom such party is performing work, 
is held to be legally liable, the responsibility therefore shall be 
considered as between Olsson and Client, to be the same as if 
the party for whom the work was performed had performed the 
same and all of the obligations regarding defense, indemnity, 
holding harmless and limitation of responsibility and liability, as 
set forth herein, shall be specifically applied. 

 
7.11 Controlling Law and Venue 
 
The parties agree that this Agreement and any legal actions 
concerning its validity, interpretation or performance shall be 
governed by the laws of the State of Nebraska.  It is further 
agreed that any legal action between the parties arising out of 
this Agreement or the performance of services shall be brought 
in a court of competent jurisdiction in Nebraska. 
 

  



 Page 8 of 8  19-3868.01 

7.12 Subconsultants 
 
Olsson may utilize as necessary in its discretion subconsultants 
and other subcontractors. Olsson will be paid for all services 
rendered by its subconsultants and other subconsultants as set 
forth in this Agreement. 
 
7.13 Assignment 
 
 7.13.1 Client and Olsson each are hereby bound and 
the partners, successors, executors, administrators and legal 
representatives of Client and Olsson (and to the extent 
permitted by paragraph 7.13.2 the assigns of Client and Olsson) 
are hereby bound to the other party to this Agreement and to the 
partners, successors, executors, administrators and legal 
representatives (and said assigns) of such other party, in 
respect of all covenants, agreements and obligations of this 
Agreement. 
 
 7.13.2 Neither Client nor Olsson shall assign, sublet or 
transfer any rights under or interest in (including, but without 
limitation, moneys that may become due or moneys that are 
due) this Agreement without the written consent of the other, 
except to the extent that any assignment, subletting or transfer 
is mandated by law or the effect of this limitation may be 
restricted by law. Unless specifically stated to the contrary in any 
written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or 
discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under this 
Agreement. Nothing contained in this paragraph shall prevent 
Olsson from employing such subconsultants and other 
subcontractors as Olsson may deem appropriate to assist in the 
performance of services under this Agreement. 
 
 7.13.3 Nothing under this Agreement shall be 
construed to give any rights or benefits in this Agreement to 
anyone other than Client and Olsson, and all duties and 
responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be 
for the sole and exclusive benefit of Client and Olsson and not 
for the benefit of any other party. There are no third-party 
beneficiaries of this Agreement. 
 
7.14 Indemnity 
 
Olsson and Client mutually agree, to the fullest extent permitted 
by law, to indemnify and hold each other harmless from any and 
all damages, liabilities or costs, including reasonable attorneys’ 
fees and defense costs, relating to third party personal injury or 
third party property damage and arising from their own negligent 
acts, errors or omissions in the performance of their services 
under this Agreement, but only to the extent that each party is 
responsible for such damages, liabilities or costs on a 
comparative basis of fault. 
 
7.15 Limitation on Damages 
 
 7.15.1 Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, and to the fullest extent permitted by law, neither 
party’s individual employees, principals, officers or directors 
shall be subject to personal liability or damages arising out of or 
connected in any way to the Project(s) or to this Agreement. 
 
 7.15.2 Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, and to the fullest extent permitted by law, neither 
Client nor Olsson, their respective officers, directors, partners, 
employees, contractors or subconsultants shall be liable to the 
other or shall make any claim for any delay damages, any 
punitive damages or any incidental, indirect or consequential 
damages arising out of or connected in any way to the Project(s) 

or to this Agreement. This mutual waiver of delay damages and 
consequential damages shall include, but is not limited to, 
disruptions, accelerations, inefficiencies, increased construction 
costs, increased home office overhead, loss of use, loss of profit, 
loss of business, loss of income, loss of reputation or any other 
delay or consequential damages that either party may have 
incurred from any cause of action including, but not limited to, 
negligence, statutory violations, misrepresentation, fraud, 
deceptive trade practices, breach of fiduciary duties,  strict 
liability, breach of contract and/or breach of strict or implied 
warranty. Both the Client and Olsson shall require similar 
waivers of consequential damages protecting all the entities or 
persons named herein in all contracts and subcontracts with 
others involved in the Project(s). 
 
 7.15.3 Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, Client agrees that, to the fullest extent permitted by 
law, Olsson’s total liability to the Client for any and all injuries, 
claims, losses, expenses, damages, or claims expenses of any 
kind arising from any services provided by or through Olsson 
under this Agreement, shall not exceed the amount of Olsson’s 
fee earned under this Agreement.  Client acknowledges that 
such causes include, but are not limited to, negligence, statutory 
violations, misrepresentation, fraud, deceptive trade practices, 
breach of fiduciary duties, strict liability, breach of contract 
and/or breach of strict or implied warranty. This limitation of 
liability shall apply to all phases of Olsson’s services performed 
in connection with the Project(s), whether subsequent to or prior 
to the execution of this Agreement. 
 
7.16 Entire Agreement 
 
This Agreement supersedes all prior communications, 
understandings and agreements, whether oral or written.  
Amendments to this Agreement must be in writing and signed 
by the Client and Olsson. 



A- 1 

ATTACHMENT A 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
 

This exhibit is hereby attached to and made a part of the Letter Agreement for Professional 
Services dated ________________________ between the City of Bartlesville (“City”) and Olsson, 
Inc. (“Olsson”) providing for professional services.  Olsson’s Scope of Services for the Agreement 
is indicated below. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION 
 
Project will be located at:  Hillcrest Drive corridor between E. 18TH Street and the Caney River 

in the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma 
 
Project Description:  Survey, geotechnical and engineering services to prepare 

construction documents (plans and specifications) for the 
reconstruction of Hillcrest Drive between E. 18TH Street and the 
Caney River, including repurposing a portion of the existing 
roadway as an extension of the Pathfinder Parkway pedestrian trail 
system, and optionally connecting the new Trail to the existing 
trailhead approximately ¼ mile north of Hillcrest Drive along 
Shawnee Avenue. The Project also includes hydraulic modeling of 
the proposed improvements to avoid inundation of the new roadway 
by nuisance floods and determine the hydraulic impacts of the 
proposed improvements to the floodway and floodplain of Caney 
River and Sand Creek. 

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Olsson shall provide the following services (Scope of Services) to City for the Project: 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 

Hillcrest Drive Reconstruction / Realignment 

The Hillcrest Drive corridor between E. 18TH Street and the Caney River is classified as a 
Major Arterial Street and currently carries up to 8,300 vehicles per day on a narrow two-
lane open-section roadway without shoulders.  Steep roadside ditches also contribute to 
degradation of existing roadway base materials along both sides of the corridor that 
requires regular patching to maintain a safe route. Reconstruction and realignment of this 
corridor will improve traffic safety and operations by providing wider travel lanes, and 
shoulders along both sides of the corridor, and improve roadside safety by providing safe 
drainage side slopes consistent with the AASHTO Roadside Design Guide and the ODOT 
Roadway Design Manual. 

The proposed improvements to Hillcrest Drive will consist primarily of: 

• Widening the existing narrow roadway section to two 12-foot wide drive lanes with 
6-foot wide paved shoulders along both sides of the corridor. 

• Providing adequately sized roadside ditches with adequate safety side slopes and 
clear zones along both sides of the corridor. 

• Realigning Hillcrest Drive between the horizontal curve near the E. 20TH Street 
intersection and the Caney River bridge approach slab as an offset alignment south 
and west of the current alignment. 



A- 2 

• Transitioning from an open-section roadway to a closed-section street with concrete 
curb and gutter to match existing section at the Caney River bridge approach. 

• Maintaining the existing roadside ditch between the existing roadway and the new 
offset alignment with new safety slopes to the new roadway south and west of the 
existing roadway. 

• At a minimum, matching the grade of the existing roadway, and possibly elevating 
the grade of the proposed roadway to avoid inundation during 10-year storm events 
or less, if feasible. 

• Extending and/or reconstructing existing intersections at N. 3950 Road, S. Shawnee 
Avenue, E. 20TH Street, Crestview Drive, and E. 18TH Street. 

• Extending existing drainage structures as needed to accommodate the wider 
pavement and roadside safety slopes. 

The proposed offset alignment for Hillcrest Drive between the E. 20TH Street intersection 
and the Caney River bridge approach slab will tie back to its original alignment just north 
of E. 20TH Street at or near the north tangent of the existing horizontal curve at the 
intersection. Hillcrest Drive from this point north to E. 18TH Street will be reconstructed 
along its current alignment. The proposed shoulders along this section of Hillcrest Drive 
may need to be narrowed dependent on availability of right-of-way north of E. 20TH Street. 

In addition to the improvements identified in the Request for Qualifications, we 
recommend that the City also consider: 

• Improvements to the E. 18TH Street intersection to provide a Left-Turn Lane on the 
south leg of the intersection to match the existing Left-Turn Lane on the north leg. 

• Improvements to the southeast quadrant of the E. 18TH Street intersection to provide 
a sidewalk connection and accessible ramp in this corner. 

Pathfinder Parkway Trail 

Portions of existing Hillcrest Drive between the horizontal curve near the E. 20TH Street 
intersection and the Caney River bridge approach slab will be rehabilitated in place to 
serve as a pedestrian trail that will become part of the City’s Pathfinder Parkway Trail. 
This new Trail along the repurposed existing pavement may be connected to the existing 
Pathfinder Parkway trailhead approximately ¼ mile north of Hillcrest Drive by extending a 
new trail along Shawnee Avenue, if it is determined that costs for this additional Trail fit 
within the City’s budget for this Project. 

 

DESIGN SERVICES 

Phase 100 - Site Investigation 

Task 101 – Topographic and Boundary Survey 

Perform Field survey to map existing and topographic features, including drainage and 
utilities.  

• The survey will be established utilizing the horizontal and vertical control supplied 
by the City (horizontal – NAD 83 and vertical – NVGD 88).  

• Temporary control and benchmarks will be established to aide in the construction 
stake-out of the improvements.   



A- 3 

• Rright-of-way and easements within the survey limits will be researched and 
shown on the survey.   

• The deliverables will include an electronic surface model of the survey. 

• Topographic Survey associated with the Trail extension along Shawnee Avenue 
will be limited to within the existing right-of-way for Shawnee Avenue and does 
not include legal descriptions and exhibits for easements for the Trail extension 
outside of the existing right-of-way. 

 

Task 102 – Geotechnical Investigation 

Perform geotechnical investigations, as detailed below.  

• One (1) truck-mounted drill rig will be mobilized to the project site. 

• Olsson will complete eight (8) geotechnical borings along the proposed roadway 
alignment to a target depth of 5 feet. This is approximately 1 boring per every 
750 feet along the proposed offset alignment. Sampling of soils and Standard 
Penetration Testing (SPT) will be performed at 2.5-foot intervals. Bulk samples 
will be collected for laboratory testing. Groundwater levels in the geotechnical 
borings at the time of drilling and immediately at the completion of the drilling 
operations will be recorded. 

• Where borings will be performed along the existing paved roadway, Olsson will 
replace the surface pavement. 

• Olsson will notify Call OKIE to locate public utilities.  Any private utilities not 
identified by the public locate service shall be located by the City prior to drilling. 
Olsson is not liable for damage to any utilities that are unknown or improperly 
located. 

• Olsson will provide traffic control if needed such that the work can be completed 
without significant interruption to the public. 

• Olsson will provide access via clearing of small trees and brush to the proposed 
boring locations if required. Costs for extensive grading and clearing of large 
trees and shrubs are not included but can be provided at cost plus 10 percent if 
required. 

• Laboratory testing will be performed at quantities determined by Olsson to 
adequately characterize the subsurface conditions. Testing will include moisture 
content testing, hydrometer and mechanical grain size testing, Atterberg Limits 
testing, resilient modulus testing (at optimum moisture content), and chemical 
analysis testing. 

Deliverable will be a concise, bound geotechnical report for use in pavement and civil 
design. 

 

  



A- 4 

Task 103 – Environmental Research and Coordination 

The anticipated Environmental research and review for the reconstruction of Hillcrest 
Drive will include: 

A waters and wetlands resources review. Olsson will conduct a desktop review of 
potential US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) jurisdictional wetlands and waters of 
the US within the project area. This preliminary review will be conducted by obtaining 
geographic information systems (GIS) shapefiles and other digital resources that would 
allow potential identification of the presence of hydrophytic vegetation, hydric soils, and 
hydrology. The sources Olsson will review will include, but may not be limited to:  

• U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) National Wetland Inventory (NWI);  

• USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) Web Soil Survey 
(SSUGRO);  

• US Geological Survey (USGS) National Hydrography Dataset (NHD); and,  

• USGS topographic quadrangle maps and other local sources for digital elevation 
models and digital ortho imagery. 

Following the desktop review, Olsson will conduct a field visit to verify, at a minimum, 
the features identified during the desktop review, and their boundaries based on a 
visual verification of hydric field indicators present. The boundaries of the wetlands will 
be mapped with a field global positioning (GPS) unit. Additionally, any portions of 
perennial, intermittent, and ephemeral streams within the project’s rights-of-way (ROW) 
will be mapped with a field GPS unit.  

During the field visit, the Olsson biologist will also conduct a preliminary assessment of 
project area to determine the potential for suitable habitat for birds and other wildlife 
species that are protected under the Endangered Species Act (ESA), the Migratory 
Bird Treaty Act (MBTA), and the Bald and Golden Eagle Protection Act (BGEPA). The 
Olsson biologist will also photo document existing conditions of the project area. 
Detailed investigations for threatened and endangered species are not included in this 
task.  If a Section 404 Permit is required, additional hours and fees will need to be 
allocated for ESA Section 7 consultation.   

Olsson will conduct a review of publicly available information from the Oklahoma 
Historical Society’s (OHS) National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) database, and 
other such resources to identify information on previously recorded historic structures, 
historic cemeteries, and NRHP properties located within or adjacent to the study area. 
Please note that this task does not include an archaeological database review or 
cultural resources reconnaissance field visit at this time.  

At the request of the City, Olsson will prepare the Oklahoma State Historic 
Preservation Office (SHPO) consultation letters and submit them to the City to be 
placed on City letterhead. Olsson assumes the City will submit the letters to the 
Oklahoma Archaeological Survey (OAS) and the OHS for review. Upon review of the 
project, under National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA) Section 106 consultation, the 
OAS and OHS may require additional cultural and historical resources review. Olsson 
will assist the City in this review (if needed) on hourly basis compensation. 

A consultation with the design engineer will take place to determine the need for an 
Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality (ODEQ) General Permit OKR-10. The 
OKR-10 Permit is required for stormwater discharges from construction sites of none 
(1) acre or larger. Any Oklahoma Sensitive Waters and Watersheds Harboring 
Endangered and Threatened Species and Their Critical Habitat of Concern will be 



A- 5 

identified and documented. This task does not include Section 401 water quality 
certification, the development of the Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) or 
the submittal of the Notice of Intent for construction.  

 

Phase 200 – Roadway / Traffic Design 

Task 201 – Project Kickoff / Design Charrette 

Facilitate a Project Kickoff Meeting / Design Charrette with stakeholders to establish 
open communications, define the City’s expectations for a successful project, develop 
a plan to engage key stakeholders, refine project scope, review the project site, identify 
specific goals, determine survey area, establish schedule for completion, and establish 
channels of communication.  Olsson will prepare and distribute minutes of the meeting. 

 

Task 202 – Conceptual Design Phase 

Upon receipt of written Notice to Proceed from the City, Olsson will perform the 
following tasks in accordance with the Schedule provided: 

• Coordinate with utility companies concerning upcoming projects and schedules in 
concert with the City’s Utility Coordinator (UC) 

• Work collaboratively with the City to develop and evaluate alternative horizontal 
and vertical layouts for reconstruction of Hillcrest Drive as an offset alignment 
south and west of the existing roadway, improvements to the existing 
intersections at N. 3950 Road, S. Shawnee Avenue, E. 20TH Street, Crestview 
Drive, and E. 18TH Street, and improvements to the storm drainage system along 
the Hillcrest Drive corridor to avoid inundation of the new roadway during 10-year 
storm events or less. 

• Evaluate alternative layouts and prepare conceptual opinions of probable costs 
for each alternative.  

• Facilitate one (1) ‘Over-the-Shoulder’ Review / Planning Workshop with the City 
to discuss recommendations and achieve consensus for preferred alternative 
during the Conceptual Design Phase. ‘Over-the-Shoulder’ Review / Planning 
Workshops may be conducted as teleconferences using web-based meeting 
applications such as GoToMeeting, or in person at the City’s or Olsson’s offices. 

• Prepare conceptual drawings of the proposed improvements for the preferred 
alternative. 

• Prepare a Conceptual Opinion of Probable Construction Costs for the preferred 
alternative using 25% contingency. 

• Submit Conceptual Plans on electronic media to the City for distribution and 
review. 

• Attend one (1) Conceptual Design Review (30% Preliminary Plan Field Review) 
Meeting with the City to discuss design challenges and review design issues and 
comments.  

• Address comments received during the Conceptual Design Phase in writing. 
Comments will be incorporated into the Preliminary Design Phase deliverables. 

 

  



A- 6 

Task 203 – Preliminary Design Phase (60% Right-of-Way & Utility Coordination) 

Following approval of the Conceptual Design (30% Preliminary Plan Field Review), and 
upon receipt of written Notice to Proceed from the City, Olsson will perform the 
following tasks in accordance with the Schedule provided: 

• Conduct preliminary coordination with private and public utility companies in 
concert with the City’s Utility Coordinator (UC). 

• Facilitate informal ‘Over-the-Shoulder’ Review / Planning Workshop with the City 
and key stakeholders as needed throughout the Preliminary Design Phase to 
present in-progress design models, drawings and calculations, discuss design 
challenges, and address design issues and comments. 

• Perform preliminary roadway geometric layout and design 

• Perform preliminary roadway drainage analysis and design 

• Prepare preliminary construction plans for the proposed project including 
roadway and trail plans, and utility coordination items, and existing and proposed 
rights-of-way and easements identified. 

• Prepare preliminary construction specifications / special provisions using 2009 
ODOT Standard Specifications for Highway Construction and published ODOT 
Special Provisions, and ODOT PES Pay Item List. 

• Prepare preliminary quantity summaries for roadway and traffic construction. 

• Prepare preliminary Opinion of Probable Construction Costs for roadway and 
traffic construction using 15% contingency. 

• Submit 60% Right-of-Way and Utility Coordination Plans, Preliminary 
Construction Specifications, and Preliminary Opinion of Probable Construction 
Costs on electronic media to the City for distribution and review. 

• Attend one (1) Preliminary Design (60% Right-of-Way & Utility Coordination) 
Meeting with the City to discuss design challenges and review design issues and 
comments.  

• Address comments received during the Preliminary Design (60% Right-of-Way & 
Utility Coordination Plans) in writing. Comments will be incorporated into the 65% 
Right-of-Way Plan and Final Design Phase deliverables. 

 

Task 204 – 65% Right-of-Way (R/W) Plan 

Following approval of the Preliminary Design (60% Right-of-Way & Utility Coordination 
Plans), and upon receipt of written Notice to Proceed from the City, Olsson will provide 
the following to the City to begin right-of-way and easement acquisition: 

• Prepare “Minimum-Required” right-of-way documents based upon the comments 
received from the preliminary submittal. 

• Prepare Right-of-Way map. 

• Submit electronic copies of “Minimum-Required” right-of-way documents for the 
project final taking/acquisitions requirements. 

• Procure and provide Property Report on all right-of-way acquisition parcels. 

• To scale Preliminary Plan & Profile (P&P), One half size and one full size set. 



A- 7 

• For each parcel provide legal descriptions in WORD & PDF formats. Each 
containing the project number and parcel numbers for permanent and/or 
temporary easements identified (i.e.: 1P, 1T), stamped and signed by surveyor 
and/or Professional Engineer – See provided examples 

• Current deed or deeds of record for each parcel. As property ownership may 
change during project, review ownership before submitting deeds/ownership 
information to R/W Division. 

• To scale R/W Plans- (plans set over aerial photos are not mandatory but are 
extremely helpful. If aerials are used please make sure they are to proper scale) 

• Show survey data including driveways, parking surface, buildings, fencing, gates, 
planters, trees, parcel numbers & owner names, also show property line breaks. 

• Identify encroachments in the existing R/W such as fencing, gates, signs, 
stockpile materials, brick columns, sprinklers/irrigation systems, landscaping, etc. 

• On cover letter provide identified encroachments in tabulated format identifying 
the items, station locations and indicate “to be removed prior to utility 
relocations”, or prior to construction 

• Deliver all information to the City on electronic media for distribution and review. 

• Survey staking of the proposed R/W for acquisition purposes can be performed 
by Olsson as an Optional Additional Service. 

 

Task 205 – Final Design Phase 

Following approval of the Preliminary Design (60% Right-of-Way & Utility Coordination 
Plans), and upon receipt of written Notice to Proceed from the City, Olsson will perform 
the following tasks in accordance with the Schedule provided: 

• Conduct necessary design functions required to complete the final design phase 
of the project. 

• Facilitate informal ‘Over-the-Shoulder’ Review / Planning Workshop with the City 
and key stakeholders as needed throughout the Final Design Phase to present 
in-progress design models, drawings and calculations, discuss design 
challenges, and address design issues and comments. 

• Attend utility coordination meetings for the Project as requested by the City. 

• Prepare and complete final design. 

• Prepare detailed construction plans in conformance with appropriate drafting 
standards. 

• Prepare final pay quantity summaries and notes for roadway and traffic 
construction 

• Prepare final opinion of probable construction costs with a 10% contingency. 

• Prepare Construction Specifications, Special Provisions and City standard front-
end contract documents. 

• Prepare Contract proposals in units compatible with ODOT specifications. 



A- 8 

• Submit Final Construction Plans, Final Contract Bid Documents, and Final 
Opinion of Probable Construction Costs on electronic media to the City for 
distribution and review. 

• Incorporate final review comments and furnish Final Drawings (AutoCAD 2013 or 
earlier version), and Final Specifications on electronic media to the City for 
bidding. 

 

BIDDING SERVICES 

Phase 300 – Construction Letting Services 

Upon receipt of written Notice to Proceed from the City, Olsson will perform the following 
tasks in accordance with the Schedule provided: 

• Assist the City, as requested, in advertising the Project for bids for construction. 

• Conduct a pre-bid conference, if requested by City. 

• Serve as the technical question point of contact during bidding and if required, draft 
any necessary addenda to clarify Contract documents. 

• Prepare bid tabulation, if requested, and provide recommendation for award. 

 

FLOODPLAIN MODELING SERVICES 

Phase 400 – Caney River Floodplain Model Update 

Olsson will adjust the existing HEC-RAS model provided by the City of Bartlesville to model 
the improvement proposed to Hillcrest Road and will report the findings in a one-page letter 
report to the City.  The modeling effort will not include design for compensatory storage, 
overflow structures or any other hydraulic design.  The intent is to show the impact of the 
proposed roadway elevation and footprint on the floodplain area by modifying the regional 
hydraulic model that is provided to Olsson by the City of Bartlesville.  Olsson will not perform 
additional topographic survey in association to the hydraulic modeling effort. 

 

TASKS NOT INCLUDED IN THIS CONTRACT (NIC) 

• Legal descriptions and exhibits for any right-of-way acquisition and easements for 
Hillcrest Drive Reconstruction and the Trail extension outside of the existing right-of-
way along Hillcrest Drive and Shawnee Avenue north of the Hillcrest Drive intersection. 

• Utility Relocation Plans: Any City Utilities that relocation has not been determined yet 
or identified to require relocation are not included in this contract but can be provided 
as Additional Services upon request by the CITY. 

• Preparing application and supporting material for the submittal of a Letter of Map 
Revision (LOMR) to the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), if 
necessary.  

• Application fees for any permits and LOMAR 

• Addressing comments from FEMA, satisfying FEMA mapping requirements and 
obtaining the final LOMR. 

• United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) 404 and 401 permit applications, if 
necessary. 



A- 9 

• Endangered Species survey, Archeological/Cultural resources survey, wetland 
delineation, or any other data gathering effort that USACE may require for evaluation 
and issuance of a permit. 

• Environmental Mitigation Plans such as Wetlands, LUST, Hazmat etc. 

• Full time construction inspection or observation. 

• Project Close-out Services including revisions to the drawings due to construction 
changes and Record / As-Built Drawings. 

• Construction surveying or surveying for as-built conditions. 

• Property Acquisition, Appraisals & Negotiations 

 

Should City request work in addition to the Scope of Services, Olsson shall invoice City for such 
additional services (Additional Services) at the standard hourly billing labor rate charged for 
those employees actually performing the work, plus reimbursable expenses if any.  Olsson shall 
not commence work on Additional Services without City’s prior written approval. 

Olsson agrees to provide its services in a timely, competent and professional manner, in 
accordance with applicable standards of care, for projects of similar geographic location, quality 
and scope. 

 



B-1 

ATTACHMENT B 

COMPENSATION AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

 

 

This exhibit is hereby attached to and made a part of the Letter Agreement for Professional 
Services dated ________________________ between the City of Bartlesville (“City”) and 
Olsson, Inc. (“Olsson”) providing for professional services.  Olsson’s Compensation to perform 
the Scope of Services for the Agreement and Additional Services is indicated below. 
 
 
1.0 BASIC COMPENSATION 

The basic compensation for Olsson to perform all duties and responsibilities associated 
with the Scope of Services as described in Attachment A shall be in accordance with the 
following payment breakdown: 

1.1 Phase 100 - Site Investigations Payment: The City shall pay Olsson a lump sum 
amount of $35,000.00 for the completion of Site Investigations for the Project as 
broken out below. This amount includes all labor, material, overhead and profit 
associated with the Scope of Services. 

1.1.1 Topographic and Boundary Survey Payment: $21,000.00  

1.1.2 Geotechnical Investigations and Geotechnical Engineering Report 
Payment: $9,000.00   

1.1.3 Environmental Research and Coordination Payment: $5,000.00 

1.2 Phase 200 – Roadway / Traffic Design Payment: The City shall pay Olsson a 
lump sum amount of $110,000.00 for the completion of Roadway / Traffic Design 
for the Project as broken out below. This amount includes all labor, material, 
overhead and profit associated with the Scope of Services. 

1.2.1 Task 201 – Conceptual Design Phase Payment: $33,000.00 

1.2.2 Task 202 – Preliminary Design Phase (60% Right-of-Way & Utility 
Coordination) Payment: $33,000.00  

1.2.3 Task 203 – 65% Right-of-Way (R/W) Plan Payment: $5,500.00 

1.2.4 Task 204 – Final Design Phase Payment: $38,500.00 

1.3 Phase 300 – Construction Letting Services Payment: The City shall pay Olsson a 
lump sum amount of $3,500 for the completion of the Construction Letting Phase.  
This amount includes all labor, material, overhead and profit associated with the 
Scope of Services. 

1.4 Phase 400 – Caney River Floodplain Model Update Payment: The City shall pay 
Olsson a lump sum amount of $8,000.00 for the completion of the Caney River 
Floodplain Model Update. This amount includes all labor, material, overhead and 
profit associated with the Scope of Services. 

 

  



B-2 

2.0 ADDITIONAL SERVICES BASED ON TIME 

The hourly rates set forth below include all salaries, benefits, overhead and other indirect 
costs including federal, state, and local taxes, plus profit and effective as of January 1, 
2019. Additional services requested by the City will be negotiated based on the hourly 
rates listed below. 

Professional Services 

Project Manager      $173.18 
Senior Engineer      $164.92 
Mid-Level Engineer      $132.70 
Junior Engineer      $ 99.48 
Senior Technician      $ 89.96 
Technician       $ 73.37 
Junior Technician      $ 58.97 
Senior Geotechnical Engineer    $168.85 
Mid-Level Geotechnical Engineer    $132.70 
Junior Geotechnical Engineer    $ 99.48 
Senior Geotechnical Technician    $ 87.62 
Geotechnical Technician     $ 71.46 
Junior Geotechnical Technician    $ 52.74 
Senior Environmental Engineer    $169.05 
Mid-Level Environmental Engineer    $119.30 
Junior Environmental Engineer    $ 86.90 
Senior Environmental Technician    $ 89.96 
Mid-Level Environmental Technician    $ 73.37 
Senior Surveyor      $127.63 
Mid-Level Surveyor      $78.83 
Junior Surveyor      $60.88 
Senior Survey Technician     $ 89.96 
Survey Technician      $ 73.37 
Junior Survey Technician     $ 58.97 
 
 

3.0 REPRODUCTION 

All charges for reproduction are included in Basic Compensation Fee of Olsson.  No 
separate payment will be made for these expenses. 
 

4.0 MILEAGE 

All costs for travel to the Project site and to the City of Bartlesville for meetings are 
included in the Basic Compensation of Olsson.  No separate payment will be made for 
these expenses. 

5.0 DIRECT COSTS 

All direct costs shall be included in the Basic Compensation of Olsson.  No separate 
payment will be made for these expenses. 

 

6.0 ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE 

The rates and costs described in this AGREEMENT shall not be revised annually, unless 
mutually agreed upon by both parties. 

 



Agenda Item ___ 
August 28, 2019 

Prepared by Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
Accounting and Finance 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Receipt of Interim Financials for the Nine months ending March 31, 2019.  
 
Attachments: 

Interim Financials for March 31, 2019 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
Staff has prepared the condensed Interim Financial Statements for March 2019; these should 
provide sufficient information for the City Council to perform its fiduciary responsibility. All 
supplementary, detailed information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. 
All information is subject to change pending audit. 
 
Staff wants to reiterate the fact that once the financial software is fully implemented that 
financials will be delivered in a timelier manner. Staff would also like to reassure Council that 
the Cities financial position is monitored on a daily basis and not at the formulation of the interim 
financial statements. 
  

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends the approval the Interim Financials for March 31, 2019. 

6.d.i. 



Ward 1 - Dale Copeland, Mayor
Ward 2 - Paul Stuart
Ward 3 - Jim Curd
Ward 4 - Alan Gentges, Vice Mayor
Ward 5 - Trevor Dorsey

Jason Muninger Alicia Shelton
Finance Director Accountant

Mike Bailey

Prepared by:

REPORT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For The Nine Months Ended March 31, 2019

CITY COUNCIL

City Manager



TABLE OF CONTENTS

HIGHLIGHTS

MAJOR FUNDS:
GENERAL FUND
WASTEWATER OPERATING/BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
WATER OPERATING/BMA WATER FUNDS
SANITATION

OTHER FUNDS:
REVENUE BUDGET STATUS
EXPENDITURE BUDGET STATUS
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

EXPLANATORY MEMO



FINANCIAL STATEMENT REVENUE HIGHLIGHTS
(Dashed line represents average percent of year for 4 preceding fiscal years)

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

70.0%
71.0%
72.0%
73.0%
74.0%
75.0%
76.0%
77.0%
78.0%
79.0%

 8,500,000

 9,000,000

 9,500,000

 10,000,000

 10,500,000

 11,000,000

 11,500,000

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019

GENERAL FUND SALES TAX

YTD

% OF YR

60.0%

65.0%

70.0%

75.0%

80.0%

85.0%

 2,600,000
 2,700,000
 2,800,000
 2,900,000
 3,000,000
 3,100,000
 3,200,000
 3,300,000
 3,400,000

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019

WASTEWATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

70.0%

72.0%

74.0%

76.0%

78.0%

80.0%

82.0%

 5,200,000
 5,400,000
 5,600,000
 5,800,000
 6,000,000
 6,200,000
 6,400,000
 6,600,000
 6,800,000
 7,000,000

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019

WATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

71.0%

72.0%

73.0%

74.0%

75.0%

76.0%

77.0%

78.0%

 3,240,000

 3,260,000

 3,280,000

 3,300,000

 3,320,000

 3,340,000

 3,360,000

 3,380,000

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019

SANITATION FEES

YTD

% OF YR



Page 4

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Sales Tax 14,342,014$  10,756,511$  11,023,877$  -$                   11,023,877$  76.9% 10,687,870$  75.3%
Gross Receipt Tax 1,412,900       1,059,675       1,078,714       -                      1,078,714       76.3% 1,073,111       77.1%
Licenses and Permits 271,300          203,475          160,048          -                      160,048          59.0% 226,517          88.0%
Intergovernmental 664,500          498,375          464,766          -                      464,766          69.9% 482,908          73.0%
Charges for Services 672,200          504,150          347,717          -                      347,717          51.7% 276,916          72.9%
Court Costs 122,600          91,950             85,718             -                      85,718             69.9% 87,834             76.0%
Police/Traffic Fines 442,900          332,175          350,388          -                      350,388          79.1% 308,448          73.9%
Parking Fines 72,500             54,375             62,290             -                      62,290             85.9% 61,265             74.2%
Other Fines 42,000             31,500             49,763             -                      49,763             118.5% 32,608             75.2%
Investment Income 85,000             63,750             63,750             -                      63,750             75.0% 80,123             65.9%
Miscellaneous Income 237,400          178,050          340,290          -                      340,290          143.3% 371,293          87.4%
Transfers In 4,263,594       3,197,696       3,197,703       -                      3,197,703       75.0% 2,951,349       74.6%

Total 22,628,908$  16,971,682$  17,225,024$  -$                   17,225,024$  76.1% 16,640,242$  75.5%

Expenditures:
General Government 6,076,826$     4,557,620$     4,465,574$     373,690$      4,839,264$     79.6% 4,517,670$     79.9%
Public Safety 11,387,027     8,540,270       8,578,277       90,193           8,668,470       76.1% 8,385,559       76.6%
Street 1,524,648       1,143,486       1,032,940       14,375           1,047,315       68.7% 1,070,468       74.5%
Culture and Recreation 2,769,526       2,077,145       1,986,876       44,540           2,031,416       73.3% 1,985,412       75.5%
Transfers Out 1,387,658       1,040,744       1,040,750       -                      1,040,750       75.0% 1,136,048       69.0%
Reserves 766,435          574,826          -                       -                      -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 23,912,120$  17,934,091$  17,104,417$  522,798$      17,627,215$  73.7% 17,095,157$  76.6%

Changes in Fund Balance:

Fund Balance 7/1 1,537,026$     

Net Revenue (Expense) 120,607          

Ending Fund Balance 1,657,633$     

75% of Year Lapsed

2018-19 Fiscal Year 2017-18 Fiscal Year

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 5

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Wastewater Fees 4,452,797$     3,339,598$     3,338,409$  -$                   3,338,409$     75.0% 3,287,848$     85.7%
Investment Income -                        -                        -                      -                      -                        N.A. -                        0.0%
Debt Proceeds -                        -                        -                      -                      -                        N.A. -                        N.A.
Miscellaneous 40,000             30,000             34,273          -                      34,273             85.7% 93,074             137.5%

Total 4,492,797$    3,369,598$    3,372,682$  -$                   3,372,682$    75.1% 3,380,922$    86.6%

Expenditures:
Wastewater Plant 2,601,713$     1,951,285$     1,786,425$  782,302$      2,568,727$     98.7% 2,311,936$     101.4%
Wastewater Maint 803,416          602,562          496,293        9,571             505,864          63.0% 618,018          81.2%
BMA Expenses 29,500             22,125             28,430          -                      28,430             96.4% 21,995             76.8%
Transfers Out 1,251,444       938,583          938,586        -                      938,586          75.0% 864,849          72.1%
Reserves 84,135             63,101             -                      -                      -                        0.0% -                        N.A.

Total 4,770,208$    3,577,656$    3,249,734$  791,873$      4,041,607$    84.7% 3,816,798$    89.4%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 389,055$      

Net Revenue (Expense) 122,948        

Ending Fund Balance 512,003$      

75% of Year Lapsed

2018-19 Fiscal Year 2017-18 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WASTEWATER OPERATING & BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 6

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Water Fees 9,531,430$     7,148,573$     7,259,325$  -$                   7,259,325$     76.2% 7,118,530$     78.3%
Investment Income -                       -                       -                     -                     -                       N.A. 1,123               17.8%
Debt Proceeds -                       -                       -                     -                     -                       N.A. -                       N.A.
Miscellaneous 1,251               938                  2,234            -                     2,234               178.6% 10,277             104.3%

Total 9,532,681$     7,149,511$     7,261,559$  -$                   7,261,559$     76.2% 7,129,930$     78.2%

Expenditures:
Water Plant 2,934,817$     2,201,113$     1,719,525$  57,636$        1,777,161$     60.6% 1,809,330$     70.0%
Water Administration 333,472          250,104          243,834        21,773          265,607          79.6% 246,222          87.7%
Water Distribution 1,515,757       1,136,818       1,017,624     14,240          1,031,864       68.1% 1,025,806       80.8%
BMA Expenses 3,031,000       2,273,250       2,599,760     -                     2,599,760       85.8% 2,493,240       84.4%
Transfers Out 1,945,577       1,459,183       1,462,039     -                     1,462,039       75.1% 1,367,404       82.0%
Reserves 173,377          130,033          -                     -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 9,934,000$     7,450,501$     7,042,782$  93,649$        7,136,431$     71.8% 6,942,002$     79.3%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 1,706,985$  

Net Revenue (Expense) 218,777        

Ending Fund Balance 1,925,762$  

75% of Year Lapsed

2018-19 Fiscal Year 2017-18 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WATER OPERATING & BMA WATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 7

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Collection Fees 4,477,523$     3,358,142$     3,372,541$       -$                   3,372,541$     75.3% 3,318,236$     74.9%
Investment Income -                       -                       1,652                 -                     1,652               N.A. 6,576               71.4%
Miscellaneous -                       -                       11,872               -                     11,872            N.A. 30,056            70.4%

Total 4,477,523$    3,358,142$    3,386,065$       -$                   3,386,065$    75.6% 3,354,868$    74.9%

Expenditures:
Sanitation 3,017,330$     2,262,998$     2,152,160$       303,955$      2,456,115$     81.4% 2,616,913$     94.0%
Transfers Out 2,150,145       1,612,609       1,612,611         -                     1,612,611       75.0% 1,499,129       79.5%
Reserves 128,611          96,458            -                          -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 5,296,086$    3,972,065$    3,764,771$       303,955$     4,068,726$    76.8% 4,116,042$    88.1%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 1,326,544$       

Net Revenue (Expense) (378,706)           

Ending Fund Balance 947,838$          

75% of Year Lapsed

2018-19 Fiscal Year 2017-18 Fiscal Year

SANITATION FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 
Special Revenue Funds:

Economic Development Fund 1,576,420     1,190,054    75%
E-911 Fund 946,688        721,833        76%
Special Library Fund 94,500           63,010          67%
Special Museum Fund 6,500             21,582          332%
Municipal Airport Fund -                      260,349        N/A
Harshfield Library Donation Fund -                      -                     N/A
Restricted Revenue Fund -                      46,226          N/A
Golf Course Memorial Fund -                      6,367            N/A
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 6,000             -                     0%
Neighborhood Park Fund -                      -                     N/A
Cemetery Care Fund 2,600             1,841            71%
Memorial Stadium Operating Fund -                      -                     N/A

Debt Service Fund 3,756,572     3,266,753    87%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 2,706,040     2,191,110    81%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                      -                     N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund -                      9,200            N/A
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund -                      -                     N/A
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 21,049           20,542          98%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund -                      2,140            N/A
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                      -                     N/A
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2014B G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2018B G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2018C G.O. Bond Fund 2,500,000     2,500,000    100%

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 453,549        312,260        69%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 29,902           22,429          75%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 40,820           30,617          75%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 237,170        156,359        66%
Health Insurance Fund 3,369,972     2,193,756    65%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 100,000        75,004          75%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 742,848        559,994        75%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 10,260,441   3,016,489    29%

Mausoleum Trust Fund -                      -                     N/A

75% of Year Lapsed

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Revenue Budget Report - Budget Basis



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 
Special Revenue Funds:

Economic Development Fund 2,521,563     1,485,000    59%
E-911 Fund 1,031,634     784,116        76%
Special Library Fund 194,750        119,111        61%
Special Museum Fund 45,000           27,111          60%
Municipal Airport Fund 309,800        281,638        91%
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 762,595        30,342          4%
Restricted Revenue Fund 230,609        87,163          38%
Golf Course Memorial Fund 78,780           77,428          98%
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 40,243           30,184          75%
Neighborhood Park Fund 8,262             -                     0%
Cemetery Care Fund 5,682             -                     0%
Memorial Stadium Operating Fund 2,134             1,603            75%

Debt Service Fund 3,814,700     2,571,129    67%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 5,188,551     1,360,432    26%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                      -                     N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 178,548        83,910          47%
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 1,377,317     1,111,770    81%
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 55,019           11,868          22%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 86,342           26,768          31%
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                      79,559          N/A
2008B G.O. Bond Fund 88                  -                     0%
2009 G.O. Bond Fund 2,636             -                     0%
2010 G.O. Bond Fund 410                -                     0%
2012 G.O. Bond Fund 136,447        -                     0%
2014 G.O. Bond Fund 374,904        283,606        76%
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 161,745        75,966          47%
2015 G.O. Bond Fund 1,885,404     1,790,451    95%
2017 G.O. Bond Fund 2,463,901     1,414,222    57%
2018A G.O. Bond Fund 9,580,000     1,704,186    18%
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 478,921        7,650            2%
2018C G.O. Bond Fund 2,500,000     -                     0%

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 517,052        403,959        78%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 46,961           43,698          93%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 59,940           51,108          85%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 425,000        187,979        44%
Health Insurance Fund 4,086,963     2,112,656    52%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 305,053        4,040            1%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 6,741,428     -                     0%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 13,187,348   2,330,752    18%

Mausoleum Trust Fund 6,016             -                     0%

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Expenditure Budget Report - Budget Basis

75% of Year Lapsed



 Beginning of Year  Change  Current 
Special Revenue Funds:

Economic Development Fund 1,238,523                  (61,196)        1,177,327     
E-911 Fund 70,543                        (57,681)        12,862           
Special Library Fund 283,797                      (34,202)        249,595        
Special Museum Fund 108,826                      (5,023)           103,803        
Municipal Airport Fund 309,309                      (10,751)        298,558        
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 761,021                      (29,066)        731,955        
Restricted Revenue Fund 242,340                      (29,331)        213,009        
Golf Course Memorial Fund 18,898                        3,339            22,237           
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 40,254                        (30,184)        10,070           
Neighborhood Park Fund 8,265                          -                     8,265             
Cemetery Care Fund 3,400                          1,841            5,241             
Memorial Stadium Operating Fund 2,112                          (1,603)           509                

Debt Service Fund 3,811,804                  695,624        4,507,428     

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 2,834,230                  1,327,072    4,161,302     
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                                   -                     -                      
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 223,714                      (74,710)        149,004        
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 1,522,161                  (397,395)      1,124,766     
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 28,480                        12,844          41,324           
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 134,907                      (23,542)        111,365        
Community Development Block Grant Fund 28,883                        (32,658)        (3,775)           
2008B G.O. Bond Fund 88                                -                     88                  
2009 G.O. Bond Fund 6,809                          -                     6,809             
2010 G.O. Bond Fund 410                              -                     410                
2012 G.O. Bond Fund 128,562                      -                     128,562        
2014 G.O. Bond Fund 610,207                      (4,961)           605,246        
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 121,246                      (62,998)        58,248           
2015 G.O. Bond Fund 1,873,028                  (1,174,755)   698,273        
2017 G.O. Bond Fund 2,480,902                  (1,130,355)   1,350,547     
2018A G.O. Bond Fund 9,594,319                  (676,521)      8,917,798     
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 479,089                      (7,650)           471,439        
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                                   -                     -                      

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 71,973                        (35,910)        36,063           
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 36,045                        (19,732)        16,313           
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 49,154                        (18,995)        30,159           

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 164,286                      (39,617)        124,669        
Health Insurance Fund 693,197                      (103,050)      590,147        
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 186,874                      70,964          257,838        
Stabilization Reserve Fund 5,998,580                  559,994        6,558,574     
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 8,004,195                  2,074,888    10,079,083   

Mausoleum Trust Fund 8,018                          -                     8,018             

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Fund Balance Report - Modified Cash Basis

75% of Year Lapsed



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
FROM: Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Financial Statement Explanatory Information 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
The purpose of this memo is to provide some insight as to the construction of the attached financial 
statements and to provide some guidance as to their use. 
 
The format of the attached financial statements is intended to highlight our most important revenue 
sources, provide sufficient detail on major operating funds, and provide a high level overview of all other 
funds. The level of detail presented is sufficient to assist the City Council in conducting their fiduciary 
obligations to the City without creating a voluminous document that made the execution of that duty 
more difficult. 
 
This document provides three different types of analyses for the Council’s use. The first is an analysis 
of revenue vs budgeted expectations. This allows the Council to see how the City’s revenues are 
performing and to have a better idea if operational adjustments are necessary.  
 
The second analysis compares expenditures to budget. This allows the Council to ensure that the 
budgetary plan that was set out for the City is being followed and that Staff is making the necessary 
modifications along the way.  
 
The final analysis shows the fund balance for each fund of the City. This is essentially the “cash” balance 
for most funds. However, some funds include short term receivables and payables depending on the 
nature of their operation. With very few exceptions, all funds must maintain positive fund balance by 
law. Any exceptions will be noted where they occur. 
 
These analyses are presented in the final manner: 
 

Highlights: 
The Highlights section presents a 5 year snap shot of the performance of the City’s 4 most 
important revenue sources. Each bar represents the actual amounts earned in each year through 
the period of the report. Each dash represents the percent of the year’s revenue that had been 
earned through that period. The current fiscal year will always represent the percent of the budget 
that has been earned, while all previous fiscal years will always represent the percent of the actual 
amount earned. This analysis highlights and compares not only amounts earned, but gives a better 
picture of how much should have been earned in order to meet budget for the year. 
 

  



Major Operating Funds: 
The City’s major operating funds are presented in greater detail than the remainder of the City’s 
funds. These funds include the General, Wastewater Operating, BMA – Wastewater, Water 
Operating, BMA – Water, and Sanitation. Due to the interrelated nature of the Wastewater 
Operating/BMA – Wastewater and the Water Operating/BMA – Water funds, these have been 
combined into Wastewater Combined and Water Combined funds. This should provide a better 
picture of the overall financial condition of these operating segments by combining revenues, 
operating expenses, and financing activities in a single report. 
 
Other Funds: 
All other funds of the City are reported at a high level. These funds are often created for a limited 
purpose, limited duration, and frequently contain only a one-time revenue source. This high level 
overview will provide Council with sufficient information for a summary review. Any additional 
information that is required after that review is available. 
 

These condensed financial statement should provide sufficient information for the City Council to 
perform its fiduciary responsibility while simplifying the process. All supplementary, detailed 
information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. Additionally, any other funds 
that the Council chooses to classify as a Major Operating fund can be added to that section to provide 
greater detail in the future. 



Agenda Item ___ 
August 28, 2019 

Prepared by Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
Accounting and Finance 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Receipt of Interim Financials for the Ten months ending April 30, 2019.  
 
Attachments: 

Interim Financials for April 30, 2019 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
Staff has prepared the condensed Interim Financial Statements for April 2019; these should 
provide sufficient information for the City Council to perform its fiduciary responsibility. All 
supplementary, detailed information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. 
All information is subject to change pending audit. 
 
Staff wants to reiterate the fact that once the financial software is fully implemented that 
financials will be delivered in a timelier manner. Staff would also like to reassure Council that 
the Cities financial position is monitored on a daily basis and not at the formulation of the interim 
financial statements. 
  

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends the approval the Interim Financials for April 30, 2019. 

6.d.ii.



Ward 1 - Dale Copeland, Mayor
Ward 2 - Paul Stuart
Ward 3 - Jim Curd
Ward 4 - Alan Gentges, Vice Mayor
Ward 5 - Trevor Dorsey

Jason Muninger Alicia Shelton
Finance Director Accountant

Mike Bailey

Prepared by:

REPORT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For The Ten Months Ended April 30, 2019

CITY COUNCIL

City Manager



TABLE OF CONTENTS

HIGHLIGHTS

MAJOR FUNDS:
GENERAL FUND
WASTEWATER OPERATING/BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
WATER OPERATING/BMA WATER FUNDS
SANITATION

OTHER FUNDS:
REVENUE BUDGET STATUS
EXPENDITURE BUDGET STATUS
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

EXPLANATORY MEMO



FINANCIAL STATEMENT REVENUE HIGHLIGHTS
(Dashed line represents average percent of year for 4 preceding fiscal years)

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

79.0%
80.0%
81.0%
82.0%
83.0%
84.0%
85.0%
86.0%
87.0%

 9,500,000

 10,000,000

 10,500,000

 11,000,000

 11,500,000

 12,000,000

 12,500,000

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019

GENERAL FUND SALES TAX

YTD

% OF YR

70.0%

75.0%

80.0%

85.0%

90.0%

95.0%

 2,900,000
 3,000,000
 3,100,000
 3,200,000
 3,300,000
 3,400,000
 3,500,000
 3,600,000
 3,700,000
 3,800,000

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019

WASTEWATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

78.0%

80.0%

82.0%

84.0%

86.0%

88.0%

90.0%

 5,600,000
 5,800,000
 6,000,000
 6,200,000
 6,400,000
 6,600,000
 6,800,000
 7,000,000
 7,200,000
 7,400,000
 7,600,000

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019

WATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

79.0%

80.0%

81.0%

82.0%

83.0%

84.0%

85.0%

86.0%

 3,600,000

 3,620,000

 3,640,000

 3,660,000

 3,680,000

 3,700,000

 3,720,000

 3,740,000

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019

SANITATION FEES

YTD

% OF YR



Page 4

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Sales Tax 14,342,014$  11,951,678$  12,170,316$  -$                   12,170,316$  84.9% 11,814,356$  83.2%
Gross Receipt Tax 1,412,900       1,177,417       1,193,178       -                      1,193,178       84.4% 1,171,061       84.2%
Licenses and Permits 271,300          226,083          211,178          -                      211,178          77.8% 240,451          93.4%
Intergovernmental 664,500          553,750          510,186          -                      510,186          76.8% 524,228          79.3%
Charges for Services 672,200          560,167          389,222          -                      389,222          57.9% 318,851          84.0%
Court Costs 122,600          102,167          95,287             -                      95,287             77.7% 96,638             83.7%
Police/Traffic Fines 442,900          369,083          385,349          -                      385,349          87.0% 338,603          81.1%
Parking Fines 72,500             60,417             70,215             -                      70,215             96.8% 70,064             84.9%
Other Fines 42,000             35,000             56,130             -                      56,130             133.6% 36,406             84.0%
Investment Income 85,000             70,833             70,833             -                      70,833             83.3% 100,663          82.8%
Miscellaneous Income 237,400          197,833          360,136          -                      360,136          151.7% 396,938          93.4%
Transfers In 4,263,594       3,552,995       3,553,000       -                      3,553,000       83.3% 3,279,279       82.9%

Total 22,628,908$  18,857,423$  19,065,030$  -$                   19,065,030$  84.3% 18,387,538$  83.4%

Expenditures:
General Government 6,076,826$     5,064,022$     4,950,004$     344,791$      5,294,795$     87.1% 4,914,275$     86.9%
Public Safety 11,387,027     9,489,189       9,458,862       83,406           9,542,268       83.8% 9,227,537       84.3%
Street 1,524,648       1,270,540       1,137,515       10,259           1,147,774       75.3% 1,179,482       82.0%
Culture and Recreation 2,769,526       2,307,938       2,187,103       73,915           2,261,018       81.6% 2,225,615       84.6%
Transfers Out 1,387,658       1,156,382       1,156,386       -                      1,156,386       83.3% 1,262,278       76.7%
Reserves 766,435          638,696          -                       -                      -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 23,912,120$  19,926,767$  18,889,870$  512,371$      19,402,241$  81.1% 18,809,187$  84.3%

Changes in Fund Balance:

Fund Balance 7/1 1,537,026$     

Net Revenue (Expense) 175,160          

Ending Fund Balance 1,712,186$     

83% of Year Lapsed

2018-19 Fiscal Year 2017-18 Fiscal Year

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 5

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Wastewater Fees 4,452,797$     3,710,664$     3,697,436$  -$                   3,697,436$     83.0% 3,626,731$     94.5%
Investment Income -                        -                        -                      -                      -                        N.A. -                        0.0%
Debt Proceeds -                        -                        -                      -                      -                        N.A. -                        N.A.
Miscellaneous 40,000             33,333             34,273          -                      34,273             85.7% 93,074             137.5%

Total 4,492,797$    3,743,997$    3,731,709$  -$                   3,731,709$    83.1% 3,719,805$    95.3%

Expenditures:
Wastewater Plant 2,601,713$     2,168,094$     2,178,206$  399,721$      2,577,927$     99.1% 2,312,361$     101.4%
Wastewater Maint 803,416          669,513          545,668        3,244             548,912          68.3% 691,735          90.9%
BMA Expenses 29,500             24,583             28,430          -                      28,430             96.4% 28,636             100.0%
Transfers Out 1,251,444       1,042,870       1,042,872     -                      1,042,872       83.3% 960,944          80.1%
Reserves 84,135             70,113             -                      -                      -                        0.0% -                        N.A.

Total 4,770,208$    3,975,173$    3,795,176$  402,965$      4,198,141$    88.0% 3,993,676$    93.5%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 389,055$      

Net Revenue (Expense) (63,467)         

Ending Fund Balance 325,588$      

83% of Year Lapsed

2018-19 Fiscal Year 2017-18 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WASTEWATER OPERATING & BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 6

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Water Fees 9,531,430$     7,942,858$     7,754,301$  -$                   7,754,301$     81.4% 7,787,632$     85.6%
Investment Income -                       -                       -                     -                     -                       N.A. 1,123               17.8%
Debt Proceeds -                       -                       -                     -                     -                       N.A. -                       N.A.
Miscellaneous 1,251               1,043               894                -                     894                  71.5% 10,277             104.3%

Total 9,532,681$     7,943,901$     7,755,195$  -$                   7,755,195$     81.4% 7,799,032$     85.6%

Expenditures:
Water Plant 2,934,817$     2,445,681$     1,851,969$  87,909$        1,939,878$     66.1% 1,990,143$     77.0%
Water Administration 333,472          277,893          268,285        18,084          286,369          85.9% 268,293          95.5%
Water Distribution 1,515,757       1,263,131       1,110,024     8,150            1,118,174       73.8% 1,145,274       90.2%
BMA Expenses 3,031,000       2,525,833       2,599,760     -                     2,599,760       85.8% 2,493,241       84.4%
Transfers Out 1,945,577       1,621,314       1,624,485     -                     1,624,485       83.5% 1,519,338       91.1%
Reserves 173,377          144,481          -                     -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 9,934,000$     8,278,333$     7,454,523$  114,143$      7,568,666$     76.2% 7,416,289$     84.7%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 1,706,985$  

Net Revenue (Expense) 300,673        

Ending Fund Balance 2,007,658$  

83% of Year Lapsed

2018-19 Fiscal Year 2017-18 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WATER OPERATING & BMA WATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 7

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Collection Fees 4,477,523$     3,731,269$     3,732,687$       -$                   3,732,687$     83.4% 3,685,299$     83.2%
Investment Income -                       -                       1,652                 -                     1,652               N.A. 7,880               85.6%
Miscellaneous -                       -                       33,055               -                     33,055            N.A. 35,237            82.6%

Total 4,477,523$    3,731,269$    3,767,394$       -$                   3,767,394$    84.1% 3,728,416$    83.2%

Expenditures:
Sanitation 3,017,330$     2,514,442$     2,388,951$       222,299$      2,611,250$     86.5% 2,456,945$     88.2%
Transfers Out 2,150,145       1,791,788       1,791,789         -                     1,791,789       83.3% 1,665,699       88.3%
Reserves 128,611          107,176          -                          -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 5,296,086$    4,413,406$    4,180,740$       222,299$     4,403,039$    83.1% 4,122,644$    88.3%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 1,326,544$       

Net Revenue (Expense) (413,346)           

Ending Fund Balance 913,198$          

83% of Year Lapsed

2018-19 Fiscal Year 2017-18 Fiscal Year

SANITATION FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 
Special Revenue Funds:

Economic Development Fund 1,576,420     1,320,355    84%
E-911 Fund 946,688        806,490        85%
Special Library Fund 94,500           135,673        144%
Special Museum Fund 6,500             21,582          332%
Municipal Airport Fund -                      260,349        N/A
Harshfield Library Donation Fund -                      -                     N/A
Restricted Revenue Fund -                      90,887          N/A
Golf Course Memorial Fund -                      7,367            N/A
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 6,000             -                     0%
Neighborhood Park Fund -                      -                     N/A
Cemetery Care Fund 2,600             1,841            71%
Memorial Stadium Operating Fund -                      -                     N/A

Debt Service Fund 3,756,572     3,616,960    96%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 2,706,040     2,522,946    93%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                      -                     N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund -                      9,200            N/A
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund -                      -                     N/A
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 21,049           22,232          106%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund -                      2,140            N/A
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                      -                     N/A
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2014B G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2018B G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2018C G.O. Bond Fund 2,500,000     2,500,000    100%

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 453,549        349,776        77%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 29,902           24,920          83%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 40,820           34,018          83%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 237,170        187,972        79%
Health Insurance Fund 3,369,972     2,467,112    73%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 100,000        83,336          83%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 742,848        622,212        84%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 10,260,441   3,363,332    33%

Mausoleum Trust Fund -                      -                     N/A

83% of Year Lapsed

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Revenue Budget Report - Budget Basis



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 
Special Revenue Funds:

Economic Development Fund 2,521,563     1,485,000    59%
E-911 Fund 1,031,634     857,359        83%
Special Library Fund 194,750        145,628        75%
Special Museum Fund 45,000           28,920          64%
Municipal Airport Fund 309,800        280,850        91%
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 762,595        30,898          4%
Restricted Revenue Fund 230,609        116,772        51%
Golf Course Memorial Fund 78,780           77,428          98%
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 40,243           33,537          83%
Neighborhood Park Fund 8,262             -                     0%
Cemetery Care Fund 5,682             -                     0%
Memorial Stadium Operating Fund 2,134             1,603            75%

Debt Service Fund 3,814,700     2,571,129    67%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 5,188,551     1,434,297    28%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                      -                     N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 178,548        83,910          47%
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 1,377,317     1,111,770    81%
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 55,019           23,236          42%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 86,342           26,502          31%
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                      79,559          N/A
2008B G.O. Bond Fund 88                  -                     0%
2009 G.O. Bond Fund 2,636             -                     0%
2010 G.O. Bond Fund 410                -                     0%
2012 G.O. Bond Fund 136,447        15,000          11%
2014 G.O. Bond Fund 374,904        283,606        76%
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 161,745        80,774          50%
2015 G.O. Bond Fund 1,885,404     1,790,451    95%
2017 G.O. Bond Fund 2,463,901     1,444,316    59%
2018A G.O. Bond Fund 9,580,000     1,721,316    18%
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 478,921        7,650            2%
2018C G.O. Bond Fund 2,500,000     -                     0%

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 517,052        427,428        83%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 46,961           45,106          96%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 59,940           51,603          86%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 425,000        195,804        46%
Health Insurance Fund 4,086,963     2,239,655    55%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 305,053        7,769            3%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 6,741,428     -                     0%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 13,187,348   2,379,067    18%

Mausoleum Trust Fund 6,016             -                     0%

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Expenditure Budget Report - Budget Basis

83% of Year Lapsed



 Beginning of Year  Change  Current 
Special Revenue Funds:

Economic Development Fund 1,238,523                   (8,811)           1,229,712     
E-911 Fund 70,543                        (48,585)        21,958           
Special Library Fund 283,797                      16,847          300,644        
Special Museum Fund 108,826                      (6,832)           101,993        
Municipal Airport Fund 309,309                      (10,751)        298,558        
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 761,021                      (30,249)        730,772        
Restricted Revenue Fund 242,340                      11,446          253,786        
Golf Course Memorial Fund 18,898                        (16,751)        2,147             
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 40,254                        (33,537)        6,717             
Neighborhood Park Fund 8,265                           -                     8,265             
Cemetery Care Fund 3,400                           1,841            5,241             
Memorial Stadium Operating Fund 2,112                           (1,603)           509                

Debt Service Fund 3,811,804                   1,045,831    4,857,635     

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 2,834,230                   1,469,246    4,303,476     
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                                   -                     -                      
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 223,714                      (74,710)        149,004        
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 1,522,161                   (540,346)      981,815        
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 28,480                        12,024          40,504           
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 134,907                      (23,542)        111,365        
Community Development Block Grant Fund 28,883                        (84,010)        (55,127)         
2008B G.O. Bond Fund 88                                -                     88                  
2009 G.O. Bond Fund 6,809                           -                     6,809             
2010 G.O. Bond Fund 410                              -                     410                
2012 G.O. Bond Fund 128,562                      -                     128,562        
2014 G.O. Bond Fund 610,207                      (102,969)      507,238        
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 121,246                      (78,432)        42,814           
2015 G.O. Bond Fund 1,873,028                   (1,456,261)   416,767        
2017 G.O. Bond Fund 2,480,902                   (1,319,471)   1,161,431     
2018A G.O. Bond Fund 9,594,319                   (782,662)      8,811,657     
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 479,089                      (7,650)           471,439        
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                                   2,500,000    2,500,000     

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 71,973                        (30,755)        41,218           
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 36,045                        (18,618)        17,427           
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 49,154                        (16,136)        33,018           

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 164,286                      (17,679)        146,607        
Health Insurance Fund 693,197                      8,828            702,025        
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 186,874                      75,487          262,361        
Stabilization Reserve Fund 5,998,580                   622,212        6,620,792     
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 8,004,195                   2,356,251    10,360,446   

Mausoleum Trust Fund 8,018                           -                     8,018             

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Fund Balance Report - Modified Cash Basis

83% of Year Lapsed



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
FROM: Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Financial Statement Explanatory Information 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
The purpose of this memo is to provide some insight as to the construction of the attached financial 
statements and to provide some guidance as to their use. 
 
The format of the attached financial statements is intended to highlight our most important revenue 
sources, provide sufficient detail on major operating funds, and provide a high level overview of all other 
funds. The level of detail presented is sufficient to assist the City Council in conducting their fiduciary 
obligations to the City without creating a voluminous document that made the execution of that duty 
more difficult. 
 
This document provides three different types of analyses for the Council’s use. The first is an analysis 
of revenue vs budgeted expectations. This allows the Council to see how the City’s revenues are 
performing and to have a better idea if operational adjustments are necessary.  
 
The second analysis compares expenditures to budget. This allows the Council to ensure that the 
budgetary plan that was set out for the City is being followed and that Staff is making the necessary 
modifications along the way.  
 
The final analysis shows the fund balance for each fund of the City. This is essentially the “cash” balance 
for most funds. However, some funds include short term receivables and payables depending on the 
nature of their operation. With very few exceptions, all funds must maintain positive fund balance by 
law. Any exceptions will be noted where they occur. 
 
These analyses are presented in the final manner: 
 

Highlights: 
The Highlights section presents a 5 year snap shot of the performance of the City’s 4 most 
important revenue sources. Each bar represents the actual amounts earned in each year through 
the period of the report. Each dash represents the percent of the year’s revenue that had been 
earned through that period. The current fiscal year will always represent the percent of the budget 
that has been earned, while all previous fiscal years will always represent the percent of the actual 
amount earned. This analysis highlights and compares not only amounts earned, but gives a better 
picture of how much should have been earned in order to meet budget for the year. 
 

  



Major Operating Funds: 
The City’s major operating funds are presented in greater detail than the remainder of the City’s 
funds. These funds include the General, Wastewater Operating, BMA – Wastewater, Water 
Operating, BMA – Water, and Sanitation. Due to the interrelated nature of the Wastewater 
Operating/BMA – Wastewater and the Water Operating/BMA – Water funds, these have been 
combined into Wastewater Combined and Water Combined funds. This should provide a better 
picture of the overall financial condition of these operating segments by combining revenues, 
operating expenses, and financing activities in a single report. 
 
Other Funds: 
All other funds of the City are reported at a high level. These funds are often created for a limited 
purpose, limited duration, and frequently contain only a one-time revenue source. This high level 
overview will provide Council with sufficient information for a summary review. Any additional 
information that is required after that review is available. 
 

These condensed financial statement should provide sufficient information for the City Council to 
perform its fiduciary responsibility while simplifying the process. All supplementary, detailed 
information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. Additionally, any other funds 
that the Council chooses to classify as a Major Operating fund can be added to that section to provide 
greater detail in the future. 



Agenda Item ___ 
August 28, 2019 

Prepared by Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
Accounting and Finance 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Receipt of Interim Financials for the Eleven months ending May 31, 2019.  
 
Attachments: 

Interim Financials for May 31, 2019 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
Staff has prepared the condensed Interim Financial Statements for May 2019; these should 
provide sufficient information for the City Council to perform its fiduciary responsibility. All 
supplementary, detailed information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. 
All information is subject to change pending audit. 
 
Staff wants to reiterate the fact that once the financial software is fully implemented that 
financials will be delivered in a timelier manner. Staff would also like to reassure Council that 
the Cities financial position is monitored on a daily basis and not at the formulation of the interim 
financial statements. 
  

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends the approval the Interim Financials for May 31, 2019. 

6.d.iii.



Ward 1 - Dale Copeland, Mayor
Ward 2 - Paul Stuart
Ward 3 - Jim Curd
Ward 4 - Alan Gentges, Vice Mayor
Ward 5 - Trevor Dorsey

Jason Muninger Alicia Shelton
Finance Director Accountant

Mike Bailey

Prepared by:

REPORT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For The Eleven Months Ended May 31, 2019

CITY COUNCIL

City Manager



TABLE OF CONTENTS

HIGHLIGHTS

MAJOR FUNDS:
GENERAL FUND
WASTEWATER OPERATING/BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
WATER OPERATING/BMA WATER FUNDS
SANITATION

OTHER FUNDS:
REVENUE BUDGET STATUS
EXPENDITURE BUDGET STATUS
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

EXPLANATORY MEMO



FINANCIAL STATEMENT REVENUE HIGHLIGHTS
(Dashed line represents average percent of year for 4 preceding fiscal years)

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

86.0%
87.0%
88.0%
89.0%
90.0%
91.0%
92.0%
93.0%
94.0%
95.0%
96.0%

 10,500,000

 11,000,000

 11,500,000

 12,000,000

 12,500,000

 13,000,000

 13,500,000

 14,000,000

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019

GENERAL FUND SALES TAX

YTD

% OF YR

75.0%

80.0%

85.0%

90.0%

95.0%

100.0%

 3,200,000
 3,300,000
 3,400,000
 3,500,000
 3,600,000
 3,700,000
 3,800,000
 3,900,000
 4,000,000
 4,100,000

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019

WASTEWATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

84.0%

86.0%

88.0%

90.0%

92.0%

94.0%

96.0%

98.0%

 6,000,000

 6,500,000

 7,000,000

 7,500,000

 8,000,000

 8,500,000

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019

WATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

87.0%
88.0%
89.0%
90.0%
91.0%
92.0%
93.0%
94.0%
95.0%

 3,960,000
 3,980,000
 4,000,000
 4,020,000
 4,040,000
 4,060,000
 4,080,000
 4,100,000
 4,120,000

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019

SANITATION FEES

YTD

% OF YR



Page 4

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Sales Tax 14,342,014$  13,146,846$  13,448,261$  -$                   13,448,261$  93.8% 13,060,387$  92.0%
Gross Receipt Tax 1,412,900       1,295,158       1,342,987       -                      1,342,987       95.1% 1,326,543       95.3%
Licenses and Permits 271,300          248,692          245,215          -                      245,215          90.4% 252,556          98.1%
Intergovernmental 664,500          609,125          568,642          -                      568,642          85.6% 582,034          88.0%
Charges for Services 672,200          616,183          428,431          -                      428,431          63.7% 351,331          92.5%
Court Costs 122,600          112,383          108,771          -                      108,771          88.7% 106,905          92.6%
Police/Traffic Fines 442,900          405,992          432,610          -                      432,610          97.7% 379,851          91.0%
Parking Fines 72,500             66,458             75,750             -                      75,750             104.5% 77,769             94.2%
Other Fines 42,000             38,500             63,012             -                      63,012             150.0% 40,122             92.6%
Investment Income 85,000             77,917             77,917             -                      77,917             91.7% 117,324          96.5%
Miscellaneous Income 237,400          217,617          371,660          -                      371,660          156.6% 410,372          96.6%
Transfers In 4,263,594       3,908,295       3,908,297       -                      3,908,297       91.7% 3,607,209       91.2%

Total 22,628,908$  20,743,166$  21,071,553$  -$                   21,071,553$  93.1% 20,312,403$  92.1%

Expenditures:
General Government 6,076,826$     5,570,424$     5,355,999$     307,231$      5,663,230$     93.2% 5,234,953$     92.6%
Public Safety 11,387,027     10,438,108     10,356,890     67,900           10,424,790     91.5% 10,035,869     91.7%
Street 1,524,648       1,397,594       1,239,914       25,515           1,265,429       83.0% 1,281,172       89.1%
Culture and Recreation 2,769,526       2,538,732       2,398,015       63,634           2,461,649       88.9% 2,418,651       91.9%
Transfers Out 1,387,658       1,272,020       1,272,022       -                      1,272,022       91.7% 1,388,508       84.4%
Reserves 766,435          702,565          -                       -                      -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 23,912,120$  21,919,443$  20,622,840$  464,280$      21,087,120$  88.2% 20,359,153$  91.2%

Changes in Fund Balance:

Fund Balance 7/1 1,537,026$     

Net Revenue (Expense) 448,713          

Ending Fund Balance 1,985,739$     

92% of Year Lapsed

2018-19 Fiscal Year 2017-18 Fiscal Year

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 5

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Wastewater Fees 4,452,797$     4,081,731$     4,057,440$  -$                   4,057,440$     91.1% 3,994,675$     104.1%
Investment Income -                        -                        -                      -                      -                        N.A. -                        0.0%
Debt Proceeds -                        -                        -                      -                      -                        N.A. -                        N.A.
Miscellaneous 40,000             36,667             34,273          -                      34,273             85.7% 48,075             71.0%

Total 4,492,797$    4,118,398$    4,091,713$  -$                   4,091,713$    91.1% 4,042,750$    103.5%

Expenditures:
Wastewater Plant 2,601,713$     2,384,904$     2,373,788$  207,795$      2,581,583$     99.2% 2,312,742$     101.4%
Wastewater Maint 803,416          736,465          599,645        37,474          637,119          79.3% 757,347          99.6%
BMA Expenses 29,500             27,042             28,430          -                      28,430             96.4% 1,087               3.8%
Transfers Out 1,251,444       1,147,157       1,147,158     -                      1,147,158       91.7% 1,057,039       88.1%
Reserves 84,135             77,124             -                      -                      -                        0.0% -                        N.A.

Total 4,770,208$    4,372,692$    4,149,021$  245,269$      4,394,290$    92.1% 4,128,215$    96.7%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 389,055$      

Net Revenue (Expense) (57,308)         

Ending Fund Balance 331,747$      

92% of Year Lapsed

2018-19 Fiscal Year 2017-18 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WASTEWATER OPERATING & BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 6

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Water Fees 9,531,430$     8,737,144$     8,468,659$  -$                   8,468,659$     88.8% 8,568,180$     94.2%
Investment Income -                       -                       -                     -                     -                       N.A. 1,123               17.8%
Debt Proceeds -                       -                       -                     -                     -                       N.A. -                       N.A.
Miscellaneous 1,251               1,147               894                -                     894                  71.5% 10,278             104.3%

Total 9,532,681$     8,738,291$     8,469,553$  -$                   8,469,553$     88.8% 8,579,581$     94.2%

Expenditures:
Water Plant 2,934,817$     2,690,249$     2,071,609$  110,060$      2,181,669$     74.3% 2,244,297$     86.8%
Water Administration 333,472          305,683          292,347        14,465          306,812          92.0% 288,261          102.7%
Water Distribution 1,515,757       1,389,444       1,202,475     16,032          1,218,507       80.4% 1,259,268       99.2%
BMA Expenses 3,031,000       2,778,417       2,599,760     -                     2,599,760       85.8% 2,493,241       84.4%
Transfers Out 1,945,577       1,783,446       1,786,931     -                     1,786,931       91.8% 1,671,272       100.2%
Reserves 173,377          158,929          -                     -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 9,934,000$     9,106,168$     7,953,122$  140,557$      8,093,679$     81.5% 7,956,339$     90.8%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 1,706,985$  

Net Revenue (Expense) 516,431        

Ending Fund Balance 2,223,416$  

92% of Year Lapsed

2018-19 Fiscal Year 2017-18 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WATER OPERATING & BMA WATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 7

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Collection Fees 4,477,523$     4,104,396$     4,105,507$       -$                   4,105,507$     91.7% 4,059,820$     91.7%
Investment Income -                       -                       1,652                 -                     1,652               N.A. 8,941               97.1%
Miscellaneous -                       -                       38,189               -                     38,189            N.A. 39,115            91.6%

Total 4,477,523$    4,104,396$    4,145,348$       -$                   4,145,348$    92.6% 4,107,876$    91.7%

Expenditures:
Sanitation 3,017,330$     2,765,886$     2,567,495$       135,430$      2,702,925$     89.6% 2,618,166$     94.0%
Transfers Out 2,150,145       1,970,966       1,970,967         -                     1,970,967       91.7% 1,832,269       97.2%
Reserves 128,611          117,893          -                          -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 5,296,086$    4,854,745$    4,538,462$       135,430$     4,673,892$    88.3% 4,450,435$    95.3%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 1,326,544$       

Net Revenue (Expense) (393,114)           

Ending Fund Balance 933,430$          

92% of Year Lapsed

2018-19 Fiscal Year 2017-18 Fiscal Year

SANITATION FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 
Special Revenue Funds:

Economic Development Fund 1,576,420     1,457,364    92%
E-911 Fund 946,688        884,936        93%
Special Library Fund 94,500           137,069        145%
Special Museum Fund 6,500             21,582          332%
Municipal Airport Fund -                      260,349        N/A
Harshfield Library Donation Fund -                      -                     N/A
Restricted Revenue Fund -                      105,736        N/A
Golf Course Memorial Fund -                      10,567          N/A
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 6,000             -                     0%
Neighborhood Park Fund -                      -                     N/A
Cemetery Care Fund 2,600             2,233            86%
Memorial Stadium Operating Fund -                      -                     N/A

Debt Service Fund 3,756,572     3,722,986    99%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 2,706,040     2,764,140    102%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                      -                     N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund -                      9,200            N/A
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund -                      -                     N/A
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 21,049           23,922          114%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund -                      2,140            N/A
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                      -                     N/A
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2014B G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2018B G.O. Bond Fund -                      -                     N/A
2018C G.O. Bond Fund 2,500,000     2,500,000    100%

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 453,549        388,118        86%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 29,902           27,411          92%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 40,820           37,419          92%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 237,170        214,689        91%
Health Insurance Fund 3,369,972     2,777,264    82%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 100,000        91,668          92%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 742,848        684,430        92%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 10,260,441   3,676,845    36%

Mausoleum Trust Fund -                      -                     N/A

92% of Year Lapsed

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Revenue Budget Report - Budget Basis



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 
Special Revenue Funds:

Economic Development Fund 2,521,563     1,635,000    65%
E-911 Fund 1,031,634     932,119        90%
Special Library Fund 194,750        154,384        79%
Special Museum Fund 45,000           30,730          68%
Municipal Airport Fund 309,800        280,850        91%
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 762,595        30,898          4%
Restricted Revenue Fund 230,609        143,720        62%
Golf Course Memorial Fund 78,780           77,428          98%
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 40,243           36,890          92%
Neighborhood Park Fund 8,262             -                     0%
Cemetery Care Fund 5,682             -                     0%
Memorial Stadium Operating Fund 2,134             1,957            92%

Debt Service Fund 3,814,700     3,943,859    103%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 5,188,551     1,537,764    30%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                      -                     N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 178,548        116,054        65%
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 1,377,317     1,109,070    81%
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 55,019           23,236          42%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 86,342           25,812          30%
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                      79,559          N/A
2008B G.O. Bond Fund 88                  -                     0%
2009 G.O. Bond Fund 2,636             -                     0%
2010 G.O. Bond Fund 410                -                     0%
2012 G.O. Bond Fund 136,447        17,500          13%
2014 G.O. Bond Fund 374,904        290,207        77%
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 161,745        81,128          50%
2015 G.O. Bond Fund 1,885,404     1,790,451    95%
2017 G.O. Bond Fund 2,463,901     1,544,316    63%
2018A G.O. Bond Fund 9,580,000     1,721,355    18%
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 478,921        7,650            2%
2018C G.O. Bond Fund 2,500,000     -                     0%

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 517,052        451,721        87%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 46,961           45,724          97%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 59,940           52,780          88%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 425,000        208,160        49%
Health Insurance Fund 4,086,963     2,659,718    65%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 305,053        34,235          11%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 6,741,428     -                     0%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 13,187,348   2,376,041    18%

Mausoleum Trust Fund 6,016             -                     0%

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Expenditure Budget Report - Budget Basis

92% of Year Lapsed



 Beginning of Year  Change  Current 
Special Revenue Funds:

Economic Development Fund 1,238,523                 50,281          1,288,804     
E-911 Fund 70,543                       (44,691)        25,852           
Special Library Fund 283,797                    (6,183)           277,614        
Special Museum Fund 108,826                    (8,642)           100,184        
Municipal Airport Fund 309,309                    (20,501)        288,808        
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 761,021                    (30,249)        730,772        
Restricted Revenue Fund 242,340                    7,311            249,651        
Golf Course Memorial Fund 18,898                       (13,551)        5,347             
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 40,254                       (36,890)        3,364             
Neighborhood Park Fund 8,265                         -                     8,265             
Cemetery Care Fund 3,400                         2,233            5,633             
Memorial Stadium Operating Fund 2,112                         (1,957)           155                

Debt Service Fund 3,811,804                 (220,873)      3,590,931     

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 2,834,230                 1,367,733    4,201,963     
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                                  -                     -                      
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 223,714                    (74,710)        149,004        
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 1,522,161                 (619,788)      902,373        
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 28,480                       7,052            35,532           
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 134,907                    (23,672)        111,235        
Community Development Block Grant Fund 28,883                       (84,123)        (55,240)         
2008B G.O. Bond Fund 88                               -                     88                  
2009 G.O. Bond Fund 6,809                         -                     6,809             
2010 G.O. Bond Fund 410                            -                     410                
2012 G.O. Bond Fund 128,562                    (2,407)           126,155        
2014 G.O. Bond Fund 610,207                    (135,101)      475,106        
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 121,246                    (78,931)        42,315           
2015 G.O. Bond Fund 1,873,028                 (1,607,735)   265,293        
2017 G.O. Bond Fund 2,480,902                 (1,397,492)   1,083,410     
2018A G.O. Bond Fund 9,594,319                 (923,996)      8,670,323     
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 479,089                    (7,650)           471,439        
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                                  2,500,000    2,500,000     

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 71,973                       (24,045)        47,928           
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 36,045                       (16,753)        19,292           
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 49,154                       (15,055)        34,099           

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 164,286                    (5,168)           159,118        
Health Insurance Fund 693,197                    (111,083)      582,114        
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 186,874                    75,297          262,171        
Stabilization Reserve Fund 5,998,580                 684,430        6,683,010     
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 8,004,195                 2,529,888    10,534,083   

Mausoleum Trust Fund 8,018                         -                     8,018             

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Fund Balance Report - Modified Cash Basis

92% of Year Lapsed



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
FROM: Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Financial Statement Explanatory Information 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
The purpose of this memo is to provide some insight as to the construction of the attached financial 
statements and to provide some guidance as to their use. 
 
The format of the attached financial statements is intended to highlight our most important revenue 
sources, provide sufficient detail on major operating funds, and provide a high level overview of all other 
funds. The level of detail presented is sufficient to assist the City Council in conducting their fiduciary 
obligations to the City without creating a voluminous document that made the execution of that duty 
more difficult. 
 
This document provides three different types of analyses for the Council’s use. The first is an analysis 
of revenue vs budgeted expectations. This allows the Council to see how the City’s revenues are 
performing and to have a better idea if operational adjustments are necessary.  
 
The second analysis compares expenditures to budget. This allows the Council to ensure that the 
budgetary plan that was set out for the City is being followed and that Staff is making the necessary 
modifications along the way.  
 
The final analysis shows the fund balance for each fund of the City. This is essentially the “cash” balance 
for most funds. However, some funds include short term receivables and payables depending on the 
nature of their operation. With very few exceptions, all funds must maintain positive fund balance by 
law. Any exceptions will be noted where they occur. 
 
These analyses are presented in the final manner: 
 

Highlights: 
The Highlights section presents a 5 year snap shot of the performance of the City’s 4 most 
important revenue sources. Each bar represents the actual amounts earned in each year through 
the period of the report. Each dash represents the percent of the year’s revenue that had been 
earned through that period. The current fiscal year will always represent the percent of the budget 
that has been earned, while all previous fiscal years will always represent the percent of the actual 
amount earned. This analysis highlights and compares not only amounts earned, but gives a better 
picture of how much should have been earned in order to meet budget for the year. 
 

  



Major Operating Funds: 
The City’s major operating funds are presented in greater detail than the remainder of the City’s 
funds. These funds include the General, Wastewater Operating, BMA – Wastewater, Water 
Operating, BMA – Water, and Sanitation. Due to the interrelated nature of the Wastewater 
Operating/BMA – Wastewater and the Water Operating/BMA – Water funds, these have been 
combined into Wastewater Combined and Water Combined funds. This should provide a better 
picture of the overall financial condition of these operating segments by combining revenues, 
operating expenses, and financing activities in a single report. 
 
Other Funds: 
All other funds of the City are reported at a high level. These funds are often created for a limited 
purpose, limited duration, and frequently contain only a one-time revenue source. This high level 
overview will provide Council with sufficient information for a summary review. Any additional 
information that is required after that review is available. 
 

These condensed financial statement should provide sufficient information for the City Council to 
perform its fiduciary responsibility while simplifying the process. All supplementary, detailed 
information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. Additionally, any other funds 
that the Council chooses to classify as a Major Operating fund can be added to that section to provide 
greater detail in the future. 



Agenda Item 6.e.i.



Agenda Item 6.e.ii.



Agenda Item ___ 

9/3/2019 

Prepared by Shelley Charles 

      Engineering Department 

 

 

 

BID REVIEW RECOMMENDATION 
 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
A.  SUBJECT: 

Discuss and take action to award Bid No. 2019-2020-012, Sooner Park Pavilion Project for the 

Engineering Department.  Total budgeted amount for this project is $95,000.00 (see Section II, 

C. Budget Amount, for additional budget information). 

 
B. ATTACHMENTS: 

Project Drawing Set 

 

II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION, STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS, AND BUDGET 

AMOUNT. 

 
A.  PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

This project consists of furnishing all materials, labor, & expenses necessary to construct a new 

40’ Hexagon shaped pavilion structure at Sooner Park.   

 

B.  COMMENTS: 

In addition to advertising in the local newspaper, Bid News Construction Reports, Dodge Reports, 

& Southwest Construction News, Nine (9) bid invitations were mailed to regional contractors.  Six 

(6) contractors attended the mandatory pre-bid meeting and four (4) of them submitted a bid: 

 

 Jeff Graham Construction (Coffeyville, KS) .................................................  $107,855.00 

 Stout Construction (Claremore, OK) .............................................................  $118,306.00 

 Magnum Construction (Broken Arrow, OK) .................................................  $128,500.00 

 Stronghand, LLC ...........................................................................................  $125,977.33 

 

The bids were evaluated for addendums, bid bonds, line item prices, and arithmetic.  All bids have 

all necessary components.  One addition error was found on one bid tab but it did not change the 

overall outcome of the bids.       

Jeff Graham Construction (low bidder), a Coffeyville, Kansas based, family-owned and operated, 

general contracting company, has the experience, qualifications, and bonding capacity needed to 

complete this project and has demonstrated the necessary technical and project-related expertise to 

be approved as the contractor for this project.     

   

7.



 

C.  BUDGET AMOUNT: 

Project  Project # Source of Funding 
Amount of 

Fund 

Playground Sale   $13,300.00 

Pavilions 18014 2017 GO Bond:         Fund 481 / Dept 431 $60,000.00 

Daniels Fld Ltng 19023 2018A GO Bond:      Fund 482 / Dept 431  $21,700.00 

                                  TOTAL $95,000.00 

$95,000 was originally budgeted for this project utilizing funds from the sale of playground 

equipment at Sooner Park and Johnstone Park, funds remaining after completion of the Civitan 

Park Shelter, and a portion of the savings from the Daniels Fields Lighting project.  The low bid 

of $107,855 from Jeff Graham is $12,855.00 over the original budget.  Additional savings from 

the Daniels Fields Lighting project are available and will be utilized to cover the deficit. 

 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

 

Councilman Dorsey reviewed this bid with staff and recommends that the City Council award 

Bid No. 2019-2020-012 to Jeff Graham Construction in the amount of $107,855.00 at their next 

business meeting. 

 

 
 

              

            Council Member or Staff Member     Date 

 



1

2

3

A

123A

60

60

123

1

2

3

75

60

60

75

60

60

BARTLESVILLE CITY LIMITS

75

75

S

A

N

D

C

R

E

E

K

R
I
V
E
R

C

A

N

E

Y

C
R
E
E
K

C
O

O
N

C

R

E

E

K

B
U

T
L
E
R

BARTLESVILLE CITY LIMITS

BARTLESVILLE CITY LIMITS

DEWEY CITY LIMITS

W
A
S
H

I
N

G
T
O

N
 
C
O

U
N

T
Y

O
S
A
G

E
 
C
O

U
N

T
Y

BARTLESVILLE CITY LIMITS

T
E
R
I
 
D

R

TERI

COURT

SOONER PARK PAVILION

Sheet

No

Sheet Title

CONSTRUCTION  DRAWINGS FOR

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE

C-1

C-2

C-3

C-4

C-5

C-6

C-7

C-8

COVER SHEET & LOCATOR MAP

NOTES & PAY QUANTITIES

EXISTING LAYOUT & ENLARGED SITE PLAN

LAYOUT COORDINATES & GRADING PLAN

MISC DETAILS

FOUNDATION DETAILS

PAVILION DETAILS

ELECTRICAL DETAILS

07/26/19

2019050

COVER

SHEET C-1

NORTH

SCALE IN FEET

0-2000' 2000' 4000'

PROJECT

LOCATION

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE
ENGINEERING SERVICES

BID SET

ENGINEER

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE

ENGINEERING DEPT

401 S JOHNSTONE AVE

BARTLESVILLE, OK 74003

PHONE: (918) 338-4251

PROJECT NO. 18014  481/431 BID NO. 2019-2020-012

PROJECT NAME:  SOONER PARK PAVILION

PROJECT ADDRESS:  SOONER PARK,

  BARTLESVILLE, OK

ZONING:  C-6

SETBACKS:  N/A

CODES:

INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE 2015

INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE 2015

NATIONAL ELECTRIC CODE 2014

INTERNATIONAL PLUMBING CODE 2015

INTERNATIONAL MECHANICAL CODE 2015

CITY CURRENT ADOPTED REGULATIONS &

ORDINANCES

HANDICAP REGULATIONS:

INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE CH.11

ICC/ ANSI A117,1-2009

PARKING SPACES (IOTAL}:  N/A

OCCUPANCY TYPE:

MAIN OCCUPANCY-ASSEMBLY GROUP A-5

NO. OF STORIES:  1

GROSS FLOOR AREA:  1039 S.F.

OPEN-SIDED STRUCTURE ON 1293 SF SLAB

TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION: TYPE 2-B

FIRE PROTECTION:  N/A

FIRE EXTINGUISHERS:  N/A

DESIGN LOADS:  PER IBC 2015 & CITY OF

BARTLESVILLE

FLOOR: CONCRETE SLAB-ON-GRADE

COLUMN BASES: STONE SKIRTED BASES,

24" HIGH(+-) w/CAST CONCRETE CAPS

ROOF:  R-PANEL OR STANDING SEAM

METAL ROOF

CODE DATA

Attachment to Agenda Item 7.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANK   PHILLIPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHEROKEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUAIL PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
OAKDALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KYLE RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDSOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DORCHESTER DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILL CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PENN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROGERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMANCHE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA FE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUCY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADELINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUNTAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUNTAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WESTCLIFF DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST VIEW DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTRE RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILVER    LAKE    ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENSINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAMPDEN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAMPDEN SQUARE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEORGETOWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAPEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAPEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAMDEN CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OXFORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WAYLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
WARWICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
LONDON

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
6TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
8TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
13TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
18TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUNTAIN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUNTAIN DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUNTAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HICKORY AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
14TH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PENN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROGERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELM AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OKLAHOMA AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLORADO

AutoCAD SHX Text
PENN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROGERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELM

AutoCAD SHX Text
16TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
16TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
15TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
14TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
15TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROGERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PENN

AutoCAD SHX Text
HICKORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6TH  ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELM

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADAMS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSTONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEELER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARMSTRONG AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA FE AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA FE PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILLCREST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
23RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
20TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
21ST STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OSAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEWEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MERCURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
STARLIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SKYLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIRCLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILLCREST DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUPITER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUNSHINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLYNNWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRICE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLYNNWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
VENUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOONLIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SATURN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGETT

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEIDI

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONEWALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SKYLINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEPTUNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SKYLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POLARIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SKYLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAR CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SENECA

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROVE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARMSTRONG

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.T. & S.F. RAILROAD          AND          M.K. & T. RAILROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
19TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
16TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
18TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
14TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
JENNINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEELER

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
17TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OSAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEWEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
16TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PECAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENVER PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
16TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHERRY LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
13TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
11TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
10TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
8TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
10TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
9TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WYANDOTTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
14TH  ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHEROKEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELAWARE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHAWNEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARDEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOULEVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHEROKEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHOCTAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHICKASAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUAPAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
5TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
MERCEDES AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARGARITE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2ND STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARGARITE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUNSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
5TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
VIRGINIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARLINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHOUTEAU

AutoCAD SHX Text
MCNAMARA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CUDAHAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LUPA

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAIRWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
HERRICK STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKVIEW DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
MISTLETOE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOLLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPRING

AutoCAD SHX Text
REDWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOULEVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOREST PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOCKINGBIRD

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAUREL PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKVIEW DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRESTWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMBLEWOOD RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULBERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIRRACO PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALEDO DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LARCHMONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAROL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILLER DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PALAMINO DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACORN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PALMETTO DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRENTWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAROL RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
INWOOD RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGEWAY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
E. CHEYENNE PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. CHEYENNE PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2ND

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
JENNINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
THEODORE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA FE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
4TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
HENSLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEMINOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HENRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOULEVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSTONE AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEELER AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROVE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOME AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINE AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROOKLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROOKLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUEENSTOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALLEYVIEW CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIGHTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENSINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAMBRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRADDOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICKSBURG

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEORGETOWN DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILL R.D

AutoCAD SHX Text
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAPEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLIAMSBURG

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGENCY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONTICELLO

AutoCAD SHX Text
KINGSTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLAREMONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
KINGSTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONTROSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADMIRAL CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAYLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLOW CREEK DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOUGLAS LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE HEIGHTS DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAY LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MACKLYN LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LARIAT DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MELMART DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARRIS DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMYSOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
VISTA DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MISSION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODVILLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARNETT AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHERIDAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEBBIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
KYLE CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCUST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
JEFFERSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KRISTEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMMIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEERFIELD PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
JEFFERSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
LORI'S

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOVA

AutoCAD SHX Text
VELMA

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DANA

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
WRIGHT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRICE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARVEY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HENRIETTA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WAYSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JEFFERSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
LESTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINCOLN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHEASANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHEROKEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIRCLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILLS DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHURCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINCOLN

AutoCAD SHX Text
JEFFERSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
JEFFERSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
McKINLEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
JEFFERSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAIRVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMESTONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINCOLN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
McKINLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMYSOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOLEDO

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILLS CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROLLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMESTONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIND-

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUTNAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVEREST DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILLTOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARLOWE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RICHMOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARNETT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOW DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARNED DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARNED

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEWIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARNED PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RANCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORCHARD LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MELROSE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADAMS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKEVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUDUBON

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHIPPOOR-

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAWTHORN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OAKDALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OAK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGE CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUAIL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREENWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OAKDALE PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REDHAWE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHEROKEE HILLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
YORKTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROOKSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOGWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BYNUM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAVENWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCKDALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAVENWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
REDBUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
OAKDALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILDWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROOKHOLLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROKKHOLLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LYNNWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANDSTONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIARWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLOWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILL CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OAKRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAY LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANDVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROLLING MEADOWS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANDVIEW RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEADOW LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEADOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREYSTONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEADOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODLAND ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWAN DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEARVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEADOW LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MELMART

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARRIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LARIAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEADOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROCK DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
MACKLYN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EH PARSONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RANCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SADDLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVID DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAY LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SADDLE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MACKLYN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLOW PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
VIEW DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
MADISON

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUINN

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAZEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMHERST

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAYLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORNELL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DARTMOUTH DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RENICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELMHURST AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREYSTONE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREYSTONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREYSTONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LARIAT DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROOKLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
YALE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILSHIRE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOULEVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LYNN

AutoCAD SHX Text
YALE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
YALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ETON

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMHERST DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAYLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORNELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KINGS DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITNEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARBOR DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANOR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRESCENT DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARBOR DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIAR DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITNEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAZEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANOR DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEADOWCREST

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITNEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARBOR DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARBOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERNATIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDUSTRIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAYLOR DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAIL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARBOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
KINGS  DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRESTLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCORD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PADDOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEADOW DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KINGS DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
KINGS CIRCLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAZEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOONER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORNELL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELMONT RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUAIL RIDGE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ABBEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PENNY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAYLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DORSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
ABBEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAYLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CASTLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERNATIONAL CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKHILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUEENS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEE LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVONDALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BONNIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVONDALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVONDALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOWARD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROSELAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGEWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
YOUNG AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENTUCKY

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGEWOOD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROBIN RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORNINGSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERURBAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
YOUNG

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMMERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTAH

AutoCAD SHX Text
IDAHO

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOSTON AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHOLWELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DE BELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
KATHERINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOWARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVONDALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVONDALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDIANA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCKWOOD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORNINGSIDE AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHOLWELL AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KATHERINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEBELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHIO ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHIGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRADLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDIANA  STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARYLAND ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERMONT ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEBRASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKHILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPRUCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CUMMINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENWAY AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUEENSTOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEADOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUNVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUNVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENTUCKY

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILSHIRE AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLEETWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUEENSTOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WAVERLY AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREYSTONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELMHURST AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLEETWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEVIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILSHIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MYERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WAVERLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENT-

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORDHAM DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLEET-

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAROLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MELODY LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENTUCKY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARBARA AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPRUCE AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEBRASKA ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHIGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WISCONSIN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHANNON

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILSHIRE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEBRASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILSHIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELMHURST

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENWAY AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CUMMINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILSHIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CUMMINGS AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHANNON DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENWAY AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ILLINIOS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKHILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPRUCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINNESOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEAD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TROSPER ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARBER AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESTELL AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARC

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAMILTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEMINOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOORE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOIS AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOROTHY

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOORE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGECREST CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURKEY CREEK RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGE CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARTIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARTIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONERIDGE CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAIL CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUTUMN CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RACHEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGEHILL DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILLCREST COUNTRY CLUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOLF COURSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUNSET COUNTRY CLUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARTLESVILLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUNICIPAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
AIRPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUNTAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST MOINTAIN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY ROAD 2700

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRICE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEELER AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEWEY PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
22ND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSTONE PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLEGE VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHEROKEE PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRESTVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
15TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
16TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
17TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHEROKEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHEST-

AutoCAD SHX Text
NUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OSAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEMETERY

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANNOM PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLORADO

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIRCLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDUSTRIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
15TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOOKOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MNICH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WESTERN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
4TH  ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELM

AutoCAD SHX Text
10TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHILLIPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHEYENNE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
AARON ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
3RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
2ND

AutoCAD SHX Text
3RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
4TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
5TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
8TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
9TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
12TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
13TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
KANE HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVALON

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESSEX

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASHTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEORGETOWN CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEORGE-

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAMELOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICKSBURG

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILLSBORO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANDLE-

AutoCAD SHX Text
STICK CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAMELOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIPPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHADY-

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOLLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHA

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
JEFFERSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDSTONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIME-

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FREMONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILVER    LAKE    ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHERIDAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOWATA  RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOWATA    ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK HILLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEMORIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEMETERY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE-

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAZEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEK DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROWN DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MADISON

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUCKSKIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
BISON    ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADAMS

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLEETWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOONER PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DORSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHISHOLM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUTUMN CIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TUXEDO      BOULEVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
MADISON    BOULEVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UCKY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UCKY

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENT-

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELMHURST

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREY-

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENTUCKY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEE CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BONNIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TERESA

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEADOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
LARK PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEADOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MYERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEADOWLARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MYERS AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANTE-

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGEWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCKWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROSE-

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENTUCKY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURCH AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BISON    ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIRCLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO BARNSDALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOLAROC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUTTON AVIAN RESEARCH CENTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELM

AutoCAD SHX Text
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAPLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSTONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
&

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOLF COURSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
JO ALLYN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDUSTRIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARTLESVILLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO NOWATA

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOSPITAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
JANE PHILLIPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOONER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADAMS MUNICIPAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOLF COURSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROBINWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHILLIPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESEARCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO TULSA

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRINCETON

AutoCAD SHX Text
1700 S

AutoCAD SHX Text
2500 S

AutoCAD SHX Text
900 S

AutoCAD SHX Text
400 S

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVERE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLONY DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WISCONSIN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROANOKE RIDGE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
KINGSTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGACY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
KINGSTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERSAILLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURREY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
UR

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVENTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRADBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURREY

AutoCAD SHX Text
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MISSION DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEWPORT DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HUNTINGTON DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESTNUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAUREN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHIO ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RABBIT RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLACKSTONE CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STARVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIRCLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARNETT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILFORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASHFORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASHFORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LESTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEISURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
JACQUELYN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKEVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOWATA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILL ROGERS DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY ROAD 3007

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARGARITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDDLE PATH RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTRY RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
1ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASTLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
WESLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SKYLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOX-

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARBARA

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TALLGRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
KINGS DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text
KINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MADISON BOULEVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE    VIEW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SKY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOON

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAWGRASS DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAWGRASS PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOMESTEAD PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOMESTEAD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEPPER GRASS CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGE DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAGEBRUSH DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGE CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURTLECREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEERRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEBBIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONEWALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOARDWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOARDWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROMAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRYCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TALBOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TALIMENA

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUSHMORE ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MESA

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROMAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CYPRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARRIMAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENERGY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIONEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONTROSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
KANSAS LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHARLESTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASHBROOK   DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPEN   AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTTINGHAM   PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COOPER   CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHURCHILL  DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERFORD CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LESTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARNETT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARNETT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANFORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAYLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAYLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHICKERING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DON DOTY DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
Private

AutoCAD SHX Text
Private

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK-

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUR-

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINGAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TROLLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LARKSPUR

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAATS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
TUXEDO    BOULEVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOXTAIL PARK LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOLDENROD LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLUESTEM DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOXTAIL PARK DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
WURMBRAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOWATA

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOVA AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLONIAL CENTER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONTICELLO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEERFIELD CR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LONGRIDGE LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROOKBURY LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUARRY PARK DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUARRY LAKES DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
STARBOARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEACON

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RICE CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILL WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH-

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
HICKORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELM

AutoCAD SHX Text
13TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
VIRGINIA AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
11TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
17TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMANCHE

AutoCAD SHX Text
18TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEMINOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HICKORY AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANTA FE AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET ID

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text
IANG

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text
IANG

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLVD



ENGINEERING
SERVICES

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
N

a
m

e
:
 
G

:
\
P
R
O

J
E
C
T
S
\
2
0
1
9
0
5
0
_
S
o
o
n
e
r
 
P
a
r
k
 
S
h
e
l
t
e
r
\
C
A
D

\
2
0
1
9
0
5
0
_
S
o
o
n
e
r
 
P
a
r
k
 
S
h
e
l
t
e
r
.
d
w

g
 
 
L
a
y
o
u
t
 
N

a
m

e
:
 
C
-
2
 
N

o
t
e
s
 
&

 
P
a
y
 
Q

u
a
n
t
 
P
l
o
t
t
e
d
 
B
y
:
 
S
K
C
H

A
R
L
E
S
 
P
l
o
t
t
e
d
 
o
n
:
 
7
/
2
9
/
2
0
1
9
 
1
:
0
6
:
2
5
 
P
M

DATE# DESCRIPTION BY

.
.. . NOTES &

PAY ITEM QUANTITIES

C-2

07/26/19

SOONER PARK

SHELTER

BID SET

SKC

WMS

SKC

2019050

UTILITY COMPANY CONTACT INFORMATION

WATER - CITY OF BARTLESVILLE

401 S JOHNSTONE AVENUE

BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 74003

CONTACT: TERRY LAURITSEN

(918) 338-4107

SEWER - CITY OF BARTLESVILLE

401 S JOHNSTONE AVENUE

BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 74003

CONTACT: TERRY LAURITSEN

(918) 338-4107

TELEPHONE - SBC COMMUNICATIONS

119 EAST SIXTH STREET

BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 74003

CONTACT: JAY HALFERTY

(918) 662-3033

CABLE - CABLE ONE

4127 S.E. NOWATA ROAD

BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 74006

CONTACT: DENNIS ANDERSON

(918) 335-0332

ELECTRIC - AEP / PSO

310 S. COMANCHE AVE.

BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 74003

CONTACT: TIEN CHAO

(918) 337-1216

GAS - OKLAHOMA NATURAL GAS

3601 NE INDIANA

BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 74006

CONTACT: JOLEEN CHULEEWAH

(918) 335-5701

PAY ITEMS TABLE

GENERAL CONSTRUCTION NOTES

1. ALL WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED IN A PROFESSIONAL AND WORKMANLIKE MANNER IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS AND ALL APPLICABLE CURRENT CITY,

STATE, & FEDERAL CODES.

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL UTILIZE THE CALL OKIE SYSTEM (1-800-522-6543) AT LEAST 48 HOURS

IN ADVANCE OF BEGINNING ANY EXCAVATION.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAKE ALL NECESSARY PROVISIONS DURING CONSTRUCTION FOR THE

SUPPORT AND PROTECTION OF ANY UTILITY POLES, GAS MAINS, TELEPHONE CABLES, SANITARY

SEWER LINES, ELECTRIC CABLES, DRAINAGE PIPES, UTILITY SERVICE LINES, AND ANY OTHER

STRUCTURES BOTH ABOVE AND BELOW GROUND.  CONTRACTOR IS LIABLE FOR ALL DAMAGES

DONE TO SUCH EXISTING FACILITIES AS A RESULT OF CONTRACTORS OPERATIONS.

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN PRIOR APPROVAL FROM CITY FOR ANY AREAS TO BE USED FOR

STAGING, MOBILIZATION, EQUIPMENT AND MATERIAL STORAGE, AND GENERAL PROJECT

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT.  REQUEST SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO CITY ENGINEER WITHIN 5

DAYS OF NOTICE TO PROCEED.

5. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTAINING GENERAL SAFETY AT, AND ADJACENT

TO, THE PROJECT AREA, INCLUDING THE PERSONAL SAFETY OF THE CONSTRUCTION CREW AND

THE GENERAL PUBLIC AND THE SAFETY OF PUBLIC AND PRIVATE PROPERTY.

6. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR KEEPING STREETS AND SIDEWALKS ADJACENT TO

PROJECT FREE OF MUD AND DEBRIS CAUSED BY CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.

7. NO EQUIPMENT OR MATERIAL SHALL BE DEPOSITED ON PRIVATE PROPERTY WITHOUT WRITTEN

PERMISSION.  THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL DAMAGES RESULTING FROM SUCH

ACTS AND SHALL REMOVE THE MATERIAL AND RESTORE THE PROPERTY AT THE EXPENSE OF THE

CONTRACTOR.

8. THE LOCATIONS OF ALL DRIVEWAYS, SIDEWALKS, STRUCTURES, UTILITIES, AND OTHER ITEMS

SHOWN ON PLANS ARE APPROXIMATE.  ACCURATE LOCATIONS SHALL BE VERIFIED AT THE TIME

OF CONSTRUCTION AFTER CONSULTATION WITH OWNER AND UTILITY COMPANIES.

9. THE CONTRACTOR PERSONNEL SHALL WEAR IDENTIFYING CLOTHING OR HATS AT ALL TIMES.

10. CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE HOURS OF 7:00 A.M. AND 7:00 P.M.

UNLESS APPROVED OR DIRECTED BY THE CITY ENGINEER.

11. CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS SUCH AS BROKEN CONCRETE, EXCESS FILL, ETC., SHALL BECOME THE

PROPERTY OF THE CONTRACTOR.  MATERIALS SHALL BE COMPLETELY REMOVED FROM THE SITE

PRIOR TO ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROJECT.  ALL MATERIALS SHALL BE DISPOSED OF IN A MANNER

THAT IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LOCAL, STATE, & FEDERAL REGULATIONS.

12. OPERATION OF ANY WATER VALVES THAT MAY BE REQUIRED FOR THE PROJECT SHALL BE

PERFORMED BY THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE WATER UTILITIES DEPARTMENT.  WORK TO BE

DISCUSSED WITH WATER UTILITIES DIRECTOR, TERRY LAURITSEN, 72 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF

THE NEED TO COMMENCE SUCH WORK.

13. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROPER BARRICADES, LIGHTING, AND SIGNAGE

WITHIN AND AROUND THE CONSTRUCTION AREA.  ALL CONSTRUCTION SIGNAGE SHALL BE IN

ACCORDANCE WITH OSHA SAFETY REGULATIONS AND STANDARD CONSTRUCTION SAFETY

PRACTICES.

14. CONTRACTOR SHALL FULL-DEPTH SAWCUT EXISTING PAVEMENT AT AREAS TO BE REMOVED.

COSTS OF SAWCUTS ARE SUBSIDIARY TO OTHER ITEMS OF WORK.

15. CONTRACTOR SHALL PRESERVE AND PROTECT OR REMOVE AND REPLACE (WITH PRIOR APPROVAL

OF LANDOWNER), ALL TREES, SHRUBS, HEDGES, RETAINING WALLS, LANDSCAPING, STRUCTURES,

SIDEWALKS, ETC, IN OR NEAR THE PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION AREA.  THIS WORK SHALL BE

CONSIDERED INCIDENTAL AND NOT A SEPARATE PAY ITEM.

16. CONTRACTOR SHALL CLEAN AND RESTORE THE AREA OF OPERATIONS AND CONSTRUCTION TO A

CONDITION AS GOOD OR BETTER THAN EXISTED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

17. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN POSITIVE DRAINAGE AND SHALL NOT ALLOW OBSTRUCTION TO

REMAIN THAT CAUSES WATER DAMAGE TO SITE OR ADJACENT PROPERTIES.

18. CONSTRUCTION STAKING CAN BE PROVIDED BY OWNER IF NECESSARY TO ESTABLISH GRADES

AND LAYOUT.

19.  CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE ALL MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT, AND LABOR NECESSARY TO

CONSTRUCT THE STRUCTURE, SLAB, ELECTRICAL, AND SITE WORK FOR A FINISHED PRODUCT.

SELECT BACKFILL NOTES

1. SELECT BACKFILL SHALL BE BACKFILLED AND COMPACTED TO 95% STANDARD PROCTOR DENSITY.

2. SELECT BACKFILL MAY INCLUDE EITHER SELECT BORROW MATERIAL THAT MEETS THE

REQUIREMENTS OF ODOT SPECIFICATION SUBSECTION 705.01 AND/OR SELECTIVELY EXCAVATED

MATERIAL.

3. SELECT BACKFILL SHALL BE REPRESENTATIVE OF SOILS IN THE VICINITY AND BE REASONABLY

FREE OF CLAY LUMPS, OBJECTIONABLE WEEDS, RUBBLE, LITTER, BRUSH, GRADING, OR

MAINTENANCE OPERATIONS.  SELECT BACKFILL SHALL NOT CONTAIN MORE THAN 5% BY VOLUME

OF STONES, STUMPS, OR OTHER OBJECTS LARGER THAN ONE INCH (1") IN ANY DIMENSION.

SELECT BACKFILL SHALL NOT BE PLACED WHEN THE SUBGRADE IS FROZEN, EXCESSIVELY WET,

EXTREMELY DRY, OR IN A CONDITION OTHERWISE DETRIMENTAL TO PROPER GRADING.

UTILITY COMPANY CONTACT INFORMATION

WATER - CITY OF BARTLESVILLE

401 S JOHNSTONE AVENUE

BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 74003

CONTACT: TERRY LAURITSEN

(918) 338-4107

SEWER - CITY OF BARTLESVILLE

401 S JOHNSTONE AVENUE

BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 74003

CONTACT: TERRY LAURITSEN

(918) 338-4107

TELEPHONE - SBC COMMUNICATIONS

119 EAST SIXTH STREET

BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 74003

CONTACT: JAY HALFERTY

(918) 662-3033

CABLE - CABLE ONE

4127 S.E. NOWATA ROAD

BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 74006

CONTACT: DENNIS ANDERSON

(918) 335-0332

ELECTRIC - AEP / PSO

310 S. COMANCHE AVE.

BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 74003

CONTACT: TIEN CHAO

(918) 337-1216

GAS - OKLAHOMA NATURAL GAS

3601 NE INDIANA

BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 74006

CONTACT: JOLEEN CHULEEWAH

(918) 335-5701

PAY ITEM NOTES

1. PRE-ENGINEERED AND PRE-FABRICATED 40' SINGLE TIER HEXAGON METAL PAVILION STRUCTURE PACKAGE PER

DRAWINGS & SPECIFICATIONS.

2. MOBILIZATION, CLEARING, EARTHWORK, EXCAVATION, SALVAGED TOPSOIL AND SITE RESTORATION SHALL BE

SUBSIDIARY TO OTHER ITEMS OF WORK AND NO SEPARATE PAYMENT WILL BE MADE.

3. ALL BARE UNPAVED TOPSOIL AREAS SHALL BE FINE GRADED AND RAKED, REMOVING RIDGES AND DEPRESSIONS,

FILLED AS REQUIRED TO MEET FINISHED GRADES AND CREATE POSITIVE DRAINAGE PER GRADING PLAN.

4. DISTURBED AREAS SHALL BE SODDED WITH BERMUDA GRASS.  SODDING INCLUDES COST OF 10-20-10 FERTILIZER

ESTIMATED AT 200 LBS PER 1000 SY OF SODDING AND COST OF WATERING ESTIMATED AT 80 GALLONS PER SQUARE

YARD.  CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE SUFFICIENT WATER FOR ADEQUATE GRASS GROWTH AS APPROVED BY THE

ENGINEER.

5. SAWCUTTING AND REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT NECESSARY FOR NEW WORK SHALL BE SUBSIDIARY TO OTHER ITEMS AND

WILL NOT BE PAID AS SEPARATE PAY ITEM.

6. PAY ITEM INCLUDES ALL EQUIPMENT, LABOR, AND MATERIALS REQUIRED TO CONSTRUCT AND INSTALL A FINISHED

PRODUCT.

7. THIS PAY ITEM SHALL COVER ITEMS THAT WERE UNFORSEEN DURING DESIGN AND MAY ONLY BE USED WITH

WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE CITY ENGINEER.

8. REMOVED ITEMS BECOME THE PROPERTY OF THE CONTRACTOR UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON THE PLANS.  THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE FROM THE PROJECT AREA ALL SURPLUS MATERIAL.  THIS SHALL BE INCIDENTAL AND

NOT A SEPARATE PAY ITEM.

9. MATERIALS REMOVED MUST BE DISPOSED OF AT A LOCATION APPROVED BY CITY INSPECTOR.

10. GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL GUARANTEE ALL SOD AND PLANT MATERIALS FOR A PERIOD OF ONE (1) YEAR FROM

DATE OF PROJECT'S SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION.

11. THROUGHOUT THE WARRANTY PERIOD CONTRACTOR SHALL PERFORM OPERATIONS SUCH AS ROLLING, REGRADING,

RESODDING, AND/OR REPLANTING AS REQUIRED TO ESTABLISH A SMOOTH TURF SURFACE, FREE OF ERODED OR

BARE AREAS.

12. ALL MATERIALS, METHODS, ETC. TO MEET ALL APPLICABLE CITY, STATE, AND FEDERAL CODES AND REQUIREMENTS.

1

2,6,8,9,12

2,5,6,8,9,12

2,6,12

6,12

2,5,6,8,9,12

2,5,6,8,9,12

3,4,6,10,11

7

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:    

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:  



ENGINEERING
SERVICES

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
N

a
m

e
:
 
G

:
\
P
R
O

J
E
C
T
S
\
2
0
1
9
0
5
0
_
S
o
o
n
e
r
 
P
a
r
k
 
S
h
e
l
t
e
r
\
C
A
D

\
2
0
1
9
0
5
0
_
S
o
o
n
e
r
 
P
a
r
k
 
S
h
e
l
t
e
r
.
d
w

g
 
 
L
a
y
o
u
t
 
N

a
m

e
:
 
C
-
3
 
D

e
m

o
 
n
 
S
i
t
e
p
l
a
n
 
P
l
o
t
t
e
d
 
B
y
:
 
S
K
C
H

A
R
L
E
S
 
P
l
o
t
t
e
d
 
o
n
:
 
7
/
2
9
/
2
0
1
9
 
1
:
0
6
:
3
2
 
P
M

DATE# DESCRIPTION BY

.
.. . DEMOLITION &

SITE PLAN

C-3

07/26/19

SOONER PARK

SHELTER

BID SET

SKC

WMS

SKC

2019050

SCALE IN FEET

0 2010-10

SCALE IN FEET

0 4020-20

EXISTING OVERALL SITE  LAYOUT

1" = 20'

A ENLARGED SITE PLAN

1" = 10'

B

NEW PAVILION SITE

NEW PAVILION TO BE INSTALLED PER

MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS

NEW CONCRETE

SLAB TO BE POURED

2' BEYOND PAVILION

FOOTPRINT.

SOLID SLAB SOD TO BE

INSTALLED AROUND NEW

PAVILION AREAS AS SHOWN

1. LOCATIONS OF UTILITIES ARE TO BE SITE VERIFIED. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THE EXACT LOCATIONS AND

DEPTHS OF ALL UTILITIES PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.  EXISTING POWER POLES, GUY WIRES, ETC. TO BE

RELOCATED/REMOVED BY CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY, COORDINATE AND  NOTIFY CITY OF ANY

ADDITIONAL SITE REQUIREMENTS PRIOR TO START OF WORK/CONSTRUCTION.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL OKLAHOMA'S ONE-CALL SYSTEM AND LOCATE ALL UNDERGROUND LINES AND STRUCTURES

AS REQUIRED PRIOR TO COMMENCING ANY WORK.  CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DAMAGE TO

UNDERGROUND LINES OR STRUCTURES.

3. ANY AREAS DISTURBED DURING CONSTRUCTION THAT ARE NOT COVERED WITH PAVEMENT, WALKWAYS, BUILDING,

SOD, PLANTING BED OR TREE MULCH:  SHALL BE FINISH GRADED AS REQUIRED, TOP SOILED 2" DEEP AND COVERED

WITH BLENDED SEED WITH STRAW COVER.  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR FURNISHING ALL MATERIALS, TOOLS,

EQUIPMENT, LABOR, AND REQUIRED INITIAL WATERING  FOR ALL PLANTED AREAS.  INSTALL ALL SOD ON MINIMUM

OF 2" GRADED TOP SOIL.  WATER AS REQUIRED FOR ROOT START.

4. ALL EXISTING MATERIAL UNDER PAVILION SLAB/FOOTINGS/FOUNDATIONS TO BE EXCAVATED AND REMOVED (TO A

CITY DESIGNATED LOCATION).  REMOVE MATERIAL TO A GENERAL DEPTH OF 1' BELOW EXISTING GRADE AND 4'

DEPTH AT ALL COLUMN FOUNDATION LOCATIONS. REMOVE EXISTING MATERIAL TO 3' BEYOND THE

SLAB/FOUNDATION PERIMETERS. IF ANY UNUSUAL OR QUESTIONABLE SITE SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS ARE

ENCOUNTERED DURING EXCAVATION, BACKFILLING, OR CONSTRUCTION, NOTIFY THE OWNER FOR REVIEW AND

EVALUATION.

5. ALL FILL AREAS TO BE FILLED, COMPACTED AND PREPARED IN 8" LIFTS WITH ADDED MOISTURE AS REQUIRED, TO A

MINIMUM COMPACTION OF 95% STANDARD PROCTOR DENSITY.  ALL FILL MATERIAL TO BE TESTED AND APPROVED

(BY THE CITY OR THEIR REPRESENTATIVE) AND PLACED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF AN APPROVED GEO-TECH

ENGINEER.

SITE PLAN NOTES

EXISTING POWER POLE

EXISTING TRANSFORMER

EXISTING POWER POLE

EXISTING PARKING LOT

EXISTING

PLAYGROUND

EXISTING BENCH

EXISTING BENCH

(TO REMAIN)

EXISTING BENCH

(TO REMAIN)

EXISTING STAIRS

DOWN TO PAVILION SITE

(TO REMAIN)

EXISTING STAIRS

DOWN TO SITE

(TO REMAIN)

EXISTING STAIRS

DOWN TO PAVILION SITE

(TO BE REMOVED AS NEEDED

TO ACCEPT NEW WORK)

EXISTING

CONCRETE

SLOPE WALL

(TO REMAIN)

EXISTING CONCRETE WALK

(TO REMAIN - TYP. AROUND SITE)

1

1

.

8

4

'

6

'

6

'

7
.
8
5
'

6

'

PAVILION ROOF LINE

NEW RAMP FROM PAVILION

FLOOR TO EXISTING WALK

NEW SIDEWALK FROM BOTTOM OF EXISTING

STAIRS TO NEW PAVILION FINISHED FLOOR

NEW SIDEWALK FROM BOTTOM OF EXISTING

STAIRS TO NEW PAVILION FINISHED FLOOR

NEW CONCRETE TRICKLE CHANNEL ALONG

NORTH EDGE OF SLOPE WALL TO STAIRS

NEW CONCRETE TRICKLE CHANNEL ALONG

WEST & SOUTH EDGE OF EXISTING SLOPE WALL

GRAVEL FILL TO BE REMOVED AND REPLACED WITH

COMPACTED TOPSOIL TO MATCH EXISTING ELEVATIONS

1"BAR IS ONE INCH ON OFFICIAL DRAWINGS. IF NOT ONE INCH, ADJUST SCALE ACCORDINGLY.
0

CONTROL POINT

IRON ROD IN GROUND

NORTHEAST OF BENCH

N 645205.65

E 2578880.76

EL 708.61

CONTROL POINT

IRON ROD IN GROUND

APPROX. 6' OFF SIDEWALK

N 645104.54

E 2579036.49

ASSUMED ELEV 700.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:    

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:  



N 645135.41

E 2578961.35

N 645135.33

E 2578930.17

N 645142.09

E 2578961.84

N 645154.73

E 2579001.53

N 645141.48

E 2578929.59

N 645142.43

E 2578957.38

CENTER OF

COLUMN 5

N 645152.90

E 2578997.65

N 645160.64

E 2578992.88

N 645149.92

E 2578962.42

CENTER OF

COLUMN 2

N 645137.28

E 2578965.22

N 645132.51

E 2578999.83

N 645157.62

E 2578963.00

N 645122.86

E 2578979.74

CENTER OF

COLUMN 4

N 645134.95

E 2578996.31

CENTER OF

COLUMN 3

N 645127.14

E 2578980.09

N 645167.32

E 2578983.10

CENTER OF

COLUMN 6

N 645163.04

E 2578982.78

CENTER OF

COLUMN 1

N 645155.23

E 2578966.56

CENTER OF SHELTER

N 645145.09

E 2578981.43

1

7

0

0

.

0

0

1

0

0

7

0

5

.

5

6

T

O

P

 

S

T

A

I

R

1

0

1

7

0

5

.

6

2

E

P

1

0

2

7

0

3

.

4

4

E

P

1

0

3

7

0

3

.

2

3

E

P

1

0

4

7

0

2

.

4

1

E

P

1

0

5

7

0

0

.

8

8

E

P

1

0

6

7

0

0

.

4

4

E

P

1

0

7

7

0

1

.

4

2

E

P

1

0

8

7

0

1

.

6

3

E

P

1

0

9

7

0

3

.

2

3

E

P

1

1

0

7

0

5

.

5

3

E

P

1

1

1

7

0

2

.

2

6

T

O

E

1

1

2

7

0

2

.

3

7

T

O

E

1

1

3

7

0

1

.

4

3

T

O

E

1

1

4

7

0

1

.

4

3

T

O

E

1

1

5

7

0

1

.

3

1

T

O

E

1

1

6

7

0

0

.

4

0

T

O

E

1

1

7

7

0

0

.

9

9

T

O

E

1

1

8

7

0

1

.

1

4

T

O

E

1

1

9

7

0

1

.

5

3

T

O

E

1

2

0

7

0

3

.

0

0

E

W

1

2

1

7

0

1

.

7

3

E

W

1

2

2

7

0

1

.

5

6

E

W

1

2

3

7

0

0

.

3

1

E

W

1

2

4

7

0

0

.

3

6

E

W

1

2

5

7

0

0

.

8

6

E

W

701.62

701.31

700.4

700.6

702.0

701.35

702.0

702.0

702.0

702.46

701.43

700.88

701.6

701.4

701.92

701.75

1

.

2

%

702.0

702.40

702

702

702.06

702.30

702.36

702.24

1

.

5

%

701.88

702.26

1

.

3

%

701.92

701.92

701.92

701.83

700.94

1

5

%

1

.

7

9

%

701.83

701.14

701.00

1

3

%

701.38

701.83

702.36

1

.

5

%

1

.

8

%

702.16

1

.

6

%

702.00

701.81

702.0

702.0

701.04

7

0

1

.

7

5

702.0

1

.

6

%

1

.

6

%

7

0

1

.

7

5

702.45

701.92

701.83

2

%

2
%

2

%

2

%

2
%

2

%

ENGINEERING
SERVICES

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
N

a
m

e
:
 
G

:
\
P
R
O

J
E
C
T
S
\
2
0
1
9
0
5
0
_
S
o
o
n
e
r
 
P
a
r
k
 
S
h
e
l
t
e
r
\
C
A
D

\
2
0
1
9
0
5
0
_
S
o
o
n
e
r
 
P
a
r
k
 
S
h
e
l
t
e
r
.
d
w

g
 
 
L
a
y
o
u
t
 
N

a
m

e
:
 
C
-
4
 
C
o
o
r
d
s
 
n
 
G

r
a
d
i
n
g
 
P
l
o
t
t
e
d
 
B
y
:
 
S
K
C
H

A
R
L
E
S
 
P
l
o
t
t
e
d
 
o
n
:
 
7
/
2
9
/
2
0
1
9
 
1
:
0
6
:
4
0
 
P
M

DATE# DESCRIPTION BY

.
.. . COORDINATE LAYOUT

& GRADING PLAN

C-4

07/26/19

SOONER PARK

SHELTER

BID SET

SKC

WMS

SKC

2019050

SCALE IN FEET

0 2010-10

SCALE IN FEET

0 2010-10

LAYOUT COORDINATES

1" = 10'

A GRADING PLAN

1" = 10'

B

1"BAR IS ONE INCH ON OFFICIAL DRAWINGS. IF NOT ONE INCH, ADJUST SCALE ACCORDINGLY.
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:    

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:  

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL POINTS:  SEE EXISTING OVERALL SITE LAYOUT FOR CONTROL POINTS   SEE EXISTING OVERALL SITE LAYOUT FOR CONTROL POINTS BASIS OF BEARINGS:  HORIZONTAL:  OKLAHOMA STATE PLANE GRID, NAD 1983, NORTH ZONE. VERTICAL:    ASSUMED ELEVATION



ENGINEERING
SERVICES

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
N

a
m

e
:
 
G

:
\
P
R
O

J
E
C
T
S
\
2
0
1
9
0
5
0
_
S
o
o
n
e
r
 
P
a
r
k
 
S
h
e
l
t
e
r
\
C
A
D

\
2
0
1
9
0
5
0
_
S
o
o
n
e
r
 
P
a
r
k
 
S
h
e
l
t
e
r
.
d
w

g
 
 
L
a
y
o
u
t
 
N

a
m

e
:
 
C
-
5
 
D

e
t
a
i
l
s
 
P
l
o
t
t
e
d
 
B
y
:
 
S
K
C
H

A
R
L
E
S
 
P
l
o
t
t
e
d
 
o
n
:
 
7
/
2
9
/
2
0
1
9
 
2
:
2
4
:
4
6
 
P
M

DATE# DESCRIPTION BY

.
.. . SITE

DETAILS

C-5

07/26/19

SOONER PARK

SHELTER

BID SET

SKC

WMS

SKC

2019050

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

NTS

A

CONTRACTION JOINTS GENERAL NOTES:

ALL CONTRACTION JOINTS, INCLUDING THOSE IN CURBS, SHALL BE SEALED WITH

A SELF-LEVELING, LOW MODULUS, SILICON SEALANT AT A SPACING OF 24 TIMES

THE THICKNESS OF THE SLAB (MAXIMUM OF 15'-0" O.C. FOR NON-REINFORCED

SLABS AND 30'-0" FOR REINFORCED SLABS).

PANELS SHOULD BE SQUARE OR CLOSE TO SQUARE (MAX. RATIO 1 TO 1.5)

JOINT DEPTH SHOULD BE AS NOTED ON DETAILS.

1/4"

SAWED TRANSVERSE CONTRACTION JOINT

STANDARD CONCRETE PAVEMENT JOINTS

FILL W/ JOINT SEALER

1/4"

1/8" RAD.

1
"

3/4"

3
"

1"

@ 4' C/C

BAR 3'-0" LONG

#4 REBAR

FILL W/ JOINT SEALER

KEY TO FORM

FASTENING METAL

KEYWAY FORMED BY

1
 
1
/
2
"

LUBRICATE THIS END

NO. 4 DOWEL

18" LONG @ 1'-3" C/C

ASPHALT IMPREGNATED FIBER

BOARD EXPANSION MATERIAL.

1
"

FILL W/ JOINT SEALER

1 1/4"

TOOLED CONTRACTION JOINT

FILL W/ JOINT SEALER

1/4"

3/8"

25% OF THE

DEPTH OF

CONCRETE

FIRST SAWCUT 1/8" CUT TO A DEPTH

EQUAL TO 25% OF THE TOTAL DEPTH OF

CONCRETE FOR PAVEMENT LESS THAN

12".

(3" FOR PAVEMENTS 12"-18")

(16% OF DEPTH FOR PAVEMENTS OVER

18")

FINAL CUT FOR BACKER ROD (3/8" MIN.) AND JOINT

SEALANT.  (CLEAN JOINT THOROUGHLY BEFORE PLACING

BACKER ROD AND SEALANT)

NOTE:

NOTE:

NOTES:

NOTE:

SAWING SHOULD BEGIN AS SOON AS CONCRETE IS STRONG ENOUGH TO SUPPORT EQUIPMENT.

AVOID RAVELING DURING SAWING OPERATION. ALL JOINTS SHOULD BE SAWED WITHIN 12 HOURS

OF CONCRETE PLACEMENT.  EARLIER IN HOT WEATHER AND WHEN CONCRETE IS CONSTRUCTED

ON STABILIZED BASE.

NOTE:

TOOLED JOINTS MUST BE RUN EARLY IN THE FINISHING PROCESS AND RERUN

LATER TO ENSURE GROOVE BOND HAS NOT OCCURRED.

SELF LEVELING

SILICONE JOINT

SEALANT

LONGITUDINAL, CONTRACTION

& CONSTRUCTION JOINT

SELF LEVELING

SILICONE JOINT

SEALANT

1/8"

T
/
4

1
/
4
"

EXPANSION JOINT

1/2"

1
"

1
/
4
"

BACKER RODS ARE ACCEPTABLE FOR USE IN CONTRACTION AND/OR CONSTRUCTION

JOINTS PROVIDED THAT THE SILICONE JOINT SEALANT IS AT LEAST 1/2" THICK.

EXPANSION JOINT DETAIL

NTS

CONTRACTION JOINT DETAILS

NTS

CONSTRUCTION JOINT DETAIL

NTS

JOINT SEAL DETAIL

NTS

F

1. REINFORCEMENT SHALL HAVE 1 1/2" MIN. COVER ON EXPOSED FACES AND 2" COVER ON GROUND CONTACT SURFACES.

2. ALL JOINTS MUST CONFORM TO ALL ODOT STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR JOINTS AND SEALERS.

E

E1
E2 E3

F

C-5

F

C-5

F

C-5

F

C-5

PROVIDE CONSTRUCTION JOINTS WHERE 2 SUCCESSIVE PIECES OF CONCRETE MEET. KEYWAYS

SHOULD NOT BE USED ON PAVEMENT LESS THAN 9" THICK OR AT JOINTS THAT WILL CARRY

HEAVY LOADS.  INSTEAD, METAL DOWELS SHOULD BE USED.  DOWELS MUST BE CAREFULLY LINED

UP PARALLEL OR THEY MAY INDUCE RESTRAINT CAUSING RANDOM CRACKING AT END OF DOWEL.

PROVIDE EXPANSION JOINTS AT ALL RADIUS POINTS AND CORNERS.  ALSO AT JUNCTIONS OF

DRIVEWAYS WITH WALKS, CURBS, OR OTHER OBSTRUCTIONS AND AT JUNCTIONS OF WALKS

WITH BUILDINGS OR OTHER OBSTRUCTIONS.

RAMP DETAIL

3/4" = 1'-0"

C

2'

8'-8"

2'
4'-8"

8'-7"

6" 11" 6" 1'-4" 6" 2' 10" 1'-6" 6"

1
'

M
I
N

.

(
T
Y
P
)

4"

3"

PAVILION

FOUNDATION

SLAB

THICKENED

EDGE

EXISTING

SIDEWALK

2'-6" x 6'-0" SLIPNOT

DIAMOND PLATE W/

COUNTERSUNK HOLES

(OR APPROVED EQUAL)

2
"

4
"

CONTRACTION JOINT

(PER NOTES &

STANDARDS)

6 X 6 W 4.0 X W 4.0

WIRE FABRIC

2" SAND

LEVELING

COURSE

SIDEWALK NOTES:

1. PLACE ISOLATION JOINT BETWEEN ALL NEW SIDEWALKS AND

EXISTING PAVEMENT, SIDEWALKS, CURB AND GUTTER, AND

STRUCTURES (MAX SPACING 250 FEET).

2. CONTRACTION JOINT SPACING TO GENERALLY MATCH WIDTH OF

SIDEWALK.  (SEE PLAN LAYOUT)

3. CROSS SLOPES ON ALL WALKWAYS SHALL BE 1/4"/FT UNLESS

SPECIFICALLY NOTED OTHERWISE.

4. MEDIUM BROOM FINISH.

1"

ASPHALT IMPREGNATED FIBER

BOARD EXPANSION MATERIAL.

1
"

FILL W/ JOINT SEALER

NOTE:

ISOLATION JOINT DETAIL

NTS

E4

F

C-5

PROVIDE ISOLATION JOINTS JOINTS WHERE SHOWN ON PLANS.

TRICKLE CHANNEL

1" = 1'-0"

B
1'-6"

9" 9"

4
"

EXISTING CONCRETE

SLOPE WALL

ADJACENT

GROUND

SLOPED

TOWARD

CHANNEL

4" THICK CONCRETE V-CHANNEL

FOR TRICKLE DRAINAGE

1"BAR IS ONE INCH ON OFFICIAL DRAWINGS. IF NOT ONE INCH, ADJUST SCALE ACCORDINGLY.
0

COMPACT SUBGRADE TO

95% STANDARD PROCTOR

DENSITY

1
"

A

P

P

R

O

X

.

 

7

0

1

.

5

(

M

A

T

C

H

 

E

X

I

S

T

I

N

G

)

W

E

S

T

 

7

0

1

.

0

4

E

A

S

T

 

7

0

0

.

9

4

W

E

S

T

 

7

0

1

.

1

4

 

(

M

A

T

C

H

 

E

X

I

S

T

I

N

G

 

S

L

O

P

E

 

W

A

L

L

)

E

A

S

T

 

7

0

1

.

0

0

 

(

M

A

T

C

H

 

E

X

I

S

T

I

N

G

 

S

L

O

P

E

 

W

A

L

L

)

F

F

 

7

0

2

.

0

W

E

S

T

 

7

0

1

.

2

1

E

A

S

T

 

7

0

1

.

1

1

ISOLATION JOINT-

MATCH EXISTING

SLOPE WALL ELEV

CONTINUOUS

FILLET WELD

2" I.D. SCH 40

PIPE EMBEDDED

IN CONCRETE

8
"

1 1/4" SCH 40

STEEL PIPE-

PAINTED

(1.66 O.D.)

1
2
"
 
C
O

N
C
R
E
T
E

6"

MIN.

ENLARGED POST CONNECTION DETAIL

3
4
"
 
(
T
Y
P
)

SPACED PER RAMP DETAIL

3
4
"
 
(
T
Y
P
.
)

1/4"

1
'
-
1
"

1
'
-
1
"

1 1/4" SCH 40 STEEL PIPE,

PAINTED -  COLOR TO BE

SELECTED BY ARCHITECT

(1.66 O.D.)

(WELDS TO BE GROUND

SMOOTH & FLUSH)

3
"

C
L
E
A
R

SEE ELNARGED POST

CONNECTION DETAIL

TYPICAL HANDRAIL DETAIL

NTS

D

CONCRETE

MATCH ADJACENT GROUND

SLOPE ON ADJACENT GROUND

SIDE OF TRICKLE CHANNEL

ISOLATION JOINT (PER SIDEWALK

NOTES AND CONCRETE STANDARDS)

4" THICK PORTLAND

CEMENT CLASS 'A'

SIDEWALK PER ODOT

SPECIFICATIONS SEC 610

REINFORCED

CONCRETE

PAVING

(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:    

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:  



ENGINEERING
SERVICES

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
N

a
m

e
:
 
G

:
\
P
R
O

J
E
C
T
S
\
2
0
1
9
0
5
0
_
S
o
o
n
e
r
 
P
a
r
k
 
S
h
e
l
t
e
r
\
C
A
D

\
2
0
1
9
0
5
0
_
S
o
o
n
e
r
 
P
a
r
k
 
S
h
e
l
t
e
r
.
d
w

g
 
 
L
a
y
o
u
t
 
N

a
m

e
:
 
C
-
6
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
 
D

e
t
a
i
l
s
 
P
l
o
t
t
e
d
 
B
y
:
 
S
K
C
H

A
R
L
E
S
 
P
l
o
t
t
e
d
 
o
n
:
 
7
/
2
9
/
2
0
1
9
 
1
:
0
6
:
5
0
 
P
M

DATE# DESCRIPTION BY

.
.. . FOUNDATION

DETAILS

C-6

07/26/19

SOONER PARK

SHELTER

BID SET

SKC

WMS

SKC

2019050

3/16" = 1'-0"

36'-0" CTR/CTR COLUMN PIERS

44'-7 

5

16

" OUT/OUT OF SLAB

1

5

'

-

7

 

1

1

6

"

40' ROOF STRUCTURE

60°0'0.0"

2

'

-

0

"

EDGE OF ROOF

EDGE OF SLAB

12

14

13

4'-0" SQUARE

1'-5"

PEDESTAL

5"

1'-3 

1

2

"1'-3 

1

2

"

5" SQUARE

TUBULAR

COLUMN

1

0

"

3

C-6

2

C

-

6

4

C-6

3

15

5

8

12

13

4

2'-0"

R
O

O
F
 
E
D

G
E

10"

12"

1
2
"

8

THICKENED EDGE3

2

"

 

C

L

E

A

R

6

3
"

14

3

16

11

5"

1'-9 

1

2

"1'-9 

1

2

"

SQUARE

COLUMN

1'-5"

SQUARE

PEDESTAL

4'-0" SQUARE FOOTING

5

13

14

15

1. ALL CONCRETE TO MEET ACI, INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE, AND ALL LOCAL

CODES OR REQUIREMENTS.

2. CONCRETE FOR FOOTINGS/SLABS SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM COMPRESSIVE

STRENGTH OF 3000 PSI @ 28 DAYS. MAXIMUM SLUMP OF 5 INCHES.

AIR-ENTRAINING OF 4%-6% MAXIMUM. WATER CONTENT SHALL BE CONTROLLED &

MINIMIZED.

3. CONTINUOUS THICKENED SLAB/EDGE FOOTING: 10" WIDE @ BASE x 12" DEEP w/

(2) #5 BARS CONTINUOUS. SEE DETAIL #2-THIS SHEET.

4. ALL EXISTING MATERIAL UNDER PAVILION SLAB/FOOTINGS/FOUNDATIONS TO BE

EXCAVATED AND REMOVED {TO A CITY DESIGNATED LOCATION). REMOVE

MATERIAL TO A GENERAL DEPTH OF 1' BELOW EXISTING GRADE AND 4' DEPTH AT

ALL COLUMN FOUNDATION LOCATIONS. IF ANY UNUSUAL OR QUESTIONABLE SITE

SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS ARE ENCOUNTERED DURING EXCAVATION, BACKFILL, OR

CONSTRUCTION, NOTIFY THE INSPECTOR AND ENGINEER FOR REVIEW AND

EVALUATION. ALL FILL AREAS TO BE FILLED, COMPACTED AND PREPARED IN 8"

LIFTS WITH ADDED MOISTURE AS REQUIRED.  ALL FILL MATERIAL TO BE TESTED

AND APPROVED (BY THE CITY OR THEIR REPRESENTATIVE) AND PLACED UNDER THE

SUPERVISION OF AN APPROVED GEO-TECH ENGINEER.

5. 24" TALL STONE VENEER SKIRT AROUND COLUMN WITH PRECAST CONCRETE TOP,

FITTED AND CAULKED IN PLACE AS REQUIRED.  STONE SHALL BE "BUFF TUMBLED"

STONE FROM OKLAHOMA STONE OR PRE-APPROVED EQUAL.  INSTALL WALL TIES,

WEEP HOLES, ETC. PER INDUSTRY STANDARDS.

6. 3" CLEAR-TYPICAL FOR ALL REINFORCEMENT.

7. ALL REBAR SHALL CONFORM TO ASTM A-615, GRADE 60.

8. 5" CONCRETE SLAB W/6x6-10/10 W.W.F. ON 4" LAYER OF CLEAN, CRUSHED STONE

OR APPROVED EQUAL FILL MATERIAL.  SLAB TO RECEIVE A BROOM FINISH AND (2)

COATS OF SEALER ("SEAL-KRETE" CLEAR-SEAL PROTECTIVE SEALER.  SATIN OR

GLOSS FINISH TO BE SELECTED BY OWNER.  SEAL PER MANUFACTURER'S

REQUIREMENTS.

9. CONCRETE SLAB/WALK. INSTALL FIBER EXPANSION JOINT MATERIAL WHERE

REQUIRED.

10. (CJ) CUT CONTROL JOINTS AS SHOWN.  PLACE JOINTS GENERALLY WHERE SHOWN.

CUT JOINTS AS SOON AS POSSIBLE AFTER POUR (MAX. 24 HOURS).

11. INSTALL SOD ON 3"0F GRADED TOP SOIL. WATER AS REQUIRED FOR ROOT START.

12. FINAL FOUNDATION DESIGN WILL BE PROVIDED UPON BUILDING SUPPLIER

SELECTION AND COLUMN LOADS ARE PROVIDED PER THE BUILDING SPECIFICATION.

13. 4'x4'x1' DEEP COLUMN FOOTINGS w/(5} #5 BARS EA. WAY. {TYPICAL 6 LOCATIONS}.

14. 1'-5"x 1'-5"x1' PEDESTAL w/(4) #5 BARS VERTICAL w/8" LEGS, (2) #3 TIES AS

SHOWN.

15. (A.B.) ANCHOR BOLTS FURNISHED BY BUILDING SUPPLIER.  TEMPLATES AVAILABLE

AT ADDITIONAL CHARGE FROM SUPPLIER.

16. EXPANSION MATERIAL w/ SELF LEVELING CAULK (TYPICAL@ALL COLUMN BASES)

ISOLATION JOINTS.

3/16" = 1'-0"

JOINT LAYOUT PLANFOUNDATION PLAN

THICKENED

EDGE

C-6

4

4' SQUARE FOOTING

FOUNDATION DETAIL #4

3/4" = 1'-0"

FOUNDATION DETAIL #3

3/4" = 1'-0"

FOUNDATION DETAIL #2

3/4" = 1'-0"

FOUNDATION DETAIL #1

3/4" = 1'-0"

FOUNDATION NOTES

CJ

CJ

CJ

CJ

CJ

CJ

CJ

CJ

CJ

CJ

CJ

CJ

CJ

CJ

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

ISOLATION JOINT

(TYP. 6 PLACES)

16

IN MIDDLE OF 5" SLAB

PLACE 18" #4's @ 45°

OFFSET 8" FROM EACH

COLUMN CORNER (TYP)

CONTROL

JOINTS

(TYP)

10

5

15

1

2

"

X

SHOWN AS

4.31'

1"BAR IS ONE INCH ON OFFICIAL DRAWINGS. IF NOT ONE INCH, ADJUST SCALE ACCORDINGLY.
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:    

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:  



ENGINEERING
SERVICES

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
N

a
m

e
:
 
G

:
\
P
R
O

J
E
C
T
S
\
2
0
1
9
0
5
0
_
S
o
o
n
e
r
 
P
a
r
k
 
S
h
e
l
t
e
r
\
C
A
D

\
2
0
1
9
0
5
0
_
S
o
o
n
e
r
 
P
a
r
k
 
S
h
e
l
t
e
r
.
d
w

g
 
 
L
a
y
o
u
t
 
N

a
m

e
:
 
C
-
7
 
P
a
v
i
l
i
o
n
 
D

e
t
a
i
l
s
 
P
l
o
t
t
e
d
 
B
y
:
 
S
K
C
H

A
R
L
E
S
 
P
l
o
t
t
e
d
 
o
n
:
 
7
/
2
9
/
2
0
1
9
 
1
:
0
6
:
5
3
 
P
M

DATE# DESCRIPTION BY

.
.. . BUILDING

DETAILS

C-7

07/26/19

SOONER PARK

SHELTER

BID SET

SKC

WMS

SKC

2019050

PAVILION ELEVATION

3/8" = 1'-0"

ROOF PLAN

3/16" = 1'-0"

7
'
-
6
"
 
M

I
N

4

12

1. METAL ROOF ON PRE-ENGINEERED METAL BUILDING.  SUBMIT DRAWINGS &

SPECIFICATIONS FOR APPROVAL PRIOR TO FABRICATION.  BUILDING SUPPLIER

TO VERIFY & DESIGN FOR ALL LOAD CONDITIONS.

2. 24" STONE VENEER SKIRT WITH PRECAST CONCRETE TOP:  ALL STONE VENEER

INSTALLATION, ATTACHMENT, FLASHING, WEEP HOLES, CONTROL JOINTS (CJ),

ETC., TO CONFORM TO INDUSTRY STANDARDS.  STONE SHALL BE "BUFF

TUMBLED" STONE FROM OKLAHOMA STONE OR APPROVED EQUAL.  PRECAST

CONCRETE TOP TO BE FITTED AND CAULKED IN PLACE.

3. TYPICAL OVERHANG: SLAB EDGE 2' PAST ROOF EDGE.

ELEVATION NOTES

ALL LOADS PER 2015 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODES AND

THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE.

BUILDING DESIGN LOADS

4

 

/

 

1

2

40'-0" OUT/OUT OF ROOF

(ALSO SEE WRITTEN SPECIFICATIONS:  PRE-FABRICATED SITE SHELTER SPECIFICATIONS)

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT:  Shelter Type: 40' (roof size) Single Tier Hexagon Shelter.  Roof Slope: 4:12.  Eave Height: 7'-6" minimum clearance.  The structure shall be a pre-engineered package

and shall be shipped as a pre-cut (excluding standing seam roof panels) and pre-fabricated package that shall include the structural framing members, roof panels, fasteners, and roof trim, as well

as job specific installation instructions.  The structure shall be shipped in an un-assembled package for ease of shipment and minimum shipping charges.

SUBMITTALS: Submit a minimum or five (5) sets of submittal drawings and (2) sets of structure calculations signed and sealed by a Professional Engineer licensed in the state of Oklahoma.

PRODUCT DESIGN REQUIREMENTS:  The structure shall meet all design requirements for the lnternational Building Code 2015.  Design according to the requirements of the national, state or local

building codes as indicated.  Column loads for foundation design shall be furnished for the specific structure, not a generic structure.

SUBMITTAL DRAWINGS: Anchor bolt layout with all appropriate dimensions for installation, elevation and plan views of the framing members along with the member sizes and locations indicated

on the drawings, connection details for every connection on the frame, roof panel connections, and trim installation details.  Any accessories on the structure shall have an installation detail as well

as connection details.

FOUNDATION DESIGN:  By others (see foundation detail sheet). Anchor bolts shall be supplied by the manufacturer.  Foundation materials and labor shall be provided by the Project Contractor.

MANUFACTURER QUALIFICATIONS:  The manufacturer shall be approved by the City of Bartlesvllle. The product shall be designed, engineered, and fabricated at a facility operated and directly

supervised by the manufacturer.

FIELD OR SITE CONDITIONS:  Foundations shall be installed per the building manufacturer anchor bolt layout drawings.  All foundations shall be cast at the same elevation unless specifically

noted otherwise.

MANUFACTURER WARRANTY:  Shelter shall have a 5 year limited warranty on the steel framing members and a roofing manufacturer's limited warranty.

MANUFACTURERS:  Acceptable Manufacturer:  RCP Shelters, Inc., 2100 SE Rays Way, Stuart, FL  34994, or approved equal.

PRODUCT REQUIREMENTS AND MATERIALS:   The pre-engineered and pre-fabricated package of parts shall be pre-cut and packaged unless noted otherwise. These packages will include all parts

and pieces necessary to field assemble the shelter at the job site. The shelter shall be shipped in knocked down format to minimize shipping expenses. Field labor will be kept to a minimum with

no on-site welding required.  Hollow Structure Section (HSS) columns shall meet ASTM A500 Grade B with a minimum wall thickness of 3/16" (0.1875).  The columns shall attach to the foundation

with a minimum of four (4) anchor rods and shall meet OSHA Steel Erection Standard 29 CFR 1926.755(a)(1).  "I" Beams, tapered columns, or open channel sections shall not be accepted for

primary members.  Anchor rods shall be ASTM F1554, Grade 36 unless otherwise noted.  Structural fasteners shall be ATM A325 high strength bolts and A563 nuts.  All structural fasteners shall be

hidden within the framing whenever possible.  No field welding shall be required to finish the construction of the shelter.  Manufacturer shall supply all fasteners.  Roof system shall be structural

24 gauge Galvalume

®

 panels with ribs that are 1-1/2" high and 7.2" on center.  Ribs shall run with the pitch of the roof.  Roof panels shall be 3' wide and precut by the length from the eave to

the ridge.  Angles shall be factory precut.  Matching roof trim & fasteners shall be supplied. Hip and ridge beams shall have cap plates for metal deck bearing, as metal deck cannot structurally

bear on beam corner only. Panels and trim shall be pre-painted with Kynar 500

®

 paint system.

BUILDING COLOR:  Patina Green Roof with Sky White II Powder Coated Frame & Columns.

FACTORY FRAME FINISH:  Powder Coat Finish:  The columns and frame shall be sandblasted to near-white condition (SSPC-SP10 specification, Steel Structure Painting Council), five stage

washed, including detergent, phosphate, and rust protectant sealant, epoxy primed, then top coated with TGIC powder. The columns and frame shall be packaged in foam, cardboard, and stretch

wrap to protect the finish during transit. The color shall be Sky White II.  Field touch up painting shall be required by contractor.  Touch up paint shall be provided by manufacturer.

ELECTRICAL ACCESS:  Provide in all column bases a 1 3/4" diameter hole, located In the center of the plate for electrical wiring into the column base.

STORAGE HANDLING AND INSTALLATION:  All storage, handling, and installation to be strictly per buildng suppliers instructions.

METAL SHELTER/PAVILION SPECIFICATIONS

PRECAST CONCRETE TOP (TYP)

(SEE ELEVATION NOTE 2)

24" STONE VENEER

COLUMN WRAP (TYP)

(SEE ELEVATION NOTE 2)

PATINA GREEN METAL ROOF

(SEE ELEVATION NOTE 1)

UP/DOWN LIGHT

(TYP. 6 PLACES)

(SEE ELECTRICAL PLAN)

OUTLET (TYP. 6 PLACES)

(SEE ELECTRICAL PLAN)

SKY WHITE II

COLUMNS & FRAME

1"BAR IS ONE INCH ON OFFICIAL DRAWINGS. IF NOT ONE INCH, ADJUST SCALE ACCORDINGLY.
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:    

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:  



ENGINEERING
SERVICES

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
N

a
m

e
:
 
G

:
\
P
R
O

J
E
C
T
S
\
2
0
1
9
0
5
0
_
S
o
o
n
e
r
 
P
a
r
k
 
S
h
e
l
t
e
r
\
C
A
D

\
2
0
1
9
0
5
0
_
S
o
o
n
e
r
 
P
a
r
k
 
S
h
e
l
t
e
r
.
d
w

g
 
 
L
a
y
o
u
t
 
N

a
m

e
:
 
C
-
8
 
E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
a
l
 
P
l
a
n
 
&

 
D

e
t
a
i
l
s
 
P
l
o
t
t
e
d
 
B
y
:
 
S
K
C
H

A
R
L
E
S
 
P
l
o
t
t
e
d
 
o
n
:
 
7
/
2
9
/
2
0
1
9
 
1
:
0
6
:
5
6
 
P
M

DATE# DESCRIPTION BY

.
.. . ELECTRICAL

DETAILS

C-8

07/26/19

SOONER PARK

SHELTER

BID SET

SKC

WMS

SKC

2019050

ELECTRICAL PLAN

1/4" = 1'-0"

1. ALL ELECTRICAL MATERIALS, METHODS, ETC. TO MEET ALL CITY, STATE, AND NEC CODE

REQUIREMENTS.

2. COORDINATE ALL ROUGH-IN LOCATIONS WITH ALL TRADES AS REQUIRED.

3. FIXTURE LOCATIONS ARE TO BE VERIFIED AND ADJUSTED WITH ALL OTHER TRADES AND

INSTALLATIONS.

4. COORDINATE ALL SERVICE REQUIREMENTS WITH OWNER AND PUBLIC SERVICE UTILITY

COMPANY.  VERIFY EXACT LOCATION OF EQUIPMENT PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.  SERVICE TO

BE CONNECTED TO OWNER SPECIFIED LOCATION.

5. FURNISH AND INSTALL ALL REQUIRED MATERIAL AND LABOR INCLUDING FEES, TRENCHING,

BACKFILL, CONDUIT, GROUNDING, ETC. FOR A COMPLETE INSTALLATION.

6. PROVIDE A TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION SERVICE CONNECTION PER CODE.

7. ALL OUTLETS AT COLUMNS TO BE 48" ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR TO BOTTOM OF OUTLET.

FIXTURE "A" TO BE MOUNTED 7' ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR (AFF).

8. ALL OUTLETS REQUIRED BY CODE TO BE GFCI (GROUND FAULT CIRCUIT INTERRUPTER)

PROTECTED.

9. REVIEW ALL DRAWINGS, NOTES, SITE/EXISTING CONDITIONS, ETC. FOR ALL REQUIREMENTS

OF WORK SCOPE.

10. ALL LIGHTING TO BE ON PHOTO-CELL (PC) OPERATION.

11. COLUMN LIGHT(S) WIRING TO BE INSIDE COLUMNS THRU BASE OR APPROVED ALTERNATE

METHOD.  ALTERNATE METHOD TO BE APPROVED PRIOR TO ANY WORK.  SEE BUILDING

SPECIFICATIONS ON BUILDING DETAILS SHEET FOR REQUIRED COLUMN BASE PLATE

ELECTRICAL ACCESS HOLE(S).

12. AT ALL OUTLET LOCATIONS ON COLUMNS, lNSTALL WHITE DUPLEX TAMPER RESISTANT GCFI

OUTLET IN A WEATHERPROOF WHITE, HEAVY DUTY, DIE CAST METAL, VERTICAL PROTECTOR

COVER WITH POWDER COAT FINISH AT REQUIRED HEIGHT AS PREVIOUSLY NOTED.

13. PANEL TO BE LOCATED IN 16 GAUGE LOCKING STEEL CABINET-PAINTED TO MATCH

COLUMN/BUILDING COLOR (POWDER COATED FINISH).  VERIFY COLOR MATCH WITH

BUILDING SUPPLIER. CABINET TO EXTEND INTO PEDESTAL FOR CONDUIT RUNS TO PANEL.

PANEL MOUNTING HEIGHT TO BE 4' TO BOTTOM OF PANEL (+-).  VERIFY PRIOR TO CABINET

INSTALL.

ELECTRICAL NOTES

ELECTRICAL FIXTURE SCHEDULE

MARK DESCRIPTION LAMPS MOUNTING REMARKS

A

LED UP/DOWN

LIGHT

14W (LED)

INSIDE COLUMN

FACE @ 7' AFF -

B.O. FIXTURE

8" WHITE LED

OUTDOOR

UP/DOWN LIGHT -

PROGRESS

P563001-030-30K

OR APPROVED

EQUAL

B

OUTLET

N/A

4' AFF - B.O.

FIXTURE

DUPLEX GFCI

OUTLET IN

VERTICAL WHITE

WEATHERPROOF

PROTECTOR

COVER

A

B

B

B

B

B

B

A

A

A

A

A

ONE LINE DIAGRAM

NTS

VERIFY ALL

REQUIREMENTS

W/ OWNER

TO SERVICE

CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE PANEL TO SERVE LIGHTS AND OUTLETS

PANEL

MNTD. IN LOCKING CABINET

ON COLUMN SIDE

GROUND PER CODE

A

B

ENLARGED DETAIL (TYP)

NTS

1"BAR IS ONE INCH ON OFFICIAL DRAWINGS. IF NOT ONE INCH, ADJUST SCALE ACCORDINGLY.
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:    

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:  



Agenda Item 8.











 
 

 

309 N. Bryant Ave. • Edmond, OK 73034 • 405.348.0615 • Fax 405.348.0931 • www.jmacpas.com 
Member of AICPA and OSCPA 

 

 

 

 
 
 
August 22, 2019 
 
The Honorable Mayor and City Council of the  
City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma 
 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma (the “City) for the year 
ended June 30, 2018. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities 
under generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information 
related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you 
dated May 18, 2018. We did not audit the financial statements of the Community Center Trust Authority, 
Bartlesville Development Authority, and the Bartlesville Redevelopment Trust Authority.  Those financial 
statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar 
as it relates to the amounts included for the Community Center Trust Authority, Bartlesville Development 
Authority, and the Bartlesville Redevelopment Trust Authority are based on the reports of the other auditors.   

Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices  

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting 
policies used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. During fiscal 2018, the City 
implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This statement established standards for recognizing and 
measuring liabilities, deferred flows, and expenses. We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the 
year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been 
recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and 
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most 
sensitive estimates affecting the City’s financial statements were:  

1. Management’s estimate of the allowance for uncollectible accounts that is based on past 
balances and historical collections experience. 

2. Pension assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows, which are based on actuarial 
reports and the City’s contribution towards the plans. 

3. The liability for the Other Post-Employment Benefits which is based on an actuarial report. 

 

Agenda Item 8.



 

 
 

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates in determining that it is reasonable 
in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement 
users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were:  

1. The disclosure of Risk Management in Note 9 to the financial statements. 

2. The disclosure of Commitments and Contingencies in Note 10 to the financial statements 

3. The disclosure of Pension and OPEB Plan Participation in Note 11 to the financial statements 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit  

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements  

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other 
than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. The attached 
schedule summarizes uncorrected misstatements of the financial statements. Management has determined that their 
effects are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.   

Disagreements with Management  

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, 
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s 
report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations  

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation 
letter dated August 22, 2019. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants  

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting 
principle to the City’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed 
on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that 
the consultant has all the relevant facts. Crawford & Associates, P.C. acts as consultants for the City of Bartlesville 
and assisted the City in pre-audit matters and in drafting the City’s financial statements and advised the City on a 
number of issues. There were no unresolved differences impacting our opinions on the City’s financial statements 
as a result of these discussions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

Other Audit Findings or Issues  

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, 
with management each year prior to retention as the City’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the 
normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Budgetary Comparison 
Information, Pension Plan Information, and Post-employment Benefit Plan Information, which are required 
supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of 
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the RSI.  

We were engaged to report on Nonmajor Governmental Combining Statements, Non Major Enterprise Funds 
Combining Schedules, and Internal Service Funds Combining Schedules, which accompany the financial statements 
but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and 
evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method 
of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to 
our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying 
accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.  

Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for the information and use of City Council and management of the City and is 
not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 

Sincerely, 
 

 
Arledge & Associates, P.C. 



City of Bartlesville
Adjusting Journal Entries not Posted [Passed]
Communications Letter Attachment
6/30/2018

Debit
(Credit)

Entry 
Number Account Description

Current 
Assets

Non-
current 
Assets

Deferred 
Outflow

Current 
Liabilities

Non-
current 

Liabilities
Deferred 
Inflow Equity Revenue Expenses Explanation

(1) Expense BTA -               -            -            -              -          -          -              -                282,298      
Accounts payable -               -            -            (282,298)     -          -          -              -                -              Unrecorded accounts payable

(2) AR BTA 605,990       -            -            -              -          -          -              -                -              Unbilled Utility AR
   Net Assets -               -            -            -              -          -          (564,964)     -                -              
   Revenue -               -            -            -              -          -          -              (41,026)         -              

(3) Net Assets Gov't activies -               -            -            -              -          -          255,100      -                -              Health care reserves
   Reserves -               -            -            (232,141)     -          -          -              -                -              
   Expense -               -            -            -              -          -          -              -                (22,959)       

605,990       -            -            (514,439)     -          -          (309,864)     (41,026)         259,339      

Schedule 1



ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS 

 

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Agenda Item 8.



 

 1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE,  
OKLAHOMA 

 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS 
 

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED  
JUNE 30, 2018



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 3

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
                Page  
Independent Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements…………………………………… 5-6 

 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis ……………………………………………………….. 7-20 
 
The Basic Financial Statements: 

Government-Wide Financial Statements: 
Statement of Net Position ………………………………………………………………… 22 
Statement of Activities …………………………………………………………………… 23 
 

Governmental Funds Financial Statements:  
Balance Sheet …………………………………………………………………………… 25 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances…………………… 26 
Reconciliation of Governmental Fund and Government-Wide Financial Statements…… 27-28 

 
Proprietary Funds Financial Statements: 

Statement of Net Position…………………………………………………………………… 30 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position………………………… 31 
Statement of Cash Flows………………………………………………………………… 32-33 

 
Fiduciary Funds Financial Statements: 

Statement of Net Position…………………………………………………………………… 34 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position………………………… 35 

 
Footnotes to the Basic Financial Statements ……………………………………………… 36-93 

 
Required Supplementary Information: 

Budgetary Comparison Information (Budgetary Basis): 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule – General Fund…………………………………………… 95 
Footnotes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules……………..………………………………… 96 
 

Pension Plan Information 
Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability – Fire Pension……………………  97 
Schedule of City Contributions – Fire Pension…………………………………………………  97 
Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability – Police Pension………………… 98 
Schedule of City Contributions – Police Pension ……………………………………………… 98 
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios - OkMRF…………………  99 
Schedule of Employer Contributions - OkMRF……………………………………………… 100 

 
Post-employment Benefit Plan Information 

OPEB Schedule of Funding Progress…………………………………………………………    101 
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios –  
 OkMRF Retiree Medical Plan……………………………………………………………… 102 
Schedule of Employer Contributions - OkMRF Retiree Medical Plan ……………………… 103 



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 4

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued) 
  
                Page 
Other Supplementary Information: 

Nonmajor Governmental Combining Statements 
Combining Balance Sheet – Nonmajor Governmental Funds…………………………… 105-109 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance……… 110-114 

 
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds Combining Statements 

Combining Statements of Net Position………………………………………………………… 115 
Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position………………… 116 
Combining Statement of Cash Flow…………………………………………………………… 117 

 
Internal Service Funds Combining Statements 

Combining Statements of Net Position………………………………………………………… 118 
Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position………………… 119 
Combining Statement of Cash Flow…………………………………………………………… 120 
 
 

Internal Control and Compliance Information: 
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 
Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards……………………………………………………………………… 123-124 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 
 

 

309 N. Bryant Ave. • Edmond, OK 73034 • 405.348.0615 • Fax 405.348.0931 • www.jmacpas.com 
Member of AICPA and OSCPA 

 

 
 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

 

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma 

 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma (the “City”), as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial 
statements of the Community Center Trust Authority, Bartlesville Development Authority, and the Bartlesville 
Redevelopment Trust Authority, which represents 56 percent, 63 percent, and 17 percent, respectively, of the assets, net 
position, and revenues of the business-type activities.  Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose 
reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for the 
Community Center Trust Authority, Bartlesville Development Authority, and the Bartlesville Redevelopment Trust 
Authority are based solely on the reports of the other auditors.   

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

 

5



 

 
 

Opinions 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors’, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of June 30, 2018, and the 
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  

Change in Accounting Principle 

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2018 the City adopted new accounting guidance, GASB 
Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions. Our opinion 
is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information  

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and 
analysis, budgetary comparison information, pension exhibits, and other post-employment benefits funding schedules, 
as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although 
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted 
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance. 

Other Information  

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were 
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.  

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 22, 2019 on our 
consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.   

 

August 22, 2019 

6



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 8

The management of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma (the “City”), is pleased to present its perspective 
of the City’s financial performance as a whole for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.  The intent of this 
discussion and analysis is to summarize for the reader the financial information more fully contained in 
the attached financial statements and notes and to explain the major points in the financial statements, 
both positive and negative. Comparisons with prior fiscal years are provided as needed. Please read it in 
conjunction with the City’s financial statements, which follow this section. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

 For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the City’s total net position increased by $3.2 million or 
1.7% from the prior year. 

 During the year, the City’s expenses for governmental activities were $28.2 million and were 
funded by program revenues of $6.4 million and further funded with taxes and other general 
revenues that totaled $26.4 million. 

 In the City’s business-type activities, such as utilities, program expenses exceed program 
revenues by $4.2 million. 

 Taxes increased by $825,775 or 3.3% over the prior fiscal year. 
 At June 30, 2018, the General Fund reported an unassigned fund balance of $3,682,233, which is 

a increase of 28% from the prior year unassigned fund balance. The majority of this is related to 
the net effect of a decreased commitment for the next fiscal year’s budget of about $809,761. 

 For budgetary reporting purposes, the General Fund reported revenues under estimates of 
$136,027 or 0.6%, while expenditures were under the final appropriations by $1,194,247 or 5.3%. 
 Noteworthy changes to the City’s capital assets included: 

 Completed over $2.2 million in Street replacement. 
 Completed the rehabilitation at the Airport costing over $511 thousand. 
 Completed over $2.8 million in Park projects. 

 The City has retained its AA- bond rating making it one of the highest in the State of 
Oklahoma for public entities. 
 The City added an additional $729 thousand dollars to its stabilization reserve fund, bringing 
the total to $5.99 million or 17.25 % of budgeted expenditures. 

 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The financial statements presented herein include all of the activities of the City and its component units.  
Included in this report are government-wide statements for each of two categories of activities – 
governmental and business-type. The government-wide financial statements present the complete 
financial picture of the City from the economic resources measurement focus using the accrual basis of 
accounting.  They present governmental activities and business-type activities separately and combined.  
These statements include all assets of the City (including infrastructure capital assets) as well as all 
liabilities (including all long-term debt), as well as deferred outflows and deferred inflows. 
 



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 9

About the City 
 
The  City of Bartlesville  is  an  incorporated  municipality with a  population of  approximately  36,258 
located in northeast Oklahoma. The City is a home rule charter form of government and operates under a 
charter that provides for three branches of government: 
 

 Legislative – the City Council is a five-member governing body elected by the citizens.  The City 
Council elects the Mayor from its members. 

 Executive – the City Manager is the Chief Executive Officer and is appointed by the City Council 
 Judicial – the Municipal Judge is a practicing attorney appointed by the City Council 

 
The City provides typical municipal services such as public safety, health and welfare, street and alley 
maintenance, parks and recreation, and certain utility services including water, wastewater, and sanitation.  
 
The City’s Financial Reporting Entity 
 
This annual report includes all activities for which the City of Bartlesville City Council is fiscally 
responsible. These activities, defined as the City’s financial reporting entity, are operated within separate 
legal entities that make up the primary government. 
 
The City’s financial reporting entity includes the primary government (City of Bartlesville) and the 
blended component units as follows. 
 

 The City of Bartlesville – that operates the public safety, health and welfare, streets and 
highways, parks and recreation, and administrative activities  

 
 The Bartlesville Municipal Authority – finances projects and development for the City’s water 

and wastewater utilities 
 

 The Bartlesville Community Center Trust Authority – develops, finances, and operates the 
Community Center for cultural and recreational activities for the citizens of Bartlesville 

 
 The Bartlesville Library Trust Authority – encourages, finances, and promotes the public 

library 
 

 The Bartlesville History Museum Trust Authority – establishes, improves, maintains, 
administers, and operates facilities for use as a history museum 

 
 The Adult Center Trust Authority – Encourages, finances, and promotes cultural and 

recreational activities for the older citizens of Bartlesville 
 

 The Bartlesville Redevelopment Trust Authority – Develops, redevelops, restores, and 
beautifies a certain portion of central Bartlesville, OK jurisdictional boundaries 
 

 The Bartlesville Development Authority (BDA) – Finances certain facilities for the purpose of 
promoting economic development in the City of Bartlesville and surrounding areas 

 
 The Bartlesville Education Authority (BEA) – Finances certain facilities for the purpose of 

improving educational buildings in the City of Bartlesville and surrounding areas 



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 10

Using This Annual Report 
 
This annual report is presented in a format that substantially meets the presentation requirements of the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles.  The presentation includes financial statements that communicate the City’s financial condition 
and changes therein at two distinct levels: 
 

 The City as a Whole (a government-wide presentation) 
 The City’s Funds (a presentation of the City’s major and aggregate nonmajor funds) 

 
The City’s various government-wide and fund financial statements are presented throughout this annual 
report and are accompanied by: 
 

 Management’s Discussion and Analysis – that provides useful analysis that facilitates a better 
understanding of the City’s financial condition and changes therein 

 Footnotes - that elaborate on the City’s accounting principles used in the preparation of the 
financial statements and further explain financial statement elements 

 Supplemental  – that provide additional information about specified elements of the financial 
statements, such as budgetary comparison information 

 
 
Reporting the City as a Whole 
 
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 
 
One of the most frequently asked questions about the City’s finances is, “Has the City’s overall financial 
condition improved, declined or remained steady over the past year?”  The Statement of Net Position and 
the Statement of Activities report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way 
that helps answer this question.  These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis 
of accounting, along with all deferred outflows and deferred inflows.  All of the current year’s revenues 
and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 
 
These two government-wide statements report the City’s net position and changes in them from the prior 
year.  You can think of the City’s net position – the difference between assets and deferred outflows of 
resources, and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources – as one way to measure the City’s financial 
condition, or position.  Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net position are one indicator of 
whether its financial health is improving, deteriorating, or remaining steady.  However, you must consider 
other non-financial factors, such as changes in the City’s tax base, the condition of the City’s roads, and 
the quality of services to assess the overall health and performance of the City. 
 
As mentioned above, in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City 
into two kinds of activities: 
 
 Governmental activities -- Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including the police, fire, 

general administration, streets, and parks.  Sales taxes, franchise fees, fines, and state and federal grants 
finance most of these activities. 

 
 Business-type activities -- The City charges a fee to customers to help cover all or most of the cost of 

certain services it provides.  The City’s water, wastewater, sanitation and community center activities 
are reported here. 



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 11

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds 
 
Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds – not the City 
as a whole.  Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants.  However, 
management establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or 
to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants and other money. 
 
Governmental funds –  Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus 
on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for 
spending.  These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, 
which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash.  The 
governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City’s general government 
operations and the basic service it provides.  Governmental fund information helps determine whether 
there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s 
programs.  The differences of results in the Governmental Fund financial statements to those in the 
Government-Wide financial statements are explained in a reconciliation following each Governmental 
Fund financial statement. 
 
Proprietary funds – When the City charges customers for the services it provides – whether to outside 
customers or to other units of the City – these services are generally reported in proprietary funds.  
Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net 
Position, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position and Statement of Cash 
Flows.  In fact, the City’s enterprise funds are essentially the same as the business-type activities we 
report in the government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as 
cash flows. 
 
 
A FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE 
 
Net Position 
 
Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.  In the case of 
the primary government, assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by 
approximately $192.4 million at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 12

TABLE 1

NET POSITION (In Thousands)

% Inc. % Inc. % Inc.

(Dec.) (Dec.) (Dec.)

** ** **

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Current assets 50,022$       37,925$        32% 10,567$     11,297$     -6% 60,589$     49,222$     23%

Capital assets, net 90,786         88,284          3% 165,959     172,341     -4% 256,745     260,625     -1%

Other noncurrent assets -               -                -    2,578         2,701         -5% 2,578         2,701         -5%

     Total assets 140,808       126,209        12% 179,104     186,339     -4% 319,912     312,548     2%

Deferred outflows of resources 5,655           5,199            9% 630            949            -34% 6,285         6,148         2%

Current liabilities 4,931           5,034            -2% 6,671         7,095         -6% 11,602       12,129       -4%

Noncurrent liabilities 43,158         37,080          16% 76,745       78,309       -2% 119,903     115,389     4%

     Total liabilities 48,089         42,114          14% 83,416       85,404       -2% 131,505     127,518     3%

Deferred inflows of resources 1,833           1,000            83% 418            266            57% 2,251         1,266         78%

Net position

   Net investment in

    capital assets 67,051         71,769          -7% 88,693       93,893       -6% 155,744     165,662     -6%

   Restricted 37,321         25,184          48% 1,771         3,118         -43% 39,092       28,302       38%

   Unrestricted (deficit) (7,831)          (8,659)           10% 5,436         4,607         18% (2,395)       (4,052)       41%

     Total net position 96,541$       88,294$        9% 95,900$     101,618$   -6% 192,441$   189,912$   1%

Total

Governmental

Activities Activities

Business-Type

 
** - The prior year has not been restated to reflect the effect of the implementation of GASB 75 in fiscal 
year 2018 related to other post-employment benefits (OPEB) liabilities and related deferrals. 
 
The largest portion of the City’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, 
machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding.  For 
2018, this investment in capital assets, net of related debt, amounted to $155.7 million.  The City uses 
these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future 
spending.  Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be 
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital 
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 
 
A major portion of the City’s net position, $39.1 million, also represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used.  The remaining balance of unrestricted net position is 
available to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 
 
The increase in current assets in governmental-type activities of approximately $12.1 million or 32% is 
due primarily to issuance of G.O. Bonds at the end of the fiscal year.  
 
The increase in deferred outflow of resources and the change in deferred inflow of resources for both the 
governmental and business-type activities is due to changes in the pension plans including contributions 
by the City and participants and asset valuations. 
 
Changes in Net Position 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2018, net position of the primary government changed as follows:  



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 13

 
 

% Inc. % Inc. % Inc.

(Dec.) (Dec.) (Dec.)

** ** **

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Revenues

Charges for service 4,225$            3,833$      10% 21,500$    20,721$   4% 25,725$   24,554$   5%

Operating grants and contributions 2,040              2,167        -6% 97             182          -47% 2,137       2,349       -9%

Capital grants and contributions 162                 592           -73% 59             285          -79% 221          877          -75%

Taxes 25,939            25,113      3% -            -           -       25,939     25,113     3%

Intergovernmental revenue 326                 337           -3% -            -           -       326          337          -3%

Investment income 535                 323           66% 353           467          -24% 888          790          12%

Gain on sales of assets 6                     -            100% (55)            -           100% (49)           -           100%

Miscellaneous 1,337              639           109% 696           626          11% 2,033       1,265       61%

     Total revenues 34,570            33,004      5% 22,650      22,281     2% 57,220     55,285     4%

Expenses

General government 7,394              6,910        7% -            -           -       7,394       6,910       7%

Public safety 13,571            13,497      1% -            -           -       13,571     13,497     1%

Culture, parks and recreation 3,159              3,736        -15% -            -           -       3,159       3,736       -15%

Public works 3,803              3,864        -2% -            -           -       3,803       3,864       -2%

Interest on long-term debt 289                 315           -8% -            -           -       289          315          -8%

Water -                 -            -       8,089        7,920       2% 8,089       7,920       2%

Wastewater -                 -            -       4,398        4,633       -5% 4,398       4,633       -5%

Sanitation -                 -            -       2,995        3,079       -3% 2,995       3,079       -3%

Community Center -                 -            -       1,671        1,594       5% 1,671       1,594       5%

Other Business-Type Activities -                 -            -       8,627        7,646       13% 8,627       7,646       13%

     Total expenses 28,216            28,322      0% 25,780      24,872     4% 53,996     53,194     2%

     Excess (deficiency) before

       transfers 6,354              4,682        36% (3,130)       (2,591)      -21% 3,224       2,091       54%

Transfers 2,314              (565)          510% (2,314)       565          -510% -           -           -       

Change in net position 8,668              4,117        111% (5,444)       (2,026)      -169% 3,224       2,091       54%

Beginning net position 87,873            84,177      4% 101,344    103,644   -2% 189,217   187,821   1%

Ending net position 96,541$          88,294$    9% 95,900$    101,618$ -6% 192,441$ 189,912$ 1%

TABLE 2
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (In Thousands)

Total

Governmental

Activities

Business-Type

Activities

 
 
** - The prior year has not been restated to reflect the effect of the implementation of GASB 75 in fiscal 
year 2018 related to other post-employment benefits (OPEB) liabilities and related deferrals. 
 
 
Explanations for changes in excess of 20% and $100,000 are as follows: 
 
Governmental Activities: 
 
Capital grants and contributions decreased approximately $430,000 or 72% due primary due to the 
difference in the amount FAA Grant proceeds received versus the prior year. 
 
Investment income increased $212,000 or 65% due to a increases on the rate of return on investments. 
 
Miscellanies income increased by $ 698,000 or 109% and was due to some one time reimbursements of 
expenses from a prior year.   
 



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 14

Transfers for operating expenses from the Business Type to Governmental Type are generally more than 
offset with capital assets transfers back to Business Type, FY 2018 had a reduction of capital asset 
transfers moving from Government Type to Business Type.  
 
Business-Type Activities: 
 
Capital grants decreased approximately $225,000 due to fewer capital grants in fiscal year 2018 for the 
Bartlesville Development Authority ($175,000 less) and the Bartlesville Community Center Trust 
Authority ($50,000 less). 
 
Investment income decreased approximately $114,000 or 24% this was mainly attributed to The 
Community Center Trust Authorities Investments not performing as well as then the prior year. 
 
 
Governmental Activities 
 
To aid in the understanding of the Statement of Activities some additional explanation is given.  Of 
particular interest is the format that is significantly different than a typical Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balance.  You will notice that expenses are listed in the first column with 
revenues from that particular program reported to the right.  The result is a Net (Expense)/Revenue.  The 
reason for this kind of format is to highlight the relative financial burden of each of the functions on the 
City’s taxpayers.  It also identifies how much each function draws from the general revenues or, if it is 
self-financing, through fees and grants or contributions.  All other governmental revenues are reported as 
general.  It is important to note all taxes are classified as general revenue even if restricted for a specific 
purpose. 

Net Revenue (Expense) of Governmental Activities
(In Thousands)

% Inc. % Inc.
(Dec.) (Dec.)

** **
2018 2017 2018 2017

General government 7,393$       6,910$     7% ($6,853) ($6,135) -12%
Public safety 13,572       13,497     1% (11,362)  (11,419)     0%
Culture, parks and recreation 3,159         3,736       -15% (3,015)    (3,468)       13%
Public works 3,803         3,864       -2% (271)       (393)          31%
Interest on long-term debt 289            315          -8% (289)       (315)          8%
   Total 28,216       28,322$   0% ($21,790) ($21,730) 0%

TABLE 3

Total Expense
of Services

Net Revenue
(Expense)
of Services

 
 
** - The prior year has not been restated to reflect the effect of the implementation of GASB 75 in fiscal 
year 2018 related to other post-employment benefits (OPEB) liabilities and related deferrals. 
 
Explanations for significant changes are listed above under Table 2. 
 
Several revenue sources fund the City of Bartlesville’s governmental activities with sales tax being the 
largest. The City levies a three and four-tenths-cent ($.034) sales tax on taxable sales within the City.  The 
Sales Tax is allocated among three funds:  The General Fund, the Economic Development Fund, and the Sales 



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 15

Tax Capital Improvement Fund.  Two and sixty-five hundredths cents ($.0265) of the tax collected is 
deposited in the General Fund, twenty-five hundredths cent ($.0025) is deposited in the Economic 
Development Fund, and five-tenths cent ($.005) is deposited in the Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund.  
Sales taxes collected by the State in June and July (which represent sales for May and June) and received by 
the City in July and August have been accrued and are included under the caption “Due from other 
governments”. Sales tax revenue reported in the Government-wide Financial Statements totaled 
$18,343,576, which represented a 1.3% increase over prior year receipts. 
 
Public Safety is one of the most important yet costly governmental expense activities in the City. 
Combined, the Police and Fire departments accounted for 48.1% of net governmental expenses. The Fire 
department consists of 70 full-time employees, including one administrative assistant. The Police 
department consists of 68 full time employees with 61 being sworn enforcement personnel and 7 being 
civilian personnel. 
 
The City has many other operating departments involved in governmental type activities including street, 
park, building maintenance, library, museum, technical services, cemetery, legal, swimming pools, 
stadium, airport, economic development, and community development, which provide services to the 
public. The city council, administration, accounting and finance, and general services departments 
provide services both internally and externally and are categorized as general governmental functions. 
 
Business-Type Activities 
 
Overall, the business-type activities saw a decrease of $5,723,000 in net position.  
 
 

% Inc. % Inc.
Dec. Dec.

** **
2018 2017 2018 2017

Water 8,089$   7,920$   2% 1,434$  1,176$   22%
Wastewater 4,398     4,633     -5% 32         (736)      104%
Sanitation 2,995     3,079     -3% 1,474    1,405     5%
Community center 1,671     1,594     5% (984)      (759)      -30%
Other business-type activities 8,627     7,646     13% (6,080)   (4,769)   -27%

     Total 25,780$ 24,872$ 4% (4,124)$ (3,683)$ -12%

of Services

Net Revenue
(Expense)

of Services

TABLE 4
Net Revenue (Expense) of Business-Type Activities

(In Thousands)

Total Expense

 
 
** - The prior year has not been restated to reflect the effect of the implementation of GASB 75 in fiscal 
year 2018 related to other post-employment benefits (OPEB) liabilities and related deferrals. 
 
The City’s business-type activities include utility services for water, wastewater, sanitation and the 
operation of the community center.   
 



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 16

Total assets from governmental activities are approximately $140.8 million, which represents an increase 
of $14.6 million from the prior fiscal year. This increase can mainly be attributed to the issuance of new 
G.O. Bond debt and the conservative financial policies implemented by the City Council and City Staff. 
The most significant financial policies are the City’s Stabilization Reserve Fund and Capital Reserve 
Fund policies which were adopted by ordinance. These policies institutionalize incremental, annual 
savings and resulted in an additional $729,000 being set aside in a formal stabilization reserve fund and 
$5.0 million being set aside in a formal capital reserve fund. These policies provide for stability and 
planned capital replacement even during difficult economic times. 
 
The City’s method for investing surplus funds changed significantly in 2009. In an effort to increase 
efficiency, internal controls, and transparency, the Council and City Staff selected Arvest Asset 
Management to actively manage the City’s investments. The Administrative Director/CFO was appointed 
to fulfill the job of Treasurer in addition to existing duties. This arrangement allows for greater security, 
since all of the funds are invested and monitored by a third party who is contracted by the Council. It also 
allows for greater efficiency, since the investing functions can now be integrated with existing finance 
processes. This has created a more seamless recording of investing activity and a more reliable 
reconciliation to the general ledger. This process continues today. 
 
The City continues in its efforts to further reduce expenditures through more efficient procurement and 
use of goods and services along with improvements in energy efficiency. Money-saving programs and 
approaches to service delivery are constantly sought. This entails regular reevaluation and in many cases 
rebidding of our service contracts. Available grants are continually sought and applied for to reduce local 
expenses.  
 
The City has continued its concerted effort to improve work place safety so that workers’ compensation 
costs are reduced. This includes continued in-house safety training and monitoring trends in injuries to 
better focus training on important issues. The City is “own risk” or self-insured for workers’ 
compensation. Despite the City’s best efforts, workers’ compensation expense continues to escalate due 
to increasing medical and settlement costs. To help offset these increases, the City began levying 
workers’ compensation court judgments on property tax. While this step has lessened workers’ 
compensation’s impact on the City’s general revenues, it does create a slight increase in the property tax 
levy. It is the City’s hope that the workers’ compensation reform that recently emerged from the State 
Legislature will help to control these costs long-term. 
 
In recent years, the City also elected to return to an “own risk” or self-funded plan for employee health 
insurance, but this program differs from the Workers’ Compensation program in that the City obtains 
reinsurance to cover the largest claims. This self-insured plan, like most insurance plans, has had its ups 
and downs, but recently the performance of the plan has stabilized and is allowing the City to set aside 
additional funds for future catastrophic illnesses and to provide for greater rate stability for employees. 
 
 
A FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS 
 
Information on the City’s major funds starts on page 39. The governmental funds utilize the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. All governmental funds combined received total revenues of $34.70 million 
for the year and $34.76 million in expenditures resulting in a deficiency in revenues over expenditures of 
($55 thousand). The City’s governmental funds also had other financing sources and uses (mainly 
transfers and debt proceeds) that netted to create other financing sources of $12.8 million. When 
combined with the deficiency mentioned above, the City’s governmental funds’ fund balances in total 
finished the year up approximately $12.8 million, more than where they started.  



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 17

 
The individual net change in fund balances for the year was only significant in the Debt Service Fund CIP 
– Wastewater Regulatory Fund, Capital Reserve Fund, 2014B G.O. Bond Fund and the 2017 G.O. Bond 
Fund 2018A G.O. Bond Fund. The Debt Service Fund received approximately $4.3 million in revenue 
and paid $3.4 million for debt service payments in a increased fund balance of $0.9 million. The CIP – 
Wastewater Regulatory Fund received dedicated utility revenues that were accumulated to pay for 
regulatory required wastewater projects. It received approximately $173,000 in revenues and paid 
approximately $1.3 million for projects. This resulted in a decrease of $1.1 million.  In FY17, the City 
began using the Capital Reserve Fund for business-type and governmental-type projects and is phasing 
out the use of the CIP-Wastewater Regulatory Fund. The Capital Reserve Fund is a capital improvement 
fund used to accumulate amounts from the General, Water, Wastewater, and Sanitation Funds that will be 
used to finance these funds’ long-term capital plans. This fund accumulated $4.2 million in revenue and 
transfers while spending $1.2 million which resulted in an increased fund balance of $3.0 million. The 
2014B G.O. Bond Fund spent $.8 million of prior year bond proceeds, which explains the decrease in 
fund balance of the same amount.   The 2017 G.O. Bond Fund spent $.8 million of prior year bond 
proceeds, which explains the decrease in fund balance of the same amount.  The 2018A G.O. Bond Fund 
received $9.7 million in bond proceeds, with $0.1 million in professional services expense therefore the 
increase in fund balance by $9.6 million.   
 
 
The general fund reflects an increase in fund balance of $737,455 which brings it up to $10.3 million. 
While no standard is established for the desired level of fund balance that should be carried, it is desirable 
to have at least two months of average expenditures so that fluctuations in revenue and expenditures can 
be absorbed without major disruptions to the normal operations. With careful monitoring of revenue and 
expenditures combined with conservative budgeting, the City management believes the fund balance is 
adequate to allow the City to meets its obligations and reflects a good financial condition of the City as a 
whole. 
 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
The City’s budget is prepared in accordance with Oklahoma Law and is based on anticipated cash 
receipts, disbursements, and encumbrances. The most significant budgeted fund is the General Fund. An 
annual appropriation budget is required for all funds of the City except agency funds. The City Council is 
provided with a detailed line-item budget for all departments; however the City’s budget is adopted with 
the legal level of control set at the department level. This means that a department’s budget may exceed 
its annual appropriations for a single line item but may not exceed its appropriations in total. Normally, 
several meetings are devoted to discussion and explanation of the proposed budget by staff. When the 
City Council is satisfied with the final form of the budget, it is adopted and the powers of the Council and 
City Manager are defined as follows.  
 
The City Manager may transfer appropriations from one department within a fund after the budget is 
adopted by the City Council. The Council must approve any budget amendments that would alter the total 
budget by fund or would make any interfund transfers of money. The Finance Director closely monitors 
the budget throughout the year and works with department directors to resolve budget issues that may 
arise over the course of the year. He also provides the City Manager and City Council with a summary 
report on the revenue, expenditures, and changes in fund balances as compared to the budget after the 
close of each monthly accounting cycle. Department directors have access to view their budgets online at 
any time. 
 



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 18

For the general fund, budget basis revenue was down by $136,027 over the budget estimates of 
$22,202,335. The City continues the conservative practice of estimating revenues based on long term 
trends adjusted for known factors. Expenditures are estimated using the most detailed data available. 
Salary and related expenses are calculated to the dollar based on the current staffing. Expenditures for 
2018 were $1,290,984 below the final budget of $23,493,319. These savings were achieved through 
spending restraints and careful monitoring of budget results. 
 
 
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital Assets 
 
At the end of June 30, 2018, the City had $256.7 million invested in capital assets, net of depreciation, 
including police and fire equipment, buildings, park facilities, streets, and water lines and sewer lines.  
(See Table 5).  This represents a net decrease of approximately $3.9 million over last year. 
 

Capital Assets

(In Thousands)

(Net of accumulated depreciation)

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Land 3,354$             3,354$       7,252$             7,512$       10,606$         10,866$         

Works of art -                  -             46                    46              46                  46                  

Buildings 4,092               4,590         97,748             101,658     101,840         106,248         

Infrastructure 63,091             60,668       33,783             35,768       96,874           96,436           

Machinery, furniture and equipment 4,064               3,206         2,847               3,129         6,911             6,335             

Construction in progress 16,184             16,466       24,283             24,228       40,467           40,694           

     Totals 90,785$           88,284$     165,959$         172,341$   256,744$       260,625$       

TABLE 5

 
 

Perhaps the City’s most important long-term capital needs revolve around a long-term sustainable water 
supply and an expansion of our wastewater treatment capacity. The construction of the Ted Lockin 
potable water treatment plant was completed in September of 2006, and the City is continuing to make 
progress on the issue of long-term water supply. However, the City’s water needs now largely lie in the 
hands of the United States Congress where discounted pricing for water rights on Copan Lake must be 
approved.  The City is also examining possibilities for indirect wastewater reuse that will allow the City 
to utilize effluent from the wastewater plant as a supplementary water supply. 
 
In addition to the need for long-term water supply, the City is also currently undertaking the early stages 
of planning for its long-term wastewater needs with the completion of several studies, collection system 
improvements, treatment process evaluations, and the purchase of land as a possible future site for a 
wastewater treatment plant. It is anticipated that the City will need to construct this new wastewater 
treatment plant or renovate the existing plant in the near future. To fund these future improvements, the 
City implemented a dedicated utility fee in FY 2009 which has been incrementally increased over the 
years to pay for engineering, design, land acquisition, and eventually the debt service for this project. 
 
Funds provided by the capital improvement sales tax are providing a large portion of the City’s general 
capital needs including some street, drainage, park, and facilities improvements as well as equipment and 
vehicle replacements. In 2013, the citizens approved an extension of the capital improvements sales tax 



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 19

for an additional seven years beginning July 1, 2014. In addition to more “traditional” City projects, this 
extension added needed improvements to the City’s world class Community Center that is now 30 years 
old. 
 
With regard to infrastructure, the engineering department maintains a list of street, drainage, and park 
improvements awaiting construction. These are funded on a priority basis as funds become available from 
the sales tax reserved for capital improvements. As part of the annual budget process, City Staff 
prioritizes these projects and makes recommendations to the City Council. The projects that can be 
provided for from the capital improvement fund are included in the budget while the balance of projects 
are kept on the list waiting funding at a later date. Priorities sometimes change if external funding, such as 
grants or donations, becomes available for specific purposes. 
 
Water and sewer projects are most often funded with loans through the Oklahoma Water Resources 
Board’s Drinking Water State Revolving Fund or the Clean Water State Revolving Fund. These are 
revenue notes payable over terms up to 30 years with very favorable interest rates. Water and/or sewer 
revenues are pledged to the repayment of principal and interest. This process allows the City’s utility rates 
to be set at a level that covers the full cost of their operations and preserves general revenues for functions 
that do not have a dedicated source of funding. 
 
See Note 4 to the financial statements for more detail information on the City’s capital assets and changes 
therein. 
 
 
Long-Term Debt 
 
As of June 30, 2018 the City of Bartlesville had approximately $102,021,000, in outstanding debt. Table 
6 summarizes the outstanding debt. This increase of approximately $5,766,000 over last year is due 
primarily to the net effect of issuance of $10.25 million in G.O. Bonds and normal debt service payments.  
The City’s changes in long-term debt by type of debt are as follows:  
 

                                TABLE 6

Long-Term Debt

(In Thousands)

Total

Governmental Business-Type Percentage

Activities Activities Total Change

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2017-2018

General obligation bonds 23,735$           16,515$           -$              -$                23,735$          16,515$        43.7%

Notes payable -                  -                  76,753          77,789            76,753            77,789          -1.3%

Workers' compensation claims liability 525                  979                  -                -                  525                 979               -46.4%

Accrued compensated absenses 842                  808                  166               164                 1,008              972               3.7%

     Totals 25,102$           18,302$           76,919$        77,953$          102,021$        96,255$        6.0%

 
 
All of the City’s General Obligation Bonds are composed of bonds with maturities of ten years or less, 
although the city may legally issue debt with maturities as long as 25 years. All general obligation bonds 
must be approved by a vote of the qualified electors of the City. Most of the other notes are Oklahoma 
Water Resources Board (OWRB) revenue notes for improvements to the City’s water and sewer system, 
permanent notes used to replace the OWRB notes, or obligations of the City’s authorities which are 
secured solely by the lease revenues of the facilities associated with the debt. All of these notes carry 



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 20

favorable interest rates and/or administrative fees due to State subsidization (in the case of OWRB 
financing) or due to rates negotiated at or near inflation (in the case of the private placement note).  
 
See Note 5 to the financial statements for more detail information on the City’s long-term debt and 
changes therein. 
 
The Economic Outlook 
 
The City of Bartlesville maintains a healthy financial condition by actively managing its expenditures. 
The City maintains a flexible management style by exercising constraint on filling vacancies in the 
workforce, continually stressing the performance of key revenue sources, enforcing budgetary control on 
departments, and encouraging the city council to address revenue shortfalls and adjust rates for services 
when justified. The City has a quality accounting and budgetary control program and conservative 
financial management policies. We believe that we are well positioned to meet the challenges of the near 
future, and we feel that our oversight and attention to financial condition are of even more importance in 
the current economic climate. The employees, management, and Council of the City of Bartlesville are 
committed to providing excellent service to its citizens. The financial management team is further 
committed to providing full disclosure of the financial position of the City. 

 
Contacting the City’s Financial Management 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with a general 
overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the tax and service revenues it 
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the 
current CFO/City Clerk, Mike Bailey at the City of Bartlesville, 401 S. Johnstone Ave, Bartlesville, OK 
74003, by phone at (918) 338-4212 or by email at jsmuninger@cityofbartlesville.org. 

  



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 21

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – GOVERNMENT-WIDE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 22

Statement of Net Position– June 30, 2018 
 

Governmental 
Activities

Business-type 
Activities Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 109,150$            2,768,934$         2,878,084$         
Investments 44,121,105         5,895,785           50,016,890         
Interest receivable 99,348               -                        99,348               
Restricted cash and cash equivalents, current 59,291               1,389,452           1,448,743           
Accounts receivable, net of allowance 1,135,349           2,214,568           3,349,917           
Internal balances 1,007,317           (1,007,317)          -                        
Due from other governmental agencies 3,348,753           -                        3,348,753           
Inventories 56,477               458,118             514,595             
Prepaid expenses 85,816               54,264               140,080             
Incentive loans receivable, current -                        183,468 183,468             
Restricted cash and cash equivalents, noncurrent -                        204,658             204,658             
Mortgage and security agreement -                        526,901             526,901             
Incentive loans receivable, noncurrent -                        346,453 346,453             
Other assets -                        110,045 110,045             
Capital Assets:

Land and construction in progress 19,538,399         31,581,245         51,119,644         
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 71,247,246         134,377,540       205,624,786       

Total Assets 140,808,251       179,104,114       319,912,365       

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 5,626,876           615,208             6,242,084           
Deferred amounts related to OPEB 27,958               15,163               43,121               

Total deferred outflow of resources 5,654,834           630,371             6,285,205           

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,126,751           543,989             1,670,740$         
Accrued interest payable -                        699,451             699,451             
Due to depositors -                        1,243,819           1,243,819           
Restricted cash reserves -                        225,630             225,630             
Advanced revenues 85,547               170,261             255,808             
Long-term liabilities

Due within one year:
   Compensated absences 84,160               16,398               100,558             
   Bonds, capital leases and contracts 3,425,000           3,448,399           6,873,399           
   Incentives payable -                        323,844             323,844             
   Claims payable 209,934             -                        209,934             
Due in more than one year:
   Compensated absences 757,444             150,091             907,535             
   Bonds, capital leases and contracts 20,310,000         73,304,244         93,614,244         
   Incentives payable -                        63,914               63,914               
   Claims payable 314,902             -                        314,902             

Net OPEB liability 3,731                 2,023                 5,754                 
Total OPEB liability 768,096             416,595             1,184,691           
Net pension liability 21,003,609         2,807,698           23,811,307         

Total liabilities 48,089,174         83,416,356         131,505,530       

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 1,802,575           401,559             2,204,134           
Deferred amounts related to OPEB 30,048               16,296               46,344               

Total Deferred inflow of resources 1,832,623           417,855             2,250,478           

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 67,050,645         88,692,828         155,743,473       
Restricted by:

Enabling legislation 19,367,886         -                        19,367,886         
Statutory requirements 16,941,063         -                        16,941,063         
External contracts 1,012,728           1,771,559           2,784,287           

Unrestricted (deficit) (7,831,034)          5,435,887           (2,395,147)          
Total net position 96,541,288$       95,900,274$       192,441,562$     

 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 23

 
 

Statement of Activities –Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

Program Revenue

Functions/Programs Expenses
Charges for 

Services

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions

Capital Grants 
and 

Contributions
Governmental 

Activities
Business-type 

Activities Total
Primary government

Governmental Activities
General Government 7,392,884$        394,098$      134,533$      11,500$          (6,852,753)$    -$                     (6,852,753)$    
Public Safety 13,571,614        745,694       1,463,654    -                   (11,362,266)   -                       (11,362,266)     
Culture and Recreation 3,159,390          37,694         107,153       -                   (3,014,543)     -                       (3,014,543)      
Public Works 3,803,289          3,047,853     334,470       150,000         (270,966)        -                       (270,966)         
Interest on Long-term debt 289,177            -                 -                  -                   (289,177)        -                       (289,177)         

Total governmental activities 28,216,354        4,225,339     2,039,810    161,500         (21,789,705)   -                       (21,789,705)     

Business-Type Activities:
Water 8,089,001          9,522,842     -                  -                   -                   1,433,841         1,433,841       
Wastewater 4,398,050          4,430,330     -                  -                   -                   32,280              32,280            
Sanitation 2,995,460          4,469,674     -                  -                   -                   1,474,214         1,474,214       
Community Center 1,670,558 548,869 78,008 59,482 -                   (984,199)           (984,199)         
Other Business-Type Activities 8,627,449          2,528,605     18,583         -                   -                   (6,080,261)        (6,080,261)      

Total business-type activities 25,780,518        21,500,320   96,591         59,482          -                   (4,124,125)        (4,124,125)      

Total primary government 53,996,872$      25,725,659$ 2,136,401$    220,982$        (21,789,705)$  (4,124,125)$       (25,913,830)$   
General revenues:

Taxes:
Sales and use taxes 18,343,576$   -$                     18,343,576$    
TIF tax revenue 1,060,254      -                       1,060,254       
Property taxes 4,075,456      -                       4,075,456       
Franchise taxes and public service taxes 1,392,024      -                       1,392,024       
Other taxes 1,067,904      -                       1,067,904       

Intergovernmental revenue not restricted to specific programs 326,375         -                       326,375          
Unrestricted investment earnings 535,306         353,322            888,628          
Miscellaneous 1,336,755      696,179            2,032,934       

Gain (Loss) on sale of assets 6,113            (54,630)             (48,517)           
Transfers 2,314,067      (2,314,067)        -                    

Total general revenues and transfers 30,457,830    (1,319,196)        29,138,634     
Change in net position 8,668,125      (5,443,321)        3,224,804       

Net position - beginning, restated 87,873,163    101,343,595      189,216,758     
Net position - ending 96,541,288$   95,900,274$      192,441,562$   

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

 
 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 24

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 25

Governmental Funds Balance Sheet - June 30, 2018 
 

City of Bartlesville
Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2018

General Fund Debt Service

Other 
Governmental 

Funds

Total 
Governmental 

Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3,250$               -                         -$                          3,250$               
Investments 6,526,929           3,740,556           33,149,575             43,417,060         
Interest receivable -                        -                         99,349                   99,349               
Receivable from other governments 40,728               10,003                705                        51,436               
Due from other funds 918,501             -                         -                            918,501             
Taxes receivable, net 2,719,965           -                         825,774                  3,545,739           
Other receivables, net of allowance 739,024             -                         136,249                  875,273             
Inventories 56,476               -                         -                            56,476               
Prepaid expenses 85,816               -                         -                            85,816               
Cash - restricted 59,291               -                         -                            59,291               

Total assets 11,149,980$       3,750,559$          34,211,652$           49,112,191$       

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 75,508$             -$                       144,514$                220,022$            
Accrued payroll payable 628,694             -                         35,838                   664,532             
Advanced revenue 85,407               -                         140                        85,547               
Other payables 67,471               -                         168,099                  235,570             

Total liabilities 857,080             -                         348,591                  1,205,671           

Fund balances:
Nonspendable 142,293             -                         -                            142,293             
Restricted -                        3,750,559           33,571,118             37,321,677         
Committed 5,998,580           -                         291,943                  6,290,523           
Assigned 469,794             -                         -                            469,794             
Unassigned 3,682,233           -                         -                            3,682,233           

Total fund balances 10,292,900         3,750,559           33,863,061             47,906,520         
Total liabilities and fund balances 11,149,980$       3,750,559$          34,211,652$           49,112,191$       

 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 26

Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances – Year 
Ended June 30, 2018 
 

General Fund Debt Service

Other 
Governmental 

Funds

 Total 
Governmental 

Funds 
REVENUES

Sales and miscellaneous taxes 15,687,251$   -$                  6,176,507$           21,863,758$    
Property taxes -                    4,075,456       -                          4,075,456        
Intergovernmental 2,267,349       -                    383,438               2,650,787        
Licenses and permits 254,528          -                    -                          254,528          
Charges for services 406,022          -                    3,053,493             3,459,515        
Fees and fines 765,824          -                    -                          765,824          
Investment earnings 171,016          21,883           332,831               525,730          
Miscellaneous 441,244          171,818          444,383               1,057,445        
Contributions and donations -                    -                    51,451                 51,451            

Total revenues 19,993,234     4,269,157       10,442,103           34,704,494      

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 5,656,721       28,011           760,246               6,444,978        
Public safety 12,616,457     -                    1,138,661             13,755,118      
Public works 1,423,173       -                    1,162,385             2,585,558        
Culture and recreation 2,632,254       -                    285,272               2,917,526        

Capital outlay 6,549             -                    5,731,160             5,737,709        
Debt service:

Principal -                    3,030,000       -                          3,030,000        
Interest and other charges -                    289,177          -                          289,177          

Total expenditures 22,335,154     3,347,188       9,077,724             34,760,066      
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures (2,341,920)      921,969          1,364,379             (55,572)           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from long-term debt -                    -                    10,250,000           10,250,000      
Other source -                    -                    1,225                   1,225              
Transfers in 4,685,693       -                    1,755,952             6,441,645        
Transfers out (1,606,318)      -                    (2,197,811)            (3,804,129)       
Total other financing sources and uses 3,079,375       -                    9,809,366             12,888,741      

Net change in fund balances 737,455          921,969          11,173,745           12,833,169      
Fund balances - beginning 9,555,445       2,828,590       22,689,316           35,073,351      
Fund balances - ending 10,292,900$   3,750,559$     33,863,061$         47,906,520$    

 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 27

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds and Government-Wide Financial Statements: 
 

Total fund balance, governmental funds 47,906,520$       

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net 
Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial 
resources and therefore are not reported in this  fund financial 
statement, but are reported in the governmental activities of the 
Statement of Net Position. 90,785,645         

Other long-term assets, deferred outflows and internal service fund 
activity are either not available to pay for current period expenditures 
and are deferred in the funds, or are combined with governmental 
activities at the government-wide financial statements
    Pension related deferred outflows 5,626,876           

 OPEB related deferred outflows 27,958
    Internal service funds 290,136             
    Internal balance related to internal service fund classified as BTA 88,816

Some liabilities and deferred inflows are not due and payable in the 
current period and are not included in the fund financial statement, 
but are included in the governmental activities of the Statement of Net 
Position.
    Bonds payable (23,735,000)        
    Net pension liability (21,003,609)        

 Accrued compensated absences liability (841,604)            
    Net OPEB liability (3,731)                
    Total OPEB liability (768,096)
    Pension related deferred inflows (1,802,575)          

 OPEB related deferred inflows (30,048)

Net Position of Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net 
Position 96,541,288$        

 
 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 28

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds and Government-Wide Financial Statements: 
 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds: 12,833,169$       

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities 
are different because:

Governmental funds report outlays for capital assets as expenditures 
because such outlays use current financial resources.  In contrast,  the 
Statement of Activities reports only a portion of the outlay as expense.  The 
outlay is allocated over the assets' estimated useful lives as depreciation 
expense for the period.
   Capital asset purchases capitalized
   Depreciation expense (4,314,073)          
   Capital assets transferred to business-type activities (323,449)            

In the Statement of Activities, the cost of pension benefits earned net of 
employee contributions is reported as an element of pension expense.  The 
fund financials report pension contributions as expenditures. 548,557             

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, 
but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net 
position.  Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental 
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of 
Net Position:
   Principal payments on long-term debt 3,030,000           
   Proceeds of long-term debt (10,250,000)        

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of 
certain activities, such as workers' compensation and health insurance, to 
individual funds.  The net revenue (expense) of certain internal service funds 
is reported with governmental activities. 25,390               

Internal service fund activity related to Enterprise Funds 13,318               

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the 
use of current financial resources and these are not reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds: 

Change in compensated absence liability (33,684)              
Change in OPEB liability and related deferrals (307)                   

Change in net position of governmental activities 8,668,125$         

7,139,204           

 
 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
 
 



 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 29

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 30

Proprietary Funds Statement of Net Position - June 30, 2018 

BMA
Wastewater 

Fund Water Fund
Solid Waste 

Fund

Bartlesville 
Development 

Authority

Bartlesville 
Education 
Authority

Other Enterprise 
Funds Total

Total Internal 
Service Funds

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents -$                  -$                     -$                  -$                   620,944$        -$                  2,147,990$           2,768,934$        45,900$            
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,163,822     -                       -                    -                     225,630          -                    -                        1,389,452          -                    
Investments -                    -                       -                    827,024         -                      -                    5,068,761             5,895,785          704,045            
Accounts receivable, net 1,287,393     -                       -                    306,261         78,539            -                    -                            1,672,193          -                    
Cash held by third parties -                    -                       -                    -                     -                      -                    -                            -                         60,000              
Other receivables 107,825        -                       5,265             13,464           -                      306,829        108,992                542,375             11,654              
Incentive loans receivable, current -                    -                       -                    -                     183,468          -                    -                            183,468             -                    
Prepaid expenses -                    -                       -                    -                     37,854            -                    -                            37,854               -                    
Inventory -                    60,262             397,856        -                     -                      -                    16,410                  474,528             -                    

Total current assets 2,559,040     60,262             403,121        1,146,749      1,146,435       306,829        7,342,153             12,964,589        821,599            
Noncurrent assets:

Restricted:
  Cash and cash equivalents 181,052        -                       -                    -                     -                      23,606          -                            204,658             -                    
Mortgage and security agreement -                    -                       -                    -                     -                      -                    526,901                526,901             -                    
Incentive loans receivable -                    -                       -                    -                     346,453          -                    -                            346,453             -                    
Other assets -                    -                       -                    -                     110,045          -                    -                            110,045             -                    
Capital assets:

Land and construction in progress 724,569        32,187             135,877        -                     4,773,267       24,283,278   1,632,067             31,581,245        -                    
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 41,270,838   16,090,714      9,770,945     1,285,906      58,418,971     -                    7,540,166             134,377,540      -                    

Total noncurrent assets 42,176,459   16,122,901      9,906,822     1,285,906      63,648,736     24,306,884   9,699,134             167,146,842      -                    
Total assets 44,735,499   16,183,163      10,309,943   2,432,655      64,795,171     24,613,713   17,041,287           180,111,431      821,599            

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions -                    78,248             269,721        205,386         -                      -                    61,853                  615,208             -                    
Deferred amounts related to OPEB -                    2,048               6,590             5,266             -                      -                    1,259                    15,163               -                    
   Total Deferred Outflow of Resources -                    80,296             276,311        210,652         -                      -                    63,112                  630,371             -                        

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable -                    4,223               54,828          149,278         47,589            -                    126,116                382,034             6,627                
Restricted cash reserves -                    -                       -                    -                     225,630          -                    -                            225,630             -                    
Accrued personnel expenses -                  18,124           70,824        52,130         -                     -                   12,089                153,167           -                  
Incentives payable -                  -                     -                  -                   -                     -                   323,844              323,844           -                  
Accrued interest payable 392,622        -                       -                    -                     -                      306,829        2,411                    701,862             -                    
Due to other funds 644,553        118,159           155,789        -                     -                      -                    -                            918,501             -                    
Advanced revenue -                    -                       -                    -                     166,489          -                    3,772                    170,261             -                    
Deposit liability 1,163,822     -                       -                    -                     79,997            -                    -                            1,243,819          -                    
Compensated absences -                    1,612               7,705             5,974             -                      -                    1,107                    16,398               -                    
Claims and judgments -                    -                       -                    -                     -                      -                    -                            -                         209,934            
Bonds, notes and loans payable 1,699,326     -                       -                    -                     1,627,073       -                    128,377                3,454,776          -                    

Total current liabilities 3,900,323     142,118           289,146        207,382         2,146,778       306,829        597,716                7,590,292          216,561            
Noncurrent liabilities:

Incentives payable -                    -                       -                    -                     -                      -                    63,914                  63,914               
Claims and judgments -                    -                       -                    -                     -                      -                    -                            -                         314,902            
Compensated absences -                    12,951             69,917          60,326           -                      -                    6,897                    150,091             -                    
Bonds, notes and loans payable 35,495,903 -                       -                    -                     12,453,655     24,950,000   404,686                73,304,244        -                    
Net OPEB liability -                    273                  879                703                -                      -                    168                       2,023                 -                    
Total OPEB liability -                    56,268             181,065        144,678         -                      -                    34,584                  416,595             -                    
Net pension liability -                    379,228           1,220,313     975,075         -                      -                    233,082                2,807,698          -                    

Total noncurrent liabilities 35,495,903   448,720           1,472,174     1,180,782      12,453,655     24,950,000   743,331                76,744,565        314,902            
Total liabilities 39,396,226   590,838           1,761,320     1,388,164      14,600,433     25,256,829   1,341,047             84,334,857        531,463            

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions -                44,377             205,934        132,579         -                  -                18,669                  401,559             -                    
Deferred amounts related to OPEB -                2,201               7,083             5,659             -                  -                1,353                    16,296               -                    
   Total Deferred Inflow of Resources -                46,578             213,017        138,238         -                  -                20,022                  417,855             -                    

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 4,800,178     16,122,901      9,906,822     1,285,906      48,071,510     (666,722)       9,172,233             88,692,828        -                    
Restricted for other purposes 181,052        -                       -                    -                     1,040,000       23,606          526,901                1,771,559          -                    
Unrestricted (deficit) 358,043        (496,858)          (1,294,905)    (169,001)        1,083,228       -                    6,044,196             5,524,703          290,136            

Total net position 5,339,273$  15,626,043$   8,611,917$  1,116,905$   50,194,738$  (643,116)$    15,743,330$        95,989,090$     290,136$         

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds (88,816)
Net Position of Business-type Activities 95,900,274$     

Enterprise Funds

 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 31

Proprietary Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

BMA
Wastewater 

Fund Water Fund
Solid Waste 

Fund

Bartlesville 
Development 

Authority

Bartlesville 
Education 
Authority

Other Enterprise 
Funds Total

Total Internal 
Service Funds

REVENUES
Water 13,910,602$       -$                      -$                      -$                       -$                        -$                        -$                      13,910,602$       -$                      
Sanitation -                        -                        -                        4,469,674           -                          -                          -                        4,469,674           -                        
Charges for services -                        -                        -                        -                        2,165,630            -                          897,844             3,063,474           2,875,701           
Lease revenue -                        -                        -                        -                        -                          -                          23,611               23,611               -                        

Total operating revenues 13,910,602         -                        -                        4,469,674           2,165,630            -                          921,455             21,467,361         2,875,701           

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services -                        627,837             2,071,538           1,535,048           57,673                 -                          1,039,694           5,331,790           2,275,117           
Contractual services 1,976                 2,116,194           189,672             918,185              60,448                 -                          606,213             3,892,688           584,024             
Utilities -                        4,195                 493,640             5,099                 3,547                   -                          166,234             672,715             12,795               
Repairs and maintenance -                        146,436             624,122             195,106              2,241                   -                          101,875             1,069,780           33,446               
Other supplies and expenses 160,108             57,760               725,367             182,695              1,948                   1,500                   151,676             1,281,054           -                    
Programs -                        -                        -                        -                        3,430,350            -                          778,560             4,208,910           -                    
Amortization expense -                        -                        -                        -                        2,411                   -                          -                        2,411                 -                    
Depreciation 1,704,946           1,318,914           721,133             297,862              1,964,639            -                          691,201             6,698,695           -                    

Total operating expenses 1,867,030           4,271,336           4,825,472           3,133,995           5,523,257            1,500                   3,535,453           23,158,043         2,905,382           
Operating income (loss) 12,043,572         (4,271,336)          (4,825,472)          1,335,679           (3,357,627)           (1,500)                  (2,613,998)          (1,690,682)          (29,681)              

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and investment revenue 3,652                 2                       -                        11,873                33,780                 -                          304,015             353,322             9,576                 
Miscellaneous revenue 42,870               50,201               8,129                 -                        -                          613,938               1,196                 716,334             45,495               
Gain (loss) on capital asset disposal -                        -                        4,270                 1,100                 (60,000)                -                          -                        (54,630)              -                    
Operating grants and contributions -                        -                        -                        -                        -                          -                          95,395               95,395               -                    
Interest expense (1,371,360)          -                        -                        -                        (576,615)              (613,714)              -                        (2,561,689)          -                    
Miscellaneous expenses -                        -                        -                        -                        -                          -                          (33,468)              (33,468)              -                    

Total non-operating revenue (expenses) (1,324,838)          50,203               12,399               12,973                (602,835)              224                     367,138             (1,484,736)          55,071               
Income (loss) before transfers and capital contributions 10,718,734         (4,221,133)          (4,813,073)          1,348,652           (3,960,462)           (1,276)                  (2,246,860)          (3,175,418)          25,390               

Capital contributions -                        37,028               12,800               273,621              -                          -                          59,482               382,931             -                    
Transfers in -                        4,097,567           6,137,691           -                        1,094,168            -                          1,264,030           12,593,456         -                    
Transfers out (10,235,258)        (1,156,837)          (1,953,030)          (1,885,847)          -                          -                          -                        (15,230,972)        -                    

Change in net position 483,476             (1,243,375)          (615,612)            (263,574)             (2,866,294)           (1,276)                  (923,348)            (5,430,003)          25,390               
Total net position - beginning, restated 4,855,797           16,869,418         9,227,529           1,380,479           53,061,032           (641,840)              16,666,678         101,419,093       264,746             
Total net position - ending 5,339,273$         15,626,043$       8,611,917$         1,116,905$         50,194,738$         (643,116)$            15,743,330$       95,989,090$       290,136$            

Change in Net Position, Enterprise Funds (5,430,003)          

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds (13,318)              

Change in Net Position of Business-type Activities (5,443,321)$        

Enterprise Funds

 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 32

Proprietary Funds Statement of Cash Flows - Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

BMA
Wastewater 

Fund Water Fund
Solid Waste 

Fund

Bartlesville 
Development 

Authority

Bartlesville 
Education 
Authority

Other Enterprise 
Funds

Total Enterprise 
Funds

Total Internal 
Service Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 13,659,645$       50,201$             3,939$               4,447,748$         2,332,613$         613,994$            1,010,036$         22,118,176$       2,919,331$         
Payments to suppliers and employees (162,084)            (2,998,173)          (4,190,140)          (2,800,031)          (4,539,750)          (1,500)                (1,888,838)          (16,580,516)        (3,369,212)          
Payments for incentives and operations -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (649,190)            (649,190)            -                    
Receipts of customer meter deposits 214,662             -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    214,662             -                    
Refunds of customer meter deposits (199,061)            -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (199,061)            -                    
Interfund receipts/payments (236,432)            7,241                 33,849               -                    -                    -                    -                    (195,342)            -                    

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 13,276,730         (2,940,731)          (4,152,352)          1,647,717           (2,207,137)          612,494             (1,527,992)          4,708,729           (449,881)            

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds -                    4,097,567           6,137,691           -                    1,094,168           -                    1,264,030           12,593,456         -                    
Transfers to other funds (10,235,258)        (1,156,837)          (1,953,030)          (1,885,847)          -                    -                    -                    (15,230,972)        -                    

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities (10,235,258)        2,940,730           4,184,661           (1,885,847)          1,094,168           -                    1,264,030           (2,637,516)          -                    

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
   FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of capital assets -                    -                    (36,579)              -                    -                    (54,875)              (161,662)            (253,116)            -                    
Proceeds from sale of capital asset -                    -                    4,270                 1,100                 200,000             -                    -                    205,370             -                    
Proceeds from capital grant -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    59,482               59,482               -                    
Proceeds from debt -                    -                    -                    -                    2,529,880           -                    -                    2,529,880           -                    
Decrease in security interest in property -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    113,785             113,785             -                    
Administrative reimbursements -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    63,914               63,914               -                    
Principal paid on debt (1,639,595)          -                    -                    -                    (1,812,461)          -                    (114,000)            (3,566,056)          -                    
Interest and fiscal agent fees paid on debt (1,387,077)          -                    -                    -                    (577,433)            (613,770)            (525)                   (2,578,805)          -                    

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities (3,026,672)          -                    (32,309)              1,100                 339,986             (668,645)            (39,006)              (3,425,546)          -                    

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale of investments 1,148,219           -                    -                    225,157             -                    -                    35,665               1,409,041           440,305             
Purchase of investments -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (109,416)            (109,416)            -                    
Interest and dividends 3,652                 1                       -                    11,873               33,780               -                    304,015             353,321             9,576                 

Net cash provided by investing activities 1,151,871           1                       -                    237,030             33,780               -                    230,264             1,652,946           449,881             

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,166,671           -                    -                    -                    (739,203)            (56,151)              (72,704)              298,613             -                    

Balances - beginning of year 178,203             -                    -                    -                    1,585,777           79,757               2,220,694           4,064,431           105,900             

Balances - end of year 1,344,874$         -$                   -$                   -$                   846,574$            23,606$             2,147,990$         4,363,044$         105,900$            

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Cash and cash equivalents -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   620,944$            -$                   2,147,990$         2,768,934$         45,900$             
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - current 1,163,822           -                    -                    -                    225,630             -                    -                    1,389,452           -                    
Cash held by third parties -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    60,000               
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - noncurrent 181,052             -                    -                    -                    -                    23,606               -                    204,658             -                    

Total cash and cash equivalents, end of year 1,344,874$         -$                   -$                   -$                   846,574$            23,606$             2,147,990$         4,363,044$         105,900$            

Enterprise Funds

 
 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 33

 
Proprietary Funds Statement of Cash Flows - Year Ended June 30, 2018, (Continued) 
 

BMA
Wastewater 

Fund Water Fund
Solid Waste 

Fund

Bartlesville 
Development 

Authority

Bartlesville 
Education 
Authority

Other Enterprise 
Funds

Total Enterprise 
Funds

Total Internal 
Service Funds

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in)
  Operating Activities:

Operating income (loss) 12,043,572$       (4,271,336)$        (4,825,472)$        1,335,679$         (3,357,627)$        (1,500)$              (2,613,998)$        (1,690,682)$        (29,681)$            
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
  provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization expense 1,704,946           1,318,914           721,133             297,862             1,967,050           -                    691,201             6,701,106           -                    
Miscellaneous revenue 42,870               50,201               8,129                 -                    -                    613,938             1,196                 716,334             45,495               
Miscellaneous expense -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (33,468)              (33,468)              -                    
Operating grants and contributions -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    95,395               95,395               -                    

Change in assets and liabilities:
Due from other funds (236,432)            7,241                 33,849               -                    -                    -                    -                    (195,342)            -                    
Accrued compensated absences -                    (1,554)                577                    6,560                 -                    -                    (1,713)                3,870                 -                    
Accounts receivable (214,210)            -                    -                    (19,263)              162,869             -                    12,398               (58,206)              -                    
Other receivable (79,617)              -                    (4,190)                (2,663)                -                    56                     (15,958)              (102,372)            (1,865)                
Accounts payable -                    (12,260)              (37,121)              108,317             (983,539)            -                    (29,732)              (954,335)            (9,368)                
Advanced revenue -                    -                    -                    -                    4,114                 -                    (4,450)                (336)                   -                    
Accrued salaries payable -                    (1,384)                1,165                 1,225                 -                    -                    565                    1,571                 -                    
Claims liability -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                        (454,462)            
Net and total OPEB liability and related deferrals -                    (2,239)                (7,202)                (5,753)                -                    -                    (1,375)                (16,569)              -                    
Net pension liability and related deferrals (39,789)              (118,678)            (74,247)              -                    -                    61,478               (171,236)            -                    
Deposits subject to refund 15,601               -                    -                    -                    (4)                      -                    (1,624)                13,973               -                    
Prepaid expenses -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (6,751)                (6,751)                -                    
Inventory -                    11,475               75,458               -                    -                    -                    318,844             405,777             -                    

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 13,276,730$       (2,940,731)$        (4,152,352)$        1,647,717$         (2,207,137)$        612,494$            (1,527,992)$        4,708,729$         (449,881)$           

Noncash activities:
Contributed capital assets -$                   37,028$             12,800$             273,621$            -$                   -$                   -$                   323,449$            -$                   

-$                   37,028$             12,800$             273,621$            -$                   -$                   -$                   323,449$            -$                   

Enterprise Funds

 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 34

Fiduciary Funds Statement of Net Position - June 30, 2018 
 

Mausoleum 
Endowment

ASSETS
Receivables:

Other receivables 107$               
Total receivables 107                 

Investments:
Other investments 8,018              

Total investments 8,018              
Total assets 8,125$            

LIABILITIES
Total liabilities -                 

NET POSITION
Held in trust for benefits and other purposes 8,125              

Total net position 8,125$            

 
 

 
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 35

 
Fiduciary Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Year Ended June 
30, 2018 
 

 
Mausoleum 
Endowment

ADDITIONS

Investment earnings:
   Investment earnings 107$                    

Total net investment earnings 107                      
Total additions 107                      

DEDUCTIONS
Miscellaneous expenses -                          

Total deductions -                          
Change in net position 107                      

Total net position - beginning 8,018                   
Total net position - ending 8,125$                 

 
 

 
 
 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 36

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

FOOTNOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 37

Footnotes to the Basic Financial Statements – Index 
 
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
A. Introduction 
B. Financial Reporting Entity 
C. Basis of Presentation and Accounting 
D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
E. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Equity 
F. Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses 
G. Internal and Interfund Balances and Activities 
H. Stabilization Reserve Fund 
I. Use of Estimates 
J. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability  
K. Fund Balance and Net Position 
 
NOTE 2. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS 
 
NOTE 3. ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE 
A. Accounts Receivable 
B. Incentive Loans Receivable 
 
NOTE 4. CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION 
A. Capital Asset Activity – Governmental 
B. Capital Asset Activity – Business-type 
C. Depreciation Charges 
 
NOTE 5. LONG-TERM DEBT AND DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 
A. General Obligation Bonds to be Repaid by Governmental Activity 
B. Notes Payable to be Repaid by Business-type Activity 
C. Workers’ Compensation Claims Liability 
D. Debt Service Requirements to Maturity 
 
NOTE 6. NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES 
A. Governmental Fund Balance Constraints 
B. Net Position Restrictions 
 
NOTE 7. INTERNAL AND INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS 
A. Interfund Receivables and Payables 
B. Interfund Transfers 
 
NOTE 8. PLEDGED FUTURE REVENUES 
 
NOTE 9. RISK MANAGEMENT 
A. Liability Protection Plan 
B. Workers’ Compensation 
C. Health and Life Insurance 

 
NOTE 10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
A. Litigation 
B. Federal and State Award Programs 
C. Construction Contracts 
D. Operating Leases 
E. BRTA Series 2009B Note 
F. Subsequent Events 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 38

 
NOTE 11. RETIREMENT AND OPEB PLANS 
A. Oklahoma Firefighters’ Pension and Retirement System 
B. Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System 
C. Defined Benefit Plan 
D. Defined Contribution Plan  
E. OPEB 
F. Component Unit Retirement Plans 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 39

Footnotes to the Basic Financial Statements: 
 
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
A.  Introduction 
 
The financial statements of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma (the City) are prepared in accordance with U.S. 
Generally Accepted Governmental Accounting Principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB).  The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting 
policies are discussed in subsequent subsections of this Note. 
 
B.  Financial Reporting Entity 

 
City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma is a charter city in which citizens elect five council members by ward.  The 
council members elect one of these members as mayor.  The accompanying financial statements present the 
City’s primary government and component units over which the City exercises significant influence.  
Significant influence or accountability is based primarily on operational or financial relationships with the 
City (as distinct from legal relationships). 
 
Some of the component units of the City - Bartlesville Development Authority, Bartlesville Community 
Center Trust Authority, and Bartlesville Redevelopment Trust Authority - issue separately audited financial 
statements.  Copies of component unit reports may be obtained from the City’s Finance Department. 

 
Due to restrictions of the State Constitution relating to the issuance of municipal debt, the City created public 
trusts to finance City services with revenue bonds or other non-general obligation financing, and provide for 
multi-year contracting.  Financing services by these public trusts are solely for the benefit of the City.  Public 
trusts created to provide financing services are blended into the City’s primary government although retaining 
separate legal identity.  Component units that do not meet the criteria for blending are reported discretely.  
However, the City currently has no discretely presented component units. 
 
Component units are reported in the City’s basic financial statements in accordance with GASB 61 as shown 
in the following table: 

 
Blended Component 

Units Reported with the 
Primary Government 

 Brief Description 
of Activity’s 

Relationship to City

  
Reporting 

Funds
 
Bartlesville Municipal 
  Authority 

  
Finance projects and development for the City’s 
water, solid waste and wastewater utilities.  The 
City Council is the governing body.  Assets 
financed by the Trust are managed by City 
employees who provide services to citizens. 

  
Enterprise Fund 

 
Bartlesville Community 
  Center Trust Authority 

  
Develop, finance and operate the Community 
Center for cultural and recreational activities for 
the citizens of Bartlesville.  Their Board consists 
of eight members appointed by the City Council 
and one Council member. 

  
Enterprise Fund 

 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 40

 
 
Bartlesville Library 
  Trust Authority 

  
Encourage, finance and promote the public 
library.  The City Council appoints members of 
the Trust Authority Board.  City employees 
manage trust assets and provide services to 
citizens. 

  
Special Revenue 

Fund 

 
Bartlesville History 
  Museum Trust Authority 

  
Establish, improve, maintain, administer and 
operate facilities for use as a history museum.  
Their Board consists of nine members, one of 
whom must be a member of the City Council.  
Members are appointed by the Mayor with the 
approval of City Council. 

  
Special Revenue 

Fund 

 
Adult Center Trust 
  Authority 

  
Encourage, finance and promote cultural and 
recreational activities for the older citizens of 
Bartlesville. Their Board consists of six members 
appointed by the City Council. (Classified as 
Governmental Special Revenue prior to July 1, 
2010) 

  
Enterprise Fund 

  
Bartlesville 
Redevelopment 
 Trust Authority 

  
Develop, redevelop, restore and beautify a 
certain portion of central Bartlesville, Oklahoma 
jurisdictional boundaries. (Classified as 
Discretely Presented prior to July 1, 2010) 

  
Enterprise Fund 

     
Bartlesville Development 
 Authority (BDA) 

 Finances certain facilities for the purpose of 
promoting economic development in the City of 
Bartlesville, Oklahoma and surrounding areas. 

 Enterprise Fund 

 
Bartlesville Education 
 Authority (BEA) 

  
Finances certain facilities for the purpose of 
improving educational buildings in the City of 
Bartlesville, Oklahoma and surrounding areas. 

  
Enterprise Fund 

 
 
The City and its component units provide typical municipal services such as public safety, street 
maintenance, culture, parks and recreation, airport, and certain utility services including water, 
wastewater, and sanitation.  
 
Each of the above component units are Public Trusts established pursuant to Title 60 of Oklahoma State 
law.  Public Trusts (Authorities) have no taxing power.  The Authorities are generally created to finance 
City services through issuance of revenue bonds or other non-general obligation debt and to enable the 
City Council to delegate certain functions to the governing body (Trustees) of the Authority.  The 
Authorities generally retain title to assets which are acquired or constructed with Authority debt or other 
Authority generated resources.  In addition, the City has leased certain existing assets at the creation for 
the Authorities to the Trustees on a long-term basis.  The City, as beneficiary of the Public Trusts, 
receives title to any residual assets when a Public Trust is dissolved. 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 41

 
C.  Basis of Presentation and Accounting 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements: 

 
The statement of net position and statement of activities display information about the reporting government 
as a whole.  They include all funds of the reporting entity except fiduciary funds.  The statements distinguish 
between governmental and business-type activities.  Governmental activities generally are financed through 
taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues.  Business-type activities are financed in 
whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services. 

 
The statement of activities presents a comparison between the expenses and program revenues directly 
associated with the different governmental functions and business-type activities to arrive at the net revenue or 
expense of the function or activity prior to the use of taxes and other general revenues. Program revenues 
include (1) fees, fines, and service charges generated by the program or activity, (2) operating grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational requirements of the program or activity, and (3) 
capital grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the capital requirement of the program or 
activity. The policy for allocating indirect expenses to functions is on a percentage basis of the activity. 

 
All other governmental revenues are reported as general.  All taxes are classified as general revenue even 
if restricted for a specific purpose. 

 
Fund Financial Statements: 
 
Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is considered to be a 
separate accounting entity.  Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts, 
which constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses.  Funds are organized 
into three major categories:  governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.  An emphasis is placed on major funds 
within the governmental and proprietary categories.  A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating 
fund of the City or meets the following criteria: 

 
a.   Total assets (including deferred outflows), liabilities (including deferred inflows), 

revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise fund 
are at least ten percent (10%) of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or 
type, and 
 

b. Total assets (including deferred outflows), liabilities (including deferred inflows), 
revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental fund or enterprise 
fund are at least five percent (5%) of the corresponding total for all governmental and 
enterprise funds combined. 

 
c. A fund not meeting the criteria of (a) or (b) except that management has elected to report 

the fund as a major fund due to its significance to the users of the financial statements. 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 42

The funds of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma are described below: 
 
Governmental Funds: 
 
Governmental Fund Types: 
 
General Fund – The General Fund is the primary fund of the City, which accounts for all financial transactions 
not accounted for in other funds and certain Public Trust activities that require separate accountability for 
services rendered.  Also reported in the General Fund is the stabilization reserve account which can only be 
used in certain limited and unusual circumstances. 
 
Special Revenue Funds – Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue 
sources (other than expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally or administratively restricted to 
expenditures for specified purposes. 
 
Debt Service Fund – As prescribed by State law, the Debt Service Fund receives all ad valorem taxes paid to 
the City for the retirement of general obligation bonded debt.  Such revenues are used for the payment of 
principal and interest on the City's general obligation bonds. 
 
Capital Projects Funds – The Capital Projects Funds account for major capital improvements which are 
financed from the City's general obligation bond issues, certain federal grants and other specific receipts. 
 
The City’s governmental funds include: 
 

Fund  Brief Description
   
Major:   

   General Fund    See above for description. 
   

   Debt Service Fund:   
   

      Debt Service Fund  See above for description. 
   

   Capital Project Fund:   
   

Capital Improvement Sales 
Tax Fund 

 Accounts for revenues and expenditures related to a sales tax 
issue restricted for capital improvements 

   
 

Nonmajor:   
   

Special Revenue Funds:   
   

Bartlesville History 
Museum Trust Authority 

 See above for description. 

   
E-911 Fund  Accounts for revenues and expenditures of the E-911 service 

that is legally restricted for public safety use. 
   

Special Library Fund  Accounts for State Library Assistance and library donations 
which are provided to the library for operations. 

   



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 43

Special Museum Fund  Accounts for museum grants and donations that are 
provided primarily by the BHMTA. 

   
Economic Development 

Fund 
 Accounts for revenues and expenditures of promoting 

economic diversification. 
   

Bartlesville Library  Trust   
Authority 

 See blended component units above for description. 

   
Restricted Revenues Fund  Accounts for receipts and expenditures of donations and 

other revenues that are restricted for specific purposes. 
   

Municipal Airport Fund  See above for description. 
   

Harshfield Library Donation 
Fund 

 Accounts for receipts and expenditures related to the 
Harshfield library donation. 

   
Golf Course Memorial 

Fund 
 Accounts for donations and proceeds of an annual memorial 

golf tournament. 
   

Justice Assistance Grant 
Fund (JAG) 

 Accounts for revenues and expenditures related to the 
Justice Assistance Grant. 

   
Neighborhood Park Fund  Accounts for the receipt and expenditures of development 

fees that are restricted for use in the various parks of the 
City. 

   
Cemetery Perpetual 

Care Fund 
 Accounts for revenues and expenditures of the cemetery’s 

upkeep in accordance with State law. 
   

Memorial Stadium 
Operating Fund 

 
Housing TIF Districts Fund 

 
 
 

BRTA Pass Through Fund 
 
 

Hotel Motel Tax Fund 
 

 Accounts for receipt of stadium fees and transfers from the 
City for capital improvements. 
 
Accounts for ad valorem and general sales taxes that are to 
be used to fund infrastructure improvements to the 
designated Tax Increment Financing (TIF) areas. 
 
Accounts for sales taxes and hotel/motel taxes that are to be 
passed through to the BRTA as part of existing TIF 
structures. 
 
Accounts for hotel motel taxes restricted for the 
community center, economic development, and tourism 
purposes. 

 
 

Capital Project Funds: 

  

   
Capital Improvement Sales 

Tax Fund 
 Accounts for revenues and expenditures related to a 

sales tax issue restricted for capital improvements 
   

Capital Improvement - 
Wastewater Fund 

 Accounts for the revenues and expenditures associated 
with improving the wastewater system. 

   



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 44

Capital Improvement – 
Wastewater Regulatory 

Fund 

 Accounts for revenues and expenditures associated with 
the wastewater capital investment fees. 

   
Capital Improvement –  

City Hall Fund 
 Accounts for revenues and expenditures associated with 

improving City Hall. 
   

Capital Improvement - 
Storm Sewer Fund 

 Accounts for revenues and expenditures associated with 
improving the storm sewer system. 

   
Community Development 

Block Grant Fund 
 Accounts for revenues and expenditures related to the 

Community Development Block Grant. 
 

Capital Reserve Fund  Accounts for proceeds and expenditures associated with 
the City’s capital reserve ordinance. 

   
2008B G.O. Bond Fund  Accounts for bond proceeds and expenditures associated 

with the series 2008B G.O. Bond. 
   

2009 G.O. Bond Fund  Accounts for bond proceeds and expenditures associated 
with the series 2009 G.O. Bond. 

   
2010 G.O. Bonds Fund  Accounts for bond proceeds and expenditures associated 

with the series 2010 G.O. Bond. 
   

2012 G.O. Bonds Fund  Accounts for bond proceeds and expenditures associated 
with the series 2012 G.O. Bond. 

   
2014 G.O. Bonds Fund  Accounts for bond proceeds and expenditures associated 

with the series 2014 G.O. Bond. 
 

2014B G.O. Bond Fund  Accounts for bond proceeds and expenditures associated 
with the series 2014B G.O. Bond. 

   
2015 G.O. Bonds Fund  Accounts for bond proceeds and expenditures associated 

with the series 2015 G.O. Bond. 
 

2017 G.O. Bond Fund  Accounts for bond proceeds and expenditures associated 
with the series 2017 G.O. Bond. 

   
2018A G.O. Bond Fund  Accounts for bond proceeds and expenditures associated 

with the series 2018A G.O. Bond. 
   

2018B G.O. Bond Fund  Accounts for bond proceeds and expenditures associated 
with the series 2018B G.O. Bond. 

   
The governmental funds are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. On the modified 
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and measurable and available to pay 
current financial obligations, while expenditures are recorded when incurred and payable from current 
financial resources. The City defines revenue availability as collected within 60 days of period end. 
 
The reconciliation of the governmental funds financial statements to the governmental activities 
presentation in the government-wide financial statements is the result of the use of the accrual basis of 
accounting and economic resources measurement focus at the government-wide level. 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 45

The General Fund, Debt Service Fund, and Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund are considered major 
funds and therefore are displayed in separate columns. All other  governmental funds are considered 
nonmajor funds and are aggregated under the column titled Other Governmental Funds.  
 
Proprietary Funds: 
 
Proprietary Fund Types: 
 
Enterprise Funds – The City's Enterprise Funds are used to account for the operations that are financed and 
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that 
costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing 
basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. 
 
Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated 
with the principal activity of the fund.  Non-operating revenues and expenses of the proprietary funds include 
such items as investment earnings, interest expense and subsides. 
 
Internal Service Funds – (Included in governmental activities in government-wide statements.) The City's 
Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of services provided by one department to other 
departments of the City. 

 
The City’s proprietary funds include: 
 

Fund  Brief Description
   
Major:   

   Enterprise Funds:   
  

      Bartlesville Municipal 
        Authority

 See above for description. 

   
      Wastewater Fund  Accounts for activities of the public trust in providing 

wastewater services to the public. 
  

      Water Fund  Accounts for activities of the public trust in providing water 
services to the public. 

  
      Solid Waste Fund  Accounts for activities of the public trust in providing solid 

waste services to the public. 
  

      Bartlesville Development 
        Authority

 See above for description. 

  
      Bartlesville Education 

        Authority
 See above for description. 

 
Nonmajor:   

      Adams Municipal 
        Golf Course 

 Accounts for revenues and expenses of the municipal golf 
course. 

   
      Sooner Pool  Accounts for revenues and expenses of Sooner Pool. 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 46

      Frontier Pool  Accounts for revenues and expenses of Frontier Pool. 
   

Community Center  
Trust Authority 

 See above for description.  See above for description. 

   
      Adult Center Trust Authority  See above for description. 

   
      Bartlesville Redevelopment 

        Trust Authority 
 See above for description. 

   
Internal Service Funds: 

 
Workers’ Compensation  Accounts for the revenues and expenditures of the City’s 

workers’ compensation plan. 
 

Health Insurance  Accounts for the revenues and expenditures of the City’s 
health insurance plan. 
 

Auto Collision Insurance  Accounts for the revenues and expenditures of the City’s 
auto insurance plan. 
 

For purposes of the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position, operating revenues 
and expenses are considered those whose cash flows are related to operating activities, while revenues 
and expenses related to financing, capital and investing activities are reported as non-operating or 
transfers and contributions. 

 
Fiduciary Fund Types: 
 
Trust Funds – (Not included in government-wide statements.) Trust Funds are used to account for 
assets held by the City in a trustee capacity.  Expendable Trust Funds are accounted for in essentially 
the same manner as proprietary funds.  No non-expendable trust funds or pension funds are used 
and/or maintained. 
 

Fund  Brief Description
Mausoleum Endowment Fund  Accounts for the revenue and expenditures of the 

mausoleum.  Comprised initially of monies on deposit for 
the mausoleum’s care when the City accepted the 
mausoleum. 

 
D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
  
Measurement focus is a term used to describe "how" transactions are recorded within the various financial 
statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement 
focus applied. 
 
Measurement Focus  
 
On the government-wide Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities both governmental and 
business-type activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus as defined in item b 
below.  



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 47

In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus or the “economic 
resources” measurement focus is used as appropriate: 
 
a.  All governmental funds utilize a "current financial resources" measurement focus.  Only current financial 
assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets.  Their operating statements present 
sources and uses of available spendable financial resources during a given period.  These funds use fund 
balance as their measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period.  
 
b. The proprietary fund utilizes an "economic resources" measurement focus.  The accounting objectives of 
this measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net position (or cost 
recovery), financial position, and cash flows.  All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) 
associated with their activities are reported.  Proprietary fund equity is classified as net position. 
 
c. The trust fund utilizes an “economic resources” measurement focus.  The accounting objectives of this 
measurement focus are the determination of net income, financial position and cash flows.  All assets and 
liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activities are reported.  Trust fund equity is 
classified as net position. 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities both governmental and 
business-type activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or 
economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and 
exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. 
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting.  Under this modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when "measurable 
and available".  Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount.  Available 
means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter (within 60 days of period end) to pay 
current liabilities.  Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability is 
incurred, except for general obligation bond principal and interest which are reported when due. 
 
All proprietary funds and fiduciary funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting.  Under the accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or 
economic asset used. 
 
 
E.  Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Equity 
 
Cash and Investments 
 
For the purposes of the statements of net position, balance sheets, and statement of cash flows, "cash and 
cash equivalents" includes all demand and savings accounts, and certificates of deposits or short-term 
investments with an original maturity of three months or less.  
 
Investments are carried at fair value except for short-term U.S. Treasury obligations with a remaining 
maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less.  Those investments are reported at amortized cost.  Fair 
value is based on quoted market price. 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 48

Receivables 
 
In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet 
received. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and the periodic 
aging of accounts receivable. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include sales and use 
taxes, franchise taxes, grants, police fines, and ambulance fees.  Business-type activities report utilities as its 
major receivables. 
 
In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include revenue accruals such as 
sales tax, franchise tax, and grants and other similar intergovernmental revenues since they are usually both 
measurable and available.  Non-exchange transactions collectible but not available are deferred in the fund 
financial statements in accordance with modified accrual, but not deferred in the government-wide financial 
statements in accordance with the accrual basis.  Interest and investment earnings are recorded when earned 
only if paid within 60 days since they would be considered both measurable and available.  Proprietary fund 
material receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received.  Utility accounts 
receivable comprise the majority of proprietary fund receivables.  Allowances for uncollectible accounts 
receivable are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable. 
 

 Deposit with Third-Party Administrator 
 
The City is self-insured for workers’ compensation insurance.  The claims for workers’ compensation 
injuries are administered by a third-party administrator.  The City has placed a deposit with the third-party 
administrator to allow for the payment of these claims. 

 
 Inventory 
 
 Inventories for the Enterprise Funds and General Fund are capitalized at cost and charged to expense on the 

first-in, first-out and average cost basis.  Inventories for the general fund and all other funds are insignificant 
and purchases of such items are expensed. 

 
 Deferred Outflows of Resources 
 

Deferred outflows are the consumption of net position that are applicable to a future reporting period. At June 
30, 2018 the City has deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and other post-employment benefits 
(OPEB). 

  
 Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 

Deferred inflows are the acquisition of net position that are applicable to a future reporting period. At June 30, 
2018 the City has deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB. 

 
 Arbitrage Rebate 
 

The proceeds from the City’s tax-exempt bond issues are subject to arbitrage rebate laws under the Internal 
Revenue Code. This arbitrage rebate limits the earnings on investment of tax-exempt proceeds in non-purpose 
investments. The City had no arbitrage rebate liability at June 30, 2018. 

 
  



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 49

Pension 
 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
Oklahoma Firefighters Pension & Retirement System (OFPRS), Oklahoma Police Pension & Retirement 
System (OPPRS), and the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement System (OkMRF) and additions to/deductions 
from these pension plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by each listed pension plan. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are 
reported at fair value. 
 
Other Post-employment Benefits 
 
For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund Retiree Medical Plan and additions to/deductions from this OPEB 
plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by OPEB. For 
this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due 
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 
 

 Capital Assets 
 

 The accounting treatment over property, plant and equipment (capital assets) depends on whether the assets 
are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the 
government-wide or fund financial statements. 

  
Government-Wide Statements 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, capital assets are accounted for as capital assets.  All capital 
assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual is unavailable, except for donated 
capital assets which are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation.  Estimated historical 
cost was used to value the majority of the assets acquired prior to June 30, 1992.  
 
Prior to October 1, 2003, governmental activities’ infrastructure assets were not capitalized.  Since that time, 
all governmental infrastructure assets have been recorded as acquired.  The governmental infrastructure assets 
for the preceding 20 years were recorded at their actual historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual was 
unavailable, as of July 1, 2006. 

  
Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of 
Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Position.  Depreciation is 
provided over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation.  Prior to July 
1, 2017, a capitalization threshold of $2,500 was used to report capital assets.  Effective July 1, 2017, the 
City’s capitalization threshold is $10,000.  The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows: 
 
    - Buildings    15-50 years 
    - Other Improvements   5-100 years 
    - Machinery and Equipment    5-40 years 
    - Vehicles      2-15 years 
    - Infrastructure    25-50 years 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 50

Fund Financial Statements 
 
 In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as 

capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition.  Capital assets used in proprietary 
fund operations are accounted for the same as in the government-wide statements. 
 

 Restricted Assets 
 

 Restricted assets include cash and investments of the proprietary fund that are legally restricted as to their 
use.  The primary restricted assets are related to promissory note trustee accounts and utility meter deposits. 
 

 Long-Term Debt 
  
 The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in governmental fund 

operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund 
financial statements. 

 
 All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are reported as liabilities in 

the government-wide statements.  The long-term debt consists of notes payable, general obligation bonds, 
claims payable and accrued compensated absences. 
 

 Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund financial statements.  The 
debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources and payment of principal and interest reported as 
expenditures.  The accounting for the proprietary fund is the same in the fund statements as it is in the 
government-wide statements. 

  
 Compensated Absences 

 
Full-time permanent employees are granted vacation benefits in varying amounts to specified maximums 
depending on tenure with the City.  Sick leave accrues to full-time permanent employees to specified 
maximums.  Generally, after meeting certain minimum accruals and service requirements, employees are 
entitled up to ten percent of their sick leave balance and all accrued vacation leave and compensatory time 
balances upon retirement. 

 
The estimated current portion of the liability for vested vacation and compensatory time attributable to the 
City’s governmental funds is recorded as an expenditure and liability in the respective funds.  The amounts 
attributable to proprietary funds and similar component units are charged to expense and credited to a 
corresponding liability in the applicable fund or component unit.  The estimated liabilities include required 
salary-related payments. 
 
Equity Classifications 

 
Government-Wide Statements: 
 
Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components: 
   

a. Net investment in capital assets – Consists of capital assets including restricted capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding balances of any 
bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or improvements of those assets. 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 51

b. Restricted net position - Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either 
by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of 
other governments, or 2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

c. Unrestricted net position - All other net position that does not meet the definition of 
“restricted.”  
 

 Fund Statements: 
 

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is classified as non-spendable, 
restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. 

 
a. Non-spendable – The non-spendable fund balance category includes amounts that cannot be 
spent because they are not in spendable form, or legally or contractually required to be 
maintained intact. 
 
b. Restricted – Fund balance is reported as restricted when constraints placed on the use of 
resources are either externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, 
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or is imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation (City ordinances). 
 
Enabling legislation authorizes the City to assess, levy, charge, or otherwise mandate payment of 
resources (from external resource providers) and includes a legally enforceable requirement that 
those resources be used only for the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation.  Legal 
enforceability means that the City can be compelled by an external party-such as citizens, public 
interest groups, or the judiciary to use resources created by enabling legislation only for the 
purpose specified by the legislation.  
 
c. Committed – The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used 
only for specific purposes imposed by ordinance or resolution of City Council.  Those committed 
amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City Council removes or changes the 
specified use by taking the same type of action (ordinance or resolution) it employed to 
previously commit those amounts.  In contrast to fund balance that is restricted by enabling 
legislation, committed fund balance classification may be redeployed for other purposes with 
appropriate due process.  Constraints imposed on the use of committed amounts are imposed by 
City Council, separate from the authorization to raise the underlying revenue; therefore, 
compliance with those constraints are not considered to be legally enforceable.  Committed fund 
balance also incorporates contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund 
have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements. 
 
d. Assigned – Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the 
City for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed.  
In governmental funds other than the General Fund, assigned fund balance represents the 
remaining amount that is not restricted or committed.  In the General Fund, assigned amounts 
represent intended uses established by City Council or a City official delegated that authority by 
City Charter, ordinance or resolution. 
 
e. Unassigned – Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund and 
includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications.  In other governmental 
funds, the unassigned classification is used only to report a deficit balance resulting from 
overspending for specific purposes for which amounts had been restricted, committed, or 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 52

assigned. The City applies restricted resources first when expenditures are incurred for purposes 
for which either restricted or unrestricted (committed, assigned, and unassigned) amounts are 
available.  Similarly, within the unrestricted fund balance, committed amounts are reduced first 
followed by assigned, and then unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes 
for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used. 

 
 Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide statements.   
 

It is the City’s policy to first use restricted net position prior to the use of unrestricted net position when an 
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available. 
 
 
F.  Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses 
 
Sales Tax 
 
The City presently levies a three and four-tenths-cent ($.034) sales tax on taxable sales within the City.  The 
Tax Commission receives the sales tax approximately one month after collection by vendors.  The Sales Tax 
is allocated among three funds:  The General Fund, the Economic Development Fund, and the Sales Tax 
Capital Improvement Fund.  Two and sixty-five hundredths cents of the tax collected is deposited in the 
General Fund as of January 1, 2016 (prior to that date, two and twenty-five hundredths cents was deposited in 
the General Fund), twenty-five hundredths cent is deposited in the Economic Development Fund, and five-
tenths cent is deposited in the Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund.  Sales taxes collected by the State in June 
and July (which represent sales for May and June) and received by the City in July and August have been 
accrued and are included under the caption “Due from other governments”. 
 
Property Tax 
 
Under State law, municipalities are limited in their ability to levy a property tax.  Such tax may only be levied 
to repay principal and interest on general obligation bonded debt approved by voters and any court-assessed 
judgments.  Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1.  Taxes are levied 
annually on November 1 and are due one-half by December 31 and one-half by March 31.  Property taxes 
unpaid are attached by an enforceable lien on the property the day after the due date.  The Treasurer of 
Washington County bills and collects the property taxes and remits to the City its portion in the month 
following collection.  In the fund financial statements, property taxes are recorded as revenue in the period 
levied to the extent they are collected within 60 days of year-end. 
 
Operating Revenues and Expenses 
 
Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from providing services and 
producing and delivering goods and/or services.   It also includes all revenue and expenses not related to 
capital and related financing, non-capital financing, or investing activities. 
 
Cigarette, Tobacco, and Tobacco Products Tax 
 
Beginning in January 2005, the City receives tax levied on wholesalers for cigarettes, tobacco and tobacco 
products.  The tax is collected by the Oklahoma Tax Commission and remitted to the City in the month 
following receipt by the Tax Commission.  The Tax Commission receives the tax approximately one month 
after accumulation by wholesalers.  The cigarette, tobacco and tobacco products tax is allocated to the General 
Fund.  The cigarette, tobacco and tobacco products tax collected by the State in June and July (which 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 53

represents collections for May and June) and received by the City in July and August have been accrued and 
are included under the caption “Due from other governments”. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
As a municipal government, the income of the City and its public authorities, which is derived from the 
exercise of any essential governmental function, is not subject to federal or state income taxes. 
 
Expenditures/Expenses 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by function for both governmental and 
business-type activities. 
 
In the fund financial statements, expenditures are classified as follows: 
 
Governmental Funds - By Character:  Current (further classified by function) 
      Debt Service 
      Capital Outlay 
 
Proprietary Fund - By Operating and Non-Operating 
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report expenditures of financial resources.  Proprietary 
funds report expenses relating to use of economic resources. 
 
 
G. Internal and Interfund Balances and Activities 
 
In the process of aggregating the financial information for the government-wide Statement of Net Position 
and Statement of Activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the fund 
financial statements have been eliminated or reclassified. 
 
Fund Financial Statements: 
 
Interfund activity, if any, within and among the governmental and proprietary fund categories is reported 
as follows in the fund financial statements: 
 
   1. Interfund loans - amounts provided with a requirement for repayment are reported as interfund 

receivables and payables. 
    
   2. Interfund services - sales or purchases of goods and services between funds are reported as 

revenues and expenditures/expenses. 
  

3. Interfund reimbursements - repayments from funds responsible for certain 
expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not reported as 
reimbursements but as adjustments to expenditures/expenses in the respective funds. 

 
  4. Interfund transfers - flow of assets from one fund to another where repayment is not expected 

are reported as transfers in and out. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements: 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 54

Interfund activity and balances, if any, are eliminated or reclassified in the government-wide financial 
statements as follows: 
 
  1. Internal balances - amounts reported in the fund financial statements as interfund 

receivables and payables are eliminated in the governmental and business-type activities 
columns of the Statement of Net Position, except for the net residual amounts due between 
governmental and business-type activities, which are reported as Internal Balances. 

 
2. Internal activities - amounts reported as interfund transfers in the fund financial statements 

are eliminated in the government-wide Statement of Activities except for the net amount of 
transfers between governmental and business-type activities, which are reported as 
Transfers - Internal Activities. The effect of interfund services between funds, if any, are 
not eliminated in the Statement of Activities. 

 
H. Stabilization Reserve Fund 
 
On March 21, 2011 the City Council adopted an ordinance which established requirements for a stabilization 
reserve.  This ordinance requires that the General Fund, Water Operating Fund, Wastewater Operating Fund, 
and Sanitation Fund set aside a certain amount each year which will be committed for the purpose of 
stabilization. 

 
The ordinance also established a minimum and maximum amount that must be set aside for this purpose.  The 
amount committed for stabilization for each fund should be between 16% and 35% of budgeted annual non-
capital operating expenses.  If the amounts committed for stabilization are less than the minimum required 
amounts, then 2% of budgeted annual non-capital operating expenses must be set aside each year until such 
minimum is met. 
 
Amounts committed for stabilization may be used only in certain limited and unusual circumstances that must 
be declared to exist by a 4/5th’s majority of the City Council.  The circumstances differ depending on whether 
the amounts to be used are in excess of the minimum required balance or below this level.   

 
For amounts in excess of the minimum required balances, one of the following criteria must be declared by the 
City Council: 

 
 Expenditures for emergency situations for life, health, or public safety issues for which no 

existing appropriation exists; 
 Situations where a significant revenue decline arises that could not have reasonably been 

foreseen, and for which new revenue is not available and transfers of existing appropriations are 
not considered feasible or appropriate in maintaining existing service levels; 

 Correcting the results of an inaccurate estimate, accounting error, or budgeting error; 
 Expenditures where the proposed use is of a non-operational nature involving capital or technical 

purchases having a useful life of greater than five years that will improve the efficiency of the 
City government.  These efficiency improvements should result in tangible benefits that can be 
measured financially, through better service to the citizens, or in increased productivity for City 
employees; 

 Expenditures where the proposed use is of a nonrecurring nature, such as a study, start-up costs of 
a program whose ongoing costs are otherwise funded, or matching funds for a grant.  These 
expenditures should result in tangible benefits that can be measured financially, through better 
service to the citizens, or in increased productivity for City employees. 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 55

For amounts that are below the minimum required balances, one of the following criteria must be declared by 
the City Council: 
 

 Expenditures for emergency situations for life, health, or public safety issues for which no 
existing appropriation exists; 

 Situations where a significant revenue decline arises that could not have reasonably been 
foreseen, and for which new revenue is not available and transfers of existing appropriations are 
not considered feasible or appropriate in maintaining exiting service levels; 

 Correcting the results of an inaccurate estimate, accounting error, or budgeting error. 
 
As of June 30, 2018, the City had the following balances committed for stabilization: 
 

Amount Original Stabilization
Committed Budgeted as % of

for Operating Budgeted
Stabilization Expenses Expenses

General $ 3,515,370 20,773,458$      16.9%
Wastewater 623,583 3,171,825 19.7%
Water 1,118,946 4,721,358 23.7%
Sanitation 740,681 2,857,072 25.9%

$ 5,998,580 31,523,713$      19.0%
 

 
I.  Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures; 
accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
J. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 
 
By its nature as a local government unit, the City and its component units are subject to various federal, state, 
and local laws and contractual regulations. 
 
K. Deficit Fund Balances or Net Position 
 
Title 11, Section 17-211 of the Oklahoma Statutes prohibits the creation of a deficit fund balance in any 
individual fund of the City (excluding public trusts). At June 30, 2018, the Workers’ Compensation internal 
service fund reported a deficit net position of $358,331.  This was related to an unfunded claims liability.  It is 
anticipated this deficit will be reduced with future charges to other funds. 
 
 
2. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments 

 
 At June 30, 2018, the reporting entity held the following deposits and investments: 

 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 56

Primary Government: 

Credit 
Rating

Carrying 
Value O n Demand

Less Than 
O ne 1-5

Type Deposits:

Petty Cash N/A $ 3,250          3,250          -                  -                  

Demand Deposits N/A 21,372,445 21,372,445 -                  -                  

T ime Deposits N/A 5,799,250   -                  5,749,629   49,621        

Total Deposits 27,174,945 

Investments:

Corporate Stocks and Bonds

Community Center N/A 4,144,603   -                  -                  -                  

Library Trust  Authority AAAAA 19,579        -                  -                  -                  

Agencies of the U.S. Govt.

GNMA/FHLB/FNMA/FFCR AAA 21,634,436 18,899,474 2,734,962   

Mutual Funds

Library Trust  Authority AAA-AAAAA 1,295,877   -                  -                  -                  

Total Investments: 27,094,495 

Note Payments held in trust and

 cash with fiscal agent 286,953      -                  -                  -                  
Total: $ 54,556,393 21,375,695 24,649,103 2,784,583   

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Government-wide $ 2,878,084   

Mausoleum 8,018          

Investments:

Government-wide 50,016,890 

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Government-wide, current 1,448,743   

Government-wide, noncurrent 204,658      
Total: $ 54,556,393 

Maturities in Years

 
The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally 
accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value 
of the asset.  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are 
significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 
 
The City has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2018: 
 
Corporate stocks and bonds of $4,164,182, U.S. Government and Agency bonds and notes of $21,634,436, 
and mutual funds of $1,295,877 were all valued using quoted market prices in active markets for identical 
assets which are Level 1 inputs.  
 

Custodial Credit Risk – Exposure to custodial credit risk related to deposits exists when the City holds 
deposits that are uninsured and uncollateralized with securities held by the pledging  financial institution, 
or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name: or collateralized without a written or 
approved collateral agreement.  Exposure to custodial credit risk related to investments exists when the 
City holds investments that are uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty or by 
its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name. 

 
The City’s policy as it relates to custodial credit risk is to secure its uninsured deposits with collateral, 
valued at no more than market value, at least at a level to cover the uninsured deposits and accrued interest 
thereon.  At June 30, 2018 the City was not exposed to custodial credit risk. 
 
Investment Interest Rate Risk - the City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment 
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 57

 
Investment Credit Risk - The City has no investment policy that limits its investment choices other than the 
limitation of state law as follows:  
 

a.  Direct obligations of the U. S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities to which the full 
faith and credit of the U. S. Government is pledged, or obligations to the payment of which the full 
faith and credit of the State is pledged. 
b.  Certificates of deposit or savings accounts that are either insured or secured with acceptable 
collateral with in-state financial institutions, and fully insured certificates of deposit or savings 
accounts in out-of-state financial institutions. 
c.  With certain limitation, negotiable certificates of deposit, prime bankers acceptances, prime 
commercial paper and repurchase agreements with certain limitations.  
d. County, municipal or school district tax supported debt obligations, bond or revenue anticipation 
notes, money judgments, or bond or revenue anticipation notes of public trusts whose beneficiary is a 
county, municipality or school district. 
e. Notes or bonds secured by mortgage or trust deed insured by the Federal Housing Administrator 
and debentures issued by the Federal Housing Administrator, and in obligations of the National 
Mortgage Association. 
f. Money market funds regulated by the SEC and in which investments consist of the investments 
mentioned in the previous paragraphs a, b, c, and d. 

 
Concentration of Investment Credit Risk - the City places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one 
issuer.   Since the City has all investments in certificates of deposit, government securities, or money 
market accounts, there is no concentration of investment credit risk exposure. 
 
Restricted Cash and Investments – The amounts reported as restricted assets of the proprietary fund 
statement of net position are comprised of amounts restricted for debt service, debt reserve, or 
construction purposes.  The restricted assets of governmental activities relates to amounts held for court 
bonds.  The restricted assets as of June 30, 2018 are as follows: 

Cash and cash Cash and cash
equivalents equivalents

Series 2009 Principal Bond Account -$               92,899$         
Series 2009 Interest Bond Account -                 88,153
Utility deposits 1,163,822 -               
Bartlesville Development Authority 225,630 -               
Bartlesville Educational Authority -                 23,606
Court bonds 59,291 -               

   Total 1,448,743$      204,658$       

Current Noncurrent

 
3.  Accounts and Notes Receivable 
 

A.  Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivable of the business-type activities includes customers 
utilities services provided, both billed and unbilled, due at year end, reported net of allowance for 
uncollectible amounts, interest, judgments, amounts due from other governments, and 
miscellaneous receivables.  The governmental activities receivables include fines, taxes, interest, 
and miscellaneous receivables as follows: 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 58

Less:  Allowance Net

Accounts for Uncollectible Accounts

Receivable Accounts Receivable

Governmental Activit ies:

  Franchise taxes 143,446$        -$               143,446$             

  Utilities(bug and light) (102,011)        16,839            (85,172)                

  Business Licsense 95,198 -                 95,198                 

  Court fines 372,096 -                 372,096               

  Fuel Billing 5,771 -                 5,771                   

  Abatement 98,803 -                 98,803                 

  Demolition 77,632 -                 77,632                 

  Lodging tax 54,863 -                 54,863                 

  E-911 tax 50,113 -                 50,113                 

  Other 53,184 (27,542)          25,642                 

  Interest receivable 296,957 -                 296,957               

     Total Governmental Activities 1,146,052$     (10,703)$        1,135,349$          

Business-Type Activities:

  Golf Memberships 14,360$          -$               14,360$               

  Utilities(sanitation) 448,483          (142,222)        306,261               

  Utilities(Waste water) 821,298          (352,272)        469,026               

  Utilities(Water) 1,350,965       (532,598)        818,367               

  Judgements(BMA) 107,825          -                 107,825               

  From other Govt 's 306,829          -                 306,829               

  Interest receivable 15,328            -                 15,328                 

  Other 176,572          -                 176,572               

Total Business-Type Activit ies 3,241,660$     (1,027,092)$   2,214,568$          

 
 
B. Incentive Loans Receivable –  
 
BDC, now BDA, Board of Directors on March 1, 2009 approved a loan to Sunway Hotel Group, Inc. to 
develop, construct, and operate a hotel in downtown Bartlesville. BDA Board of Directors approved the 
loan to provide development financing assistance and to defray a portion of the costs associated with the 
design, development and construction of the hotel for the principal amount of $1,250,000. The maturity 
date of the loan shall be June 1, 2020. Interest shall not accrue prior to June 1, 2010, but thereafter shall 
accrue on the principal balance at the rate of Wall Street Journal Prime plus two percent. Principal and 
interest shall be paid in ten annual payments. The first payment shall be due one year from the date the 
hotel is operational in the ordinary course of business. The first payment shall be comprised of ten percent 
of the principal balance together with all accrued and unpaid interest on the unpaid principal balance. 
 
Thereafter, Sunway Hotel Group Inc., beginning one year from the date of the first payment due, and then 
continuing on the same date of each successive year for nine consecutive annual periods, make payments 
of principal and accrued interest and unpaid interest. If the hotel has been operational in the ordinary 
course of business for the twelve months preceding the due date of each annual payment of principal and 
interest, Sunway Hotel Group Inc. shall be entitled to a credit equal to the principal amount and interest 
then due for such annual payment. It is the intention of the parties that if the hotel has been operational in 
the ordinary course of business for a period of ten years from the date of the first day of operations, then 
the note shall be considered paid in full. During each year for which the payment is credited against the 
note, the BDA will recognize incentive payment expense. Notes receivable due from the Sunway Hotel 
Group Inc. for the year ended June 30, 2018 were $304,921. Incentive expense for the hotel for the year 
ended June 30, 2018 was $160,938. 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 59

In the fiscal year of June 30, 2014, an economic development agreement was made between the BDC, 
now BDA, and Dilbeck Manufacturing Inc. The BDA agreed to a forgivable loan of $30,000 to Dilbeck, 
to be repaid in ten years, with the expectation that they would move operations and employ four 
employees. The BDA would then credit Dilbeck on their notes and interest with $1,000 for each new job 
created plus a proportionate share for each employee over four. During the year ended June 30, 2018, the 
BDA was notified that Dilbeck is in forebearance.  It was agreed that Dilbeck would pay the BDA $1,000 
with the remaining $14,000 written off and expensed to bad debt.   
 
In the fiscal year of June 30, 2014, an economic development agreement was made between the BDC, 
now BDA, and Husky Portable Containment Company. The BDA agreed to a forgivable loan of $150,000 
to Husky, to be repaid in ten years, with the expectation that they would move operations and employ 
twenty-two employees. The BDA would then credit Husky on their notes and interest with $1,000 for 
each new job created earning a wage of $31,200 or more, plus a proportionate share for each employee 
over twenty-two. During the year ended June 30, 2018, Husky employed twenty-five employees. 
Therefore, incentive expense for Husky was $3,480.  Due to not meeting the employment target, Husky 
repaid $11,385 to the BDA with the remaining $2,535 repaid in July 2018.  Notes receivable due from 
Husky for the year ended June 30, 2018 was $105,000. 
 
In the fiscal year of June 30, 2014, an economic development agreement was made between the BDC, 
now BDA, and Superior Companies Inc. The BDA agreed to a forgivable loan of $200,000 to Superior, to 
be paid in ten years, with the expectation that they would expand employment in the Bartlesville area by 
twenty employees over the current seventy. The BDA would then credit Superior on their notes and 
interest with $1,000 for each new job created in excess of seventy plus a proportionate share for each 
employee over twenty. During the year ended June 30, 2018, Superior did not add any employees; 
therefore, Superior is to repay $25,487 for fiscal year 2018, which is included in accounts receivable.  
The total accounts receivable from Superior at June 30, 2018 is $76,004.  Notes receivable due from 
Superior for the year ended June 30, 2018 was $120,000.  Superior made no repayments during the year 
ended June 30, 2018.  Subsequent to the date of the financial statements, the BDA has been notified that 
Superior is in forbearance.  Management has become doubtful that the remaining balance of the loan will 
be collectible.  Management has elected to not record an allowance for doubtful account due to the nature 
of the agreement being a forgivable loan and that if the terms of the agreement are met or not, there would 
be no difference in change in net position or cash flow. 
 

Balance Balance
7/1/2017 Additions Forgiven Payments 6/30/2018

Business-Type Activities/Bartlesville Development Authority:
Sunway/Hotel 445,812$      -$        (140,891)$  -$          304,921$        
Husky 120,000       -         (3,615)       (11,385)      105,000          
Dilbeck 15,000         -         (14,000)      (1,000)       -                 
Superior 140,000       -         (20,000)      -            120,000          
     Total Business-Type Activities/Bartlesville Development Authority 720,812$      -$        (178,506)$  (12,385)$    529,921$        

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
   Incentive loans receivable, current 183,468          
   Incentive loans receivable, noncurrent 346,453          

      Total Incentive Loans Receivable 529,921$        

 
4.  Capital Assets and Depreciation 
 
Capital Assets: 
 
Capital assets consist of land, land improvement, construction in progress, buildings and building 
improvements, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure.  Capital assets are reported at actual or 
estimated historical cost.  Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair value at the date of donation.   



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 60

 
For the year ended June 30, 2018, capital assets balances changed as follows: 
 

Balance at Balance at

July 1, 2017 Additions Disposals Transfers CIP June 30, 2018

Governmental activities:

  Capital assets not being depreciated:

    Land 3,353,945$       -$                 -$                  -$                  -$                  3,353,945$             

    Construction in progress 16,465,989       5,541,207     -                    -                    (5,822,742)    16,184,454             

      Total capital assets not being depreciated 19,819,934       5,541,207     -                    -                    (5,822,742)    19,538,399             

  Other capital assets:

Infrastructure and improvements 101,638,232     -                   -                    -                    5,596,743     107,234,975           

    Buildings 12,414,111       -                   -                    -                    -                    12,414,111             

Equipment and furniture 13,378,378       1,597,998     36,788          (286,421)       188,971        14,842,138             

      Total other capital assets at historical cost 127,430,721     1,597,998     36,788          (286,421)       5,785,714     134,491,224           

  Less accumulated depreciation for:

Infrastructure and improvements 40,969,732       3,173,642     -                    -                    -                    44,143,374             

    Buildings 7,824,325         497,862        -                    -                    -                    8,322,187               

Equipment and furniture 10,172,636       642,569        36,788          -                    -                    10,778,417             

      Total accumulated depreciation 58,966,693       4,314,073     36,788          -                    -                    63,243,978             

  Other capital assets, net 68,464,028       (2,716,075)   -                    (286,421)       5,785,714     71,247,246             

 Governmental activities capital assets, net 88,283,962$     2,825,132$   -$                  (286,421)$     (37,028)$       90,785,645$           

Business-type activities:

  Capital assets not being depreciated:

    Land 7,511,830$       -$                 260,000$      -$                  -$                  7,251,830$             

   Works of Art 46,137              -                   -                    -                    -                    46,137                    

    Construction in progress 24,228,403       54,875          -                    -                    -                    24,283,278             

      Total capital assets not being depreciated 31,786,370       54,875          260,000        -                    -                    31,581,245             

  Other capital assets:

Infrastructure and improvements 84,453,840       161,661        -                    -                    -                    84,615,501             

    Buildings 163,210,812     -                   -                    -                    -                    163,210,812           

Equipment and furniture 14,360,768       36,580          27,145          286,421        37,028          14,693,652             

      Total other capital assets at historical cost 262,025,420     198,241        27,145          286,421        37,028          262,519,965           

  Less accumulated depreciation for:

Infrastructure and improvements 48,685,875       2,146,458     -                    -                    -                    50,832,333             

    Buildings 61,552,945       3,910,090     -                    -                    -                    65,463,035             

Equipment and furniture 11,232,055       642,147        27,145          -                    -                    11,847,057             

   Total accumulated depreciation 121,470,875     6,698,695     27,145          -                    -                    128,142,425           

   Other capital assets, net 140,554,545     (6,500,454)   -                    286,421        37,028          134,377,540           

   Business-type activities capital assets, net 172,340,915$   (6,445,579)$ 260,000$      286,421$      37,028$        165,958,785$         

 
Depreciation of capital assets is included in total expenses and is charged or allocated to the activities 
primarily benefiting from the use of the specific asset.  Depreciation expense has been allocated as 
follows: 
 

Business-Type Activities:

Wastewater 1,361,778$   
955,253$        Water 2,383,215

Public safety 448,880 Sanitation 297,862
Public works 2,323,123 Golf 95,891
Culture and recreation 586,817 Swimming pools 193,590

Community center 392,991
Other 1,973,368

Depreciation expense 4,314,073$     6,698,695$   

Governmental Activities:

General government

 
On October 16, 2010, the BDC received a quit-claim deed from the City of Bartlesville for the Sunset 
Industrial Park.  The land was given to the BDC on a condition that they would maintain, insure, and market it 
as a possible location for local business development.  With the quit-claim deed, the Bartlesville City Council 
has the right to ask for the return of the deed and the property after twelve months.  During the year ended 
June 30, 2018, a portion of the land with a cost basis of $260,000 was sold for $200,000.  As of June 30, 2018, 
the Council has not requested the return of the land. 
 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 61

5.  Long-Term Debt and Debt Service Requirements 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the reporting entity’s long-term debt changed as follows: 
 

Balance Balance Due Within
Type of Debt July 1, 2017 Additions Deductions June 30, 2018 One Year

Governmental Activities:
General obligation bonds 16,515,000$        10,250,000$  3,030,000$    23,735,000$              3,425,000$     

    Workers' compensation claims liability 979,298               (214,870)        239,592         524,836                     209,934
    Accrued compensated absences 807,919 1,502,425      1,468,740      841,604                     84,160

    Total Governmental Activities 18,302,217          11,537,555    4,738,332      25,101,440                3,719,094       
Business-Type Activities:

Notes Payable 77,788,819          2,529,880      3,566,056      76,752,643                3,448,399       
Accrued compensated absences 163,972 365,803         363,286         166,489                     16,398

    Total Business-Type Activities 77,952,791          2,895,683      3,929,342      76,919,132                3,464,797       

Total Long-Term Debt 96,255,008$        14,433,238$  8,667,674$    102,020,572$            7,183,891$     

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Governmental Activities:

Due within one year - bonds, capital leases, contracts 3,425,000$                
Due within one year - compensated absences 84,160                       
Due within one year - claims payable 209,934                     
Due in more than one year - bonds, capital leases, contracts 20,310,000                
Due in more than one year - compensated absences 757,444                     
Due in more than one year - claims payable 314,902                     

Total Governmental Activities Long-term Debt 25,101,440$              

Business-Type Activities:
Due within one year - bonds, capital leases, contracts 3,448,399$                
Due within one year - compensated absences 16,398                       
Due in more than one year - bonds, capital leases, contracts 73,304,244                
Due in more than one year - compensated absences 150,091                     

Total Business-Type Activities Long-term Debt 76,919,132$              

 
 
Governmental accrued compensated absences will be liquidated by the general fund.    
 
 
Governmental activities long-term debt: 
 

    Governmental activities long-term debt payables from net revenues include the following: 
 
 
General Obligation Bonds To Be Repaid Through Governmental Type Activity: 
 
Under state law, the City annually levies taxes for the retirement of general obligation bonds computed by 
dividing the original principal amount of bonds by the number of tax years the bonds will be outstanding.  
State law also requires that a specific fund be established for the retirement of the general obligation bonds. 
The fund established is the City's Debt Service Fund. 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 62

General obligation bonds payable at June 30, 2018, are comprised of the following issues: 
 

Current -$              
Long-term 525,000        
Total 525,000        

Current -$              

Long-term 9,725,000     

Total 9,725,000     

Current $ 825,000        

Long-term 2,475,000     

Total 3,300,000     

Current 220,000        
Long-term 1,560,000     
Total 1,780,000     

Current 575,000        
Long-term 3,475,000     
Total 4,050,000     

Current 165,000        
Long-term 840,000        
Total 1,005,000     

Current 330,000        
Long-term 1,350,000     
Total 1,680,000     

On June 1, 2018 $9,725,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018A, serial bonds due
in annual installments of $1,140,000 through June 1, 2028; semi-annual interest at
rates varying from 2.75% to 3.00%. Proceeds used for equipment, parks and
recreational facilities, and streets, roads and bridges

On June 1, 2018 $525,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018B, serial bonds due in
one annual installment of $525,000 through June 1, 2020; semi-annual interest at rate
of 3.00%.  Proceeds used for storm drainage facilities.

On June 28, 2017, $3,300,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017, serial bonds due
in annual installments of $825,000 through June 1, 2022; semi-annual interest at rates
varying from 1.25% to 1.8%. Proceeds used for public safety equipment, parks,
recreational and cultural projects, and streets, roads and bridges.

On December 1, 2015, $2,000,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2015, serial bonds
due in annual installments of $220,000, except for a final installment of $240,000
through December 1, 2025; semi-annual interest at rates varying from 1.5% to 2.1%.

On December 1, 2014, $5,200,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2014B, serial bonds 
due in annual installments of $575,000, except for a final installment of $600,000
through December 1, 2024; semi-annual interest at rates varying from 1.1% to 2.1%.

On June 1, 2014, $1,500,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2014, serial bonds due in 
annual installments of $165,000, except for a final installment of $180,000 through June 
1, 2024; semi-annual interest at rates varying from 1% to 2.15%.

On November 1, 2012, $3,000,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2012, serial bonds
due in annual installments of $330,000, except for a final installment of $360,000
through November 1, 2022; semi-annual interest at rates varying from 1.8% to 1.05%.

 
Current 740,000        
Long-term -                    
Total 740,000        

Current 330,000        
Long-term 360,000        
Total 690,000        

Current          240,000 
Long-term                      - 
Total 240,000        

Total current portion       3,425,000 
Total long-term portion     20,310,000 

Total general obligation bonds $     23,735,000 

On September 1, 2008, $2,000,000 General Obligation Bonds Series 2008B, due in
annual installments of $220,000 through September 1, 2018; semi-annual interest at
rates varying from 2.7% to 5.7%.

On December 1, 2010, $5,000,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2010, serial bonds
due in annual installments of $710,000, except for a final installment of $740,000
through December 1, 2018; semi-annual interest at rates varying from 2.15% to .75%.

On September 1, 2009, $3,000,000 General Obligation Bonds Series 2009, due in annual
installments of $330,000 through September 1, 2020; semi-annual interest at rates
varying from 2.7% to 5.7%. 

 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 63

 
Business-type activities long-term debt payable from net revenues generated by and taxes pledged to the 
City’s business-type activities include the following: 

 
Notes Payable: 

Current $                    38,133 
Long-term                  114,399 
Total                  152,532 

Current                    36,300 
Long-term                  181,502 
Total                  217,802 

Current                    27,625 
Long-term                  138,124 
Total                  165,749 

Current                  210,000 
Long-term               2,770,000 
Total               2,980,000 

Current               1,180,000 
Long-term             30,065,000 
Total             31,245,000 

Current                  207,268 
Long-term               2,226,878 
Total               2,434,146 

Note payable by the BMA to the Oklahoma Water Resources Board, proceeds of $743,591
were used to refinance an interim construction loan on November 19, 2002, principle
payments of $19,066 are due semi-annually starting March 15, 2003. This note is interest
free, but is subject to a 0.5% administrative fee.  The note will mature March 15,  2022.

Note payable by the BMA to the Oklahoma Water Resources Board, proceeds of $726,006
were used to refinance an interim construction loan on March 31, 2004, principle payments
of $18,150 are due semi-annually starting September 15, 2004. This note bears no interest
but is subject to a 1/2% administrative fee.  The note will mature March 15, 2024.

Note payable by the BMA to the Oklahoma Water Resources Board, proceeds of $552,498
were used to refinance an interim construction loan on March 31, 2004, principle payments
of $13,812 are due semi-annually starting September 15, 2004. This note bears no interest
but is subject to a 1/2% administrative fee.  The note will mature March 15, 2024.

Note payable by the BMA to Arvest Bank proceeds of $3,355,000 were used to refinance
Oklahoma Water Resources Board Note 2009 to a fixed interest rate of 2.2% per annum on
May 24, 2016. Principal and interest are due semiannually starting on September 1, 2016.
Principal payments range from $85,000 to $135,000.  This note matures September 1, 2030. 

Note payable by the BMA to the Oklahoma Water Resources Board, proceeds of
$40,445,000 were used to refinance indebtedness incurred for construction water system.
Principle and interest payments of $2,387,700 will be due in two semi-annual installments
commencing on March 15, 2009. This note bears interest at a rate of 3.91% per annum. The
note will mature on March 15, 2036.

Note payable by the BMA to Oklahoma Water Resources Board. proceeds of $3,810,000
were used to finance construction improvements to the drinking water system on August
30, 2012, $500,000 of principal fogiveness was received due to State/Federal green initiative
grant bringing beginning balance to $3,310,000. This note bears interest at a rate of 2.29%
per annum. Principal and interest are due semiannually starting March 15, 2014. The note
will mature on September 15, 2028.

 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 64

Current                              - 
Long-term             24,950,000 
Total             24,950,000 

Current                  122,000 
Long-term                  404,686 
Total                  526,686 

The Note Payable bears a fixed interest rate of 4.25%.  BDA has no liability in the event
of default.  BDA did not guarantee payment of the $935,000 loan, it merely assigned the
lease.  American Heritage Bank holds the mortgage on the building and could foreclose in Current                  152,408 
the event Springs Global defaulted, but BDA would not be liable for any deficiency.  The Long-term                  491,885 
lease serves as collateral for this obligation Total                  644,293 

Current               1,355,821 
Long-term               9,731,425 
Total             11,087,246 

Note Payable to BancFirst of $2,529,880 dated January 11, 2018, to fund an incentive Current                  118,844 
payment to GBT Realty Corp. upon completion of Silver Lake Village, Phase I.  Tax Long-term               2,230,345 
increment financing (TIF) revenues will service the loan for a term of 15 years. Total               2,349,189 

Total current portion               3,448,399 
Total long-term portion             73,304,244 

Total notes payable $             76,752,643 

Note titled Bartlesville Education Authority Lease Revenue Note, Series 2013 payable by
the BEA to BOKF, proceeds of $24,950,000 used to establish construction escrow account
to finance construction improvements to Bartlesville High School and Central Middle
School on November 1, 2013.  Note bears interest at a rate of 2.46% per annum payable semi-
annually beginning July 1, 2014. Principal payments are due in two installments.
$16,000,000 is payable July 1, 2019 and $8,950,000 on July 1, 2020.

Note payable by the BRTA to BancFirst proceeds of $1,200,000 were used to finance costs
associated with the construction of Downtown Bartlesville Hotel. Principal and interest are
due annually on June 1st with a variable interest rate starting at 5.5%. The note will mature
on June 1, 2022.

Note payable by the BDA to Arvest proceeds of $6,865,000 were used to finance costs
associated with the construction of the original ABB facility in the Bartlesville Industrial
Park with additional principal authorized on March 21, 2013 to be used to expand said
facility with a total amount available of $17,000,000. Principal and interest payments of
$55,613 are due monthly from March 15, 2013 through July 30, 2014 increasing to $166,122
monthly starting December 15, 2014 through maturity with a variable interest rate indexed to 
Wall Street Prime on January 15th of each year (4.5% at June 30, 2018). The note will
mature on March 15, 2023.

 
 
All of the City’s notes with the OWRB have a debt coverage covenant of 125% of maximum annual debt 
service. As of June 30, 2018, the City fully complied with the requirement. 
 
Workers’ Compensation Claims Liability: 
 
The City self-insures workers’ compensation claims liability.  The administration of claims for insurance is 
primarily performed by third party administrators.  At June 30, 2018, the City's workers’ compensation claims 
liability was $524,836 based upon the estimated claims payable reported as reserves in the third party 
administrator's monthly and quarterly reports to the City.  The claims liability is reported in the Workers’ 
Comp internal service fund.  All court-ordered judgments are levied in accordance with State law over three 
years.  The following schedule shows the changes in the claims liability for the past three years: 
 

 Claims liability, June 30, 2015 1,083,097$        
  Claims and changes in estimates 198,356             
  Claims payments (330,475)            
Claims liability, June 30, 2016 950,978             
  Claims and changes in estimates 300,116             
  Claims payments (271,796)            
Claims liability, June 30, 2017 979,298             
  Claims and changes in estimates (214,870)            
  Claims payments (239,592)            
Claims liability, June 30, 2018 524,836$           

 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 65

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity: 
 
 

Governmental Activities

Year Ending June 30, General 
Obligation Bonds

Principal Interest

2019 3,425,000       580,665        
2020 3,605,000       461,496        
2021 3,255,000       389,725        
2022 3,255,000       321,501        
2023 2,460,000       250,800        

2024-2028 7,735,000       552,274        
     Totals 23,735,000$   2,556,461$   

 
 
 

Business Type Activities

Year Ending June 30, Notes Payable
Principal Interest

2019 3,448,399        2,922,225      
2020 19,749,269      2,535,796      
2021 12,862,069      2,013,273      
2022 4,045,755        1,680,394      
2023 3,875,325        1,451,796      

2024-2028 14,857,044      4,663,642      
2029-2033 10,179,782      2,574,611      
2034-2038 7,735,000        616,705         

     Totals 76,752,643$    18,458,442$  

 
 
 
 

6.  Net Position and Fund Balances 
 
The following tables show the fund balance classifications as shown on the Governmental Funds Balance 
Sheet: 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 66

Capital
Debt Improvement Other

General Service Sales Tax Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Total

Fund balances:
  Non-spendable
    Inventory 56,477$           -$            -$                 -$                   56,477$             
    Prepaid items 85,816             -            -                 -                    85,816              

Sub-total Non-spendable 142,293           -            -                 -                    142,293            
  Restricted for:
    Debt service -                   3,750,559   -                   -                     3,750,559          
    CIP Sales tax -                   -              3,409,775        -                     3,409,775          
    History museum -                   -              -                   124,955             124,955             
    E-911 -                   -              -                   96,690               96,690               
    Special library -                   -              -                   303,976             303,976             
    Special museum -                   -              -                   109,033             109,033             
    Economic development -                   -              -                   1,498,130          1,498,130          
    Library -                   -            -                 1,449,752        1,449,752          
    Restricted revenues -                   -              -                   241,154             241,154             
    Harshfield library donation -                   -              -                   771,574             771,574             
    Justice assistance -                   -              -                   41,489               41,489               
    Neighborhood parks -                   -              -                   8,375                 8,375                 
    Cemetery -                   -              -                   3,414                 3,414                 
    Housing TIF Districts -                   -              -                   1,232                 1,232                 
    Hotel Motel Tax Fund -                   -              -                   8,726                 8,726                 
    CIP Wastewater -                   -              -                   226,632             226,632             
    CIP Wastewater Regulatory -                   -              -                   1,561,189          1,561,189          
    CIP City Hall -                   -              -                   29,461               29,461               
    CIP Storm Sewer -                   -              -                   136,259             136,259             
    Community Develop Grant -                   -              -                   144,068             144,068             
    Capital reserve -                   -              -                   7,995,211          7,995,211          
    2008B G.O. bonds -                   -              -                   89                      89                      
    2009 G.O. bonds -                   -              -                   7,014                 7,014                 
    2010 G.O. bonds -                   -              -                   415                    415                    
    2012 G.O. bonds -                   -              -                   129,957             129,957             
    2014 G.O. bonds -                   -              -                   627,083             627,083             
    2014B G.O. bonds -                   -              -                   124,202             124,202             
    2015 G.O. bonds -                   -              -                   1,893,352          1,893,352          
    2017 G.O. bonds -                   -              -                   2,522,073          2,522,073          
    2018A GO bonds -                   -              -                   9,625,207          9,625,207          
    2018B GO bonds -                   -              -                   480,631             480,631             

Sub-total Restricted -                   3,750,559   3,409,775        30,161,343        37,321,677        
  Committed to:
    Stabilization reserve 5,998,580        -              -                   -                     5,998,580          
    Municipal airport -                   -              -                   270,500             270,500             
    Golf course -                   -              -                   19,157               19,157               

    Memorial stadium -                   -              -                   2,286                 2,286                 

Sub-total Committed 5,998,580        -              -                   291,943             6,290,523          

 Assigned to:

    Next year's budget 469,794           -              -                   -                     469,794             

  Unassigned: 3,682,233        -              -                   -                     3,682,233          

      Total fund balances 10,292,900$    3,750,559$ 3,409,775$      30,453,286$      47,906,520$      

 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 67

The restrictions of net position are as follows: 
Enabling Statutory External 

Legislation Requirement Contracts Total

Restricted Net Position - Governmental Activities:
Economic  Development -$           1,498,130$   -$           1,498,130$   
E-911 -             96,690         -            96,690         
Special Library -             303,976       -            303,976       
Special Museum -             109,033       -            109,033       
Bartlesville History Museum Trust Authority -              124,955       -            124,955       
Bartlesville Library Trust Authority -             1,449,752     -            1,449,752     
Restricted Revenues -              -              241,154      241,154       
Harshfield Library Donation -              -              771,574      771,574       
Justice Assistance Grant 41,489         -              -            41,489         
Neighborhood Park 8,375           -              -            8,375           
Cemetery Perpetual Care 3,414           -              -            3,414           

    Housing TIF Districts 1,232           -              -            1,232           
    Hotel Motel Tax Fund 8,726           -              -            8,726           

Debt Service 3,750,559     -              -            3,750,559     
Capital Improvement Funds:
    Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund -              3,409,775     -            3,409,775     

Wastewater Fund -              226,632       -            226,632       
Wastewater Regulatory Fund -              1,561,189     -            1,561,189     
Storm Sewer Fund -              136,259       -            136,259       

    CDBG Fund 144,068       -              -            144,068       
    City Hall -              29,461         -            29,461         
    Capital Reserve Fund -              7,995,211     -            7,995,211     
General Obligation Bond Funds:

2008B G.O. Bond Fund 89               -              -            89               
    2009 G.O. Bond Fund 7,014           -              -            7,014           
    2010 G.O. Bond Fund 415             -              -            415             
    2012 G.O. Bond Fund 129,957       -              -            129,957       
    2014 G.O. Bond Fund 627,083       -              -            627,083       
    2014B G.O. Bond Fund 124,202       -              -            124,202       
    2015 G.O. Bond Fund 1,893,352     -              -            1,893,352     
    2017 G.O. Bond Fund 2,522,073     -              -            2,522,073     
    2018A G.O. Bond Fund 9,625,207     -              -            9,625,207     
    2018B G.O. Bond Fund 480,631       -              -            480,631       

Total restricted net position 19,367,886$ 16,941,063$ 1,012,728$  37,321,677$ 

Restricted Net Position - Business-type Activities:
Bartlesville Municipal Authority -$            -$            181,052$    181,052$     
Bartlesville Development Authority -              -              1,040,000   1,040,000     
Bartlesville Education Authority -              -              23,606        23,606         
Bartlesville Redevelopment Trust Authority -              -              526,901      526,901       

Total restricted net position -$            -$            1,771,559$  1,771,559$   

 
 

Prior Period Adjustment 
Government-Wide

Wastewater Solid Waste Adams Golf Governmental Business-type
 Fund Water Fund Fund Course Activities Activities

Beginning fund balance/net position, as previously 
reported 16,907,087$   9,345,204$  1,469,918$    1,509,496$    88,293,823$        101,618,096$       

Net OPEB liability (58,780)           (189,146)      (151,134)       (36,127)          (802,373)              (435,186)              
Net OPEB Obligation 19,004            64,691         56,277           5,114             352,950               145,086                
OPEB Deferred outflow-contributions subsequent 2,107              6,780           5,418             1,295             28,763                 15,600                  

Beginning fund balance/net position, restated 16,869,418$   9,227,529$  1,380,479$    1,479,778$    87,873,163$        101,343,596$       

 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 68

7.  Internal and Interfund Balances and Transfers 
 

The City’s policy is to eliminate interfund transfers and balances in the statements of activities and net 
position to avoid the grossing up of balances.  Only the residual balances transferred between 
governmental and business-type activities are reported as internal transfers and internal balances and then 
offset in the total column in the government-wide statements. Interfund transfers and balances between 
funds are not eliminated in the fund financial statements.  
 
Balances: 

Due From Due To Amount Nature of Balance

Wastewater Fund General Fund 118,159$           To cover negative pooled cash
Water Fund General Fund 155,789             To cover negative pooled cash
BMA Wastewater General Fund 421,752             To cover negative pooled cash
BMA Water General Fund 222,801             To cover negative pooled cash

Total 918,501$           

Reconciliation to Fund Financial Statements:
Due From Due To Net

Governmental Funds 918,501$           -$                   918,501$                                       
Proprietary Funds -                     (918,501)            (918,501)                                        

Total 918,501             (918,501)            -                                                 

Reconciliation to Government-Wide Statements:
Net Interfund Balances 918,501             (918,501)            

Consolidation of internal service
funds activities related to
enterprise funds 88,816               (88,816)              

       Total Internal Balances 1,007,317$        (1,007,317)$       

 
Transfers: 
Internal transfers between funds and activities for the year ended June 30, 2018 were as follows: 

Transfer From Transfer To Amount Purpose of Transfer

Bartlesville Library Trust Authority Special Library Fund 70,265$                  To subsidize the operations of the fund

BMA - Wastewater Wastewater Fund 4,097,567               To subsidize the operations of the fund

BMA - Water Water Fund 6,137,691               To subsidize the operations of the fund

General Fund Adams Municipal Golf Course Fund 147,484                  To subsidize the operations of the fund

General Fund Bartlesville History Museum Trust  Authority 5,500                      To subsidize the operations of the fund

General Fund Capital Reserve Fund 446,500                  Capital reserve fund established by Ordinance

General Fund E-911 Fund 473,187                  To subsidize the operations of the fund

General Fund Frontier Pool Fund 58,446                    To subsidize the operations of the fund

General Fund Sooner Pool Fund 44,393                    To subsidize the operations of the fund

Memorial Stadium Operating Fund General Fund 14,171                    To subsidize the operations of the fund

Hotel Motel Tax Fund Bartlesville Community Center Trust Authority 311,360                  To subsidize the operations of the fund

BRTA Pass-through Bartlesville Redevelopment T rust Authority 702,347                  Transfer T IF, sales tax, and hotel/motel tax

Economic Development Fund Bartlesville Development Authority 1,094,168               To subsidize the operations of the fund

Solid Waste Fund Capital Reserve Fund 750,000                  Capital reserve fund established by Ordinance

Solid Waste Fund General Fund 1,055,339               To subsidize the operations of the fund

Wastewater Fund General Fund 1,072,034               To subsidize the operations of the fund

Water Fund Capital Reserve Fund 16,000                    Capital reserve fund established by Ordinance

Water Fund General Fund 1,809,027               To subsidize the operations of the fund

General Fund General Fund-Stabilizat ion Fund 436,308                  Stabilization reserve fund established by Ordinance

Solid Waste Fund General Fund-Stabilizat ion Fund 80,508                    Stabilization reserve fund established by Ordinance

Wastewater Fund General Fund-Stabilizat ion Fund 84,803                    Stabilization reserve fund established by Ordinance

Water Fund General Fund-Stabilizat ion Fund 128,003                  Stabilization reserve fund established by Ordinance

     Total 19,035,101$           

Reconciliation to Fund Financial Statements: Statement of
Government-Wide Activities

Transfers In Transfers Out Capital Asset Transfers Net Transfers
Governmental Funds 6,441,645$                                                (3,804,129)$            (323,449)$                                           2,314,067$        
Proprietary Funds 12,593,456                                                (15,230,972)            323,449                                              (2,314,067)        

19,035,101$                                              (19,035,101)$          -$                                                    -$                  

 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 69

8.  Pledged Future Revenues 
 

Utility Net Revenues Pledge – The City has pledged the net water and sewer utility revenues to repay the 
following notes payable:  $552,498 of 2004C SRF, $3,810,000 of 2012 SRF, $40,445,000 of 2008 SRF, 
$743,591 of 2002A SRF, and $726,006 of 2004A SRF Oklahoma Water Resources Board Notes Payable 
as well as $3,355,000 utility system revenue note 2016 with Arvest Bank. Proceeds from the bonds 
provided for the purchase or construction of water and utility systems.  The bonds are payable from 
pledged net water and sewer utility revenues through 2037.  The total principal and interest payable for 
the remainder of the life of these bonds is $50,910,028.  Pledged net water and sewer utility revenues in 
the current fiscal year were $3,783,258.  Debt service payments of $3,026,606 for the current fiscal year 
were 80% of total pledged revenues for these notes. 
 
9.  Risk Management 

 
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; employee health and life; and natural disasters. The City 
manages these various risks of loss as follows: 

 
 General Liability – Covered through participation in Oklahoma Municipal Assurance 

Group risk entity pool (1) 
 Physical Property – Purchased insurance with $2,500 deductible  
 Workers’ Compensation – Self-insured with third-party administration of the claims process 

(2) 
 Employee’s Group Medical – Self-insured with City paying a portion of health care and life 

and disability premiums (3) 
 

 (1) Liability Protection Plan 
 

The basic insurance agreements cover claims against municipalities for all government functions, 
utilities, and services covered in the Plan.  These include bodily injury, property damage, wrongful 
acts, personal injury, and related torts under the state tort claims law and federal civil rights laws.  

 All public officials, employees, services, and municipal functions are covered unless they are 
specifically listed as exclusions in the Plan. 

 
 The titles to all assets acquired by the Plan are vested in the Group.  In the event of termination of 

the Group, such property shall belong to the then members of the Group in equal shares.  Each 
participating City pays all costs, premiums, or other fees attributable to its respective participation in 
the Plan, and is responsible for its obligation under any contract entered into with the Plan. 

 
 Reserves for claim losses include provisions for reported claims on a case basis and an estimate of 

claims incurred but not reported limited by aggregate and individual loss levels as specified by the 
Plan's reinsurance contracts.  These credits, if any, represent contingent liabilities of the Plan if the 
reinsurer was unable to meet its obligations under the reinsurance agreement. 

 
 The Plan's insurance agreements are reinsured for excess losses based upon the contract year.  The 

significant components of each reinsurance contract can be obtained from the Plan's annual financial 
report. 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 70

 (2) Workers’ Compensation 
 

The Workers’ Compensation Insurance Fund is used to account for activities with participating funds 
charged through an estimated annual claim cost for each fund. Judgments are levied on property 
taxes. The claims process is administered by Consolidated Benefits Resource.  The entire risk of loss 
is retained by the City. 
 
(3) Health and Life Insurance: 
 
Health insurance is administered by Blue Cross Blue Shield of Oklahoma. Life and disability 
insurance is purchased through Allstate.  The City retains no risk associated with life and disability.  
Health claims are reinsured with a self-insured retention level of $100,000 individual and $3,120,843 
aggregate. 

 
The City maintains a stop-loss policy for plans to limit risk associated with the plans. For insured programs, 
there have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage. Settlement amounts have not exceeded 
insurance coverage for the current year or the three prior years. 
 
 
10.  Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Litigation: 

 
The City is a party to various legal proceedings which normally occur in the course of 
governmental operations.  The financial statements do not include accruals or provisions for loss 
contingencies that may result from these proceedings.  State statutes provide for the levy of an ad 
valorem tax over a three-year period by a City Sinking Fund for the payment of any court 
assessed judgment rendered against the City.  While the outcome of the above noted proceedings 
cannot be predicted, due to the insurance coverage maintained by the City and the State statute 
relating to judgments, the City feels that any settlement or judgment not covered by insurance 
would not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City. 

 
Federal and State Award Programs: 

 
In the normal course of operations, the City participates in various federal or state grant/loan 
programs from year to year. The grant/loan programs are often subject to additional audits by agents 
of the granting or loaning agency to ensure compliance with specific provisions of the grant or loan. 
Any liability or reimbursement which may arise as a result of these audits cannot be reasonably 
determined at this time, although it is believed that the amount, if any, would not be material. 

 
Construction Commitments: 
 

At June 30, 2018, the City had awarded construction contracts totaling $6,369,669 for various City 
projects and of this amount $624,376 was outstanding and payable from various funds. 

 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 71

Operating Leases: 
 

The City leases office space on the 4th floor of City Hall and the Bartlesville Municipal Airport to 
ConocoPhillips. 

    
 
BRTA Series 2009B Note: 
 
 In accordance with the Downtown Bartlesville Hotel Project Master Development Agreement, on 

May 15, 2009, BRTA executed a development and financing assistance agreement, coined the “Series 
2009B Note”.  The agreement, structured similar to a note obligation, requires BRTA to pay the 
principal amount of $1,250,000 to Bartlesville Hotel, LLC, with interest accruing at 7.00% per 
annum.  The Series 2009B Note shall be a special, limited obligation of BRTA payable solely from 
Allocable Increment Revenues received by BRTA.  Allocable Increment Revenues shall mean in any 
given loan year: a) two-thirds of those incremental occupancy tax revenues generated from the 
operations of the Project Facilities (Hilton Garden Inn Hotel) between September 1, 2010 and August 
31, 2018 and, b) those incremental sales tax revenues generated from the operation of the Project 
Facilities between September 1, 2010 and August 31, 2020, and collected with the boundaries of the 
“Downtown Bartlesville Hotel Increment District,” less certain direct administrative costs and 
professional service costs.  Interest shall not begin to accrue on the outstanding principal balance until 
November 1, 2010.  Thereafter, interest accrued at 7.00% shall be due and payable on November 1, 
2011, and on each November 1st thereafter, until this note has been paid in full.  All accrued and 
unpaid interest shall be due and payable at the time the unpaid principal balance becomes due and 
payable in full.  Principal on this Series 2009B Note shall be due in a single installment on November 
1, 2020, in the full amount of the then outstanding balance of the principal of the note.  All payments 
of principal and interest made by BRTA shall be applied, first to interest accrued and unpaid on this 
note and, second, to the payment of principal.  Unique to this obligation, all principal and interest 
payments are payable solely from the Allocable Increment Revenues as defined above, such that if 
amounts are insufficient to satisfy this obligation, no other amounts are due or payable to Bartlesville 
Hotel LLC.  Considering this, only amounts receivable for allocable revenues are reflected as payable 
under this obligation.  The outstanding balance of this incentive obligation as of June 30, 2018 is 
$317,342. 

 
 
Subsequent Events: 
 
Subsequent to June 30, 2018, the City issued G.O. Bonds 2018C in the amount of $2.5 million for capital 
improvements. 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 72

11. Pension Plan Participation 
 
The City of Bartlesville participates in four pension or retirement plans: 
 

 Oklahoma Firefighter’s Pension and Retirement System (OFPRS) – a statewide cost-
sharing plan. 

 Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System (OPPRS) – a statewide cost-sharing plan. 
 Defined Contribution Plan 
 Employee Retirement System Defined Benefit Plan 

 
The aggregate total for all pension related items for three defined benefit plans are as follows:

Governmental Business-type Plan 
Activities Activities Totals

Pension Expense:
Employee Retirement System 316,372$            171,592$          487,964$         
Police 432,873              -                  432,873          
Firefighters 1,815,607            -                  1,815,607        

2,564,852$          171,592$          2,736,444$      

Net Pension Liability:
Employee Retirement System 5,176,692$          2,807,698$        7,984,390$      
Police 72,459                -                  72,459            
Firefighters 15,754,458 -                  15,754,458      

21,003,609$        2,807,698$        23,811,307$    

Deferred Outflow:
Employee Retirement System 1,186,169$          615,208$          1,801,377$      
Police 942,542 -                  942,542
Firefighters 3,498,165 -                  3,498,165

5,626,876$          615,208$          6,242,084$      

Deferred Inflow:
Employee Retirement System 413,869$            401,559$          815,428$         
Police 479,164 -                  479,164
Firefighters 909,542 -                  909,542

1,802,575$          401,559$          2,204,134$      

 
 
 
Firefighters’ Plan: 
 
Plan description -  The City of Bartlesville, as the employer, participates in the Firefighters Pension & 
retirement—a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Oklahoma 
Firefighters Pension & Retirement System (FPRS). Title 11 of the Oklahoma State Statutes grants the 
authority to establish and amend the benefit terms to the FPRS. FPRS issues a publicly available financial 
report that can be obtained at www.ok.gov/fprs 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 73

 
Benefits provided - FPRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to members of the plan. 
Benefits for members hired prior to November 1, 2013 are determined as 2.5 percent of the employee’s 
final average compensation times the employee’s years of service and have reached the age of 50 or have 
completed 20 years of service, whichever is later. For volunteer firefighters, the monthly pension benefit 
for normal retirement is $150.60 per month. Benefits vest with 10 years or more of service 
 
Benefits for members hired after November 1, 2013 are determined as 2.5 percent of the employee’s final 
average compensation times the employee’s years of service and have reached the age of 50 or have 
complete 22 years of service, whichever is later. For volunteer firefighters, the monthly pension benefit 
for normal retirement is $165.66 per month. Benefits vest with 11 years or more of service 
 
All firefighters are eligible for immediate disability benefits. For paid firefighters, the disability in-the-
line-of-duty benefit for firefighters with less than 20 years of service is equal to 50% of final average 
monthly compensation, based on the most recent 30 months of service. For firefighters with over 20 years 
of service, a disability in-the-line-of-duty is calculated based on 2.5% of final average monthly 
compensation, based on the most recent 30 months, per year of service, with a maximum of 30 years of 
service. For disabilities not-in-the-line-of-duty, the benefit is limited to only those with less than 20 years 
of service and is 50% of final average monthly compensation, based on the most recent 60-month salary 
as opposed to 30 months. For volunteer firefighters, the not-in-line-of-duty disability is also limited to 
only those with less than 20 years of service and is $7.53 per year of service. For volunteer firefighters, 
the in-line-of-duty pension is $150.60 with less than 20 years of service, or $7.53 per year of service, with 
a maximum of 30 years. 
 
A $5,000 lump sum death benefit is payable to the qualified spouse or designated recipient upon the 
participant's death. The $5,000 death benefit does not apply to members electing the vested benefit. 
 
Contributions - The contributions requirements of the Plan are at an established rate determined by 
Oklahoma Statute and are not based on actuarial calculations.  Employees are required to contribute 9% 
percent of their annual pay.  Participating cities are required to contribute 14% of the employees’ annual 
pay. Contributions to the pension plan from the City were $525,422.  The State of Oklahoma also made 
on-behalf contributions to FPRS in the amount of $1,242,376 (modified-accrual); these on-behalf 
payments did not meet the criteria of a special funding situation. For full-accrual reporting, the amount of 
on-behalf payments made were $1,103,977. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions - At June 30, 2018, the City reported a liability of $15,754,458 for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 
2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2017. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the 
City’s contributions received by the pension plan relative to the total contributions received by pension 
plan for all participating employers as of June 30, 2017.  Based upon this information, the City’s 
proportion was 1.2526% percent. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the City recognized pension expense of $1,815,607.  At June 30, 2018, 
the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
from the following sources: 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 74

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources

Differences between expected and actual 
experience 2,104,524$           -$                   

Net difference between projected and 
actual earnings on pension plan 
investments -                      439,023              

Changes in proportion related to city 
contributions during the measurement 
period -                      13,836                

Changes in proportion and differences 
between City contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 868,219               456,683              

City contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 525,422               -                     
Total 3,498,165$           909,542$             

 
 
The $525,422 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Year ended June 30:
2019 197,137$       
2020 684,605         
2021 530,766         
2022 84,262           
2023 457,213         
2024 109,218         
Total 2,063,201$     

 
 

Actuarial Assumptions-The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 
2017, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the measurement: 
 

Inflation:    3% 
Salary increases:   3.5% to 9.0% average, including inflation 
Investment rate of return:   7.5% net of pension plan investment expense 
 

Mortality rates were based on the RP2000 combined healthy with blue collar adjustment as appropriate, 
with adjustments for generational mortality improvement using scale AA for healthy lives and no 
mortality improvement for disabled lives.  
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2017, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2007, to June 30, 2012.  
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 75

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges 
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates 
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of 
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan's target asset 
allocation as of June 30, 2017, are summarized in the following table: 
 

Target Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Allocation  Real Rate of Return

Fixed income 20% 4.38%
Domestic equity 47% 7.72%
International equity 15% 9.70%
Real estate 10% 6.96%
Other assets 8% 5.75%

 
 

 
Discount Rate-The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5%. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be 
made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at contractually 
required rates, determined by State statutes. Projected cash flows also assume the State of Oklahoma will 
continue contributing 36% of the insurance premium, as established by statute. Based on these 
assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected 
future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability. 
 
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate-The following presents the net 
pension liability of the employers calculated using the discount rate of 7.5%, as well as what the Plan's 
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower 
(6.5%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.5%) than the current rate: 
 

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

(6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)

Employers' Net Pension Liability 20,667,551$      15,754,458$      11,590,736$      
 
Pension plan fiduciary net position - Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position 
is available in the separately issued financial report of the FPRS; which can be located at 
www.ok.gov/fprs . 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 76

Police Plan: 
 
Plan description-The City of Bartlesville, as the employer, participates in the Oklahoma Police Pension 
and Retirement Plan—a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the 
Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System (OPPRS). Title 11 of the Oklahoma State Statutes, 
through the Oklahoma Legislature, grants the authority to establish and amend the benefit terms to the 
OPPRS. OPPRS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at www.ok.gov/OPPRS. 
 
Benefits provided-OPPRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to members of the plan.  
The normal retirement date under the Plan is the date upon which the participant completes 20 years of 
credited service, regardless of age. Participants become vested upon completing 10 years of credited 
service as a contributing participant of the Plan. No vesting occurs prior to completing 10 years of 
credited service. Participants’ contributions are refundable, without interest, upon termination prior to 
normal retirement. Participants who have completed 10 years of credited service may elect a vested 
benefit in lieu of having their accumulated contributions refunded. If the vested benefit is elected, the 
participant is entitled to a monthly retirement benefit commencing on the date the participant reaches 50 
years of age or the date the participant would have had 20 years of credited service had employment 
continued uninterrupted, whichever is later.  
 
Monthly retirement benefits are calculated at 2.5% of the final average salary (defined as the average paid 
base salary of the officer over the highest 30 consecutive months of the last 60 months of credited service) 
multiplied by the years of credited service, with a maximum of 30 years of credited service considered.  
 
Monthly benefits for participants due to permanent disability incurred in the line of duty are 2.5% of the 
participants’ final average salary multiplied by 20 years. This disability benefit is reduced by stated 
percentages for partial disability based on the percentage of impairment. After 10 years of credited 
service, participants who retire due to disability incurred from any cause are eligible for a monthly benefit 
based on 2.5% of their final average salary multiplied by the years of service. This disability benefit is 
also reduced by stated percentages for partial disability based on the percentage of impairment. Effective 
July 1, 1998, once a disability benefit is granted to a participant, that participant is no longer allowed to 
apply for an increase in the dollar amount of the benefit at a subsequent date.  
 
Survivor’s benefits are payable in full to the participant’s beneficiary upon the death of a retired 
participant. The beneficiary of any active participant killed in the line of duty is entitled to a pension 
benefit.  
 
Contributions -The contributions requirements of the Plan are at an established rate determined by 
Oklahoma Statute and are not based on actuarial calculations.  Employees are required to contribute 8% 
percent of their annual pay.  Participating cities are required to contribute 13% of the employees’ annual 
pay. Contributions to the pension plan from the City were $380,885.  The State of Oklahoma also made 
on-behalf contributions to OPPRS in the amount of $374,928 during the fiscal year and this is reported as 
both expense and revenue in the General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balance.    In the government-wide Statement of Activities, revenue is recognized for the state’s on-
behalf contributions on an accrual basis of $322,949.  These on-behalf payments did not meet the criteria 
of a special funding situation. 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 77

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions -At June 30, 2018, the City reported a liability of $72,459 for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 
2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension asset was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of July 1, 2017. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the City’s 
contributions received by the pension plan relative to the total contributions received by pension plan for 
all participating employers as of June 30, 2017.  Based upon this information, the City’s proportion was 
0.9420 percent. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the City recognized pension expense of $432,873.  At June 30, 2018, 
the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources

Differences between expected and 
actual experience 3,639$                 438,070$             

Net difference between projected and 
actual earnings on pension plan 
investments 539,697               -                     

Changes in proportion 16,357                 39,135                
Difference between City contributions 
and proportionate share of 
contributions during measurement 
period 1,964                   1,959                  
City contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 380,885               -                     
Total 942,542$             479,164$             

 
 

The $380,885 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease of the net pension 
liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Year ended June 30:
2019 (27,005)$        
2020 256,705         
2021 116,275         
2022 (216,050)        
2023 (47,432)          
Total 82,493$         

 
Actuarial Assumptions-The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 
2017, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the measurement: 
 

Inflation:    3% 
 
Salary increases:   4.5% to 17% average, including inflation 
 
Investment rate of return: 7.5% net of pension plan investment expense 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 78

 
Cost-of-living adjustment:  Police officers eligible to receive increased benefits according to 

repealed Section 50-120 of Title 11 of the Oklahoma Statutes pursuant to 
a court order receive an adjustment of 1/3 to ½ of the increase or 
decrease of any adjustment to the base salary of a regular police officer, 
based on an increase in base salary 

 
Mortality rates:  Active employees (pre-retirement) RP-2000 Blue Collar 

Healthy Combined table with age set back 4 years with fully generational 
improvement using Scale AA. 

Active employees (post-retirement) and non-disabled pensioners: RP-
2000 Blue Collar Healthy Combined table with fully generational 
improvement using scale AA. 

 Disabled pensioners: RP-2000 Blue Collar Healthy Combined 
table with age set forward 4 years with fully generational 
improvement using Scale AA. 
 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2017, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2007, to June 30, 2012.  
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges 
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates 
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of 
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan's target asset 
allocation as of June 30, 2017, are summarized in the following table: 
 

Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Real Rate of Return

Fixed income 4.51%
Domestic equity 6.62%
International equity 9.70%
Real estate 6.96%
Private Equity 9.86%
Commodities 5.18%  

 
The current allocation policy is that approximately 60% of assets in equity instruments, including public 
equity, long-short hedge, venture capital, and private equity strategies; approximately 25% of assets in 
fixed income to include investment grade bonds, high yield and non-dollar denominated bonds, 
convertible bonds, and low volatility hedge fund strategies; and 15% of assets in real assets to include real 
estate, commodities, and other strategies. 
 
Discount Rate-The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5%. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be 
made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at contractually 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 79

required rates, determined by State statutes. Projected cash flows also assume the State of Oklahoma will 
continue contributing 14% of the insurance premium, as established by statute. Based on these 
assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected 
future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability. 
 
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate-The following presents the net 
pension liability of the employers calculated using the discount rate of 7.5%, as well as what the Plan's 
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower 
(6.5%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.5%) than the current rate: 
 

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(6.5%) Rate (7.5%) (8.5%)

Employers' net pension liability (asset) 2,448,934$      72,459$              (1,934,832)$       
 
Pension plan fiduciary net position-Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position 
is available in the separately issued financial report of the OPPRS; which can be located at 
www.ok.gov/OPPRS . 
 
 
 
Defined Benefit Plan: 
 
A.   Plan Description 
  
 The City contributes to the OkMRF for all eligible employees except for those covered by the Police 

and Firefighter Pension Systems.  The plan is an agent multiple employer - defined benefit plan 
administered by OkMRF.  The OkMRF plan issues a separate financial report and can be obtained 
from OkMRF or from their website:  www.okmrf.org/reports.html.  Benefits are established or 
amended by the City Council in accordance with O.S. Title 11, Section 48-101-102.   

 
B.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of the City’s plan and additions to/deductions from the City’s fiduciary net position have 
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by OkMRF.  For this purpose, benefit 
payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  
Investments are reported at fair value based on published market prices.  Detailed information 
about the OkMRF plans’ fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued OkMRF 
financial report. 

C. Eligibility Factors and Benefit Provisions 
        As of 07/01/18 
  Provision     OkMRF Plan 
  a.  Eligible to participate   Full-time employees except police, firefighters 

and other employees who are covered under an 
approved system, who joined the plan prior to 
1/1/2010. 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 80

   
  b.  Period Required to Vest  7 years of credited service 
 
  c.  Eligibility for Distribution  -Normal retirement at age 65 with 7 years of 

service 
       -Early retirement at age 55 with 7 years of 
       Service, or meeting the Rule of 80 
       -Disability retirement upon disability with 7 years 

of service 
       -Death benefit with 7 years of service 
 
  d.  Benefit Determination Base  Final average salary - the average of the five 

highest consecutive annual salaries out of the last 
10 calendar years of service 

  e.  Benefit Determination Methods: 
        Normal Retirement   -2.50% of final average salary multiplied by 

credited years of service 
 
        Early Retirement   -Actuarially reduced benefit based upon age, final 

average salary, and years of service at 
termination, unless Rule of 80 is met, then full 
benefit 

   
        Disability Retirement  -Same as normal retirement 
 
        Death Benefit   -50% of employees accrued benefit, but 

terminates upon spouse re-marriage.  For 
unmarried participants, 50% of employees 
accrued benefit for 120 months paid to 
beneficiary 

 
        Prior to 7 Years of Service  -No benefits 
 
  f.  Benefit Authorization   -Benefits are established and amended by City 

Council adoption of an ordinance in accordance 
with O.S. Title, 11, Section 48-101-102 

 
  g.  Form of Benefit Payments  Normal form is a 60 months certain and life 

thereafter basis.  Employee may elect, with City 
consent, option form based on actuarial 
equivalent. 

 
D. Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 
  Active Employees     103 
  Active Employees – opted out 1/1/2010       26 
  Deferred Vested Former Employees     35 
  Retirees or Retiree Beneficiaries    108 
       Total       272     

 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 81

 
E.   Contribution Requirements 

 
The City Council has the authority to set and amend contribution rates by ordinance for the OkMRF 
defined benefit plan in accordance with O.S. Title 11, Section 48-102.  The contribution rates for the 
current fiscal year have been made in accordance with an actuarially determined rate.  The 
actuarially determined rate is 20.17% of covered payroll as of July 1, 2017.  For the year ended June 
30, 2018, the City recognized $1,154,659 of employer contributions to the plan which exceeds the 
actuarially determined amount based on covered payroll of $5,253,692.  Employees contribute 6% 
to the plan in accordance with the plan provisions adopted by the City Council. 
 
 

F.  Actuarial Assumptions 
 
     Date of Last Actuarial Valuation   July 1, 2017 
     a.  Actuarial cost method    Entry age normal 
   
     b.  Rate of Return on Investments and Discount Rate 7.50% 
 
     c.  Projected Salary Increase    Varies between 7.50% and 4.5% based 

on age 
 
     d.  Post Retirement Cost-of-Living Increase  Benefits (attributable to service prior to 

1/1/2010) in payment status are adjusted 
each July 1st based on the percentage 
change in the CPI. The maximum 
increase or decrease in any year is 2.75%. 

 
     e.  Inflation Rate     2.75% 
 
     f.  Mortality Table     UP 1994, with projected mortality 

improvement 
 
     g.  Percent of married employees   100% 
 
     h.  Spouse age difference    3 years (female spouses younger) 
 
     i.  Turnover      Select and ultimate rates 
        Ultimate rates are age-related as shown 
        Additional rates per thousand are 
         added during the first 5 years: 
         Year 1: 225 
         Year 2: 140 
         Year 3: 100 
         Year 4:   70 
         Year 5:   40   
 
      j.  Date of last experience study   September 2012 for fiscal years 2007 

thru 2011 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 82

 
G. Discount Rate – The discount rate used to value benefits was the long-term expected rate of 

return on plan investments, 7.50% since the plan’s net fiduciary position is projected to be 
sufficient to make projected benefit payments. 

 
The City has adopted a funding method that is designed to fund all benefits payable to 
participants over the course of their working careers.  Any differences between actual and 
expected experience are funded over a fixed period to ensure all funds necessary to pay benefits 
have been contributed to the trust before those benefits are payable.  Thus, the sufficiency of 
pension plan assets was made without a separate projection of cash flows. 

 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class.  These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by 
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by 
adding expected inflation (2.75%).  Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major 
asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of July 1, 2017 are summarized 
in the following table: 
 

Target Real Weighted

Allocation Return Return

Large cap stocks 25% 5.80% 1.45%

   S&P 500

Small/mid cap stocks 10% 6.40% 64.00%

   Russell 2500

Long/short equity 10% 5.00% 50.00%

   MSCI ACWI

International stocks 20% 6.20% 1.24%

   MSCI EAFE

Fixed income bonds 30% 2.30% 0.69%

   Barclay's Capital Aggregate

Real estate 5% 4.60% 0.23%

   NCREIF

Cash equivalents 0% 0.00% 0.00%

   3 month Treasury

TOTAL 100%

Average Real Return 4.75%

Inflation 2.75%

Long-term expected return 7.50%

 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 83

H. Changes in Net Pension Liability – The total pension liability was determined based on an actuarial 
valuation performed as of July 1, 2017 which is also the measurement date.  There were some 
changes in assumptions for:  reduce discount rate from 7.75% to 7.50%; change in turnover rates; and 
change in pay increase assumptions.  There have not been changes in benefit terms that affected 
measurement of the total pension liability.  There were also no changes between the measurement 
date of July 1, 2017 and the City’s report ending date of June 30, 2018, that would have had a 
significant impact on the net pension liability. The following table reports the components of changes 
in net pension liability: 

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Net Net Pension

Liability Position Liability

(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balances Beginning of Year 24,985,576$    15,298,668$      9,686,908$       

Changes for the Year:

Service cost 314,106           -                     314,106            

Interest expense 1,897,724        -                     1,897,724         

Experience losses (gains) - (879,788)          (879,788)           

(amortized over avg remain svc period of actives & inactives)

Changes of assumptions 283,261           283,261            

Contributions--City -                   1,118,024          (1,118,024)        

Contributions--members -                   317,015             (317,015)           

Net investment income -                   1,916,169          (1,916,169)        

Benefits paid (1,016,605)       (1,016,605)         -                    

Plan administrative expenses -                   (33,387)              33,387              

Net Changes 598,698           2,301,216          (1,702,518)        

Balances End of Year 25,584,274$    17,599,884$      7,984,390$       

 
Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate.  The following presents the net 
pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 7.50 percent, as well as what the City’s 
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower 
(6.50 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.50 percent) than the current rate: 

 
1% Current 1%

Decrease Discount Increase

(6.50%) Rate (7.50%) (8.50%)

Net Pension Liability 10,926,004$    7,984,390$   5,483,577$    
The City reported $487,964 in pension expense for the year ended June 30, 2018.  At June 30, 2018, the 
City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the 
following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 73,374$                   622,828$              

Changes of assumptions 197,424                   -                       

Net difference between projected and actual earnings

   on pension plan investments 154,050                   -                       

Changes in proportion and differences between City 

  contributions and proportionate share of 

  contributions. 221,870                   192,600                

City contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,154,659                -                       

Total 1,801,377$              815,428$              

 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 84

The $1,154,659 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease of the net pension 
liability in the year ended June 30, 2019.  
 
Amortization of Pension Deferrals:  Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources (excluding deferred 
outflows of resources related to contributions made subsequent to the measurement date) and deferred 
inflows of resources will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

 
Year ended June 30:

2019 (95,569)$      

2020 70,474          

2021 (440)             

2022 (143,175)      

(168,710)$    

 
 
Defined Contribution Plan: 
 
On January 1, 2010, the City implemented a Defined Contribution Plan benefit.  Eligible employees are all 
regular, full-time employees hired after December 31, 2009, except police, firefighters, and other employees 
who are covered under an approved system; plus any regular, full-time employees hired before January 1, 
2010, who made the one-time election to participate in the City’s defined contribution plan.  Employees 
began participation upon employment.   
 
City employees participating in the defined contribution plan become 100% vested in the plan upon 
completion of seven years of employment. 
 
Employee contributions are 3% mandatory pre-tax contributions called Government Pick-Up, up to an 
additional 3% after-tax contributions which are eligible for employer match (called Mandatory 
Contributions) and voluntary after-tax contributions up to the maximum annual contribution allowed by the 
Internal Revenue Service. 
 
Employer contributions are fixed at 3% by the plan, plus dollar for dollar 100% match of the mandatory 
(after-tax) employee contributions up to 3% of compensation. 
 
Employees direct how their money is invested. 
 
Upon separation of employment and before vesting, an employee can receive a distribution of the employee 
contribution account balance, if any.  After vesting, benefit payment options include the distribution of both 
the employee and employer contribution account balances and can be paid in any form designated by the 
participant.   
 
The plan has a loan feature.  The employee can borrow the lesser of $50,000 or 50% of the vested account 
balance with a minimum of $1,000.   
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the City contributed $104,125 to the plan. 
 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 85

Other Post-Employment Benefits 
 
The City of Bartlesville has two other post-employment benefit plans: 
 

 Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund (OkMRF) Retiree Medical Plan – an agent, multi-
employer defined benefit plan. 

 Implicit Rate Substantive Plan – a single-employer defined benefit plan. 
 

The aggregate total for all OPEB related items for two defined benefit plans are as follows:

Governmental Business-type Plan 
Activities Activities Totals

OPEB Expense:
OkMRF Retiree Medical 5,695$                3,087$              8,782$            
Unfunded implicit rate 53,808                29,182              82,990            

59,503$              32,269$            91,772$          

Net OPEB Liability:
OkMRF Retiree Medical 3,731$                2,023$              5,754$            

3,731$                2,023$              5,754$            

Total OPEB Liability:
Unfunded implicit rate 768,096$            416,595$          1,184,691$      

768,096$            416,595$          1,184,691$      

Deferred Outflow:
OkMRF Retiree Medical 27,958 15,163              43,121

27,958$              15,163$            43,121$          

Deferred Inflow:
OkMRF Retiree Medical 13,274$              7,199$              20,473$          
Unfunded implicit rate 16,774 9,097               25,871

30,048$              16,296$            46,344$          

 
Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund (OkMRF) Retiree Medical Plan 
 
 
Plan Description 
  
 The City contributes to the OkMRF retiree medical plan for all eligible employees.  The plan is an 

agent multiple employer - defined benefit plan administered by OkMRF.  The OkMRF plan issues a 
separate financial report and can be obtained from OkMRF or from their website:  
www.okmrf.org/reports.html.  Benefits are established or amended by the City Council.   

 
A.   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 
For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of the City’s plan and additions to/deductions from the City’s fiduciary net position have 
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by OkMRF.  For this purpose, benefit 
payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  
Investments are reported at fair value based on published market prices.  Detailed information 
about the OkMRF plans’ fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued OkMRF 
financial report. 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 86

B. Eligibility Factors and Benefit Provisions 
        As of 07/01/17 
  Provision     OkMRF Plan 
  a.  Eligible to participate   Any participant in the retirement plan who 

terminates employment on or after August 1, 
2006, and has completed at least 20 continuous 
years of credited service. 

     
  b.  Eligibility for Distribution  20 years of continuous credited service 
        
  c.  Medical benefits:   Provided under the State and Education 

Employees Group Insurance Act. 
 
  d.  Medical benefits under the retirement 
        Plan:    The plan will pay the retiree’s medical (including 

dental and vision) premiums in the amount in 
effect at the time of retirement, but the plan will 
not pay more than $10 per month per year of 
service.  Service considered in determining this 
maximum benefit includes only service 
completed on or before January 1, 2010; credited 
service for determining benefit eligibility, 
however, is not so limited.  If the premium 
amounts under the State and Education 
Employees Group Insurance increase or decrease, 
the premiums payments by the OPEB plan will be 
automatically adjusted (but in no event will they 
exceed the specified maximum). 

 
  e.  Termination of Medical Benefits: Retiree – the earlier of the date of the retiree’s 

death or the 65th birthday of the retiree. 
       Spouse/dependent – the 65th birthday of the 

retiree or if retiree dies before age 65, the date on 
which the retiree would have attained age 65. 

 
C. Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 

  Active Employees    123 
  Nonactive Employees      17 
       Total      140     

 
D.   Contribution Requirements 

 
The City Council has the authority to set and amend contribution rates by ordinance for the OkMRF 
defined benefit plan.  The contribution rates for the current fiscal year have been made in 
accordance with an actuarially determined rate.  The actuarially determined rate is 0.82% of covered 
payroll as of July 1, 2017.  For the year ended June 30, 2018, the City recognized $43,121 of 
employer contributions to the plan which equals the actuarially determined amount based on 
covered payroll of $5,258,659.  Employees do not contribute in accordance with the plan provisions 
adopted by the City Council. 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 87

E.  Actuarial Assumptions 
 
     Date of Last Actuarial Valuation   July 1, 2017 
     a.  Actuarial cost method    Entry age normal 
   
     b.  Rate of Return on Investments and Discount Rate 7.50% 
 
     c.  Projected Salary Increase    Varies between 7.50% and 4.5% based 

on age 
 
     d.  Inflation Rate     2.75% 
 
     e.  Mortality Table     UP 1994, with projected mortality 

improvement 
 
     f.  Percent of married employees   100% 
 
     g.  Spouse age difference    3 years (female spouses younger) 
 
     i.  Turnover      Select and ultimate rates 
        Ultimate rates are age-related as shown 
        Additional rates per thousand are 
         added during the first 5 years: 
         Year 1: 225 
         Year 2: 140 
         Year 3: 100 
         Year 4:   70 
         Year 5:   40   
 
      j.  Date of last experience study   September 2012 for fiscal years 2007 

thru 2011 
 

F. Discount Rate – The discount rate used to value benefits was the long-term expected rate of 
return on plan investments, 7.50% since the plan’s net fiduciary position is projected to be 
sufficient to make projected benefit payments. 

 
The City has adopted a funding method that is designed to fund all benefits payable to 
participants over the course of their working careers.  Any differences between actual and 
expected experience are funded over a fixed period to ensure all funds necessary to pay benefits 
have been contributed to the trust before those benefits are payable.  Thus, the sufficiency of 
OPEB plan assets was made without a separate projection of cash flows. 

 
The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of OPEB plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class.  These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by 
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by 
adding expected inflation (2.75%).  Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major 
asset class included in the OPEB’s plan’s target asset allocation as of July 1, 2017 are 
summarized in the following table: 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 88

 
Target Real Weighted

Allocation Return Return

Large cap stocks 25% 5.80% 1.45%
S&P 500

Small/mid cap stocks 10% 6.40% 0.64%
Russell 2500

Long/short equity 10% 5.00% 0.50%
MSCI ACWI

International stocks 20% 6.20% 1.24%
MSCI EAFE

Fixed income bonds 30% 2.30% 0.69%
Barclay's Capital Aggregaate

Real estate 5% 4.60% 0.23%
NCREIF

Cash equivalents 0% 0.00% 0.00%
3 month Treasury

100%

Average Real Return 4.75%

Inflation 2.75%

Long-term expected return 7.50%

 
 

G. Changes in Net OPEB Liability – The net OPEB liability was determined based on an actuarial 
valuation performed as of July 1, 2017 which is also the measurement date.  There have not been 
changes in benefit terms that affected measurement of the total OPEB liability.  There were also 
no changes between the measurement date of July 1, 2017 and the City’s report ending date of 
June 30, 2018, that would have had a significant impact on the net OPEB liability. The following 
table reports the components of changes in net OPEB liability: 

 
June 30, 2018

Net OPEB Liability:

Total OPEB Liability (TOL)  $      510,962 

Plan's Fiduciary Net Position          505,208 

Net OPEB Liability  $          5,754 

Plan's fiduciary net position as a % of TOL 98.87%  



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 89

 Increase (Decrease) 
Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability (a) Net Position (b) Liability (a) - (b)

Beginning Balances 526,643$      464,835$                61,808$              
Changes for the Year:

Service cost 5,710            -                          5,710                  
Interest 37,749          -                          37,749                
Differences between expected and actual experience -                -                          -                     
Assumption changes -                -                          -                     
Contributions - employers -                44,363                    (44,363)              
Net investment income                   -                        56,138 (56,138)              
Benefit payments, including refunds          (59,140)                    (59,140) -                     
Administrative expense                         (988) 988                     

Net changes          (15,681)                      40,373                (56,054)

Ending Balances  $      510,962  $                505,208  $               5,754 

 
 
Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate.  The following presents the net OPEB 
liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 7.50 percent, as well as what the City’s net 
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.50 
percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.50 percent) than the current rate: 
 

1% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1% Increase
6.50% 7.50% 8.50%

Net OPEB liability (asset) 35,810$             5,754$                        (13,839)$        

 
 
Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rate.  Because benefits 
provided under the plan are fixed dollar amounts that are not subject to inflationary increases, the net 
OPEB liability is not affected by assumed or actual healthcare trends.  Thus, no explicit healthcare cost 
trend rates have been assumed in the valuation of the OPEB liability.  The following table reflects this. 
 

Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase

Net OPEB Liability 5,754$               5,754$                        5,754$            

 
 
The City reported $8,783 in OPEB expense for the year ended June 30, 2018.  At June 30, 2018, the City 
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the 
following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience -$                        -$                     
Changes of assumptions -                          -                       
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
   on OPEB plan investments -                          20,473                  
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 43,121                     -                       

Total 43,121$                   20,473$                

 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 90

$43,121 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease of the net pension liability in the 
year ended June 30, 2019.  
 
Amortization of Pension Deferrals:  Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources (excluding deferred 
outflows of resources related to contributions made subsequent to the measurement date) and deferred 
inflows of resources will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

 
Year ended June 30:

2019 (5,119)$        

2020 (5,118)          

2021 (5,118)          

2022 (5,118)          

(20,473)$      

 
 
Health Insurance Implicit Rate Substantive Plan 
 
Plan description – The City’s implicit subsidy, defined benefit OPEB plan, provides OPEB to eligible retirees and 
their dependents. The plan is a substantive plan in that the plan terms are understood by the City and plan members.  
This understanding is based on communications between the employers and plan members and the historical pattern 
of practice with regard to the sharing of benefit costs.  The City Council has the authority to establish and amend 
benefit provisions.  No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Statement 75. 
 
Benefits provided – The City provides medical, prescription drug, and dental benefits to eligible retirees and their 
dependents. Employees retiring before January 1, 2014, pay 115% of the average employee cost.  All other retirees 
pay 125% of the average employee premium to continue coverage in retirement.  An additional contribution is 
required for spouse’s coverage.  Coverage stops at age 65 for the retiree and spouse.  Certain grandfathered retirees 
and spouses have lifetime benefits.  The retirees and dependents pay 110% of the active employee coverage rates; 
this results in the retirees and beneficiaries receiving an implicit rate subsidy.   Retirees and dependents coverage 
ceases at age 65 and are no longer eligible for the City’s OPEB plan. 
 
Employees covered by benefit terms - At June 30, 2018 the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 
 
  Active Employees             260 
  Inactives or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments               24 
       Total            284 
 
Total OPEB Liability – The City’s total OPEB liability of $1,184,691 was measured as of June 30, 2018, and was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.  
 
Actuarial Assumptions - The total OPEB liability was determined based on an actuarial valuation prepared as of 
June 30, 2018 using the following actuarial assumptions:  
 

 Actuarial Cost Method - Entry Age Normal 
 Discount Rate – 3.87%, based on June 30, 2018 published Bond Buyer GO 20 Index 
 Termination – Civilian employees are based on the actual experience of the Oklahoma 

Municipal Retirement Fund (OkMRF) cities.  Termination rates for police and firefighters are 
based on rates for these groups in Oklahoma. 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 91

 Retirement Age: Rates for civilians based on actual experience of the OkMRF employees 
with unsubsidized retirement benefits.  Rates for police based on assumptions in statewide 
police retirement system actuarial report.  The following tables show these rates. 
 

Civilian
Retirement

Age Rate
55 - 61 7%

62 30%
63 - 64 17.5%
65 - 69 30%

70 100%  
 

Years of Retirement
Service Rate Police

20 20%
21 - 23 6%

24 10%
25 20%

26 - 28 10%
29 15%

30 - 35 100%  
 

 Participation – 50% of general employees are assumed to elect retiree medical coverage if 
they meet eligibility requirements (and 50% for police and firefighters). The acceptance rte 
for spouses of covered retirees is assumed to be 25%.  Spouses are assumed to pay the 
COBRA rate.  Retirees are assumed to take all coverages, if any (i.e. medical, GAP, dental 
and vision). 

 Healthcare cost trend rates  -  Plan year dependent rates graded from 6.05% in 2018 to 4.87% 
in 2060. 

 Mortality Rates - The RP2000 Mortality (combined healthy male and female tables) with full 
cohort mortality projection using SOA scale AA. 
 
 

Changes in Total OPEB Liability – The following table reports the components of changes in total OPEB liability: 

Total OPEB
Liability

Beginning balances 1,175,752$           
Changes for the Year:

Service cost 46,222                  
Interest 41,236                  
Change in assumptions (30,339)                 
Differences between expected and actual experience -                        
Benefit payments, net of retiree contributions (48,180)                 

Net change in total OPEB liability 8,939                    

Ending Balances 1,184,691$           

 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 92

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate-The following presents the total 
OPEB liability of the employer calculated using the discount rate of 3.88%, as well as what the Plan's total OPEB 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (2.87%) or 1-
percentage-point higher (4.87%) than the current rate: 
 

1% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1% Increase
2.87% 3.87% 4.87%

Total OPEB liability 1,375,700$        1,184,691$                 1,034,405$     

 
 
Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate-The following presents the 
total OPEB liability of the employer calculated using the healthcare cost trend rate of 5.65% grading to 4.87%, as 
well as what the Plan's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is 1-
percentage point lower (4.65% grading to 3.87%) or 1-percentage-point higher (6.65% grading to 5.87%) than the 
current rate: 
 

Healthcare Cost
1% decrease Trend Rates 1% increase

4.65% grading 5.65% Grading 6.65% grading
to 3.87% to 4.87% to 5.87%

Total OPEB liability 1,040,493$        1,184,691$                 1,363,465$     

 
The City reported $82,990 in OPEB expense for the year ended June 30, 2018.  At June 30, 2018, the City 
reported deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience -$                        -$                     
Changes of assumptions -                          25,871                  

Total -$                        25,871$                

 
 
Amortization of OPEB Deferrals:  Amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in 
OPEB expense as follows: 
 

Year ended June 30:

2019 (4,468)$        

2020 (4,468)          

2021 (4,468)          

2022 (4,468)          

2023 (4,468)          

Thereafter (3,531)          

(25,871)$      

 
 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 93

Component Unit Retirement Plans: 
 
Effective July 1, 1997, Bartlesville Development Corporation (BDC) adopted the American Chamber of 
Commerce Executives (ACCE) 401(k) Plan as a vehicle to provide retirement plan benefits to BDC 
employees.  In May 2005, the BDC 401(k) plan was combined with the Bartlesville Regional Chamber of 
Commerce plan to provide retirement benefits to all employees of the Chamber of Commerce.  Upon 
combination of BDC and BDA, the plan carried over to the employees who operate under the BDA.  BDA 
will pay an amount equal to 4 percent of a qualified employee’s annual salary and match an employee’s 
contribution up to 1 percent of the employee’s annual salary.  During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, 
BDA paid a total of $13,321 to the plan, which has been recorded as employee benefits in the statement of 
activities. 

 
The Bartlesville Community Center Trust Authority employees participate in a 403(b) Thrift Plan whereby the 
Trust Authority contributes 5% of eligible employees’ compensation received during the plan year.  
Employees may elect to make salary reduction contributions to the plan.  For the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2018, the employer contributed $17,663 to the plan. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 94

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 95

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – General Fund (Budgetary Basis) – Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

Budgeted Amounts
Actual Amounts, 
Budgetary Basis

Variance with 
Final Budget - 

Positive (Negative)
Original Final

REVENUES
Taxes 15,702,496$             15,786,583$             15,591,310$             (195,273)$                 
Licenses and permits 212,400                    212,400                    254,528 42,128                      
Intergovernmental 651,700                    651,700                    661,375 9,675                        
Charges for services 619,000                    658,704                    630,968 (27,736)                     
Fees and fines 708,900                    708,900                    659,030 (49,870)                     
Investment earnings 40,000                      40,000                      121,567                    81,567                      
Miscellaneous 4,500                        207,648                    191,476 (16,172)                     

Total revenues 17,938,996               18,265,935               18,110,254               (155,681)                   

EXPENDITURES
Departmental:

City council 24,250                      24,250 18,448 5,802                        
Administration 810,892                    758,309                    669,793                    88,516                      
Accounting and finance 1,541,717                 1,573,186                 1,572,806                 380                           
Legal 182,318                    183,966                    180,346                    3,620                        
Building & neightborhood service 655,080                    660,546                    634,062                    26,484                      
Building maintenance 450,135                    454,064                    452,918                    1,146                        
General services 655,428                    655,428                    639,630                    15,798                      
Cemetery 17,560                      17,560                      17,476                      84                             
Community development 374,627                    377,573                    373,629                    3,944                        
Technical services 440,646                    444,416                    419,119                    25,297                      
Engineering 281,299                    316,558                    315,910                    648                           
Fleet maintenance 347,714                    351,167                    349,243                    1,924                        
Fire 5,579,052                 5,640,780                 5,563,047                 77,733                      
Police 5,314,038                 5,372,087                 5,364,680                 7,407                        
Street 1,448,310                 1,465,321                 1,429,652                 35,669                      
Library 1,271,961                 1,294,603                 1,293,774                 829                           
History museum 172,545                    175,016 164,016 11,000                      
Park and recreation 1,205,886                 1,223,195 1,195,240 27,955                      

Total Expenditures 20,773,458               20,988,025               20,653,789               334,236                    
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures (2,834,462)                (2,722,090)                (2,543,535)                178,555                    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 3,929,639                 3,936,400 3,956,071 19,671                      
Transfers out (1,514,738)                (1,645,300) (1,645,300) -                                

Total other financing sources and uses 2,414,901                 2,291,100                 2,310,771                 19,671                      

Net change in fund balances (419,561)                   (430,990)                   (232,764)                   198,226                    
Fund balances - beginning 1,279,555                 1,279,555                 1,436,720                 157,165                    
Fund balances - ending 859,994$                  848,565$                  1,203,956$               355,391$                  

 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 96

Footnotes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules: 
 

1.  The budgetary comparison schedule is reported on a non-GAAP budgetary basis that report 
revenues and expenditures on a modified cash basis.   For budgetary purposes expenditures 
are recorded in the period the invoice is received, except for payroll expenditures that are 
recorded when paid.  

 
2. The legal level of appropriation control is the department level within a fund. Transfers of 

appropriation within a fund require the approval of the City Council.  All supplemental 
appropriations require the approval of the City Commission.   Supplemental appropriations 
must be filed with the Office of the State Auditor and Inspector.  

 
3. The budgetary basis differs from the modified accrual basis as shown in the schedule below: 

 
General
Fund

Total revenue and transfers- budgetary basis 22,066,325$            
Total expenditures and transfers - budgetary basis (22,299,089)
   Change in fund balance - budgetary basis (232,764)
Revenue accruals 1,882,952
Expenditure accruals (1,748,397)
Encumbrances 67,032
Transfer accrual 38,982
Changes in Fund Balance - Stabilization Fund 729,622
Changes in Fund Balance - Court Bond Fund 28
   Change in fund balance - GAAP basis 737,455$                 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 97

Schedules of Required Supplementary Information
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
OKLAHOMA FIREFIGHTERS PENSION & RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2018 2017 2016 2015

City's proportion of the net pension 
liability 1.2526174% 1.1782271% 1.238168% 1.209825%

City's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability 15,754,458$   14,394,559$  13,142,017$ 12,441,208$ 

City's covered-employee payroll 3,560,398$     3,295,740$   3,272,207$   3,356,189$   

City's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability as a percentage of its 
covered-employee payroll 442% 437% 402% 371%

Plan fiduciary net position as a 
percentage of the total pension liability 66.61% 64.87% 68.27% 68.12%

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of 6/30

Notes to Schedule:

Only four fiscal years are presented because 10-year data is not yet available.

 
 
SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS
OKLAHOMA FIREFIGHTERS PENSION & RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2018 2017 2016 2015

Statutorially required contribution 525,422$    498,456$    461,404$      458,109$    

Contributions in relation to the 
statutorially required contribution 525,422     498,456     461,404       458,109     

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$          -$          -$            -$          

City's covered-employee payroll 3,753,018$ 3,560,398$ 3,295,740$   3,272,207$ 

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll 14.00% 14.00% 14.00% 14.00%

Notes to Schedule:

*Only four fiscal years are presented because 10-year data is not yet available.

 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 98

Schedules of Required Supplementary Information
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET)
OKLAHOMA POLICE PENSION & RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2018 2017 2016 2015

City's proportion of the net pension 
liability (asset) 0.9420% 0.8547% 0.8863% 0.9499%

City's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability (asset) 72,459$           1,308,962$      36,138$           (319,824)$   

City's covered-employee payroll 2,809,097$      2,521,335$      2,510,992$      2,561,631$  

City's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability (asset) as a percentage 
of its covered-employee payroll 2.58% 51.92% 1.44% (12.49%)

Plan fiduciary net position as a 
percentage of the total pension liability 
(asset) 99.68% 93.50% 99.82% 101.53%

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of 6/30

Notes to Schedule:

*Only four fiscal years are presented because 10-year data is not yet available.

 
SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS
OKLAHOMA POLICE PENSION & RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2018 2017 2016 2015

Statutorially required contribution 380,885$    365,183$    327,774$        326,429$    

Contributions in relation to the 
statutorially required contribution 380,885     365,183     327,774         326,429     

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$          -$          -$              -$          

City's covered-employee payroll 2,929,884$ 2,809,097$ 2,521,335$     2,510,992$ 

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll 13.00% 13.00% 13.00% 13.00%

Notes to Schedule:

*Only four fiscal years are presented because 10-year data is not yet available.

 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 99

Required Supplementary Information

Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios Last Four Fiscal Years

2018 2017 2016 2015

Total pension liability

Service cost 314,106$              306,603$              343,430$              318,728$              

Interest 1,897,724             1,801,722             1,749,983             1,689,642             

Differences between expected and actual experience (879,788)               159,192                (422,875)               -                        

Changes of assumptions 283,261                -                        -                        -                        

Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (1,016,605)            (1,040,526)            (966,693)               (857,478)               

Net change in total pension liability 598,698                1,226,991             703,845                1,150,892             

Total pension liability - beginning 24,985,576           23,758,585           23,054,740           21,903,848           

Total pension liability - ending (a) 25,584,274$         24,985,576$         23,758,585$         23,054,740$         

Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer 1,118,024$           1,098,186$           1,145,860$           1,230,392$           

Contributions - member 317,015                311,247                327,700                344,472                

Net investment income 1,916,169             142,576                399,025                1,903,979             

Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (1,016,605)            (1,040,526)            (966,693)               (857,478)               

Administrative expense (33,387)                 (29,565)                 (29,336)                 (28,636)                 

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 2,301,216             481,918                876,556                2,592,729             

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 15,298,668           14,816,750           13,940,194           11,347,465           

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 17,599,884$         15,298,668$         14,816,750$         13,940,194$         

Net pension liability - ending (a) - (b) 7,984,390$           9,686,908$           8,941,835$           9,114,546$           

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of

the total pension liability 68.79% 61.23% 62.36% 60.47%

Covered employee payroll 5,019,586$           4,987,399$           5,312,233$           5,583,554$           

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered- 159.06% 194.23% 168.33% 163.24%

employee payroll

Notes to Schedule:

Only four fiscal years are presented because 10-year data is not yet available.

 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 100

Required Supplementary Information

Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund

Schedule of Employer Contributions Last Four Fiscal Years

2018 2017 2016 2015

Actuarially determined contribution 1,099,597$          1,025,382$          1,034,378$          1,073,765$          

Contributions in relation to the actuarially 1,154,659            1,126,060            1,149,535            1,230,391            

determined contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess) (55,062)$             (100,678)$           (115,157)$           (156,626)$           

Covered employee payroll 5,451,648$          5,083,698$          5,187,454$          5,312,233$          

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 21.18% 22.15% 22.16% 23.16%

Notes to Schedule:

1.  Only four fiscal years are presented because 10-year data is not yet available.

2.  Latest Valuation Date:  July 1, 2017

3.  Actuarially determined contribution rate is calculated as of July 1, 2017

July 2017 through June 18 contributions were at a rate of 20.17%

4.  Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method - Unit Credit

Amortization method - Level dollar amount

Remaining amortization period - 23 years

Asset valuation method - Actuarial

Smoothing period - 4 years

Recognition method - Non-asymptotic

Corridor - 70% - 130%

Salary increases - 4.00% to 7.42% (varies by attained age)

Investment rate of return - 7.50%

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 101

Required Supplementary Information – OPEB 
 
The funded status and funding progress of the City’s defined benefit OPEB plan for the most recent 
actuarial valuations is as follows: 
 
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios Last 10 Fiscal Years
City of Bartlesville Health Insurance Implicit Rate Plan

2018
Total OPEB liability

Service cost 46,222$                
Interest 41,236                  
Change in assumptions (30,339)                 
Differences between expected and actual experience -                        
Benefit payments, net of retiree contributions (48,180)                 

Net change in total OPEB liability 8,939                    

Total OPEB liability - beginning 1,175,752             
Total OPEB liability - ending 1,184,691$           

Covered employee payroll 11,600,000$         

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered- 10.21%
employee payroll

Notes to Schedule:

Only the current year is presented because 10-year data is not yet available.

The discount rate used for 2018 is 3.87%.
Healthcare cost trend rates graded from 6.05% in 2018 to 4.87% in 2060.

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 102

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund Retiree Medical Plan
Last Ten Fiscal Years*

2018
Total OPEB liability

Service cost 5,710$            
Interest 37,749            
Changes of assumptions -                  
Experience Gain/(Loss) -                  
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (59,140)           

Net change in total OPEB liability (15,681)           

Total OPEB liability - beginning 526,643          
Total OPEB liability - ending 510,962$        

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer 44,363$          
Net investment income 56,138            
Benefit payments (59,140)           
Administrative expense (988)                

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 40,373            

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 464,835          
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 505,208$        

Net OPEB liability - ending (a) - (b) 5,754$            

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of
the total OPEB liability 98.87%

Covered employee payroll 5,410,122$     

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered- 0.11%
employee payroll

Notes to Schedule:

*Only the current fiscal year is presented because 10-year data is not yet available.
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 103

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund Retiree Medical Plan

Last Ten Fiscal Years*

2018

Actuarially determined contribution 43,121$               

Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contribution 43,121                 

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                    

Covered employee payroll 5,258,659$          

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 0.82%

Notes to Schedule:

1.  *Only the current fiscal year is presented because 10-year data is not yet available.

2.  Valuation Date:  June 30 , 2018

3.  Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Mortality: UP 1994 2016 with projected mortality improvement after retirement

Interest Rate: 7.5% per annum.

Inflation: 2.75% per annum.

Marriage Assumptions: Females are assumed to be three years younger than their male spouses. 

Pay increases:  Range from 7.42% to 4.00%

Aggregate cost method  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 104

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 105

Combining Balance Sheet – Nonmajor Governmental Funds – June 30, 2018 
 
 

Bartlesville 
History 

Museum Trust 
Authority E-911 Fund

Special 
Library Fund

Special 
Museum Fund

Economic 
Development 

Fund

Bartlesville 
Library Trust 

Authority

Restricted 
Revenues 

Fund
ASSETS
Investments 123,250$         80,393$           304,638$         108,826$           1,224,422$       1,447,979$       242,724$       
Interest receivable -                     -                     -                     -                       -                      -                      -                   
Receivable from other governments -                     -                     -                     -                       -                      -                      -                   
Taxes receivable, net -                     50,113            -                     -                       262,102           -                      -                   
Other receivables, net of allowance 1,705              805                 4,050              1,659                11,746             1,773               -                   

Total assets 124,955$         131,311$         308,688$         110,485$           1,498,270$       1,449,752$       242,724$       

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable -$                   1,426$            3,521$            -$                     -$                    -$                    1,570$          
Advanced revenue -                     -                     -                     -                       140                  -                      -                   
Accrued payroll payable -                     33,195            1,191              1,452                -                      -                      -                   
Other payables -                     -                     -                     -                       -                      -                      -                   

Total liabilities -                     34,621            4,712              1,452                140                  -                      1,570            

Fund balances:
Restricted 124,955           96,690            303,976           109,033             1,498,130         1,449,752         241,154         
Committed -                     -                     -                     -                       -                      -                      -                   

Total fund balances 124,955           96,690            303,976           109,033             1,498,130         1,449,752         241,154         
Total liabilities and fund balances 124,955$         131,311$         308,688$         110,485$           1,498,270$       1,449,752$       242,724$       

 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 106

Combining Balance Sheet – Nonmajor Governmental Funds – June 30, 2018, (Continued) 
 

Municipal 
Airport Fund

Harshfield 
Library 

Donation
Golf Course 

Memorial Fund

Justice 
Assistance Grant 

Fund
Neighborhood 

Park Fund

Cemetery 
Perpetual 

Fund
ASSETS
Investments 291,704$            761,021$      18,898$             40,254$             8,264$               3,400$          
Interest receivable -                        -                  -                        -                        -                        -                  
Receivable from other governments -                        -                  -                        697                    -                        -                  
Taxes receivable, net -                        -                  -                        -                        -                        -                  
Other receivables, net of allowance 3,926                 10,573          259                    538                    111                    14                

Total assets 295,630$            771,594$      19,157$             41,489$             8,375$               3,414$          

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 25,130$             20$              -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                 
Advanced revenue -                        -                  -                        -                        -                        -                  
Accrued payroll payable -                        -                  -                        -                        -                        -                  
Other payables -                        -                  -                        -                        -                        -                  

Total liabilities 25,130               20                -                        -                        -                        -                  

Fund balances:
Restricted -                        771,574        -                        41,489               8,375                 3,414           
Committed 270,500             -                  19,157               -                        -                        -                  

Total fund balances 270,500             771,574        19,157               41,489               8,375                 3,414           
Total liabilities and fund balances 295,630$            771,594$      19,157$             41,489$             8,375$               3,414$          

 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 107

Combining Balance Sheet – Nonmajor Governmental Funds – June 30, 2018, (Continued) 
 
 

Memorial 
Stadium 

Operating Fund
Housing TIF 

Districts
BRTA Pass 

Through
Hotel Motel Tax 

Fund

Capital 
Improvement 

Sales Tax 
Fund

CIP-
Wastewater 

Fund
CIP-Wastewater 
Regulatory Fund

CIP-City Hall 
Fund

ASSETS
Investments 2,113$                 6,158$          20,118$             41,551$             3,035,798$     223,715$        1,528,463$          48,172$                
Interest receivable -                          -                  -                        -                        -                    -                    -                         -                          
Receivable from other governments -                          -                  -                        -                        -                    -                    -                         -                          
Taxes receivable, net -                          -                  -                        32,918               480,641         -                    -                         -                          
Other receivables, net of allowance 173                      74                -                        -                        38,975           2,917             32,726                1,435                   

Total assets 2,286$                 6,232$          20,118$             74,469$             3,555,414$     226,632$        1,561,189$          49,607$                

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable -$                        -$                 20,118$             65,743$             7,811$           -$                  -$                       455$                    
Advanced revenue -                          -                  -                        -                        -                    -                    -                         -                          
Accrued payroll payable -                          -                  -                        -                        -                    -                    -                         -                          
Other payables -                          5,000           -                        -                        137,828         -                    -                         19,691                 

Total liabilities -                          5,000           20,118               65,743               145,639         -                    -                         20,146                 

Fund balances:
Restricted -                          1,232           -                        8,726                 3,409,775       226,632         1,561,189            29,461                 
Committed 2,286                   -                  -                        -                        -                    -                    -                         -                          

Total fund balances 2,286                   1,232           -                        8,726                 3,409,775       226,632         1,561,189            29,461                 
Total liabilities and fund balances 2,286$                 6,232$          20,118$             74,469$             3,555,414$     226,632$        1,561,189$          49,607$                

 
 
 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 108

Combining Balance Sheet – Nonmajor Governmental Funds – June 30, 2018, (Continued) 
 

CIP-Storm Sewer 
Fund CDBG Fund

Capital Reserve 
Fund

2008B GO Bond 
Fund

2009 GO Bond 
Fund

2010 GO Bond 
Fund

2012 GO Bond 
Fund

ASSETS
Investments 134,908$              144,060$    8,014,091$          88$                    6,808$               410$                128,562$         
Interest receivable -                          -                -                         -                        -                        -                      -                     
Receivable from other governments -                          8                -                         -                        -                        -                      -                     
Taxes receivable, net -                          -                -                         -                        -                        -                      -                     
Other receivables, net of allowance 1,351                   -                -                         1                        206                   5                     1,395              

Total assets 136,259$              144,068$    8,014,091$          89$                    7,014$               415$                129,957$         

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable -$                        -$               13,300$               -$                       -$                      -$                    -$                   
Advanced revenue -                          -                -                         -                        -                        -                      -                     
Accrued payroll payable -                          -                -                         -                        -                        -                      -                     
Other payables -                          -                5,580                  -                        -                        -                      -                     

Total liabilities -                          -                18,880                 -                        -                        -                      -                     

Fund balances:
Restricted 136,259                144,068      7,995,211            89                      7,014                 415                 129,957           
Committed -                          -                -                         -                        -                        -                      -                     

Total fund balances 136,259                144,068      7,995,211            89                      7,014                 415                 129,957           
Total liabilities and fund balances 136,259$              144,068$    8,014,091$          89$                    7,014$               415$                129,957$         

 
 
 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 109

Combining Balance Sheet – Nonmajor Governmental Funds – June 30, 2018, (Continued) 
 

 
 

2014 GO Bond 
Fund

2014B GO Bond 
Fund

2015 GO Bond 
Fund

2017 GO Bond 
Fund

2018A GO Bond 
Fund

2018B GO Bond 
Fund

Total 
Governmental 

Funds
ASSETS
Investments 610,207$          121,246$          1,873,025$        2,480,902$        9,594,318$        479,089$          33,149,575$    
Interest receivable -                       -                       25,603              41,315              30,889              1,542                99,349            
Receivable from other governments -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       705                
Taxes receivable, net -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       825,774          
Other receivables, net of allowance 16,876              2,956                -                       -                       -                       -                       136,249          

Total assets 627,083$          124,202$          1,898,628$        2,522,217$        9,625,207$        480,631$          34,211,652$    

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable -$                     -$                     5,276$              144$                 -$                     -$                     144,514$        
Advanced revenue -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       140                
Accrued payroll payable -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       35,838            
Other payables -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       168,099          

Total liabilities -                       -                       5,276                144                  -                       -                       348,591          

Fund balances:
Restricted 627,083            124,202            1,893,352         2,522,073         9,625,207         480,631            33,571,118      
Committed -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       291,943          

Total fund balances 627,083            124,202            1,893,352         2,522,073         9,625,207         480,631            33,863,061      
Total liabilities and fund balances 627,083$          124,202$          1,898,628$        2,522,217$        9,625,207$        480,631$          34,211,652$    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 110

 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Nonmajor Governmental Funds – For the Year Ended June 
30, 2018 

Bartlesville 
History 

Museum Trust 
Authority E-911 Fund

Special 
Library Fund

Special 
Museum Fund

Economic 
Development 

Fund

Bartlesville 
Library Trust 

Authority

Restricted 
Revenues 

Fund
REVENUES

Taxes -$                    556,159$         -$                    -$                      1,542,909$       -$                     -$                    
Intergovernmental -                      -                      67,980             3,567                 -                      -                      384                 
Charges for services -                      2,400               36                   143                   -                      -                      -                      
Investment earnings 1,668               923                 4,209               1,552                 13,492              109,936            -                      
Miscellaneous -                      -                      2,491               -                        -                      -                      52,758             
Contributions and donations -                      -                      19,763             775                   -                      -                      15,845             

Total revenues 1,668               559,482           94,479             6,037                 1,556,401         109,936            68,987             

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government -                      -                      -                      -                        2,000               -                      26,948             
Public Safety -                      1,000,636        -                      -                        -                      -                      115,407           
Public works -                      -                      -                      -                        -                      -                      -                      
Culture and recreation -                      -                      164,710           33,892               -                      -                      607                 

Capital Outlay -                      -                      -                      -                        -                      -                      7,838               
Total Expenditures -                      1,000,636        164,710           33,892               2,000               -                      150,800           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 1,668               (441,154)          (70,231)            (27,855)              1,554,401         109,936            (81,813)            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from long-term debt -                      -                      -                      -                        -                      -                      -                      
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets -                      -                      -                      -                        -                      -                      -                      
Transfers in -                      473,187           70,265             -                        -                      -                      -                      
Transfers out (5,500)              -                      -                      -                        (1,094,168)        (70,265)             -                      
Total other financing sources and uses (5,500)              473,187           70,265             -                        (1,094,168)        (70,265)             -                      

Net change in fund balances (3,832)              32,033             34                   (27,855)              460,233            39,671              (81,813)            
Fund balances - beginning 128,787           64,657             303,942           136,888             1,037,897         1,410,081         322,967           
Fund balances - ending 124,955$         96,690$           303,976$         109,033$           1,498,130$       1,449,752$       241,154$         

 
 

 
 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 111

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Nonmajor Governmental Funds – For the Year Ended June 
30, 2018, (Continued) 
 

Municipal 
Airport Fund

Harshfield 
Library 

Donation
Golf Course 

Memorial Fund

Justice 
Assistance 
Grant Fund

Neighborhood 
Park Fund

Cemetery 
Perpetual Fund

Memorial 
Stadium 

Operating Fund
REVENUES
Taxes -$                    -$                 -$                      -$                   -$                     -$                     -$                     
Intergovernmental 10,800             -                   -                        6,647              -                       -                       -                       
Charges for services -                      -                   -                        -                     -                       3,061                -                       
Investment earnings 3,977               10,300          167                    536                 110                  30                    92                    
Miscellaneous -                      -                   -                        -                     -                       -                       -                       
Contributions and donations -                      -                   15,068               -                     -                       -                       -                       
Total revenues 14,777             10,300          15,235               7,183              110                  3,091                92                    

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 34,130             -                   -                        -                     -                       -                       -                       
Public Safety -                      -                   -                        5,950              -                       -                       -                       
Public works -                      -                   -                        -                     -                       -                       -                       
Culture and recreation -                      38,329          14,871               -                     -                       -                       -                       
Capital Outlay 4,213               -                   5,637                 -                     -                       -                       -                       
Total Expenditures 38,343             38,329          20,508               5,950              -                       -                       -                       

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (23,566)            (28,029)         (5,273)                1,233              110                  3,091                92                    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from long-term debt -                      -                   -                        -                     -                       -                       -                       
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets -                      -                   1,225                 -                     -                       -                       -                       
Transfers in -                      -                   -                        -                     -                       -                       -                       
Transfers out -                      -                   -                        -                     -                       -                       (14,171)             
Total other financing sources and uses -                      -                   1,225                 -                     -                       -                       (14,171)             

Net change in fund balances (23,566)            (28,029)         (4,048)                1,233              110                  3,091                (14,079)             
Fund balances - beginning 294,066           799,603        23,205               40,256            8,265                323                  16,365              
Fund balances - ending 270,500$          771,574$      19,157$             41,489$          8,375$              3,414$              2,286$              

 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 112

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Nonmajor Governmental Funds – For the Year Ended June 
30, 2018, (Continued) 

 

Housing TIF 
Districts

BRTA Pass 
Through

Hotel Motel 
Tax Fund

Capital 
Improvement 

Sales Tax Fund
CIP-Wastewater 

Fund

CIP-
Wastewater 
Regulatory 

Fund
CIP-City Hall 

Fund
REVENUES
Taxes 357,907$      702,347$            319,467$         2,697,718$         -$                      -$                   -$                       
Intergovernmental -                   -                        -                     -                        -                        150,000          -                         
Charges for services -                   -                        -                     -                        42,800               -                     -                         
Investment earnings 1,752            -                        -                     38,667               3,088                 23,327            871                     
Miscellaneous -                   -                        -                     368,398             -                        -                     20,736                
Contributions and donations -                   -                     -                        -                        -                     -                         
Total revenues 359,659        702,347             319,467          3,104,783           45,888               173,327          21,607                

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 358,747        -                        -                     11,605               -                        -                     26,090                
Public Safety -                   -                        -                     6,356                 -                        -                     -                         
Public works -                   -                        -                     86,255               35,584               453,007          -                         
Culture and recreation -                   -                        -                     29,825               -                        -                     -                         
Capital Outlay -                   -                        -                     2,476,914           -                        838,710          81,868                
Total Expenditures 358,747        -                        -                     2,610,955           35,584               1,291,717       107,958               

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 912              702,347             319,467          493,828             10,304               (1,118,390)      (86,351)               

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from long-term debt -                   -                        -                     -                        -                        -                     -                         
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets -                   -                        -                     -                        -                        -                     -                         
Transfers in -                   -                        -                     -                        -                        -                     -                         
Transfers out -                   (702,347)            (311,360)         -                        -                        -                     -                         
Total other financing sources and uses -                   (702,347)            (311,360)         -                        -                        -                     -                         

Net change in fund balances 912              -                        8,107              493,828             10,304               (1,118,390)      (86,351)               
Fund balances - beginning 320              -                        619                 2,915,947           216,328             2,679,579       115,812               
Fund balances - ending 1,232$          -$                      8,726$            3,409,775$         226,632$            1,561,189$      29,461$               



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 113

 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Nonmajor Governmental Funds – For the Year Ended June 
30, 2018, (Continued) 

 

CIP-Storm 
Sewer Fund CDBG Fund

Capital 
Reserve 

Fund 2008B GO Bond Fund 2009 GO Bond Fund
2010 GO Bond 

Fund 2012 GO Bond Fund
REVENUES
Taxes -$                  -$                       -$                 -$                              -$                             -$                     -$                            
Intergovernmental -                    144,060               -                   -                               -                               -                       -                              
Charges for services 48,479           -                         2,956,574      -                               -                               -                       -                              
Investment earnings 1,639             -                         -                   1                               169                           5                      1,723                       
Miscellaneous -                    -                         -                   -                               -                               -                       -                              
Contributions and donations -                    -                         -                   -                               -                               -                       -                              
Total revenues 50,118           144,060               2,956,574      1                               169                           5                      1,723                       

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government -                    -                         120,599        -                               -                               -                       -                              
Public Safety -                    -                         2,399            -                               -                               -                       7,913                       
Public works 2,798             -                         491,768        -                               -                               -                       -                              
Culture and recreation -                    -                         -                   -                               -                               -                       -                              
Capital Outlay 1,312             -                         557,417        -                               11,320                      -                       -                              
Total Expenditures 4,110             -                         1,172,183      -                               11,320                      -                       7,913                       

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 46,008           144,060               1,784,391      1                               (11,151)                     5                      (6,190)                      

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from long-term debt -                    -                         -                   -                               -                               -                       -                              
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets -                    -                         -                   -                               -                               -                       -                              
Transfers in -                    -                         1,212,500      -                               -                               -                       -                              
Transfers out -                    -                         -                   -                               -                               -                       -                              
Total other financing sources and uses -                    -                         1,212,500      -                               -                               -                       -                              

Net change in fund balances 46,008           144,060               2,996,891      1                               (11,151)                     5                      (6,190)                      
Fund balances - beginning 90,251           8                        4,998,320      88                             18,165                      410                  136,147                   
Fund balances - ending 136,259$        144,068$             7,995,211$    89$                           7,014$                      415$                 129,957$                 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 114

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Nonmajor Governmental Funds – For the Year Ended June 
30, 2018, (Continued) 
 

2014 GO Bond 
Fund

2014B GO Bond 
Fund

2015 GO Bond 
Fund

2017 GO Bond 
Fund

2018A GO Bond 
Fund

2018B GO Bond 
Fund

Total-Other 
Governmental 

Funds
REVENUES
Taxes -$                        -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       6,176,507$        
Intergovernmental -                          -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        383,438            
Charges for services -                          -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        3,053,493          
Investment earnings 10,637                 2,480                 25,410                40,105                34,254                1,711                 332,831            
Miscellaneous -                          -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        444,383            
Contributions and donations -                          -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        51,451              
Total revenues 10,637                 2,480                 25,410                40,105                34,254                1,711                 10,442,103        

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government -                          -                        -                        -                        134,047              46,080                760,246            
Public Safety -                          -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        1,138,661          
Public works 18,765                 -                        53,910                20,298                -                        -                        1,162,385          
Culture and recreation 97                        -                        -                        2,941                 -                        -                        285,272            
Capital Outlay 833,015                130,899              5,462                 776,555              -                        -                        5,731,160          
Total Expenditures 851,877                130,899              59,372                799,794              134,047              46,080                9,077,724          

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (841,240)               (128,419)             (33,962)               (759,689)             (99,793)               (44,369)               1,364,379          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from long-term debt -                          -                        -                        -                        9,725,000           525,000              10,250,000        
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets -                          -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        1,225                
Transfers in -                          -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        1,755,952          
Transfers out -                          -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        (2,197,811)         
Total other financing sources and uses -                          -                        -                        -                        9,725,000           525,000              9,809,366          

Net change in fund balances (841,240)               (128,419)             (33,962)               (759,689)             9,625,207           480,631              11,173,745        
Fund balances - beginning 1,468,323             252,621              1,927,314           3,281,762           -                        -                        22,689,316        
Fund balances - ending 627,083$              124,202$            1,893,352$         2,522,073$         9,625,207$         480,631$            33,863,061$      

 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 115

Combining Statement of Net Position – Nonmajor Enterprise Funds – June 30, 2018 

Adams 
Municipal 

Golf Course Sooner Pool Frontier Pool

Community 
Center Trust 

Authority

Adult Center 
Trust 

Authority

Bartlesville 
Redevelopment 
Trust Authority Total

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents -$                 -$                      -$                   264,169$        26,613$          1,857,208$        2,147,990$    
Investments 56,414          35,695               49,154            4,856,703       70,795            -                       5,068,761      
Other receivables 15,128          961                    615                70,126            -                    22,162              108,992         
Prepaid Expenses -                   -                        -                    16,410            -                    -                       16,410          

Total current assets 71,542          36,656               49,769            5,207,408       97,408            1,879,370          7,342,153      
Noncurrent assets:

Mortgage and security agreement -                   -                        -                    -                    -                    526,901             526,901         
Capital assets:

Land and construction in progress 498,500        -                        -                    1,035,952       97,615            -                       1,632,067      
Other capital assets,net of accumulated depreciation 1,023,941     233,360             1,301,432       4,839,246       142,187          -                       7,540,166      

Total noncurrent assets 1,522,441     233,360             1,301,432       5,875,198       239,802          526,901             9,699,134      
Total assets 1,593,983     270,016             1,351,201       11,082,606     337,210          2,406,271          17,041,287    

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 61,853          -                        -                    -                    -                    -                       61,853          
Deferred amounts related to OPEB 1,259            -                        -                    -                    -                    -                       1,259            

63,112          -                        -                    -                    -                    -                       63,112          

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 13,430          3,331                 5,037             95,162            -                    9,156                126,116         
Accrued personnel expenses 7,437            -                        -                    4,652             -                    -                       12,089          
Accrued interest payable -                   -                        -                    -                    -                    2,411                2,411            
Advanced revenue 3,772            -                        -                    -                    -                    -                       3,772            
Notes payable -                   -                        -                    6,377             -                    122,000             128,377         
Compensated absences 1,107            -                        -                    -                    -                    -                       1,107            
Incentives payable -                   -                        -                    -                    -                    323,844             323,844         

Total current liabilities 25,746          3,331                 5,037             106,191          -                    457,411             597,716         
Noncurrent liabilities:

Incentives payable -                   -                        -                    -                    -                    63,914              63,914          
Net pension liability 233,082        -                        -                    -                    -                    -                       233,082         
Net OPEB liability 168              -                        -                    -                    -                    -                       168               
Total OPEB liability 34,584          -                        -                    -                    -                    -                       34,584          
Bonds, notes and loans payable -                   -                        -                    -                    -                    404,686             404,686         
Compensated absences 6,897            -                        -                    -                    -                    -                       6,897            

Total noncurrent liabilities 274,731        -                        -                    -                    -                    468,600             743,331         
Total liabilities 300,477        3,331                 5,037             106,191          -                    926,011             1,341,047      

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 18,669          -                        -                    -                    -                    -                       18,669          
Deferred amounts related to OPEB 1,353            -                        -                    -                    -                    -                       1,353            

Total Deferred Inflow of Resources 20,022          -                        -                    -                    -                    -                       20,022          

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 1,522,441     233,360             1,301,432       5,875,198       239,802          -                       9,172,233      
Restricted for other purposes -                   -                        -                    -                    -                    526,901             526,901         
Unrestricted (deficit) (185,845)       33,325               44,732            5,101,217       97,408            953,359             6,044,196      

Total net position 1,336,596$    266,685$            1,346,164$     10,976,415$    337,210$        1,480,260$        15,743,330$  



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 116

 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position – Nonmajor Enterprise Funds – Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

 
Adams 

Municipal Golf 
Course Sooner Pool Frontier Pool

Community 
Center Trust 

Authority
Adult Center 

Trust Authority

Bartlesville 
Redevelopment 
Trust Authority Total

REVENUES
Charges for services 314,736$            130$                  -$                      548,869$            34,109$             -$                   897,844$            
Lease revenue -                        -                        -                        23,611               -                        -                        23,611               
Total operating revenues 314,736             130                    -                        572,480             34,109               -                        921,455             

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services 282,177             -                        -                        636,649             21,320               99,548               1,039,694           
Contractual services 117,565             16,279               18,822               411,108             -                        42,439               606,213             
Utilities 18,510               2,727                 11,397               124,831             6,578                 2,191                 166,234             
Repairs and maintenance 37,856               6,698                 2,670                 33,854               20,797               -                        101,875             
Other supplies and expenses 55,306               5,969                 4,482                 71,125               7,668                 7,126                 151,676             
Programs -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        778,560             778,560             
Depreciation 95,891               21,151               172,439             392,991             8,729                 -                        691,201             

Total operating expenses 607,305             52,824               209,810             1,670,558           65,092               929,864             3,535,453           
Operating income (loss) (292,569)            (52,694)              (209,810)            (1,098,078)          (30,983)              (929,864)            (2,613,998)          

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and investment revenue 707                    389                    462                    292,483             31                     9,943                 304,015             
Miscellaneous revenue 1,196                 -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        1,196                 
Operating grants and contributions -                        -                        -                        78,008               17,387               -                        95,395               
Miscellaneous expenses -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        (33,468)              (33,468)              

Total non-operating revenue (expenses) 1,903                 389                    462                    370,491             17,418               (23,525)              367,138             
Income (loss) before transfers (290,666)            (52,305)              (209,348)            (727,587)            (13,565)              (953,389)            (2,246,860)          

Capital contributions -                        -                        -                        59,482               -                        -                        59,482               
Transfers in 147,484             44,393               58,446               311,360             -                        702,347             1,264,030           

Change in net position (143,182)            (7,912)                (150,902)            (356,745)            (13,565)              (251,042)            (923,348)            
Total net position - beginning, restated 1,479,778           274,597             1,497,066           11,333,160         350,775             1,731,302           16,666,678         
Total net position - ending 1,336,596$         266,685$            1,346,164$         10,976,415$       337,210$            1,480,260$         15,743,330$       

 
 
 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 117

Combining Cash Flow Statement – Nonmajor Enterprise Funds – Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

Adams 
Municipal Golf 

Course Sooner Pool Frontier Pool

Community 
Center Trust 

Authority
Adult Center 

Trust Authority

Bartlesville 
Redevelopment 
Trust Authority

Total Other 
Enterprise Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 305,614$            (115)$                 (158)$                 662,886$            51,496$             (9,687)$              1,010,036$                
Payments to suppliers and employees (458,014)            (44,674)              (54,115)              (1,275,672)          (56,363)              -                        (1,888,838)                 
Payments for incentives and operations -                        -                        -                        -                    -                        (649,190)            (649,190)                    

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (152,400)            (44,789)              (54,273)              (612,786)            (4,867)                (658,877)            (1,527,992)                 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds 147,484             44,393               58,446               311,360             -                        702,347             1,264,030                  

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 147,484             44,393               58,446               311,360             -                        702,347             1,264,030                  

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
   FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of capital assets -                        -                        -                        (161,662)            -                        -                        (161,662)                    
Decrease in security interest in property -                        -                        -                        -                    -                        113,785             113,785                     
Payment on incentives payable -                        -                        -                        -                    -                        63,914               63,914                      
Proceeds from capital grant -                        -                        -                        59,482               -                        -                        59,482                      
Principal paid on debt -                        -                        -                        -                    -                        (114,000)            (114,000)                    
Interest and fiscal agent fees paid on debt -                        -                        -                        -                    -                        (525)                   (525)                          

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities -                        -                        -                        (102,180)            -                        63,174               (39,006)                     

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale of investments 4,209                 7                       -                        31,449               -                        35,665                      
Purchase of investments -                        -                        (4,635)                (104,781)            -                        -                        (109,416)                    
Interest and dividends 707                    389                    462                    292,483             31                     9,943                 304,015                     

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 4,916                 396                    (4,173)                187,702             31,480               9,943                 230,264                     

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents -                        -                        -                        (215,904)            26,613               116,587             (72,704)                     

Balances - beginning of year -                        -                        -                        480,073             -                        1,740,621           2,220,694                  

Balances - end of year -$                      -$                      -$                      264,169$            26,613$             1,857,208$         2,147,990$                

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Cash and cash equivalents -$                   -$                   -$                   264,169$            26,613$             1,857,208$         2,147,990$                
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - current -                    -                    -                    -                        -                    -                    -                            
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - noncurrent

Total cash and cash equivalents, end of year -$                   -$                   -$                   264,169$            26,613$             1,857,208$         2,147,990$                

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in)
  Operating Activities:

Operating income (loss) (292,569)$           (52,694)$            (209,810)$           (1,098,078)$        (30,983)$            (929,864)$           (2,613,998)$               
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
   (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation expense 95,891               21,151               172,439             392,991             8,729                 -                    691,201                     
Miscellaneous revenue 1,196                 -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    1,196                        
Miscellaneous expense -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (33,468)              (33,468)                     
Operating grants and contribution -                    -                    -                    78,008               17,387               -                    95,395                      

Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable -                    -                    -                    12,398               -                    -                    12,398                      
Other receivable (5,868)                (245)                   (158)                   -                    -                    (9,687)                (15,958)                     
Accounts payable (4,992)                (13,001)              (16,744)              9,707                 -                    (4,702)                (29,732)                     
Deferred revenue (4,450)                -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (4,450)                       
Accrued salaries payable 2                       -                    -                    563                    -                    -                    565                           
OPEB liability (1,375)                -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (1,375)                       
Pension liability 61,478               -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    61,478                      
Deposits subject to refund -                    -                    -                    (1,624)                -                    -                    (1,624)                       
Prepaid expenses -                    -                    -                    (6,751)                -                    -                    (6,751)                       
Compensated absence liability (1,713)                -                    -                    0 -                    -                    (1,713)                       
Change in incentives payable -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    318,844             318,844                     

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (152,400)$           (44,789)$            (54,273)$            (612,786)$           (4,867)$              (658,877)$           (1,527,992)$               



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 118

Combining Statement of Net Position – Internal Service Funds – June 30, 2018 
 
 

Workers' 
Compensation

Health 
Insurance

Auto Collision 
Insurance Fund Total

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents -$                45,900$        -$                    45,900$       
Investments 104,286          412,885        186,874               704,045       
Cash held by third parties 60,000            -               -                      60,000        
Other receivables 2,219              9,435           -                      11,654        

Total current assets 166,505          468,220        186,874               821,599       
Non-current assets:

Total non-current assets -                 -               -                      -              
Total assets 166,505          468,220        186,874               821,599       

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable -                 3,565           3,062                  6,627          
Claims and judgments 209,934          -               -                      209,934       

Total current liabilities 209,934          3,565           3,062                  216,561       
Noncurrent liabilities:

Claims and judgments 314,902          -               -                      314,902       
Total noncurrent liabilities 314,902          -               -                      314,902       

Total liabilities 524,836          3,565           3,062                  531,463       

NET POSITION
Unrestricted (deficit) (358,331)         464,655        183,812               290,136       

Total net position (358,331)$        464,655$      183,812$             290,136$     

Internal Service Funds

 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 119

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position – Internal Service Funds 
– Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 
 
 

Workers' 
Compensation

Health 
Insurance

Auto Collision 
Insurance Fund Total

REVENUES
Charges for services 169,167$              2,667,155$       39,379$            2,875,701$  

Total operating revenues 169,167               2,667,155         39,379              2,875,701    

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services (214,870)              2,489,987         -                      2,275,117    
Contractual services -                          584,024            -                      584,024       
Utilities -                          -                      12,795              12,795         
Repairs and maintenance -                          -                      33,446              33,446         

Total Operating Expenses (214,870)              3,074,011         46,241              2,905,382    
Operating income (loss) 384,037               (406,856)           (6,862)              (29,681)        

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and investment revenue 1,894                   7,682               -                      9,576          
Miscellaneous revenue -                          44,962             533                  45,495         

Total non-operating revenue (expenses) 1,894                   52,644             533                  55,071         
Change in net position 385,931               (354,212)           (6,329)              25,390         

Total net position - beginning (744,262)              818,867            190,141            264,746       
Total net position - ending (358,331)$             464,655$          183,812$          290,136$     

Internal Service Funds

 
 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 120

Combining Cash Flow Statement – Internal Service Funds – Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

Workers' 
Compensation

Health 
Insurance

Auto Collision 
Insurance Fund Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 168,831$         2,710,588$     39,912$             2,919,331$     
Payments to suppliers and employees (250,018)          (3,076,015)      (43,179)             (3,369,212)      

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (81,187)            (365,427)         (3,267)               (449,881)         

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale of investments 79,293             357,745          3,267                440,305          
Interest and dividends 1,894              7,682             -                    9,576             

Net cash provided by investing activities 81,187             365,427          3,267                449,881          

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents -                  -                 -                    -                 

Balances - beginning of year 60,000             45,900           -                    105,900          

Balances - end of year 60,000$           45,900$          -$                  105,900$        

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents -$                45,900$          -$                  45,900$          
Cash held by third parties 60,000             -                 -                    60,000           

Total cash and cash equivalents, end of year 60,000$           45,900$          -$                  105,900$        

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 
provided by (used in)
  Operating Activities:

Operating income (loss) 384,037$         (406,856)$       (6,862)$             (29,681)$         
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net 
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Miscellaneous revenue -                  44,962           533                   45,495           
Change in assets and liabilities:

Other receivable (336)                (1,529)            -                    (1,865)            
Accounts payable (10,426)            (2,004)            3,062                (9,368)            
Claims liability (454,462)          -                 -                    (454,462)         
Prepaid expense -                  -                 -                    -                 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (81,187)$          (365,427)$       (3,267)$             (449,881)$       

Internal Service Funds



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 121

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE INFORMATION 



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
  
 

 122

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



 
 

 

309 N. Bryant Ave. • Edmond, OK 73034 • 405.348.0615 • Fax 405.348.0931 • www.jmacpas.com 
Member of AICPA and OSCPA 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS  

 

 

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Bartlesville, 
Oklahoma, (the “City”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon 
dated August 22, 2019.  Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of 
the Community Center Trust Authority, Bartlesville Development Authority, and the Bartlesville Redevelopment 
Trust Authority, as described in our report on the City’s financial statements as well as the adoption of GASB No. 
75.  This report does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing of internal control over financial 
reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.    

Internal Control over Financial Reporting  

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 

 
 

123



 

 
 

Compliance and Other Matters  

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Purpose of this Report  

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

 

August 22, 2019 

 

124



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, 
OKLAHOMA (THE “CITY”) APPROVING THE INCURRENCE OF 
INDEBTEDNESS BY THE BARTLESVILLE EDUCATION AUTHORITY (THE 
“AUTHORITY”) ISSUING ITS LEASE REVENUE NOTE, SERIES 2019 
(BARTLESVILLE PUBLIC SCHOOLS) (THE “NOTE”); PROVIDING THAT 
THE ORGANIZATIONAL DOCUMENT CREATING THE AUTHORITY IS 
SUBJECT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE NOTE INDENTURE AUTHORIZING 
THE ISSUANCE OF SAID NOTE; WAIVING COMPETITIVE BIDDING WITH 
RESPECT TO THE SALE OF SAID NOTE AND APPROVING THE 
PROCEEDINGS OF THE AUTHORITY PERTAINING TO THE SALE OF SAID 
NOTE; AND CONTAINING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATING THERETO. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, 
OKLAHOMA: 

SECTION 1.  Indebtedness Authorized.  The Bartlesville Education Authority (the 
“Authority”) is hereby authorized to incur an indebtedness by the issuance of its Lease Revenue Note, 
Series 2019 (Bartlesville Public Schools), or similarly styled obligations, in the amount of 
$8,700,000.00 (referred to herein as the “Note”), according to the terms and conditions of a Note 
Indenture by and between the Authority and BOKF, NA, as Trustee (the “Note Indenture”), provided 
that said Bonds shall never constitute a debt of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma (the “City”).   

SECTION 2.  Organizational Document Subject to Note Indenture.  The organizational 
document creating the Authority is hereby made subject to the terms of the Note Indenture authorizing 
the issuance and securing the payment of the Note as more fully described in Section 1 hereof. 

SECTION 3.  Waiving Competitive Bidding; Approval of Sale Proceedings.  The waiving of 
competitive bidding for the sale of the Note and the sale of said Note by the Authority to a financial 
institution, is hereby approved, pursuant to 60 O.S. 176(G).  The Authority shall set forth the 
purchaser of the Note in its Certificate of Determination. 

SECTION 4.  Authorizing Execution.  The Chairman or Vice Chairman and City Clerk or 
Deputy City Clerk of the City representing the City at the closing of the above-referenced Note issue 
are hereby authorized to approve and make any changes to the documents approved by this 
Resolution, for and on behalf of the City, the execution and delivery of such documents being 
conclusive as to the approval of any changes contained therein by the Authority; and to execute and 
deliver on behalf of the City any and all certifications and documentation necessary or attendant to 
the delivery of the Note, as directed by Bond Counsel. 

  

Agenda Item 9.



2 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 3RD DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2019. 
 
   CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
 
 
 
(SEAL)  By: ___________________________________ 
    Mayor 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
By: ____________________________ 
 City Clerk 
  



3 

 CERTIFICATE 
 OF 
 CITY COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 I, the undersigned, hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the City 
of Bartlesville, Oklahoma. 
 
 I further certify that the City Council of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma, held a Regular 
Meeting at 7:00 o’clock p.m., on September 3, 2019, after due notice was given in full compliance 
with the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act. 
 
 I further certify that attached hereto is a full and complete copy of a Resolution that was passed 
and approved by said City Council at said meeting as the same appears in the official records of my 
office and that said Resolution is currently in effect and has not been repealed or amended as of this 
date. 
 
 I further certify that below is listed those Council members present and absent at said meeting; 
those making and seconding the motion that said Resolution be passed and approved; and those voting 
for and against such motion: 
 
 PRESENT:  
 
 
 ABSENT:  
 
 
 MOTION MADE BY:  
 
 MOTION SECONDED BY:  
 
 AYE:  
 
 
 NAY:  
 
 
 WITNESS MY HAND THIS 3RD DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2019. 
 
  CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
 
 
 
  ________________________________________ 
(SEAL) City Clerk 

 



Agenda Item ___ 
August 28, 2019 

Prepared by Community Development
Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Consider and take action on a proposal from the Jon Lindblom of Safari Smiles for the 
installation of an 18-hole disc golf course on property owned by the City of Bartlesville. 
 
Attachments: 

Proposal 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
At the August 15, 2019 Park Board meeting, Jon Lindblom of Safari Smiles presented a 
proposal to install a championship caliber 18-hole competitive length disc golf course on land 
owned by the City of Bartlesville lying north of Lee Lake. The City owns approximately 194 
acres in the Lee Lake area (shown below).  The proposed disc golf course (location shown on 
page 2 and in the attached proposal) would be on 45 acres lying north of Lee Lake.  The 
majority of this 45-acre site is a wooded undeveloped area through which Pathfinder Parkway 
traverses (Pathfinder Parkway trail is shown in yellow in the following photograph).  The 
western portion of this site, which has been cleared, is a former landfill site which is not 
suitable for development.  This 45-acre site, like most of Lee Lake Park, lies within the 
floodplain of the Caney River. The proposed disc golf course would not interfere with 
Pathfinder Parkway or any other activity areas within Lee Lake Park.  Users of the proposed 
disc golf course would share off-street parking and restrooms that are available at this site. If 
installed, this would be the third 18-hole disc golf course in the City of Bartlesville. 
 

 
City-owned land – Approx. 194 acres 

10.



Proposed Disc Golf Course Location – Approx. 45 acres 

 
 
Installation of a disc golf course in this location would have only minimal impact on the 
existing landscape.  The wooded area has mature trees with a dense canopy which is preferred 
and would be maintained.  Minimal tree removal would occur to allow alleyways for holes. 
 
If the use of this property as proposed is approved by the City Council, Mr. Lindblom would 
then proceed to work with a professional disc golf course designer and City Staff to layout the 
18-hole course.  Once a final design has been prepared, it would go back to the Park Board for 
final approval. 
 
Mr. Lindblom would pay for all costs associated with course design, course equipment, 
professional signage and installation.  Maintenance would be provided by the local disc golf 
club in the same manner that is done at the Shawnee disc golf course.  Attached to this report is 
the full proposal as submitted to the Park Board. 
 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
After review of the proposal, the Park Board unanimously voted to recommend the use of this 
City-owned acreage for a disc golf course as proposed by Jon Lindblom subject to Park Board 
approval of the final course layout.   

















1 
 

 

 
Agenda Item ___    

August 27, 2019 
Prepared by Terry Lauritsen 

Water Utilities  
 

 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

Discuss and take action on a change order #1 from Jonesplan LLC for the Tower 
Center at Unity Square project, presented by Terry Lauritsen. 

Attachments: 
Change Orders for Gorman (building bid package) and Third Generation Electric 
(electrical bid package) 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

When Council accepted/awarded the seven work packages for the construction of the 
Tower Center at Unity Square project through Jonesplan, the awards were contingent 
on future change orders or quantity adjustments to get the project within budget.  The 
overall cost of the original bids, without any change orders and/or quantity 
adjustments, was $2,247,682.29.  The available budget for construction is currently 
$2,039,262, which the City’s $1.75MM GO bond funds has been augmented by the 
generosity of donations from the Lyon Foundation ($250,000), Arvest Bank 
($10,000), the Parson Foundation ($60,000) and recently ConocoPhillips donated 
$100,000 toward the project.   Shown below is a summary of the work packages, 
Jonesplan’s subcontractor and modifications necessary to get the project within 
budget. 

WP 1 - RESTROOMS, STORAGE BUILDING AND STAGE CANOPY  
 $ 555,700.00 – Gorman Construction  
   ($4,250.00) Change order required to utilize different toilet partitions  
  $ 551,450.00  Updated value of work package 
    
WP 2 - DEMOLITION, EARTHWORK AND UTILITIES    
   $ 145,598.75 – Whaling Construction      
   No change orders necessary on work package   
        
WP 9 - PAINTINGS AND COATINGS     
   $ 25,000.00 – River Paint     
   No change orders necessary on work package   
 
 
 
 
    

11.



2 
 

WP 26 - ELECTRICAL AND LANDSCAPE LIGHTING 
 $ 310,000.00 – Third Generation Electric  
   $16,734.00  Change order required to add back embedded lights in 

 concrete rays, to remove 6 small bollard lights and to 
remove 1 tall light 

   $ 326,734.00  Updated cost of work package    
        
WP 32A - ASPHALT PAVING AND CURB AND GUTTER    
   $ 64,898.00 – KSL Construction     
   No change orders necessary on work package  
 
WP 32B - SITE CONCRETE     
   $ 315,157.79 – Jonesplan  
    ($120,223.29) Quantity adjustments on concrete work, removal of offsite 

ADA ramps.  Change order required to get a unit price for a 
standard concrete turn down curb. 

   $ 194,934.50  Updated cost of work package    
        
WP 32C - LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION     
   $ 509,527.75 – Jonesplan  
    ($114,869.75) Quantity adjustments for modified planting beds, 

decomposed granite,sod and greenscreen.  Change order 
required to reduce number of trees, irrigation, change steel 
edging detail and water feature restoration 

   $ 394,658.00  Updated cost of work package    
        
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL CONDITIONS   
   $ 290,000.00 – Jonesplan 
  
CONTINGENCY   
   $ 40,000.00 – These are funds reserved for any unexpected items that may 
   come up during construction. 
 
The total cost of the project, including all of the needed quantity adjustments, change 
orders and contingency, is $2,033,273.25 and within the current available budget of 
$2,039,262.00.    

Change Order #1, which is attached, provides the modifications necessary to WP1 – 
Restrooms, Storage Building and Stage Canopy and WP 26 – Electrical and 
Landscape Lighting.  For WP 1, the change order will remove the concrete block 
walls for the toilet partitions within the bathroom and replace them with phenolic core 
partitions, which will reduce contract by $4,250.   

For WP 26 (Electrical), this work package was rebid with a reduced scope, per the 
value engineering approved by Council in July, to bring the cost of the improvements 
within budget.  With the recent receipt of $100,000 from ConocoPhillips, several 
items left out of the accepted bids are able to be added back into the contract.  One of 



3 
 

the high priority add backs that the Design Committee selected were the embedded 
lights within the concrete rays.  The proposed change order will add back these 
embedded lights, as well as removing light fixtures that were redundant, due to other 
lighting components, and not needed.  The change order for this bid package will 
increase the contract by $16,734.00. 

Change orders for the Site Concrete and Landscaping, both with Jonesplan serving as 
the sub, are still being developed and will be presented for Council consideration in 
October.  

   

 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Staff recommends approval of Change Order #1 with Jonesplan with an overall net 
increase in the contract amount by $12,484. 
 



Project Name

Owner Contractor

Change Order Number     #1 Original Contract Date

The Contract is changed as follows:

The original Contract Sum was: $555,700.00

Net amount of previous change orders $0

The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was $555,700.00

Total amount of this Change Order ($4,250.00)

The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be $551,450.00

The Contract Time will be changed by the following number of days 0 Days

The new date of Substantial Completion will be Unchanged

Construction Manager Subcontractor

Signature Signature

Printed Name and Title Printed Name and Title

Date Date

Jonesplan, LLC

8/16/2019

CHANGE ORDER

Jonesplan, LLC

Gorman Construction Company

Tower Center at Unity Square

City of Bartlesville

Adjustment of Contract price to deduct CMU block toilet partitions from the Base Bid and to replace with phenolic core toilet 
partitions. This Change Order is contingent on the approval of Bartlesville City Council.



Project Name

Owner Contractor

Change Order Number     #1 Original Contract Date

The Contract is changed as follows:

The original Contract Sum was: $310,000.00

Net amount of previous change orders $0

The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was $310,000.00

Total amount of this Change Order $16,734.00

The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be $326,734.00

The Contract Time will be changed by the following number of days 0 Days

The new date of Substantial Completion will be Unchanged

Construction Manager Subcontractor

Signature Signature

Printed Name and Title Printed Name and Title

Date Date

8/26/2019

CHANGE ORDER

Jonesplan, LLC

Third Generation Electrical, Inc.

Tower Center at Unity Square

City of Bartlesville

Jonesplan, LLC

Adjustment of Contract price to deduct the value of six (6) F1 lighted bollards, and to deduct the value of one (1) F9 light pole 
from the project base bid amount. In addition, this Change Order will add Bid Alternate Item # 5, (23) concrete-embedded F5 
lights. This Change Order is contingent on the approval of Bartlesville City Council.



Agenda Item _______ 
September 3, 2019 

Prepared by Tracy Roles, Police Chief 
Police Dept. 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Discuss and take possible action to adopt an agreement with Tri-County Technology Center for 
leasing of office space for East Side Substation of the Bartlesville Police Department. 
  
Attachments: 

Lease Agreement 
 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
The Bartlesville Police Department staff wants to establish an East Side Substation.  The 
headquarters for this department is located in the downtown area.  The substation will allow 
police officers to be more effective and available to the public.  Officers will have more of a 
presence on the East side of Bartlesville.  Officers will be able to use the dedicated office space 
to prepare reports, etc. without traveling to the West side.  This will also enable officers to 
respond to calls in progress with a better response time.  The substation will benefit the 
community with another location and more effective police officers in their area.  
 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends that Council adopt the lease agreement with Tri-County Technology. 

 

12



1 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
 

This LEASE AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made this ____ day of August, 2019, by 
and between TRI COUNTY TECHNOLOGY CENTER ("Landlord") and the CITY OF 
BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA ("Tenant"). 

 
R E C I T A L S :  

 
A. Landlord is the owner of the Tri County Technology Center Bartlesville Campus 

located at 6101 Nowata Road, Bartlesville, Oklahoma ("Campus"). Tenant desires to lease office 
space on the Campus from the Landlord for the purpose of providing a satellite office to the 
Bartlesville Police Department. The total space to be leased shall consist of six offices containing 
approximately 1266 square feet with access to the building’s common areas and parking lots (the 
“Leased Premises”).  The Leased Premises are further described and depicted on the floor plan 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 

 
B. Upon the terms and conditions herein stated, Landlord desires to lease existing 

office space to Tenant and Tenant desires to lease the office space from Landlord. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein 

contained, and intending to be legally bound, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
1. Lease. Upon the terms and conditions hereinafter stated, Landlord hereby leases 

the Leased Premises described above to Tenant and Tenant hereby leases the Leased Premises 
from the Landlord.  The Landlord reserves the right to relocate the Leased Premises to 
comparable space on the Campus, provided the Landlord pays any expenses associated with 
relocation. 

 
2. Term and Renewal. The term of this Agreement begins on the date of execution 

and ends on June 30, 2020, unless terminated at an earlier date as provided herein. Upon the 
termination of this Agreement, by lapse of time or otherwise, Tenant agrees to surrender 
possession of the Leased Premises to Landlord in good condition and repair, subject to ordinary 
wear and tear and subject to damage caused by fire or other casualties. This Agreement may be 
renewed for additional one (1) year periods (running from July 1 to June 30) by mutual 
ratification of renewal by the governing boards of Landlord and Tenant. 

 
3. Rental.  For the use and possession of the Leased Premises, Tenant agrees to pay 

Landlord rent in the amount $100 per month.  The rental amount is subject to change upon 
mutual agreement for any renewal period. The Landlord will invoice the Tenant for the rent on a 
semi-annual basis at the end of each six-month period and Tenant agrees to pay such invoice 
promptly upon receipt. Invoicing and payment schedule may be changed by mutual agreement 
between the parties. As additional consideration for the lease of the Leased Premises, Tenant 
agrees to provide a regular police presence on the Campus and to park its marked police cars on 
the Campus’ East and West parking lots. 

 

Attachment for Agenda Item 12



2 

4. Use. The space will be used by Tenant for the purpose of providing office and 
meeting space for Tenant's police officers and for no other purpose. Tenant specifically agrees 
that it will not use the Leased Premises for the detention of prisoners or for the storage of 
weapons and ammunition.  Tenant agrees that its operations in the office space will be in full 
and strict compliance with the requirements of applicable state, municipal, and federal laws, 
rules, and regulations. In the event that Landlord reasonably determines that Tenant is not 
complying with the provisions of this Agreement concerning the nature and character of the 
operation, Landlord shall give Tenant written notice. If Tenant fails to correct deficiencies in the 
operation within fifteen (15) days after receipt of Landlord's notice, Landlord shall have the 
right to terminate this Agreement; provided, however, if the deficiency is of a nature which 
cannot be reasonably expected to be cured within fifteen (15) days, Tenant shall commence 
appropriate curative action within such fifteen (15) day period and carry such curative action 
forward diligently until completing such curing, and in the event of such curing, in accordance 
with the provisions of this sentence, Landlord shall not have the right to terminate except as 
otherwise provided in this Agreement. 

5. Alterations, Additions or Improvements. Landlord agrees to provide 
reasonable and necessary office furniture and to provide new paint and carpet for the Leased 
Premises.  Landlord shall have no other obligation to provide equipment or to perform other 
work of any nature to make the Leased Premises ready for Tenant’s use at any time during the 
Term of this Agreement.  Tenant has inspected the Leased Premises with these considerations in 
mind and accepts the same in its present condition. 

No alterations, additions, or improvements to the office space may be made by Tenant 
without the written consent of the Landlord. Tenant must submit a written proposal to the 
Landlord and receive written approval from the Landlord before beginning any alteration, 
addition, or improvement. 

6. Utilities and Custodial Services. Landlord shall provide, at Landlord’s expense, 
normal utility services, including water, heating and air conditioning, sewer, refuse disposal, 
and electricity.  Routine custodial services will be provided by Landlord, at Landlord’s expense, 
for the Leased Premises on a daily basis after normal operation hours.  Landlord shall provide, 
at Landlord’s expense, security services to the Leased Premises during Tenant’s regular 
business hours. 

7. Liability Insurance. Tenant shall furnish Landlord with a certificate of public 
liability insurance providing at least One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) of combined single limit 
coverage. Tenant's insurance will be primary over any liability insurance of Landlord. The 
certificate shall provide for at least ten (10) days' written notice to Landlord before cancellation 
of the policy or reduction of the coverage for any reason, including nonpayment of the premium. 
Tenant agrees to maintain the above insurance coverage in force and effect during the entire 
term of this Agreement. All property of Tenant at the office space shall be there at Tenant's sole 
risk and Landlord will not be liable for any loss, theft, damage, destruction of, vandalism to, or 
disappearance of Tenant's property at the office space from any cause or event. 

8. Indemnification. Tenant shall, to the extent permitted by law, indemnify and 



3 

hold the Landlord harmless from and against all liabilities, obligations, damages, claims or 
actions, and from all associated costs, including reasonable attorneys' fees, arising from or 
related to the Tenant's use and occupancy of the Leased Premises, whether or not created by the 
Tenant. If any such action or proceeding is brought against the Landlord, the Tenant, upon 
written notice from the Landlord, shall at Tenant's sole cost and expense, resist or defend the 
same through counsel satisfactory to Landlord. This indemnity is supplemental to, and not in 
lieu of, the insurance required of Tenant. The parties acknowledge that each are subject to the 
provisions of the Government Tort Claims Act (Okla. Stat. tit. 51, Sec 151 et. seq.). 

9. Damage by Fire or Other Casualty.  If the Leased Premises are destroyed or 
substantially damaged by fire or other casualty, either Tenant or Landlord can terminate this 
Lease. The office space shall be deemed to be "substantially damaged" if Tenant’s use and 
occupancy is adversely affected and if, by the exercise of reasonable diligence on the part of the 
contractor or contractors involved, such damage could not be reasonably expected to be repaired 
within one (1) month after the occurrence of such damage. 

10. Notices. Any notices required or contemplated under this Agreement shall be 
addressed to the parties as follows: 
 
  If to the District:  Lindel Fields, Superintendent 
      Tri County Technology Center 
      6101 Nowata Road 
      Bartlesville, OK 
 
  If to the Tenant:  Jason Muninger, City Clerk 

City of Bartlesville 
401 S. Johnstone 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 
All notices shall be sent certified mail, return receipt requested. Notices mailed in 

accordance with the foregoing shall be deemed to have been delivered five (5) days after deposit 
in the U.S. Mail. 

11. Tenant's Default. Tenant's failure to perform any obligation to Landlord arising 
under this Agreement within thirty (30) days after notice from Landlord, specifying with 
particularity the obligation in which Landlord claims that Tenant is in default. Upon the 
occurrence of an uncorrected event of default, after notice and opportunity to cure aforesaid, 
Landlord shall have the right to terminate this Agreement and Tenant's rights hereunder, 
including the right to occupy the office space. Tenant may terminate this Agreement for any 
reason upon thirty (30) days' written notice to Landlord. 

12. Non-Discrimination. Tenant agrees that it will not discriminate on the basis of 
race, color, religion, age, national origin, genetic information, gender, sexual orientation, or 
handicapped condition in the conduct of Tenant's programs conducted on the Landlord's 
property and in the office space. 



4 

13. Risk of Loss. Landlord shall have no responsibility for any loss of, damage to, or 
destruction or disappearance of any of Tenant's property, whether on Landlord premises or in 
the Leased Premises, and Tenant assumes the risk of any and all such loss. Tenant understands 
that Landlord does not and will not maintain any insurance covering Tenant's property. Tenant 
waives any right of subrogation on behalf of its insurance carrier against Landlord for any loss 
of, damage to, or destruction or disappearance of Tenant's property, whether occurring on 
Landlord's premises or in the Leased Premises. 

14. Venue / Governing Law. The laws of the State of Oklahoma shall govern this 
Agreement. Any dispute between the parties arising out of this Agreement shall be brought in 
the Landlord Court of Washington County, Oklahoma or the United States District Court for the 
Northern District of Oklahoma, if federal court jurisdiction exists. 

15. Approvals and Consents. In all instances in this Agreement in which any matter 
is subject to the agreement of both parties or to the approval or consent of either party, both 
parties agree that such approval or consent will not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or 
delayed. 

16. Miscellaneous. This instrument represents the entire understanding between the 
parties hereto concerning the subject matter hereof and may be modified only by the mutual 
written agreement of the parties. This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties and their 
respective successors and assigns. Time is the essence of the obligations of the parties herein. 
Tenant shall not advertise or represent that Tenant is sponsored by or affiliated with Landlord. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Lease Agreement as 
of the date first above written. 

TRI COUNTY TECHNOLOGY CENTER CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
 
 
 
By       By       
 President, Board of Education   Mayor 
 
“Landlord”      “Tenant” 
        

       Attest___________________________________ 
        City Clerk 


	City Council Agenda September 3, 2019
	Agenda Item 4.a. Fouts Day 9-23-19
	Dale Copeland, Ward 1 and Mayor
	Paul Stuart, Ward 2
	Jim Curd, Jr., Ward 3
	___________________________
	Alan Gentges, Ward 4 and Vice Mayor
	Trevor Dorsey, Ward 5

	Agenda Item 4.b. Library Card Sign-Up Month September 2019
	Dale Copeland, Ward 1 and Mayor
	Paul Stuart, Ward 2
	Jim Curd, Jr., Ward 3
	__________________________
	Alan Gentges, Ward 4 and Vice Mayor
	Trevor Dorsey, Ward 5

	Agenda Item 4.c. Constitution Week 2019
	Dale W. Copeland, Ward 1 and Mayor
	Paul Stuart, Ward 2
	Jim Curd, Jr., Ward 3
	Alan Gentges, Ward 4 and Vice Mayor
	Trevor Dorsey, Ward 5

	Agenda Item 6.a.i. City Council Minutes August 5, 2019
	Agenda Item 6.b.i. Council Staff Report Appt of Jana Tresher
	Agenda Item 6.b.i. Tresher Application
	Agenda Item 6.b.ii. NEW APPOINTMENT-MUSEUM TRUST AUTHORITY
	Agenda Item 6.c.i. HEALTH LITERACY GRANT 2020-CORRECTED
	Agenda Item 6.c.ii. CITIZENSHIP GRANT 2020
	Agenda Item 6.c.iii. W.T.COX SUBSCRIPTION SERVICE AGREEMENT
	Agenda Item 6.c.iv. KELLOGG  SOVEREIGN AGREEMENT-2019
	Agenda Item 6.c.v. Staff report CM contract_McAnaw
	Staff report CM contract_McAnaw
	A133-2009 - McAnaw_WU Bldg_v2
	ARTICLE 1   GENERAL PROVISIONS
	ARTICLE 2   CONSTRUCTION MANAGER’S RESPONSIBILITIES
	ARTICLE 3   OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES
	ARTICLE 4   COMPENSATION AND PAYMENTS FOR PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES
	ARTICLE 5   COMPENSATION FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES
	ARTICLE 6   COST OF THE WORK FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE
	ARTICLE 7   PAYMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES
	ARTICLE 8   INSURANCE AND BONDS
	ARTICLE 9   DISPUTE RESOLUTION
	ARTICLE 10   TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION
	ARTICLE 11   MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
	ARTICLE 12   SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT

	20190828144526

	Agenda Item 6.c.vi. Staff report PS contract_Freese and Nichols
	Staff report PS contract_Freese and Nichols
	20190829_01_PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT-FINAL_Signed

	Agenda Item 6.c.vii. Staff report PS contract_NEO Design
	Agenda Item 6.c.viii. Staff report PS contract_Olsson
	Agenda Item 6.c.viii.  Proposal_Hillcrest_Drive_v04_Pending JK Approval
	LETTER AGREEMENT 
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
	GENERAL PROVISIONS
	ATTACHMENT A SCOPE OF SERVICES
	ATTACHMENT B COMPENSATION AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES

	Agenda Item 6.d.i. P9 March 2019 financials
	Financials Council Cover Letter Template March
	P9 March 2019 financials
	P9 March 2019 Financials
	Cover
	TOC
	Highlights
	General Fund
	Wastewater
	Water
	Sanitation Operate
	OF - Revenue
	OF - Expense
	OF - Fund Balance

	Financial Statement Explanatory Memo


	Agenda Item 6.d.ii. P10 April 2019 Financials
	Financials Council Cover Letter Template April
	P10 April 2019 Financials
	P10 April 2019 Financials
	Cover
	TOC
	Highlights
	General Fund
	Wastewater
	Water
	Sanitation Operate
	OF - Revenue
	OF - Expense
	OF - Fund Balance

	Financial Statement Explanatory Memo


	Agenda Item 6.d.iii. P11 May 2019 Financials
	Financials Council Cover Letter Template May
	P11 May 2019 Financials
	P11 May 2019 Financials
	Cover
	TOC
	Highlights
	General Fund
	Wastewater
	Water
	Sanitation Operate
	OF - Revenue
	OF - Expense
	OF - Fund Balance

	Financial Statement Explanatory Memo


	Agenda Item 6.e.i. Price Fields-Signed Invitation
	Agenda Item 6.e.ii. Sooner Pavilion-Signed Invitation
	Agenda Item 7. Council Report Bid Recommendation
	Agenda Item 7. Attachment_BID SET_07-26-2019_2019050_Sooner Park Pavilion
	Agenda Item 8. MGMT Rep Letter
	Agenda Item 8. Required Communication letter - FINAL
	Agenda Item 8. 2018 Bartlesville FINAL
	Agenda Item 9. Resolution for Incurrence of Indebtedness of BEA
	Agenda Item 10. Council Staff Report Disc Golf Proposal
	Agenda Item 11. Staff Report Change Order 1_Jonesplan_Tower Center
	Staff Report Change Order 1_Jonesplan_Tower Center
	Tower Center - Gorman Change Order #1 for Council
	Sheet1

	Tower Center - Third Generation Electrical Change Order #1 for Council
	Sheet1


	Agenda Item 12. Council Cover for East Side PD 9-3-19
	Agenda Item 12. Attachment BPD Lease Agreement

